
15.0559.02000 

Amendment to: HB 1238 

FISCAL NOTE 
Requested by Legislative Council 

01/15/2015 

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
I evels and approoriations anticioated under current law. 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds 

Revenues $0 $1, 142,573 $0 $3,020,600 $0 $3,000,000 
Expenditures $0 $1,032,067 $0 $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000 
Appropriations $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political 
subdivision 

2013-2015 Biennium 2015-2017 Biennium 2017-2019 Biennium 

Counties $0 $0 
Cities $0 $0 
School Districts $0 $0 
Townships $0 $0 

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters). 

HB 1238 provides a mechanism and authorization for an additional $1 per head mandatory but refundable state 
beef checkoff assessment. 

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal 
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis. 

$0 

$0 
$0 
$0 
$0 

Subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 4.1-03-11 provides for an additional ND assessment of $1 for each animal 
sold. On average, this will affect approximately 1-1.2 million head of cattle annually. 

Subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 4.1-03-17 provides for a refund of this state assessment within time lines 
outlined in subsection 2. Refunds were available prior to October 1, 1986 under state law. The refund rate at that 
time was 12%. To estimate cautiously, a 12% refund rate has been used in projections. 

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please: 

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget. 

The only revenue type affected by this bill is beef checkoff income. The ND Beef Commission funds are also 
considered special funds with a continuing appropriation and have no impact on the executive budget. 

2013-2015 Revenue - $1, 142,573 estimate from a combination of 13/14 actuals and 14/15 estimates. 

2015-2017 Revenue - $3,020,600 which includes an estimate of $1,020,600 from the state's half of current national 
checkoff plus interest/other income, and new revenue of $2,000,000 from new state checkoff of $1 per head on 
cattle sold. 

2017-2019 Revenue - $3,000,000 again based on state half of national checkoff and full dollar from state ·checkoff. 



B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The ND Beef Commission conducts programs designed to increase demand and profitability for the beef industry. 
Currently, the Commission employs 2 full time staff members. Programs currently include beef promotion, education, 
consumer information, industry information, research, national and international programs, and producer 
communications. 

2013-2015 expenditures -$1,032,067 which includes a combination of 13/14 actuals and 14/15 estimates. 

New funding made possible in this bill would allow for expanded programs designed to increase demand for beef. 
These programs include much needed beef product research at our state institutions, along with expanded reach to 
our beef consumers, health professionals and educators. It would also provide funding to reinstate effective beef 
promotion programs that have been discontinued due to increased costs and reduced funding and purchasing 
power of the beef checkoff. 

2015-2017 expenditures - $3,000,000 which includes $1,000,000 from state half of national checkoff funds, an 
estimate of 12% refunds from new state checkoff dollars at $240,000, and $1,760,000 for increased programs of 
beef promotion, research, education, consumer information, industry information, and producer communications at 
the state, national and international level. One staff position that is currently open, due to a retirement and reduced 
funds, would also be filled. 

2017-2019 expenditures - $3,000,000 total including $1,000,000 from state half of national checkoff and $2,000,000 
(less refund requests)from state checkoff program. 

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

The ND Beef Commission has a continuing appropriation and all funds are used for beef demand building activities. 

Name: Nancy Jo Bateman 

Agency: ND Beef Commission 

Telephone: 701-328-5120 

Date Prepared: 01/22/2015 
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The only revenue type affected by this bill is beef checkoff income. The ND Beef Commission funds are also 
considered special funds with a continuing appropriation and have no impact on the executive budget. 

2013-2015 Revenue - $1, 142,573 estimate from a combination of 13/14 actuals and 14/15 estimates. 

2015-2017 Revenue - $3,020,600 which includes an estimate of $1,020,600 from the state's half of current national 
checkoff plus interest/other income, and new revenue of $2,000,000 from new state checkoff of $1 per head on 
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B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected. 

The ND Beef Commission conducts programs designed to increase demand and profitability for the beef industry. 
Currently, the Commission employs 2 full time staff members. Programs currently include beef promotion, education, 
consumer information. industry information. research, national and international programs, and producer 
communications. 

2013-2015 expenditures -$1,032,067 which includes a combination of 13/14 actuals and 14/15 estimates. 

New funding made possible in this bill would allow for expanded programs designed to increase demand for beef. 
These programs include much needed beef product research at our state institutions. along with expanded reach to 
our beef consumers, health professionals and educators. It would also provide funding to reinstate effective beef 
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C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation. 

The ND Beef Commission has a continuing appropriation and all funds are used for beef demand building activities. 

Name: Nancy Jo Bateman 

Agency: ND Beef Commission 

Telephone: 701-328-5120 

Date Prepared: 01 /22/2015 
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

Relating to an increase in the assessment on cattle; and to provide an expiration date 
(Fisca l note) 

Minutes: Ii Attachments #1-28 

Chairman Dennis Johnson Co-Sponsor: HB 1238 is the check-off increase for the 
livestock industry. It a l lows for an additional $1 check off. Two things I wanted to see in 
the bil l :  
-the ability to have a refund if so requested 
--if it is increased at the nationa l level, North Dakota's increase would go away. It would 
consistently stay at $2 rather than go to $3. 

Representative Boe: Supports the check off increase. 

Julie Ellingson, ND Stockmen's Assn.: (Attachment #1) 

(10:40) 
Representative Alan Fehr: Why not increase 50 cents? 

Julie Ellingson: Inflation drops the value of the dol lar to about 40% of what it was in 1985. 

Representative Jessica Haak: If they want to opt out. How long does it take to get back 
the money? 

Julie Ellingson: The beef check off does not have a refund provision because there is a 
national program? Other state commodity check offs do have the refund provision. In 
visiting with other com modity check off leaders, there is  a 60 day window to request a form. 
Once they receive a form they have 90 days to send it in. Those refunds are processed in 
a day. We would have the same expectations . 

Representative Craig Headland: What is the average number annual ly of sales of beef 
that go through sales barns? 
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Julie Ellingson: The revenue at the Beef Commission has varied about $1.1 to 1.5 mil l ion. 
So we would anticipate that we can double the amount of money. Now there is no refund 
provis ion but there would be an allowance for those that want to refund with this bil l .  

Chairman Dennis Johnson: What about out-of-state sale barns? 

Julie Ellingson: North Dakota producers would be subject to this law. There is reciprocity 
with other state beef councils about col lecting those dol lars and remitting them to the state 
of origin. 

Representative Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: How many producers are in the state of North 
Dakota? 

Julie Ellingson: About 10,000 beef producers in ND according to National Agriculture 
Statistics Information. 

Representative Joshua Boschee: I struggle with trying to understand the role of the 
legislature vs . the industry deciding. 

Julie Ellingson: Every state is a litt le different about how their check off program is 
included in state law. The way to create an enhancement to the check off is through the 
legislative process because it is in Century Code. Producers also have a say in this at the 
time of marketing because of the refund provisions. 

Representative Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: Is there the mechanism to opt out? It seems 
cumbersome? 

Julie Ellingson: Our goa l is to be simp le. We anticipate forms would be available at the 
auction market or  printed off the internet. 

Representative Alisa Mitskog: Where are we as a state in comparison for check off 
dol lars? 

Julie Ellingson: Everyone pays a $1 assessment because of the national law. There are 
12 other states that have an assessment beyond that. Those vary from an additional 50 
cents to $2. 

Representative Dwight Kiefert: I realize we want to keep al l  check offs uniform . Do you 
see a compromise that would keep both sides happy? 

Julie Ellingson: There was a lot of t ime and thought put into this bi l l. It a l lows producers 
to spend their money to do better th ings. Those that don't want to participate have the 
ability to be out of the process with a refund. This also has a release va lve that if the 
national check off would be increased, this would sunset. 

Representative Alan Fehr: In reference to your testimony to pool resources with partners 
for national and internationa l programs. Where do these funds go? Who are the 
researchers? Who makes the decision what kind of research they do? 
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Julie Ellingson: An example is the U .S. Meat Export Federation. This is a national arm 
that helps promote U .S .  beef in p laces around the world. We rely on our  international 
markets. About $300 is added to the price of every anima l  due to exports. They eat parts 
that we are not interested in such as tongues, livers, etc. We can add value to our carcass. 

Jason Schmidt, Rancher: In strong support of H B  1238. Served as President of the ND 
Stockmen's Association, Chairman of the North Dakota Beef Commission, and Region 7 
Vice President for the Nationa l Cattlemen's Beef Association. NCBA is a 30,000 member 
grass roots organization that has put together a group of individuals from outside the 
industry to contract for the check off dol lars. They have put together p rofessionals in the 
advert is ing world, nutritionists, and chefs working together to forward those ads and 
commercials we have seen throughout the years. I have sat on the com mittee that spends 
those dol lars .  I've seen it come fu l l  circle where a l l  those dol lars get spent. 

One of the reasons I feel so strongly about the check off can be i l lustrated in this chart. 
(Attachment #2) I first saw this chart when I was at a national meeting for the North Dakota 
Beef Commission. To me th is is the reason why we have a beef check off? Down the 
center of the country in blue are the p la ins states--the cowicalf country. 62% of our check 
off is col lected from these states. Yet there is only 15% of the entire country's popu lation in 
those states. On the coasts h ighlighted in red, three states on each coast also account for 
15% of the popu lation yet a lmost none of the cattle. This is why we banded together to 
further the cause so we can advertise and sel l our  product where the popu lation is. 
Even the little town of Medora was based on that concept where they had a packing plant 
and with refrigeration tried to ship their product to the coasts. 

(26:50) 
An example of how we partner together to help our causes (I saw this whi le I served on the 
National Food Service Committee on behalf of the Beef Commission): 

The first partnership was with Applebee's Restaurant. We took a product that was too 
expensive on their menu . With check off research that was conducted in a kitchen using 
new products developed from the chuck we brought a more affordable product to their 
menu cal led the Bourbon Street Steak. That item is sti l l  on the menu 12 years later. They 
poured mil lions of dol lars into that campaign once they could see the value of it. 

Another partnership is with Quiznos Restaurant that was com peting with Subway. We 
worked with them and found a less expensive cut of beef. It helped increase the price of 
our  cows because we brought it in as a prime rib sandwich from cows instead of from 
ca lves . Also 12 years later it is on their menu and one of their best sellers. 

Currently USDA is working on new dietary guidel ines for the food pyramid. The 
recommendation is to take lean meats out of the food pyramid. They have no scientific 
evidence for it. 

There are 12 other states that have a l ready increased their state check offs. It is being 
worked on nationally. In each state that has passed the check off, people realize the 
importance. 
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Sixty years ago the N D  Beef Council was formed by the Stockmen's Association in this 
state. From there more and more states came along. Eventua l ly we got to a nationa l  check 
off so that we could promote beef as a whole. It is a constant battle to make sure the 
misinformation is countered with facts. 

Th is bil l  has the refund component. One more dol lar  doesn't even keep up with inflation .  
This i s  a state law s ince 1985 when the national check off passed. This i s  not a new law. 
We are on ly adding to the assessment so we can help bolster the support on a national  
level. 

"Beef, it's what's for D inner" is one of the most recogn izable cam paigns.  That was 
developed with beef check off dollars. 

(36:34) 
Representative Jessica Haak: What percentage of the dol lar goes out of state? 
Is  any of it used for policy? 

Jason Schmidt: We are mandated to send 50 cents out of state. The other 50 cents is up 
to the local beef commission . Research done at N DSU worked on ca lcium studies in 
women who were on diets trying to figure out how to keep from losing bone. We brought in  
a couple hundred thousand dollars of our money. We a lso went to the national check off 
and they brought in  m uch more. That n ine member board considers a l l  options.  This 
addit ional dol lar  would g ive the decision to the Beef Commission to spend where they see 
the most value. 

There is none used for pol icy. The Federation of State Beef Councils is where the 
additional money can go from the Beef Commission. When I go to national  meetings, it is a 
separate group.  The reason the group came into being is because of g roups l ike the N D  
Beef Commission. Al l  the states wanted representation o n  a national  level. 

Representative Alisa Mitskog: The states with increased check off? Are they the cattle 
producing states? 

Jason Schmidt: We have Idaho, Kentucky, Texas, etc. It is a m ix from a l l  over the 
country. It is when the individua l  state producers get together and further the cause. More 
and more states are talking about it. Most of us want it increased on a national  level. 

Representative Alan Fehr: You gave examples with Applebees and Qu iznos. I n  your 
opin ion had these dolla rs not gone into develop the menu items, wou ld the industry come 
up with something else? 

Jason Schmidt: These were new items that they were unsure of and so they didn't want 
to stick money into that product. We did some testing in our kitchen to put these products 
together for test markets . We also partnered with Boston Market that only served chicken 
and fish .  We worked with them for a coup le of years. They added two beef items that are 
sti l l  on the menu today. 

-
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(43:56) 
Larry Schnell,  Auctioneer from Dickinson: I have served on the N D  Beef Commission 
as a member and as a chairman and a Region 7 Vice President for the Federation. The 
staff in North Dakota has formed relationships with people who make decisions about beef. 
That includes dieticians, nutritionists, and doctors. They can get more done than any one 
rancher. We need to promote our own product. This is handled by North Dakotans. 

Agriculture in the Classroom teaches fifth graders about the good aspects of beef. 

Representative Craig Headland: Has anyone complained to you about the $1  check off? 

Larry Schnel l: I t  is rarely about the check off. It is usually about the attachment with the 
National Cattlemen's Beef Association. 

There is no question that the price of cattle is high. The average calf today is selling for 
$ 1 ,500 a head. When one dollar of that is being used to promote the product, that is 
1 /1 500th used for promotion. 

Jerry Effertz, Rancher, McHenry County (Attachment #3) 

(52) 
Brian Amundson, Rancher, Stutsman County (Attachment #4a & b) 

(57:20) 
Sheyna Strommen, Rancher, Fort Rice (Attachment #5) 

(1 :01 )  
Tom Lilja, Executive Director, ND Corn Growers Association (Attachment #6) 
( 1  :04) 
Justin Bartholomay, College Student Planning to Ranch (Attachment #7) 

Additional written testimony provided in  support but not heard (Attachments #1 5-25) 

(1 : 08) 
Opposition : 

Larry Kinev, Board Chairman of the Independent Beef Association of ND 
(Attachment #8) 
Offered amendment. 

( 1 : 1 7) 

Representative Cynthia SchreiberaBeck: 
organization? 

Larry Kinev: About 300. 

How many beef producers are in your 
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Representative Alan Fehr: I s  it your suggestion that we do an amendment that the 
dol lars don't go out of state? 

Larry Kinev: Cattle people are an independent group.  When the orig ina l  check off was 
passed, it was set up to keep out government involvement. Yet here we are. I hope we 
have further discussion and this isn't the end. 

Representative Jessica Haak: The bi l l  a l lows for an "opt out ." How do you feel about 
that? 

Larry Kinev: The opt-out provision is a fluffy part that makes it more sellable. We have 
talked about "opt i n . "  They say nobody wil l pay it. Today you can contribute more if you 
want. 

Representative Tom Kading: Of the 300 members , how many don't l ike this bil l? 

Larry Kinev: After our convention we send out all of our pol icy to every member. Every 
member gets to vote on it. At our convention we had about 60 people in attendance. 90% 
of them voted. Al l  are not in favor of the increase. 

Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: Wou ld it make any difference if they have the option at the 
time of sale that the dol lar  is not withheld? 

Larry Kinev: It wou ld ease some. My biggest concern is the amendment. An interesting 
part of the check off debate is that Secretary Vilsack offered a tandem check off nationally 
which had the chance to raise $80-100 mi l l ion more. It never made it through the 
comment period. The National Cattlemen's Beef Association was very m uch against it 
because they were afraid that outside interests would get seats on the board. 

Representative Craig Headland: You support a l l  the efforts the N D  Beef Commission 
makes toward research and marketing. You a lso mentioned that 40% of the current dollar  
goes to admin istration . By adding another dol lar i t  doesn't have an impact on 
admin istration costs . The extra dol lar would go to marketing and research wh ich are things 
you said you support. 

Larry Kinev: I fear those dol lars wi l l  be used for admin istrative costs further up the l ine. If 
this bi l l  passes, I want a l l  of it to stay in  the state. We have good research faci l ities in  the 
state at N DSU and other medica l facilities. 

Representative Craig Headland: So you don't object to the dol lar. If there was language 
in  the bill that the dol lar stayed in N D, would you not object to this bi l l? 

Larry Kinev: I object to this bi l l .  I wou ld l ike to see it put to a vote of the producers . 
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(1 :25) 
Dwight Keller, Rancher, Mandan (Attachments #9a & 9b) 

At I BAND we don't a l low nonproducers to vote. You have to have cattle to vote. Let the 
cattle producers decide this. Our pol l was 132 to 8 in opposition to raising the check off. 

Most state check off programs, l ike the corn check off, spend a big percentage on research .  
The ND Beef Commission does not. I have included an audit of the 2014 Beef 
Commission. You wi l l  see that administration costs were 40-45%. There was only $681 
spent on research .  Last year they sent $137,232 to national and international programs. 
That money is subject to implementation fees. They also increased their bottom l ine by 
$75,883. They ended with a balance of $270,055. So why were no research projects 
funded? 

The problems are with the national organization and the amount of money used to fund the 
organization. In 1 995 they merged the beef board with NCBA (National Cattlemen's Beef 
Association) . At the time National Cattlemen's was broke. 70% of NCBA's money comes 
from the check off. Forest Roberts, as the top official ,  gets $450,000. 

If we could rewrite the check off today we could put some of these th ings in. This was one 
of the fi rst check offs written. So a lot wasn't put in place that probably should have been. 
Most producers support the theory of check off. But I th ink it is how it is managed. We 
need to let the producers put accountabi l ity into the program. 

(1 :33:47) 
Representative Dwight Kiefert: I see the possibi l ity of real izing the benefits of the check 
off. Is beef going off the menu if we don't get the extra dol lar? I don't th ink that is going to 
happen. I see a miscommunication between the beef check off people and producers. I 
don't l ike taking taxpayers' money. Do you see any common ground? 

Dwight Keller: We want it to be voted on by the people. If you look at other states, very 
few producers vote. We have to mai l  it out to get the votes. 

Other check offs spend a lot on research. If you look at the $11.20 it was only on about 
40% of the money. When BSC (mad cow disease) h it in 2003, we lost 100% of the export 
markets. We are final ly back to where we were on the exports. 

Representative Alex Looysen: A large number of the population l ives on the coasts and 
are not exposed to the beef industry l ike we are .  If we keep al l  the dol lars in state for 
research alone, how are we going to get to markets past the Midwest? 

Dwight Kel ler: There is a program cal led the Northeast Initiative. You could send money 
directly to that and it wouldn't be subject to the implementation fees. What wou ld be a 
perfect world wou ld be a check off separate from any organization and run by beef 
producers. The check off could also be collected at the final point at slaughter. 
The grocery suppl iers should be doing end point advertising . We should be doing the 
medical research through the University of North Dakota on the different fats. 
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Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: You commented that producers don't get involved. They can 
get involved with this program by opting out when they market their cattle. 

Dwight Keller: I l ike the opt-in pol icy. It would g ive a true support of the program 
immediately. If I take a load of steers to sell, I could say don't deduct the check off. With 
the opt-out pol icy, if I sel l  one bul l, they take a dol lar. I have to fi le the paperwork, send it 
in, they send it back. We spent more than the dol lar so they don't opt out. 
I would be in favor of paying the dol lar if we have accountabi l ity on the way it is spent. 

(1 :42:49) 
Dane Braun, ND Farmers Union (Attachment #1 0) 

(1 :45) 
Kenny Graner, Farmer/Rancher, Morton County (Attachment #1 1 )  

(1 :53) 
Allen Lund, Sioux County (Attachment #1 2) 

(1  :57) 
Mike Heaton, Burleigh County (Attachment #1 3) 

(2:05:45) 
Representative Dwight Kiefert: We are hearing the administration fees are where the 
concern is. In  this admin istration cost, do they employ attorneys that fight battles with the 
animal rights people? 

Mike Heaton: I cannot answer that. 

Representative Jessica Haak: You talked about decl in ing consumptions and decl in ing 
markets. Wou ldn't things be worse if there was no check off? 

Mike Heaton: I can't think of anything worse than financing my own demise . 

Representative Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: I n  looking at the charts in your testimony: 
there is a shrinking number of l ivestock operations. Is it just beef or are pork, dairy, etc. 
included? What is the number of head of an imals? 

Mike Heaton: That chart showing decl in ing operations is beef alone. The other graphs in 
that chart are labeled for pork, poultry, and sheep. 

Representative Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: There is no head count? Operations can 
decline but does the head count remain the same? 

Mike Heaton: The cow herd has shrunk also. 

Additional written testimony provided in opposition but not heard 
(Attachments #26-28) 
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Neutral: 

(2:09: 1 8) 
Nancy Jo Bateman, Executive Director, ND Beef Commission: (Attachment #14) 
The beef commission has to provide an annual audit. 

(2:25:1 4) 
Representative Jessica Haak: Would the ND Beef Commission be agreeable to a ful l  
performance audit? 

Nancy Jo Bateman: Yes. 

Representative Alisa M itskog: Who notifies the producers of the increase? 

Nancy Jo Bateman: We cannot initiate legislation or lobby. I am here to provide 
information. 

Chairman Den nis Johnson: Closed the hearing 
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Relating to an increase in the assessment on cattle; and to provide an expiration date 
(Committee Work) 

Minutes: ents #1-4 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: Handed out testimony of Ray Erbele in support and was 
unable to attend. (Attachment #1) 

Hand out of Century Code sections expla ining other commodity check off refunds. 
(Attachment #2) 

Hand out of North Dakota commodity assessments (Attachment #3) 

The reason I introduced this bi l l  was to stay consistent with other commodities. I wanted to 
make sure it was provided in there the abi l ity to get a refund if they didn't want to 
participate . 

Also if it is increased at the national level ,  this increase would go away. 

Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: Handed out proposed amendment (Attachment #4) 
I bel ieve in the pol itical arena. Al l  ideas need to be heard. It is requiring a referendum to 
be voted on. I would not support the amendment but it needs to be offered. 

The $1 in current pol icy has been in for many years. It is not based on gross dol lars. It is a 
small part of the check off. Raising it to $2 doubles that. If it is based on gross dollars, it 
can be more costly. 

Representative Joshua Boschee: Moved the amendment. 

Representative Diane Larson: Seconded the motion 
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Representative Diane Larson: Although other commod ities have done the "opt out" 
rather than "opt in", a lot of times it is based on the value. If you are sell ing a bu l l  for 
$80, 000 vs. a steer for $ 1 , 500--maybe it should be based on va lue l ike some other 
commodities rather than per head . 

If I was raising cattle and I could be convinced that the beef check off provided great value 
to me then I would want to participate by add ing another dol lar to get even more value.  If I 
was not convinced that I would get more value, I would be very unhappy that the leg islature 
forced this on me. Because of that I wi l l  support the amendment. 

Vice Chair Wayne Trottier: One important point, after studying the amendment there is 
no fiscal note and it wil l  take money to do the referendum. So it is impossible to do the 
amendment without fund ing . 

Representative Alan Fehr: I understand this amendment is asking for an election. There 
is a 1 0-day window for participants to become qual ified . Could someone clarify how this 
works beyond the funding question? 

Representative Craig Headland: I am going to resist the amendment. 
The beef check off is a tax to fund a government agency--the Beef Commission. I th ink you 
can show how a dol lar per unit is low compared to other commodities . I th ink it is fa i r  to 
al low this check off to go up.  

Those who d isagree have the option for a refund . As a tax or fee this is the responsib i l ity of 
the legislature to set. Anytime that we need add itional revenue , are we going to go to the 
general publ ic and ask them to vote for more revenue to run our agency? I don't th ink that 
is good government. 

I 've contemplated on this for three weeks. There is not enough money generated by $1 to 
run this agency. They need more money. We need to make that tough decision. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: I wil l resist this amendment. We are straying off in another 
d i rection from the bi l l .  If you don't want to participate you can have your money back. But 
don't keep the people that want the increase to not be able to move forward . 

( 1 1 :22) 
Representative Craig Headland: I would suggest to the agency that wi l l  benefit from 
these extra dol lars. Do not lose control of this money. This money is meant to help North 
Dakota producers .  You will not be looked at very fond ly amongst the legislature if this 
money goes to the national board . 

Representative Dwight Kiefert: The question about funding the referendum--Could those 
that brought the amendment explain how they p lan to fund this? 

Representative Craig Headland: There is no mechanism for fund ing . There is only one 
place for it to come from and that is the Beef Commission. 
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Representative Jessica Haak: Have they done this in other states with the referendum 
or even in other commodities? I thought they d id this in Wyoming for the check off. 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: I can't answer for other states .  We tried to keep al l  
commod ities the same. 

Representative Jessica Haak: Have other commodities run into the resistance that we 
have seen with the opposition? 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: I refer back to the day we had the increase on wheat. It 
was stand ing room only and they were l ined in the hal l .  I t  was increased . Life went on. 
We haven't heard anything since. 

Representative Cynthia Schreiber-Beck: This amendment is here . Is there an 
opportunity to forgo the refund for the vote? 

Chairman Denn is Johnson: We wi l l  take a Roll Cal l vote on the amendment. 

A Rol l  Call vote was taken on the amendment: Yes i, No 8 , Absent 0 

Chairman Dennis Johnson: Amendment fai ls. 

Representative Craig Headland: Moved Do Pass on HB 1238. 

Vice Chair  Wayne Trottier: Seconded the motion 

(16:25) 
Representative Joshua Boschee: I wi l l  support the bi l l  because of the refund option. It is 
important that the Beef Commission do what it can to heal what needs to be done in the 
producer community. It is tough when we are put into the midd le.  Make sure the dol lars 
stay local and that it is impacting research in our state and marketing our products. 

There are some things that need to work out and heal in the ranching community. 

Representative Al isa Mitskog: I a lso support what Representative Joshua Boschee says. 
I would stress making the refund process as efficient as possible. 

Representative Dwight Kiefert: I echo what Representative Head land said . I thought 
about this the last three weeks. Being a farmer, I understand both sides. This one had no 
compromise. The refund wil l  be the compromise. We need to work with our producers and 
help them understand and get them on board . 

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes ..J.L, No 2 , Absent 0 

Do Pass carries . 

Representative Looysen wi l l  carry the bi l l .  
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The North Dakota Beef Commission shall, ;ff.ta Bl!Ms official notice through 

public press and state wide newspapers, offer a vote for qualified checkoff participants 

eighteen years of age or over. Passage would require a simple majority. 

After two weeks notice of election, participants shall have no less than ten 

business days to prove participation in the check off within a year prior to the date of 

the election. Once qualification is established voters may obtain a ballot from polling 

locations deemed most convenient by the commission within the county of their 

residence. 

A vote of participating producers shall be held every 5th year thereafter to 

continue or reject additional dollars to the state beef checkoff. 

1 
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Explanation or reason for introduction o 

Relating to the beef check-off 

Minutes : ents: #1-29 

Chairman Mi l ler opened the hearing on HB 1 238. 

Representative Johnson, District 15 introduced HB 1 238. Stated that the bi l l  brought 
forth for the stockman and would request a dollar a head increase on the check-off. There 
is a dol lar in p lace now: fifty cents goes to the nationals and fifty cents is retained in ND.  
The dol lar increase wou ld be used in ND and the caveat is  that i t  is  refundable for those 
who do not want to participate. The other piece of the legislation states that if the national 
check-off goes to two dollars, the extra dol lar here wou ld go away. 

Senator Klein stated that Representative Johnson was a producer and fami l iar with check 
of programs. He asked if Representative Johnson saw this process as being a more difficult 
refundable dol lar than other commodities in the state? 

Representative Johnson : There are about 1 2  commodity groups in N D  that have a check­
off program. Of those, there are six that do not have a refundable option. Over the interim 
we had studied the check-offs with the different commodity groups and we've tried to bring 
them all to a similar situation. Wheat and the other ones you can get the refund after you've 
marketed the gra in  and you have 60 days to apply for the refund. Including that sixty days, 
up to n inety days, the refund has to be sent back to you .  If you have more of that product 
sold, you can get an additional refund. There's no cutoff un less it's in the same sixty days of 
buying .  That's how the other commodities work, so the folks that have this check-off, it 
wou ld be up to them to fashion how their check-off refund works. 

Senator Erbe le (4:45) submitted testimony from nephews (see attachment #1 ) and spoke 
in favor of H B  1 238. He stated that as a legis lator, he was in a difficult spot because there 
are people on both sides of the issue but as Representative Johnson stated, if someone 
doesn't l ike the check-off dollar, they can get a return on that dol lar. He a lso went over the 
change in the value of money and the value of beef and encouraged the beef industry to 
continue promotion .  
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Senator Bowman, District 39: (9:32) testified in support of HB 1 238. He stated that by 
putting money into the beef industry, they stabil ize that industry or hope to make it better. 
He also said that people can get their dol lar back. 

Jul ie Ell ingson, ND Stockmen's Association: (1 1 :55) (see attachment #2) 

Vice Chairman Luick: ( 1 8 :33) Can you go through the process of getting a refund? 

Julie Ell ingson, ND Stockmen's Association : It's important to know that the existing 
check-off that we have comes under the perview of a federal law and federal law does not 
provide a refund so there is no refund right now for the existing dol lar. This new 
assessment if HB 1 238 passes would fol low in line with the refund mechanisms that are set 
in place by other commod ity g roups. As an animal is sold and the check-off is collected, 
there would be an opportunity to request a refund sheet. The time frame that was outl ined 
was the 60 days to get the form, 90 days to return that to the ND Beef Commission which is 
the one that would administer the program. That would be rendered back to the producer in 
the form of the refund check. 

Chairman Mi l ler: Do you see any kind of website component? 

Julie Ell ingson : In terms of the administrative process, the Stockman's Association 
wouldn't be the one to provide that. It would be a streamline systime that wou ld make that 
as simple as possible while making sure that the accountabi l ity and verification to make 
sure that the transaction is on the up-and-up and that the information gathered is al l  the 
information that's needed to verify that transaction is included . We a lso would share the 
vision of a stream-l ine process. 

Senator Larsen: Do you have a l ist of activist organizations that aren't friendly? 

Julie Ell ingson: Unfortunately, the l ist is robust. The beef industry constantly battles 
misinformation, not only from activist's organizations that have malicious attempts but a lso 
from consumers who don't understand the industry and are fed some misinformation. The 
beef check-off is an important component in helping science base information to counter 
some of those accusations . One example that comes to m ind is the rhetoric and media on 
beef impact on the environment. 

Senator Klein: I 've been hearing that we should proceed by way of referendum. Where 
and who would fund that sort of vote? 

Julie El l ingson: That would be up to the legis lator to decide. The existing funds that the 
ND Beef Commission has are federal dol lars and there wou ld be a prohibition of util izing 
those existing dollars for a referendum relating to a state beef check-off. I wou ld trust that 
that wou ld be some type of appropriation that this body would have to make. 

Senator Klein :  A general fund sort of appropriation? 

Julie Ell ingson: Yes. 
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Chairman Mi l ler: Did the Stockmen's Association take a vote as a board? 

Julie Ell ingson: This has been a conversation for the better part of a decade. The last 
piece of the puzzle was a policy which mirrors HB 1 238 that's in front of you that was 
passed on our convention a couple of years ago. Leading up to that however there was a 
lot of ground work that was done to design this kind of bill and move forward in a positive 
way for our industry. We had surveys and round table discussions. 

Senator Oban: You said in your testimony (see attachment #2) that $681 went to research 
last year, O was budgeted for research this year. And then you say that this additional dollar 
the priorities wil l  be research, education, and promotion . What are the priorities now and 
why does research fal l  down to the bottom? What are the guarantees that it wou ld be spent 
in a certain  way? How do we know that the priorities are going to be in research? Do you 
use them to fight against lobbying efforts? 

Julie Ell ingson: The existing beef check-off has strong parameters I know that those 
dollars are going to be wel l  spent. 50 cents is required to be sent to the cattlemen's beef 
board. Research is a high priority, but those are high ticket items and there are only so 
many dollars. I feel confident that people who have skin in the game are going to make 
good decisions about how those dollars are spent. 

Senator Klein: 50 cents is off the table on the current table but how do the 50 cents we 
work with get distributed? 

Julie El l ingson: As described, 50 cents goes to the cattlemen's beef board and 50 cents is 
at the discretion of the N D  beef commission . There's investment in state programs. 

Senator Klein: You spoke about the beef commission making these decisions, who makes 
the decisions and who's on the board? 

Julie Ell ingson: There are nine members on the ND Beef Commission, and they can 
have ten members who represent a variety of different industry segments. There are three 
sports on the beef commission and those are governor appointed. 

Senator Schaible: (32:08) Offered proposed amendment (see attachment #3) 

Senator Klein: The commission can't use their own dol lars , wil l  there be enough money to 
run the referendum? 

Senator Schaible: It's not so much the vehicle that you use, but that you have one. 

Jason Shimdt, Rancher, Kidder County: Testified in support of H B  1 238. The use is a 
moving target. We have institutions in our state that would suggest research to us. When 
we have an effort as we do now, we have the opportun ity to make sure that we aren't doing 
redundant projects. We were able to show people on a national level to make sure that it fit 
our parameters, it was better than any project that was out there. When there are projects, I 
trust to weigh al l  the opportunities and what's best for us. 
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Recently, I have been able to be elected to the National Cattleman's Beef Association, as 
their region 7 vice president. I 've been a member for more than 20 years and we're 
concerned about our industry. 
Handed out check-off chart (see attachment #4a) 
Sale stubs (see attachment #4b) 

He went over other states that have increased the check off and estimated that in the next 
three years there wil l be 2-3 mi l l ion more cows calving throughout the US.  He stated that 
he understood that there are some producers who do not want the increase so they had 
compromised by provide an opportunity for a refund.  He stated that there was a 
referendum when the national check-off was put in place because it was mandatory without 
a refund opportunity. He said if the increase becomes national ,  there wi l l  be a referendum 
and there was no need to have the vote twice when the current increase is refundable. 
There is a vote opportunity, but there has to be 1 0% of the producers that are wi l l ing to 
bring it up for a vote for it to get off the ground . 

Chairman Mi l ler (50:50) Why do we do a dol lar per head rather than a pounds or value of 
the beef? All the other commod ities are based on a quantity of a value as opposed to a 
dollar per head where there is a huge range in  value. 

Jason Shimdt: That's been talked about for forty years. In  1 985, the reason a dol lar per 
head was passed in  the end was because of the simpl icity of it. On the grain side of th ings, 
the price can fluctuate but a lso it can be a catch-22 as a drought happens or bushels go 
down , you can see a faster shrinking of those dollars as wel l .  

Senator Larsen : How many times can one of these an imals be charged at check-off? 
Every time it goes through the sales barn? 

Jason Shimdt: Yes.  Every time that animal is sold , they will get charged that dol lar. If 
someone owns that for 1 0  days or less, they aren't obligated to send that in .  

Senator Larsen: I f  you are sel l ing cattle to your  neighbor, does the neighbor have to do 
the check-off or does i t  have to go through a sales barn to get the check-off? 

Jason Shimdt: When it is a private treaty sale, they have a compl iance person at the 
Stockman's Association.  Everyone is supposed to pay the check-off; some ways are easier 
than others to collect .  

Senator Klein : You probably haven't seen the amendment, but you probably had reference 
for the referendum. As I understand it, if the referendum was in itiated and passed , a dollar 
would be assessed and there wou ld be no opportunity to refund it. 

Jason Shimdt: That is how it currently is on a national level ,  this one is refundable. I think 
if everyone votes personal ly, it should be mandatory because you have your  say in  it .  The 
reason why we went with the refund process over the referendum process was so that if 
people aren't happy with it they can get it back each time rather than spending extra dol lars 
and dragging the whole process out. If it is increased on a national level ,  that referendum 
process wi l l  happen in  a couple years. 
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Senator Klein: Under the proposed check off, you have a referendum opportunity every 
time you sell your  cows to get a refund if you don't l ike the check-off as opposed to the 
mandatory option .  

Jason Shimdt: That was kind of our vision on that. I f  things change down the road and you 
feel  more comfortable, you have that choice. But you have that choice every time and you 
can vote every time you sel l .  The referendum process isn't going to be cumbersome and it 
wi l l  g ive you the opportun ity to do what you would l ike personal ly. 

Chairman Mi l ler: The amendments proposed do not strike out the refund provision,  it 
wou ld just provide a contingent effectively. 

Senator Larsen: We dealt with one of these check-offs a while ago and they had the abil ity 
to refund it and they did some analysis of what they could expect would be the short come. 
H ave you g uys done that with this model? Has there been some number crunching to see 
who was against it? 

Jason Shimdt: I think the beef commission m ight be able to g ive a historical perspective, 
years ago the state law was refundable just l ike it is on the books. The other states that 
have that clause in it varies from 1 % to 5-7% on the high end. 

Vice Chairman Luick: You are not currently on the beef commission but you probably 
have a g rasp in  the business portion .  Are people are available 5 days a week? 

Jason Shimdt: The board can do a good job explain ing the administrative process but I 
served on the beef commission for six years , there were three fu l l  time employees at the 
point now they have only retained two. They are available 24 hours a day if you need them 
but they have office hours d uring the week. The commission members are the 
representatives and people often for straight to them. 

Vice Chairman Luick: If I were to sell my l ivestock on this particu lar day of the week and 
you got the information in the beef commission's office by the end of the week, how long 
wil l  it be until that refund is back to that seller? 

Jason Shimdt: I expect it would be days, it would have to be mailed out. 

Senator Klein: Would the refund process be similar to what we establ ished for the other 
commod ities? 

Jason Shimdt: I was on the beef commission when we had the commodity groups chapter 
re-write , it is s imilar to other ones that have that clause. 

Larry Schnel l, Livestock Producer, past member of the ND Beef Commission: 
( 1  :04:00) testified in support of HB 1 238. I testify in support of HB 1 238.  I would add the ND 
dol lar on top of the national dol lar for two reasons: 1 .  There's a lot of m isinformation and 
data about beef that is not necessarily true. 2 .  I don't know what the alternative is.  Who is 
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going to do promotion,  meat packers? They are going to promote whatever makes the most 
money. If we don't do it I don't know who else is going to do it. 

Kenton Hol le, Mi lk Producers Association: (1 :07:30) There are many dairy cows that go 
through the market because a large percentage are called out of the herd and go to the 
slaughter barn when production levels aren't where they need to be. If 1 6,000 cows have 
bul l  calves, approximately 8 ,000 bul l  calves go through the market. 
As dairy producers, we do have a stake in the beef industry so it is important to know that 
the dairy industry is supporting this . When you talk about check off dol lars that come from 
producers, they come from the areas that would be produced . We are marketing to areas 
where there are more consumers so it is difficult for producers to get an understanding on 
where their dol lars are spent. It is  not as necessary in the rural areas because we 
understand where our food comes from. The large urban areas are d isconnected from 
farming that we have a strong message to share. 
We are at a d ifficult time when in animal agriculture when it comes to publ ic image. There's 
no one that can tel l  our story better than us; if we don't put forward a strong consumer 
confidence, we are going to continue to be attacked . Consumers want to know where the 
food comes from. Consumers are coming to the wrong people. I would strongly urge that 
this bi l l  is passed . 

Bart Schott, Farmer, Kulm: ( 1  : 1 3 :00) (see attachment #5) 

Jerr Effertz, Effertz Black Butte Acres: ( 1  : 1 8 :23) (see attachment #6a and #6b) 

Senator Klein: ( 1  : 2 1  :22) With your involvement at the federal level ,  some of the 
information I 'm receiving wou ld suggest that the national organization is not looking out for 
the best interest of the beef producers of the country; that aud its have revealed wrong 
doings. Since you're involved with the federa l  issues, can you expound? 

Jerr Effertz: I would take issue with your comments in terms of the audit finding wrong 
doing. To the best of my knowledge, while there have been three years of ongoing aud its 
by the department of agriculture and inspector genera l ,  while they did find some errors in 
fi l ing data in appropriate columns, that there was no actual wrong doing or misappropriation 
of funds. I would go back to the survey released by beef board in terms of the acceptance 
of the check-off by beef producers around the country. Our focus always is and wi l l  
continue to increase consumer demand of beef while increasing profitabi l ity of the beef 
producer. 

Travis Maddock, Fargo: (1 :23:40) testified in support of H B  1 238 (see attachment #7) 

Vice Chairman Luick ( 1  :30 :30) Can you g ive us some examples of research NDSU has 
been doing in the beef industry? 

Travis Maddock deferred the question to a researcher present from NDSU. 

Chairman Mi l ler: There's been some talk about opening markets in China.  Do you th ink 
you wi l l  get to the point where there will be a genera l  d imin ished support for beef? 
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Travis Maddock: As we raise price, we' l l  increase supply. 

Chairman Mi l ler: Beef is a harder animal to manage, our hurd les are qu ite substantia l .  

Travis Maddock: The check-off is a substantial tool ,  we can conduct and support 
research . We're never going to shorten up the generation interval i n  beef cattle, but through 
research we are producing more for less. The check-off dol lars pay a large role in  the 
research and d evelopment of those technolog ies. 

Senator Klein :  You spoke about China being ready, the Asian market is bringing the value 
of the critter up through tripe and tongue. What is the market in  China? 

Travis Maddock: China has been trad itional ly been a market for that, they are eating more 
of the beef. The American beef industry has evolved to be the safest and most tasty beef 
through research we have done partial ly with check-off dol lars.  Other parts of the world are 
getting a taste for our beef. 

Jolyn Warren, Producer, Hal l iday: (1 :35:42) (see attachment #8) (make copies out of 
binder) testified in favor of H B  1 238. 

Submitted Testimony from Marg ie Hande, Producer, Amidon (see attachment #9) 
testimony in favor of HB 1 238. 

Dale Zimmerman, Peacock Alley Owner: (1 :43: 1 0) testified in  support of HB 1 238. Stated 
that he was testifying to answer two questions: 1 .  Why do we need this? 2. What do we get 
from it? 
He used Peacock Al ley as an example of how beef can be marketed even when combating 
price increases. He said that although they have tripled their sales, profit has dropped . He 
stated that the beef check off is important because it g ives restaurants the abi l ity to combat 
misinformation.  He stated that the corporations are going to sel l  what sells; and unless the 
beef producers can increase the demand, the restaurants wi l l  sel l  something else. 

Chelsey Schafer, Cattle Producer: (1 :5 1  :40) (see attachment #1 0) 

Jeff Schafer, New Rockford, ND: ( 1  : 53:23) (see attachment #1 1 and #1 2) 

Submitted testimony from Jim and Jody Hauge, Mandan (see attachment #1 2) 

Scott Rising, Soybean Growers Association : (1 :55:22) (see attachment #1 3) Made 
statements regard ing the accountabi l ity the Beef Commission undergoes. 

Senator Klein :  ( 1 :58: 1 0) That check off is not refundable? Is it based on value. 

Scott Rising:  The soybean check-off is not refundable, ours is based on value. 

Sheyna Strommen, Rancher, Morton Councty: (1  :58:40) (see attachment #14) 

Submitted testimony from Justin Bartholomay, NDSU undergrad (see attachment #1 5) 
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Mike Heaton, Rancher in Burleigh County: (2 :03:00) The easiest way to support this bi l l  
is to support the amendment. A vote would simply be good 'governance. 

Kathy Tokach, Independent Beef Producer: (2 :04: 1 3) (see attachment #1 6a-1 6b) 

Steve Brooks, Beef Cattle Producer: (2 :07:40) (see attachment #1 7) 

Submitted Testimony from Steve Koester, Koester Red Angus (see attachment #1 8) 

Brian Amendson, BarV Ranch (2 : 1 0 :40) (see attachment #1 9) 

Submitted Testimony from Van Amu ndson, BarV Ranch (see attachment #20) 

Senator Oban:  (2: 1 5:34) You talked about some of your experiences in Iowa or NE ,  do 
you know if those states are considering an additional check off? 

Brian Amendson :  I can't speak to those states and what they're doing within their states at 
this time. There have been fourteen other states that have increased the check-off. 
Nationally, a l l  the states are committed to the dollar check-off. One thing that is an 
important emphasis is that this check-off reaches both ND un iversities research and 
education and also affects other states and a lot of the research and education in consumer 
promotion that we need to conduct is on the coasts. Right now in our popu lace, our dollar 
spent has more value reaching households that have no connection to agriculture. 

Senator Oban:  My on ly concern in looking at this map is that the M idwest states aren't 
increasing. 

Brian Amendson : I know nationally, they are trying to work on this.  In my opinion, I think it 
is good to be in a leadership role. 

Grady Thorsgarrd, Northwood Cattle Feeder: (2: 1 8:00) testified in support of HB 1 238. 
He expressed concern over the group in Washington that's rewriting the d ietary gu idel ines 
in America and the fact that they are trying to cut out beef. 

Opposition 

Larry Kinev, Chairman of the Independent Beef Association of ND (IBAND) : (2 : 1 9:25) 
(see attachment #21 a-e) Expressed concern that the money would go out of state. He said 
that the fifty cents that the cost of the vote and referendum could be funded by the fifty 
cents that is currently in the state from the current check-off. 

Chairman Mi l ler: (2 :22 :28) I d id receive a message from our attorney, she agrees that they 
have the "abil ity to do a l l  things necessary and proper to enforce and administer the 
chapter." 
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Larry Kinev: The last refundable check-off paid back approximately 1 6%. If the refund 
th ing stays in there ,  the first year it might be 20% or less; people are going to get tired of 
applying with the refund . I nd icated supporting ranchers HB 1 238. 

Frank Tomac, cattle rancher in  Sioux County (2:24:58) (see attachment #22) 

Senator Klein: (2:28:30) Would you be in favor of getting rid of the current check-off 
dol lar? 

Frank Tomac: That's what I would l ike to do.  

Senator Klein: I know there have been attempts to challenge that check-off. I f  there was 
another challenge, you would support that? 

Frank Tomac: Yes I would .  Secratay Vilsack tried getting that done last fal l  with another 
check-off dol lar. He tried to implement a new dol lar into the check-off system using the 
1 996 generic check-off act and the NCBA (National Cattleman's Beef Association) opposed 
it. That's another dol lar that probably would've gone to the Cattleman's beef board to do 
more research , but the leadership opposed it. Why would you support that one and then 
not support this one? 

Senator Klein: Do you attend any of the beef commission meetings? 

Frank Tomac: I 'm not aware of when the beef commission meetings are.  

Senator Klein: Have you submitted your name to be on the beef commission? 

Frank Tomac: No I have not. Currently, the ND Stockman's submit names, four members 
of the ND Stockman's are submitted to the governor for appointed-ship ,  three of then on the 
N D  Stockman's Association and one of the Feeder Counci l .  The dairy council has a seat on 
the board ,  and the l ivestock marketers have a seat on the board . The three open seats are 
on the board , but I 've never been invited to a meeting or made aware of when the meetings 
are.  Their meetings are not public knowledge. 

Fred Smith, Ranch, Wing: (2:32:00) My check-off dol lars since 1 985 which I voted for, I've 
used that check-off dol lar through these people and I've supported some of the other 
organizations but I 've never asked for the state government to use their power to tax me 
and take my money d i rectly from an independent business man. 
He used the pork check-off as an example and comparison .  

Gordon Hoberg: (2:41  : 00) (see attachment #23) 

Allen Lund, Cattle Producer, Selfridge: (2:49:00) (see attachment #24) 

Dane Braun, ND Farmers Union: (2 :52:00) (see attachment #25) 

Senator Klein: (2:53:50) Would you support that all the commod ity groups provide a 
referendum? Because your producers contribute a lot of money under commodity groups 
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and a lot of that money goes for research. The legislature changed the amount of money 
that was removed from the wheat producers, we also a l low for a refund . Why, in this 
particu lar case, does your organization opposed or wil l ing to go to a referendum where with 
other commod ity g roups you were silent? 

Dane Braun: There are 6 councils currently that provide a referendum vote out of al l  our 
councils in ND.  I was not here for the conversation regarding wheat in particu lar, I would 
have to review our policy on what we have on other aspects of other commodities. When it 
comes to the beef check-off, our members are clear that they would l ike to see a 
referendum vote and an opportunity for a refund. 

Chairman Miller: What is the difference between how the membership of the boards of 
these various councils are selected versus beef? 

Dane Braun :  I bel ieve there are some councils that are elected first that are county 
representatives that then elect a district member. The d istricts are set up based on the 
number of sales of soybeans. For example, some districts are a single county because they 
produce so many soybeans the d istricts. I bel ieve the beef commission is appointed by the 
governor. I bel ieve the wheat commission also has county representatives and those are 
elected at the county level .  I bel ieve the NDSU Extension service runs the election .  

Neutral Testimony 

Robert Maddock, Associate Professor and Extension Meat Special ist, NDSU: 
(2 :57: 1 8) Submitted testimony (see attachment #26) from Dr. Eric Berg . Provided some 
information on the research NDSU conducts . 

Senator Klein: (3:00:58) So what I heard you say was that you don't rely upon the N D  
research to come from the ND check-off, but there's a couple of projects from the MN 
check-off dol lars and  the national check-off? 

Robert Maddock: That is correct, we currently have two funded projects with check-off 
dol lars.  

Chairman Mi l ler noted that the submitted testimony from Professor Berg is a supporting 
testimony. 

Clark Price, Chairman of the Beef Commission: (3:02 : 1 0) state that he was proving 
neutral testimony and is avai lable to answer any questions. He recognized the current and 
past board members in the room. 

Senator Klein: There were some pretty pointed comments on how you operate the 
commission .  Can you let the committee know when the meetings are, how do you get 
involved? I would l ike to hear your side of the story on that. 

Clark Price: We have quarterly meetings, four a year. We a lso have committee meetings 
for budget, etc. Our meetings are open, anyone cam attend them, they are all public record . 
Like any other board , we have our committee recommendations and have those 
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recommendations come back to the ful l  board , d iscuss it, and then vote on it in that 
manner. We do our  spending in the same manner and decide what to fund.  

Chairman Miller: a q uestion about the refund provision ,  how do you anticipate 
administering something l ike that? 

Clark Price: It would be logical to keep it similar to other commodity groups. 

Senator Oban:  If this went to a group of producers, do you think it would pass? 

Clark Price : From the research that's been done, I th ink it wou ld pass. I think we have 
better than 80% of approval of the check-off existing today. 

Nancy Jo Bateman, Executive Director of ND Beef Commission : (3:06:00) (see 
attachment #27a-b) 

(3:20:30) The check off dollars we have, although the state is charged with expend ing half 
of them, we have to fol low the fu l l  federal gu idel ines and they consider it at USDA and the 
Beef Board that the ful l  dol lar has to be under their purview and there is no authorization to 
use those dol lars to do something outside that national check-off program, ie. to help 
develop or implement a d ifferent state program. 

Chairman Mi l ler: We made need to talk with some other states in that regard .  

Nancy J o  Batema n :  There are several states that have done referendums, and I have not 
talked to them about the process they went through. In several of those states they have 
one organ ization that is half check-off and the other half is thei r  producer membership 
organization ,  so there may have been other funds available that d idn 't come directly from 
check-off funds. 
(3 :21  :48) fin ished testimony (see attachment #27a-b) 

Chairman Mil ler: (3:25:30) I wou ld l ike to see the most efficient process to be put into 
place for the refund process. 

Nancy Jo Batema n :  The beef commission would also envision as easy a process as we 
can implement as long as it is consistent with state law. We also do not want to take a lot of 
time for a very short staff. Once we have a refund application in our hands and al l  of the 
documentation is accurate, I wou ld envision that we wou ld be able to have checks back to 
producers within a week.  As far as projections, we d ug back to the 1 980s and information 
from other commodity g roups and the last time we had refunds, we were looking at 
approximately a 1 2% refund rate at the ND Beef Commission . I n  the fiscal note, that's what 
we incorporated as a refund rate. Hopefully that is higher than it wi l l  ever be. 

Senator Larsen: What's your  take on the d iscussion of taxation without representation? 

Nancy Jo Bateman: I can only g ive you from my personal perspective and I have to go 
back to the l ist of where those board members came from. I would hope that there is  no 



Senate Agriculture Committee 
HB 1 238 
3/6/2015 
Page 1 2  

one who felt that there was n o  one that felt that they cou ld not contact the beef commission 
and we certain ly honor any requests and welcome any producers .  

Vice Chairman Luick: I n  your estimation , what kinds of costs wou ld be involved in your 
office to send out a refund? 

Nancy Jo Batema n :  I don't have a good hard and fast number; years ago the information 
from OMB was that it cost them $5 to issue every check, I honestly don't know. I wou ld 
have to check with OMB to find out what they feel there is for a cost for a check. 

Senator Oban:  Foing back to the d iscussion of a potential referendum,  I pul led out the 
commodity report. What is the "other revenue" from? 

Nancy Jo Bateman :  The additional income we have: the beef certificate account is strictly 
a money-in money-out program where we wi l l  issue a check that says beef g ift certificate 
on it to a person if they want to g ive a beef gift, that program costs us money. There's a lso 
interest. The other income in there is usually a reimbursement that we wou ld get from other 
check-off dol lars where we wi l l  publ ish our annual report and we would be reimbursed from 
the national office if there was printing cost, etc. There really is not other sorts of funds. 

Senator Oban:  The g ift certificate is listed as a separate l ine item, so that must not be 
included in the other revenue. 

Nancy Jo Batema n :  Yes,  because we have to deposit al l  of that into the state treasury and 
then it  goes back out of there to the Bank of ND so that runs through the income as wel l  as 
the expense. 

Senator Oban:  It's actual ly l isted separately under "other reven ue" so clearly that number is 
not being included in "other revenue" because it is listed separately. 

Nancy Jo Bateman:  One question I was ready for was,  what's the intention if we receive a 
new dollar. We don't have something in writing for the dollars because we haven't been the 
in itiator behind this legis lation because we can't lobby. Some of the d iscussion that has 
come up is that there are a tremendous number of possibi l ities; research will defin itely be a 
high priority. We wou ld a lso reestabl ish some of the programs that we have had to cut back 
on.  

There was also submitted testimony from Jamie and Clair Hauge, Ranchers, Carson : 
(see attachment #28) 

Submitted Beef Commission expenditure information (see attachment #29) . 

Chairman Mi l ler closed the hearing on HB 1 238. 
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Chairman Mil ler opened the d iscussion on HB 1 238. 

Senator Klein: Just for information,  we had a lot of d iscussion about who pays for the 
referendum. There was a lso d iscussion on if it passes is it sti l l  refundable under those 
amendments. I just want clarity on a couple of those things if we pass the amendment that 
has been offered . 

Chairman Mil ler: It's my understanding in this amendment that a l l  this would do is add to 
the bi l l  this referendum by mai l  so that it creates a contingent effective date. This would 
instead create the effective date after this referendum after this referendum is held and if it 
should pass it would become effective. The refund/rebate provision a l l  remains intact. 

Senator Oban: For the sake of d iscussion, Julie El l ingson d id clarify that money sent back 
from the federal check-off wou ld be available to be used by the referendum but they d id 
want to say they don't think it is a good use of funds, but I thought it was worth noting that 
they would be able to pay for it. 

Chairman Mi l ler: Yes, and I had that same discussion.  

Vice Chairman Luick: My question would be is the amount of money that is needed from 
this referendum.  I 'm hearing a low number and a high number and I think we need to clarify 
that. $ 1 2 ,500 up to $1 00,000. 

Chairman Mi l ler: 1 00,000 is way out of l ine. 

Vice Chairman Luick: I think it is important to identify the efforts going forward to get the 
referendum in place. I think if that were to happen, I think there would be some other things 
that we need to consider or  consider without the referendum. If we were to have the group 
that is responsible to get that refund dollar sent back, maybe put a five or six dol lar l imit on 
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the individuals that were requesting it back, it's going to be their cost to get that sent back 
to them so maybe a 5-6 head minimum. We look into the consideration of having a data 
base where basically the sellers of those cattle put in a onetime appl ication each year. It 
should not be a cumbersome event, but we should figure out a way that is going to simpl ify 
it or not at al l .  I don't think that for the benefit of the ind ividuals getting their dol lar back, 
those dol lars should not be coming from any source than from their pockets. 

Chairman Mil ler: There are a couple schools of thought, the reason there is a possibi l ity of 
getting money back is because there is no vote being held and the way to appease them is 
to give them their money back if they don't want to participate in this extra dol lar. If we do 
have a referendum, should we just have it be manqatory? That is probably also an a lright 
consideration .  

· 

Senator Warner: To Senator Luick's comment, I th ink you have a constitutional problem if 
you could charge someone money to exercise what is their right under the law. A lot of 
smal l  businesses where the money wou ld have a ten dollar minimum where the money 
continued to aggregate and they didn't lose their right to the money, the organization 
wouldn't have to incur the costs of writing the check until it accumulated to a certain level 
where is made some sense. I think that could be done by the beef commission making a 
policy that they are not going to issue a check less than ten dol lars but stating that you do 
not forfeit your  right to the money, you just have to continue to aggregate i t  unti l  i t  reaches 
the ten dol lars. 

Senator Klein I 've got a lot of folks on both sides so whatever I do here is going to be 
wrong. We've raised the wheat, soybean, flax check off. And we've resisted removing the 
mandatory check-off on potatoes. All because I firmly believe that with the abi lity to refund 
your dol lars,  you are making your statement. I don't see that this referendum would point 
out the way, especial ly if we can have a referendum and also refund the money. I think 
we're being consistent here with al l  of our check offs by providing this refundabi l ity. 

Senator Larsen: Did we not hear some testimony or inquiry of any of these other check­
offs up for a referendum in a first p lace? I agree, the extra dollar you give, you can get that 
back. That is your  referendum and your vote. 

Chairman Mil ler: I think there is a d ifference with other commodity g roups in regards to 
how the check-offs are managed . You look at the wheat and the potatoes, they have the 
power to go in and create their own referendum. They can refer to signatures to make 
suggestions to raise or lower the check-off but we hold the power here, they can refund 
their check-offs too.  The other thing is that the beef commission is appointed by the 
governor where as in other commodity groups elect their  commission. 

Senator Oban:  Since we were talking about the process with other commissions, my hang 
up is if we are going to not have a referendum which I would prefer because I 'm not sure 
we should be making this determination for producers when we have no authority over the 
money. I think they should be doing this to themselves, I understand that this check-off 
hasn't been raised . If the refund process is easy, I have less of a hang up on it. But to me, 
easy in 201 5 is d ifferent than easy in the 1 990s. 
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She referred to the wheat commission refund process. She stated that there is absolutely 
no reason why this isn't going to be electronic. We should attach an amendment to make 
the application available right away. If the cop-out is that they are going to have a refund , 
then the refund should be easy to get. 

Chairman Mi l ler: The commission needs more money to do their business. We can talk 
about if they are effective or not but they are not going to be very effective if they don't have 
any dol lars to do anything with.  Regardless of what we do with mechanics, we al l  need to 
agree that there needs to be an increase because they need more money. If there is no will 
of this committee to adopt this amendment (referring to the referendum amendment) then 
we need to go in a d ifferent d i rection if we wish to make any changes or we need to move 
the bi l l  along . 

Senator Warner: My comfort level with this check-off would increase if we wrote something 
in here that it has to be exped itious and electronic forms available. 

Chairman Miller offered and explained amendment 1 5 .0559 .01 005 (see attachment #1 ). 
He stated that all commodity groups should probably adopt new language. 

Senator Larsen: Shouldn't this be addressed in their ru les? Do we have to tel l  them how to 
g ive their money back and do their forms? 

Chairman Mi l ler: Yes we do because it's in the law. 

Senator Klein: There was some d iscussion about when we made the refund language the 
same to maintain consistency across all the commodity groups, is this the same as that? 

Chairman Mil ler: The beef commission is not the same as the other commodity groups, 
they have a d ifferent make up and a d ifferent election process--they are not elected , they 
are appointed . If it were earl ier in the game and up to me, I wou ld have put every single 
commodity group and made this across the board . 

Senator Oban provided a copy of the Minnesota Department of Agriculture's Application 
for Check-off Refund for something to look at in the future if the committee was interested 
(see attachment #2) .  

Senator Warner: Do they have a common treasury? How does that work? 

Senator Oban: I don't know. 

Senator Warner: Could we cut a step out of here? Is there a reason why th is can't be done 
entirely e lectronical ly? 

Chairman Mi l ler: Without getting some huge fiscal note to do that, this is just putting a 
form on a website. The commission trying to do transactions onl ine gets into security 
issues. This cuts out the one step where you have to send a signed written form requestion 
a refund form. 
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Senator Klein: I 'm not sure I can support th is yet. I 'm not sure it's been considered by the 
groups to see if this is the way to move forward . 

Senator Larsen: On that l ine 1 6  page 2 ,  it says appl ication within 60 days so we're taking 
that out so there is no more time frame? 

Chairman Mi l ler: No, it would just simply add that they wou ld have to put a form onl ine and 
if someone requests that oral ly over the phone 

Senator Larsen: I understand where it overstruck that where it takes out the refund,  but on 
line 1 6  it says with in 60 days so it took out the date time. So now I can put in  the form 61  
days and maybe I can forget about i t  and do  it the last day of the year. Am I wrong in that? 

Chairman Mi l ler: In section 2 subsection b, they have to return that form in 90 days. You 
don't need that 60 day l imit. 

Senator Larsen: I 'm sti l l  confused ; I thought that section was the part that once they got 
the form, the check-off people have ninety days to get me that check. Even though I went 
up to the ninety days, once they get that form they have ninety days to send the check. 

Chairman Mi l ler: You have three months to get the referendum information in from the 
point of sale and then the commission shall refund it after that. The first part says the 
producer has 60 days to request the form. Now he can just get the form and then he has 90 
days to get that to the commission. 

Senator Warner: Is there anything in  here about multiple submissions on the same date? 

Chairman Mi l ler: You just have to get your information to the commission before the ninety 
days has elapsed from the sale. 

Chairman Mi l ler closed the d iscussion on HB 1 238. 
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Chairman Mi l ler handed out and explained amendment 1 5 .0559 .0 1 007 (see attachment 
#1 and #2) for HB 1 238.  

Senator Klein passed out amendment 1 5 .0559 .01 008 (see attachment #3) . The 
amendment would remove the minimum funding fee of five dol lars that was in the other 
proposed amendment. 

Senator Klein moved to adopt amendment 1 5 .0559 .01 008. 

Senator Oban seconded the motion . 

Senator Warner stated that he would support the amendment. He l iked the part that the 
appl ication may be returned to the commission in person,  by mai l ,  or electron ically. 

Chairman Mi l ler agreed that most people communicated electron ically and not necessarily 
through the mai l .  

A Roll  Call vote was taken.  Yea: 6 ;  Nay: O ;  Absent: 0. 
Amendment is adopted . 

Vice Chairman Luick asked a question about the benefit of considering the referendum.  

Senator Klein said that at there would be a lot of debate if they considered that. He stated 
that if Senator Lu ick was concerned , it cou ld possibly be add ressed in the next session or 
the agricu lture commissioner's budget to attach that too . He suggested that at th is point 
they were addressing the issue. He thought that the committee would see in the next 
session to offer refunds electron ically. That wi l l  provide for a fu l l  i nterim committee study. 
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He thought that the publ ic needed to be in and debating that rather than making that 
decision within the committee. 

Chairman Mi l ler: We have the opportun ity for the beef commission to take a lead on the 
electronic submission for refunds. They can probably develop a process and a system and 
sel l  i t  to the other commodity groups. I feel better about the bi l l  with g reater ease in the 
refundabi l ity now than I did a few minutes ago. 

Senator Warner: This issue is way beyond the scope of this b i l l  but this is the only 
commod ity group that is an appointed board . I think that is an important conversation we 
need to be having sometime soon.  

Senator Oban: I would l ike to d iscuss why we decided not to ask the commission to also 
have the printed appl ication on their website because I think by the amendment we just 
adopted , it no longer requ i res the commission to have that also on the i r  website. 

Chairman Mi l ler: It doesn't require them , but they certain ly can/ 

Senator Oban: Wel l  then I wou ld l ike to go on record making a very strong request that 
that be also avai lable on thei r  website. 

Chairman Mi l ler: I think that it is important to them that they have verification and this is 
new and we can let it stew for a couple years. 

Senator Oban: The verification is actually when you send everything back. I mean if they 
have it avai lable to download on their website, just because I can go on there and 
download it and print it 5,000 times doesn't mean I'm ever going to be able to get any 
money because I 'm not a producer. So I don't think the verification has much to do with the 
avai labi l ity of the form on the website. 

Senator Warner: I'm going to d isagree with her. I think if they have access to get it 
e lectron ica l ly, they also have access to fi l l  out the form onl ine. As far as the verification ,  if 
they include check numbers from the l ivestock ring record or invoice numbers,  it is pretty 
easy to bui ld field into the database in which you record that information in a way that is 
auditable. 

Chairman Mi l ler: The amendments now as we have adopted enables someone to sti l l  
request a form electron ically. 

Senator Warner: My understanding was that they can fi l l  out the form onl ine.  

Chairman Mi l ler: They can do that, it's up to the beef commission to develop that standard 

Senator Oban: I just thought that when Senator Warner was ta lking about the electron ic 
form means you emai l  and ask for it. I n  my opin ion it is a step in between getting it easier to 
get the refund. Again ,  I want this to be as easy possible if we are not going to give them the 
chance to vote on it themselves. 
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Senator Larsen moved Do Pass as Amended on H B  1 238. 

Senator Klein seconded the motion. 

A Roll Cal l  vote was taken. Yea :  6 ;  Nay: 0 Absent: 0. 
Do Pass carries. 

Senator Mil ler will carry the bi l l .  
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1238 

Page 2, line 15, overstrike "submit to the commission a written" 

Page 2, line 15, overstrike "for" 

Page 2, line 16, after "application" insert "from the commission" 

Page 2, line 16, after the period insert "The request may be made orally, in writing, or in 
electronic form." 

Page 2, line 19, after the period insert "The application may be returned to the commission in 
person. by mail. or in electronic form." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Page 2, line 19, after the period insert "The application may be returned to the commission in 
person, by mail, or in electronic form." 

Renumber accordingly 
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Good m o rn i n g, C h a i rm a n  J o h n s o n  and members o f  the H o use Agri c u l tu re 

C o m m i ttee. For the record, my name i J u l i e  E l l  i n  s . I a m  a fou rth-generation beef 
p rod u ce r  a n d  I represent th e N orth D a ko a tockmen's Associati on,  an 8 5 -yea r-old,  
3 , 0 0 0 - m em be r  cattl e p rod u cers' trade o rga n i zat ion .  

We a re h ere in  su pport of  HB 1 2 3 8 .  In  fact, o u r  members i n i tiated t h i s  l egis lat ion 
t h ro ugh p o l i cy passed at  our convent ion a cou pl e  o f  years ago, and that has  been in  
d iscuss ion fo r n ea rly a d ecade. The Stockm en's Associat ion has  a l ways been a strong 
s u p p o rter of  the beef checko ff and wa s i nstrumental  in h el p i ng get the fi rst ch eckoff 
p u t  i nto p lace d ecades ago. 

The assessment tod ay i s  $1 per h ead,  the same as it was when the checkoff fi rst 
came to be i n  1 9 8 5  - back when l eg warmers a n d  p a rach u te pants were in style.  B u t  
o u r  d o l l a r  doesn't  stretch a s  fa r as  i t  d i d  b a c k  then .  I n flat ion,  o f  cou rse, h a s  
d i m i n i s h ed i ts buying p ower t o  o nly a b o u t  40 percen t  of  what  i t  w a s  at  t h e  t i m e  o f  

i t s  i n cept ion .  P l u s, l ower overal l  catt le n u mbers have s h r u n k  the p o o l  of  resou rces 
o u r  i n d u stry has for beef promotion,  research and educati o n  efforts. As an exa m p l e, 
t h e  Beef  C o m m i s s i o n  was o n ly ab le  to a l locate $681 to research last  year a n d  has $0 
in th e resea rch b u dget for this year. 

At the s a m e  t i m e, we h ave j u st as m a ny p o u n d s  of p ro d u ct to m ove a n d  o u r  i n d ustry 
has  growing need s, whether they are res p o n d i n g  to attacks on beef a n d  beef 
p rod u cti o n  p ractices from activist o rga n izatio n s, the research effo rts I ment ioned or 
s i m ply co m m u n i cat ing with con s u m ers, who, o n  average, are th ree o r  fou r  
generat ions rem oved from th e fa rm o r  ra nch .  Th at's the genes is  for H B  1 2 3 8 .  

H e re's h o w  i t  wou l d  work:  p ro d u cers wou l d  pay a n  a d d i ti o n a l  d o l l a r, wh i ch would 
be used for the so le  p u rposes of  beef  resea rch, e d u cat ion a n d  p romotion,  j u s t  l i ke 
the cu rrent d ol l ar.  The i nvestment d e c i s i o n s  would rest with t h e  grassroots 

p rod u cers serv i n g  o n  the N orth Dakota Beef Comm i s s i o n, who a re armed wi th the 
best  i nformat ion to make th ose decis ions and who a re cha rged with giving us the 
best bang fo r o u r  b u c k. I n  some cases, that m ight be i nvestment in  i n-state effo rts. I n  
other  cases, i t  m ight  be to pool  those resou rces with pa rtners fo r nat ional  a n d  

i n ternat ional  p rogra m s  t o  i n fl u ence co n s u m ers i n  m o re d e n sely p o p u l ated o r  h igher  
va l u e  m a r kets.  A study released by Cornel l U n ivers i ty last  s u m m e r  i n d i ca ted that  
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the $1 investment returns $1 1.20 to the industry, and we're excited about building 
on that success by bolstering our resources to a more adequate level. 

This isn't a new idea. In fact, a dozen other states - most recently Texas and 
Kentucky - have adopted an additional beef checkoff beyond the national 
assessment. 

In the formation of this legislation, industry leaders were cognizant of the fact that 
some, for whatever reason, might not want to contribute to the fund to promote 

their industry. That's why this legislation was crafted to allow for a 100 percent 
refund on the additional checkoff, similar to the refund allowances of other state 
commodity programs. You and your predecessors worked hard through the ag 
rewrite process in the 2008 interim to provide as much consistency and uniformity 

amongst the checkoff programs as possible, and this bill maintains your hard work. 

It is also important for you to know that there has been ongoing discussions about 

increasing the existing beef checkoff on the national level, which literally takes an 

act of Congress. Industry organizations have been working together for several 
years to find a way to move that forward. I'm pleased to report that there is 

progress being made, yet still much work ahead. Consequently, you will notice that 
Section 3 of this bill provides a deactivation clause, if you will, allowing this 
additional assessment to sunset if the national checkoff is increased. This is another 

positive feature, assuring that there would not be a piling-on effect if the national 
checkoff goes up. 

Last week in your j oint session with the Senate Ag Committee, you talked about 

opportunities to grow animal agriculture and further development the livestock 

industry. HB 1238  provides the beef industry the perfect opportunity to do just that. 
Your favorable consideration of this bill provides progressive, forward-thinking 

producers the opportunity to invest their own dollars to support their own industry, 
and gives an o ut to those who don't want to be part of it. In a session when state 
resources are in question, it also is a way for cattlemen and women to leverage the 

state dollars you've committed to agricultural research and education efforts. 

It's important for you to know that the Stockmen's Association itself does not stand 
to benefit from the increase directly. We d o  not receive the funds or administer the 

programs.  We support this increase because North Dakota beef producers stand to 
benefit by keeping our product top of mind and in a favorable light with consumers 
around the world.  

Thank you for this opportunity to comment and for your favorable consideration of 
HB 1238 . 
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EVERY DOLLAR INVESTED* RETURNS $11.20? 
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Beef Safety Research 
ldenti'1es potential risks to beef safety 

and develops solutions to maintain a 
safe beef supply for consumers 

Public Relations a 
Proactively share

.
s positive beef --

messages with consumers. 
health professionals and other 

food influencers 

Product Enhancement 
Research 

Discovers new ways to improve beef 
quality, consistency and value, including 

research focused on new cuts, taste, 
tenderness and carcass value 

New Product Development 
Works with industry leaders to 

develop new beef products, plus 
shares beef recipes and cooking tips 

l•IU / - -

'From the Cattlemen's Beef Board budget 

Advertising 
Creates all domestic 
consumer advertising 
-radio, print, outdoor 
and digital - to reinforce 
how beef is part of their 
everyday life 

Foreign Marketing 

Provides beef market development, 
promotion, research, consumer and 
industry information in more than 
100 countries worldwide 

Channel Marketing 
- Develops all promotions, training and 

other programs to help promote beef 
• • in restaurants and grocery stores 

_ Focuses on beef's role in human 

�<+> 1 Nutrition Research 

• nutrition as it relates to overall 
health and well-being 

Industry Information 
Safeguards the image of the bt.ef 
industry by responding to, and 
correcting, misinformation about beef 
and sharing the beef production story 
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Legislative Agriculture Committee Members: 

I am offering this written testimony to accompany my verbal testimony. I am a 
fourth generation rancher that operates a cow/calf and feedlot operation and previously 
owned Maverick Meat Co. a USDA federal ly inspected processing faci l ity in Stut man 
County. I am here today to testify in favor of increasing the state beef check-off by 
$ 1 .  00/head. 

What does the Beef Check-off mean to me and how does it affect by family' 
ranching business? Through my profe sional l i fetime the Beef Check-off has affected me 
in many ways. The Beef Check-off is about research, education and promotion of beef 
and I 've witnessed this fusthand in many ways. 

1 .  During my first two years of col lege I attended Iowa tate University 
and had the privi lege of working in the beef research meat lab. While 
working in the meat Jab I participated in helping profes ors and graduate 
students conduct research that was funded by Beef Check-off dol lars. 
Thi research focused on beef product development and consumer 
education. This enabled me to see how Beef-Checkoff dol lar were used 
to develop value-added beef cuts and further educate processors, retai ler , 
and consumers. 

2. After graduating from NDSU with a degree in Animal and Range 
Science I furthered my education at the University of Nebraska in feedlot 
management. While at Nebraska a portion of the curriculum wa focused 
on the proper management to add value to the beef carcass. Much of th 
materials that we studied wa research conducted by universitie that 
focused on increasing value of the beef carcas . This research and 
educational materials were partial ly funded by Beef Check-off dol lar . 

3 .  In my current cow/cal f and feedlot operation many of the re ources I 
uti l ize to improve my management practices and business decisions are 
based on research and educational information that i funded and provided 
with Beef Check-off funds. 

4. I also owned and operated Maverick Meat Co. located in Jame town, 
ND. I extensively uti lized Beef Check-off funded educational material to 
train and further educate my meat cutters in advanced ways to further 
process traditional beef cuts into higher valued cuts that met changing 
consumer preferences. On our retail counter the ND Beef Commission 
provided me with an array of new recipes and educational pamphlets that 
focused on outreach directly to the con umer. These promotional item 

I 



aided in improving my beef sales. In fact many times customers would 
just stop by the store to see if we would have new recipes and ideas for 
them to utilize beef in there meals. 

I can wholeheartly say Beef Check-off funded research, educational and 
promotional materials have allowed my fourth generation ranching operation to be more 
successful and sustainable for future generations. 

The agriculture and beef industry has vastly changed since the inception of the 
Beef Check-off in 1 986. We are now experiencing a diversified global market place. In 
many places throughout the global geographies household incomes are rising and looking 
for beef to become a major contributor to their diet. The enhanced development of 
exports and promotional and educational information internationally is paramount for the 
North Dakota and US beef industries. 

Why the need for a $ 1 .00/head increase in Beef Check-off funds? As originally 
stated the current $ 1 .00/head Beef Check-off was conceived in 1 986, since then the beef 
industry has seen decreased numbers and reduced buying power of the original 
$ 1 .00/head. Due to the increased export demands and further need of research, product 
development, education and promotional outreach; the additional $ 1 .00/head would 
significantly advance the North Dakota and United States beef industries footprint both 
domestically and internationally. 

I respectfully submit this testimony for your consideration, 

Brian V. Amundson 
Bar V R.anch 
brian.amundson@barvranch.net 
70 1-269-0532 
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House and Senate Agr icu lture Com m ittee M e m be rs :  
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I a m  offeri ng th is  written testi m o ny beca use I a m  u n a b l e  to be present at the 

hea ri ng of t h i s  b i l l .  I am a t h i rd generatio n  ret i re d  beef p rod ucer from Stutsma n 

Cou n ty, N o rth Da kota a n d  a m  very m u ch i n  s u p po rt of a d d i ng a n  a d d it i o n a l  $1.00 
to o u r  exist i ng state beef check-off. The fou rth generat i o n  of my fa m i ly i s  

cu rrently conti n u i ng the ra nchi ng a n d  agricu ltu ra l  operat i o n .  Th i s  a d d it i o n a l  

$1 .00 w i l l  a l low for the conti n u e d  a dva ncement i n  resea rch a n d  pro m oti o n a l  

activit ies t h a t  wi l l  m a i nta i n  a nd i n c rease t h e  d e m a n d  for beef. 

I have been very i n volved with the beef check-off both on t h e  state l evel a n d  

the nat iona l  l eve l .  I have s u pported the state beef check-off a nd have worked t o  

pass t h e  c u rrent $1.00 natio n a l  check-off voted i n  by p roduce rs.  I served o n  t h e  

N o rth Da kota Beef Com m ission fo r s i x  yea rs; two yea rs as i t s  c h a i r ma n .  I a lso 

se rved on t h e  com mi ss ion for fifteen yea rs as a n  ex-offic io  m e m be r  when I was 

representi ng N o rth Da kota a nd a l l  of the U n ited States beef p ro d u ce rs on the 

nat ional  l eve l .  I represented North Da kota o n  the National  Livestock and M eat 

Board a nd o n  the m e rged successor  o rga n i zat ion;  the Nat ion a l  Catt l e m a n  Beef 

Associati o n ( N CBA) -Check-off Divis ion . I wa s a member  a nd c h a i rm a n  of the Beef 

Safety J o i nt Co m m ittee of N C BA and the Catt l e m a n's B eef Boa rd, V ice Cha i rm a n  

a n d  Cha i r m a n  of the Check-off Divis ion of NCBA, B udget Com m ittee Cha i r m a n  

a n d  the Treasure r  o f  N CBA for fou r  yea rs. 

I have deta i led my i nvolvement in the beef check-off beca use over t h i s  t e n u re I 

have seen what the beef check-off has a cco m p l ished.  Th i s  i nc l ud es i ncrea s i ng the 

demand for beef t h ro ugh resea rch, p ro motion, a dvertis i ng a nd co n s u m e r  

e d u catio n .  Th is  w a s  a l l  fu nded a nd d i rected b y  producers l ike myself from a l l  ove r  

the U n ited States. 

We need at th is  t i me to a ugment these beef check-off fu nds a nd j o i n  other 

m aj o r  beef p rod uci ng states who have a l ready passed a dd it iona l state check-offs 

to e n h a n ce the p rod ucer d i rected beef check-off progra ms.  The exist ing $1 .00 
b uys less t h a n  50% of what it could buy when t h e  nati o n a l  check-off was passed. 

The beef i n d u st ry has experie nced red uced catt le  n u m be rs res u l t i ng in less check-



off d o l l a rs col lecte d .  The reduced b uying powe r of the o rigi n a l  $1 .00 a n d  the 

dec l i n e  i n  catt le  n u m be rs have greatly reduced the a b i l ity of the check-off to 

effectively fu n d  resea rch, ed u catio n  a n d  promotio n .  

W h e n  t h i s  l egis lation is passed t h i s  a d d it ional  check-off i ncom e  wi l l  be u s e d  by 

the N orth Da kota Beef Com m ission to fu rther e n h a nce resea rch, e d u cation a n d  

promotion t o  i ncrease d e m a n d  for a l l  N o rth Da kota beef prod u ce rs.  

I respectfu l ly s u b m it this  test i m o ny for your conside rat ion .  

S i n ce re ly, 

Va n E. Am u nd so n  

Ba rV Ra nch 

J a mestown, N orth Da kota 



Good morning Chairm an Johnson, Vice Chairman Trottier and members of the House 

Agriculture Com mittee. For the record, my name i�My husband and I 
ranch nea r Fort Rice in Southern Morton County along with our three young children. I' m 

here today in support of House Bill 1238. 

As a beef producer, I am p roud to p ay the Beef Checkoff, because as a mother I 

benefit from the nutrition-based information researched and shared through the Beef 

Checkoff. For example, the Checkoff-funded BOLD study - beef in an optimal lean diet -

helps moms like me understand the value of beef in a healthy lifestyle. Protein is all the 

rage these days. And, beef is an excellent source. Did you know that for about 150 calories, 

a 3 ounce serving of beef gives you half of the recommended daily value of protein - one of 

the most satisfying nutrients? Thanks to the Beef Checkoff, I know this inform ation and I 

can share it with you! 

Did you know that folks who include beef in their heart-healthy lifestyles will improve 
cholesterol levels? Did you know that the industry - through the Beef Checkoff - has 

developed more than 30 cuts of beef that meet the USDA' s standards for lean? Thanks to 

the Beef Checkoff, I know this information, and I am sharing it with you. 

Checkoff research into new cuts of beef helps moms like me stretch our food dollar 

by finding less expensive cuts that are just as nutritious, flavorful and tender as our 

traditional favorites. The Beef Checkoff hel ps grocery shoppers and meal-makers like me 

understand safe cooking techniques, and which cut of beef is most a pp ropriate for that 

technique. The "Beef So Simple" e-mail service sends me sizzling recipes and great tips 

twice a month - helping me find flavorful, quick and easy meal solutions for my family. But I 

want more - I want an app for my i Phone so when I'm grocery shopping, I can have a plan 

that includes beef. 

I 'm a beef producer who is interesting in sharing positive beef messages with 

consumers. The Beef Checkoff has developed an on line spokesperson training program, 

called the M asters of Beef Advocacy - or "MBA" for short. The program has helped me 

I 



learn more about the entire industry and has helped me shape the message I h ave been 

sharing with my non-ranching friends and family. 

We need more programs like this - p rograms that help young families understand the 

value of beef in their diets and help us - as beef producers - a nswer their questions about 

how beef is raised and how grazing cattle helps i mprove the environment. 

The beef comm unity faces challenges from outside influencers who a re continually 

spreading misinformation about our livelihood and about beef's role in a healthy lifestyle or 

in the environment. The best opportunity we h ave to push-back on those lies is through 

peer-reviewed resea rch studies. Cattlemen and cattlewomen like me need facts to back up 

our feelings. North Dakota has a phenomenal opportunity at North Dakota State University 

to be a leader in answering some of the questions facing our industry. This type of 

important research needs funding. 

Cattle outnumber people three to one in North Dakota. We cannot possibly consume 

the a mount of beef we produce. Therefore, we need to p romote our product in a reas 

where people outnumber cattle - like New York City, San Francisco, Chicago. Through the 

Beef Checkoff, states like North Dakota can partner with other states to deliver this 

important message in  key a reas. I support those partnerships on both a state and national 

level they've helped fund some of the projects I referenced before. They a re a wise and 

prudent use of my dollar . . .  a nd with your support of HB1238, my two dollars. 

I respectfully ask you to give this bill a do-pass recommendation . Thank you. 
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G ood M orn ing Chairman Johnson a nd memb!L�'!!e!ti� ltu re Committee .  For: record 9my na me  is om Li lja nd I am the Executive Director of the North Da kota Corn G rowers 

Association. 

The N orth Da kota Corn G rowers Association sta nds in suppo rt of H B 1238. Si nce our ince ption 

by legis lative a ction in  1991, the North Da kota Corn Uti l ization Cou nci l  (Corn Cou nci l )  has 

contributed resea rch fu n d i ng towa rds a n im a l  agricu ltu re .  I am includ ing i n  this  testi mony the 

resea rch expend itu re h istory of the Corn Cou nci l  ove r the past 5 yea rs. You ca n see that 

between 26% to 41% of our a n n u a l  budget's have gone to resea rch projects in the yea rs 2010 

to 2014 with 2015 esti mates i ncluded . Whi le  obvious ly a s ign ifica nt a mount of our resea rch 

budget d oes go to agronomic a nd va lue added projects, the l ivestock comm ittee on the boa rd 

d oes recognize the importa nce of a n i m a l  agricu ltu re to our  state and has been su pportive of 

projects that eva lu ate a n i m a l  performa nce fed Dry D isti l lers h igh prote i n  G ra ins  ( D OGS), a by 

prod uct of the etha nol  prod uction process. More recently, the Corn Cou nci l  has contributed to 

a co l l a borative study between N DSU a n i m a l  science resea rchers a nd the u n ivers ity of 

Leth bridge, Alberta through the US G ra ins  Counci l  to eva luate a n i m a l  ga i n  and ca rcass q u a l ity 

with d iffere nt o i l  content levels of D OGS. 

-The Corn Cou nci l  is a l so very enthused a bout the rece nt a nnou ncement of the N ationa l  

Agricu ltura l  Genotyping Center ( NAGC) being located near  the N DSU ca m pus.  The 

ra m ifications of this new ce nte r to the a n i m a l  sciences a nd to food safety a re profound.  I have 

rea d  i nto the fact that the $1 .00-per-head beef checkoff rate has  not cha nged s ince 1986 a nd 

that the buying powe r of that $ 1 .00 is less than h a lf of its va lue s ince 1986. 

M e m be rs of the comm ittee, In 201 1-13 the North Da kota Legislature i nvested in regional  soi l  

hea lth specia l i sts to add ress the increasing problems of soi l  s a l i n ity that our  prod uce rs a re 

fa cing.  The Corn Cou nci l  has strategica l ly fu nded projects put forth by these specia l ists to 

a d d ress these problems. I n  2009-11 the Legislatu re a l so invested $2.6 m i l l ion do l lars i n  the 

Beef Resea rch Center at N DS U .  This fa cil ity has he lped attract q ua l ity resea rch personne l .  Ou r 

view is that to better uti l ize th is  i nvestment a n d  the prom ise of new tech nology that the 

N atio n a l  Ag Genotyping Center holds that prod ucers be a l lowed to volu nta ri ly co ntribute a n  

a d d it iona l $ 1 .00 per head to the beef check off. 

Tha n k  you fo r your  t ime a nd I wou ld be happy to a n swer a ny q uestions.  

e 
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201 5/201 6 Approved Research Funding 
Research Proiect - Agronomy Contracted Funds 

Carena - Breeding The Next Generation of Short Season Corn Products $ 1 85,8 1 3  

Cooper - CCSP Corn Plots $84,878 

Franzen - Potass ium Reca l i bration for Corn $ 1 03,994 

Franzen - N2 Reca l i bration $ 1 9,950 

Friskop - Developing a Corn Plant Pathology Program at NDSU $ 60,000 

Ra hman - Gas Ana lyzer $25,000 

Ransom - Tech n ical Su port for a Revised Corn Hybrid Testi ng Program $ 1 25,345 

Wick - Developing Treatments of I nterest to Producers at the SHARE Farm $6 2 ,707 

Wick - Research & Extension Efforts at the SHARE Farm $66,258 

Wick - I nfluence of Soi l  Sa l i n ity Gradients on Corn Production of Anthropod Pest $ 72,540 
I nfestations 

Research Proiect - Value Added 
Bajawa , D. - Corn DOGS - A Novel Functional Material for Wood Composites $ 1 7,5 1 5  

Bajawa , S. - Biocom posite DOG $ 2 1 ,670 

Hahn - Gluten Free Product Research Using ND Corn & Corn Co- Products $35,000 

Ha l l  - Mu ltifunctional  Natural  Food Additive From Corn & Dried Disti l ler Grains $28,680 

J iang - Corn Residual Derived Carbon Nanosheets for High Volume Battery $29, 596 

Knodel - Evol ution of BT Resista nt I nsects $ 76, 1 56 

Rippl inger - Add ing Va lue to Northern Corn $39,802 

Research Proiect - Livestock 
Anderson - Beef Production I nternship :  Invest ing in Future Corn Consumers $ 1 0,448 

Anderson - Effects of Fat Level i n  Dist i l lers Gra in  Fed with Corn or Barley on $ 7 5 ,8 1 1 
Steer Performance 

• 
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roponent 

• Good morn ing. It is a n  extreme honor a n d  privi lege to be speaking here today a l o ngsi d e  

s o m e  o f  my role-models with in  Nort h  Dakota's beef cattle i n dustry. A s  I 'm s u re you've noticed, I 

a m  the you ngest person to speak i n  favor of House B i l l  1238, so with that I bring about a u n ique 

perspective. 

My n a me is Justin Bartholomay a n d  I grew up on a ranch l ocated j u st n orth of Sheldon, 

N D, i n  the southeastern p a rt of the state, where we raise S immental  cattle.  From a young age of 

he lp ing d a d  a n d  papa feed cows a n d  check for newborn ca lves, I knew the agricu ltu re i n d u stry 

h a d  a future for me.  This M ay I wi l l  be gra duating from N orth Da kota State U n iversity with my 

Bachelor's  Degree in An imal  Science and I ' l l  be the first of my fami ly to receive such a d i p loma.  

Going back home to acq u i re the fam i ly farm has a lways been i n  my fut u re p lan,  a n d  q u ite fran kly, 

• I want that idea to become a rea l i ty a n d  not s imp ly a d ream.  

You see, I've had the fortunate o p port u n ity to travel m a ny p la ces a n d  see m a ny th ings 

th roughout my col lege career, which has led me to visiting with m u lt ip le  students of varied 

i nterests and backgrounds.  Through these conversations, I 've seen fi rsthand the importa n ce to 

promote the beef cattle indust ry; to insure that it stays strong for not o n ly right now, but for 

m a n y  yea rs down the road .  

Consumers a ren't a t  a l l  who they used t o  be. N ow d ays, they constantly th rive for more 

information tel l ing them a bout the safety of their  food.  I nformation that wou ld n't be feasib le to 

give without the fu n d ing of Beef Checkoff do l lars. Today's consumers, especia l ly my u pcoming 

m i l len n ia l  generation, a re very dependent on technology, a n d  look to socia l medi a  p latforms to 

• fi n d  a lot of the i nformation a bout the food they eat. These forms of socia l  media  a re a lso where 

a lot of a n i m a l  a ctivists l ist fa lse i nformation about the way beef cattle  a re p roduced, p rocessed, 
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House Bill 1238 
Justin Bartholomay - Proponent 

a n d  p laced on m i l l ions of p lates across the nation . The d isconn ect between consumers a n d  the 

food they eat is greater n ow tha n  ever before, thus m aking it even more i mportant to m arket our 

p roduct the best we can.  Something we s imply can't do, without more fisca l leverage. If we don't 

i ncrease our efforts in promoting our i n dustry, I ,  persona l ly, worry about what my futu re m ay 

i nc u r  as a p rogressive a n d  u pcoming beef p rod u cer. 

And honestly, I'm trying my best to self-pro mote the l ife I want to l ive, because I care so 

m u ch a bout it. 

A cou ple years back I was l u cky enough to be the N o rth Dakota Beef Ambassad o r, a n d  

with that role I was a b l e  t o  inform consume rs o f  a l l  ages a bout beef catt le i n  N o rth D akota. This  

p rogram h as, more o r  less, been the "ah-hah" moment of my l ife, because it was when I fi rst 

rea l ized what I wanted to d o  for the remainder of my l ife : raise cattle a n d  promote my l ivel ihood 
• 

to others .  Th is p rogram hel ped shape my d rive a n d  passion, a n d  wou l dn't h ave been p ossible 

without its' fun d i ng from the Beef Checkoff. 

After that journey, I chose to fu rther my advocating knowledge by com pleting a p rogram 

cal led the M asters of Beef Advocacy. Through this program I learned better how to com m u n icate 

effectively with consu mers a n d  talk about the hot-button issues that a rise wit h i n  the beef catt le 

i n d ust ry. Th is  p rogram too wou l d  not be possib le without fun d ing from Beef Checkoff d o l l a rs. 

Al l  i n  al l ,  by i n creasing the Beef Checkoff dol lar, I wi l l  be a ble to breath a l itt le  easie r, 

s leep a l i tt le heavier, ra ise cattle a l ittle calmer, but most i mportantly, I ' l l  h ave the resou rces to 

a dvocate a l ittle better. 

Tha n k  you a n d  at this t ime I wou l d  l i ke to enterta i n  any questions.  



• 

Good morning Chairman Johnson,  a n d  mem bers of the House Ag Com m ittee. 

For the record my n a m e  i� am the Board Chairman of the I ndependent 

Beef Association of N o rth Dakota .  

I sta n d  �o House B i l l  1238. Whi le we a l l  agree that promotion,  resea rch, 

a n d  ma rket deve lopment, both foreign a n d  domestic, a re very important to everyone i n  

o u r  i n d u stry, o u r  i n d u stry is d ivided as to this b i l l 's  i ntegrity, efficiency, a n d  efficacy. 

Our cu rrent Check Off has become a network of buerocracies fueled by their  

own red u nd a n cy. It is  a t iered system consist ing of o u r  State Beef Cou nci l ,  The 

Cattlemsns'  Beef Board, the Federation of State Beef Cou ncils, Beef Promotion 

Operating Comm ittee, and the N at ional  Catt lema ns' Beef Associatio n :  N CBA a pol icy 

organ izat ion .  

Our N orh Dakota Beef Com mission col l ects $ 1 . 00 from each head of catt le sold, 

of which 50% is sent d i rectly to the Catt lema ns' Beef Board. From this revenue 

a d m i n istrative costs a re capped at  5%. The remai nder of  the o rigin a l  do l lar  is reta ined 

by the N o rth Da kota Beef Comm ission who spend approximately 40% of their  ha lf of 

the Check Off revenue on a d m i n istrative costs. So of the origi n a l  do l lar  col lected there 

is now 78.5 cents left. 

The N o rth Dakota Beef Com m ision is one of 44 seperate state beef cou nci ls. 

These 44 cou nci ls  consist of 660 d i rectors a l l  of which a re elgib le  to become d i rectors of 

the Federation of State Beef Cou nci ls.  The Federation has 85 seats ava i lab le  for 

p u rchase. The p u rchase of a seat on the Federation is considered " invest ing" in the 

Federation, a lthough a l l  checks a re to be made to the N CBA. The Federation col lects 

approxi mately $ 1 1,000,000 of which rough ly 50% is spent on a d m i n istrat ion .  

The Federation, a non-lega l e ntity as  they d o  not fi le a 990 form, u lt imately fa l ls  

u nder  the u m brel la  of the N CBA, a pol icy organ ization .  Al l  The NCBA is fu nded part ia l ly 

by member d ues a n d  part ia l ly through the Beef Check Off. Of the approximately $85 

m i l l ion col lected by the Ch eck Off, the N CBA recieves roughly $55 m i l l ion(  See 

su pport ing  document Beef USA, page 2, from NCBA Website) .  97% of a l l  Check Off 

fu nds a re contracted th rough the NCBA. I h ave p rovided exa m ples of Authorized 

Req uests(ARs) for compariso n .  
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• The first example{A) from North American Meat Association AR, CBB Budget 

• 

• 

Category: Promotion, total cost $631,250 Direct Costs: $511,175 

Implementation Fee: $120,075. Implementation costs 23.48%. 

Second example(B) from the N ationa l  Cattlemans Beef Association. AR Title: 

Retail Marketing. CBB Budget Component: Promotion. Total  Cost $2,277,000. 

Implementation costs are not given or added to total cost. I found actual 

implementation fees listed in a seperate AR. Implementation cost $2,046,137. 

Imp lementation cost is 89%. for every dollar of direct cost, 90 cents was spent on 

implementation. I have a problem with that. Implementation is taking such a bite out of 

that Check Off dollar we are not seeing it put to work. Several times a week I wil l  be 

watching television and see an advertisement for California Dairy.How can 1 state's 

dairy industry afford to b uy themselves that kind of national exposure? The Checkoff 

col lects funds from nearly every state yet that money has bought producers nearly zero 

exposure on a national  scale. When was the last time you saw a "Beef, Its what for 

dinner" or any other beef related marketing on television? 

HB--1238 Makes no mention of how additiona l  assessments would be directed. 

Would our legislature raise the cow tax, only to send the funds out of state? HB-1238 

includes a refund provision, but makes no mention of an escrow account made to hold 

money for that refund. The most serious problem with this bi l l  is that it excludes the tax 

paying cattleman, most of whom know little to nothing about HB-1238, and they 

deserve to participate. For that reason I ask that a member of this committee offer the 

following ammendment. 

On behalf of those thousands of producers across the state of North Dakota I 

ask for consideration and adoption of the following amendment . 

2 



• 
Amendment to HB-1238 

The North Dakota Beef Commission shall, after giving official notice through 

public press and state wide newspapers, offer a vote for qualified checkoff participants 

eighteen years of age or over. Passage would require a simple majority. 

After two weeks notice of election, participants shall have no less than ten 

business days to prove participation in the check off within a year prior to the date of 

the election. Once qualification is established voters may obtain a ballot from polling · 

locations deemed most convenient by the commission within the county of their 

residence. 

A vote of participating producers shall be held every 5th year thereafter to 

continue or reject additional dollars to the state beef checkoff. 
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AUTHORIZATION BEQUEST FOB FY 2014 

CBB Budget Category: Promotions 
Name of Contractor: North American Meat Association 
Name of Organizations Subcontracting: 

I. OVERVIEW 

h 

A. AR Deecrlptlon: This work plan supports the Beef Industry Long Range Plan by 
targeting the Millennial audience and focusing on demand drivers In.eluding value, taste, 
health and·nutritlon, and convenience while enhancing industry transparency and 
consumer trust. The main focus will be in two primary areas: 1) Channel Marketing, 2) 
Consumer Communication. The Strategy wlll continue to Increase sales for veal with 
current users and create a positive position for veal with the Millennial demographic, 
attracting new users to the category, and establishing a value proposition to make veal 
more attractive to channel decision makers. The updated nutritional Information 
developed from the FY13 AR will be Implemented In this program. 

B. Costs Requested from this AR: 

·--------.. -----. ····--. -··--··-·-·---· .. -· -... ._ ............................................. -- ........... _ ... ·-·--· ._ .. ___ ----· ·- ........... _._ .. _ ........ ___ ...... ··-· . -i 
Source of Funding Total Direct Costs Implementation ----- ------------ .. _____ ._..... ___ . ________ --·-----·--------~--~-- --~----·------···--·--

Beef Board/BPOC $ 631,250 $ 511,175 $120,075 
". • ------·-··- -_. ..... ------•••-••r'•••-•••••••-••--- -··-·-'"""'"-••--""•·-----··-.. - .... ,·----·----·---•·• •••• 

Federation of SBCs (FSBCs) 
$ $ $ ______________ .. ___ .____________ --··-· ····- -·- ··---·-·- ···~--- ·--· -----·---· ·- . ····-··-·-·-·""·--·---·-- ---- -· -···-· -- ·---·----- -·-·· - -· 

Other Sources (describe) $ $ $ _,.______ _ .. _ -·-·-···------·--------- ·-·-~ ·--···--··-----··---·---- ..,_, ______ ~--"··----.-..... -·-···-·-· 
Total Funds Requested J $631,250 I$ 511,175 [$120,075 

----·---.. ----~---.. -----· .. _____ . -----·--·-·--·- ____ , ______ t_::_.: ___________ ,, __ , ______ .., ____ _. ______ ······-·-··-·~---·-·-·· 

e 

c. Start date: 10/112013 Completion date: 9/30/2014 JM/>1..£.M£JV'rfi-T1dl;t/ 
Ut/ 5 t Aj, 1fil~ 

t 

II. PLANNll'fG INFORMATION FOB THIS AR 

A. Long Range Plan Core Strategies/Demand Drivers Addressed by This AB: Improve 
domestic consumer preference for beef 

Demand drivers addressed lr:iclude: convenience, value, taste and nutrition and health 

B. Committee(s) recommendations for work plan funded by this AR: 
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AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FOR FY 2013 

AR Title: Retail Marketing 
Name of Contractor: National Cattlemen's Beef Association 
CBB Bu~get Component: Promotion 

I. OVEBYIEW 

A. AR Description: Over 50% of all domestic beef volume in the U.S. Is sold through the 
retail channel. In 2011. the domestic retail channel moved nearly 4.2 billion pounds of 
fresh beef 'llalued at S17 .o billion. 

A comprehensive Retail Marl(eting Program focused on stimulating short-term beef 
sales and marntalning long-term beef demand in America's 37.000 supermarkets, 
wholesale club stores and military commissaries Is orltlcal to beef ind1.,1stry profitability. 

This program will stlmUlate beef sales at retail through promotional partnerships with 
retailers and fOOd and beverage companies and by Introducing beef merchandising and 
education programs at the meat case. Both of these strategies use tactics that leverage 
checkoff Investments. and expand the- placement, overa11 use and \'islblllty of b&ef in the 
retail channel. In addition. systems have been created that provide consistent prOduct 
Identification and access to accurate scan data that Is. essential to evaluating progra.ms 
and monitoring beef's performance in the channel. 

All of these elements are supported by ongoing communication and outreach efforts 
that ensure access to - and build solid relationships with - the key decision makers and 
Influencers throughout the retail food industry. 

a. Costs Requested from this AA•: $2,2n,ooo 

Source of Funding -------··-·"'---! Total Costs Dlr~t Costs ):l~Pl•lne.f'lt•~!on~" · 

-~ _--h~:~~-1 $""'.$--

Total Funds Requested Is 2,2n,ooo I s 2,277,000 I:··'·''"''''" l 
• Onty Direct Costs are being requested in this AR. 

Total estimated lmpl:ementation for !his AR is 52,046.137; Implementation by T.actic in Table IV. 
Implementation for this and other PROMOTION ARs requested in separate AR R-00-2013. 

c. Start date: 10/112012 Completion date: 9130/2.013 

......... , ... ,.,,."""' 
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AUTHORIZATION REQUEST FOR FY 2013 

AR Title: IMPLEMENTATION 

Name of Contractor: National Cattlemen's Beef Association 
CBS Budget Component: Promotion 

I. OVERVIEW 

P-08-2013 

A. AR Deacrtptlon: Program implementation Is those staff and Indirect costs that are 
allocated to BPOC approved projects within this budget component during fiscal year 
2013. These expenses are allocated based upon the percentage of actual amount of 
staff time spent executing BPOC approved promotion programs. ~ 

B. Funds requested: Beef Board/BPOC 
Federation of SBCs 
Total Funding 

$4.258.213 
$ 680.005 
~.~~.Q.-~§ 

c. Start date: October 1, 2012 Completion date: September 30, 2013 

II. IMPLEMENTATION INFORMATION 

A. Project Leader(s} 
• Bo Reagan 
• J. Henger 

B. Program areas addresaed 
• Advertising 
• Foodservice Marketing 
• New Product & Culinary Initiatives 
• Retail Marketing 
• Veal 

c. lmplementatiol) Budget 
• Total Implementation Budget: $4,938,218 (FY2012: S4,793.641} 

(_. 
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• P-08· 2013 
Ill. DETAILED BUDGET SUMMARY: 

Detalled Budaet Summarv of Current Authorization Reauest 

Source 
Program l Completion 

Strateav & Tactic I Manaaer l Date I Tot•I Buda•t i CBBIBPOC I FSBC• 
Ar:fvertisi n M . Muna l 09130/13 S 463,985 l S 400,094 S 63.891 
Foodservice j . Hen er 09130/13 S 736,800 I S 635,339 S 101,461 

' -~!!~c==···- ...... ---· j ,J:l.!!!1..91'.!-.L •• qe!.~.C?D.;i ___ .. _s --." ~ .. ~~~ .. i~f~.L s __ ..h.~~i.~.~<:? _ s _ ~~~.!.?~! .. 
\Le_aL. -- - - ·- ....... - - . R,_!:;i_uS ~!.d...--t··-0.§>1;3.QD .3 ___ • s . _____ 2Jl.~~S-7 .•• -1-~:.. ---~.3,_41.6 _ s _____ 49~8_1 _ 

,_N~w.E.r'?!l.Y'<L .JJ!!!l9~1'l.. ___ Q~.5)0{1_3 ___ _? ___ .t._3_~}L~S--1,204,924_J_S __ !_?~1.?_. 

Af'_T.o.tala ___ ...•... _ _ ·---···---···--"-- ··-·-·--·-· ... $ __ ~"-~·-~.!-•-~_LS~ --~-·ll!L2.~~.J_S ___ 6~t~s 

Summarv pt Pdor Year AA Budgets and Expenau 

FY 2012 Approved Bud1ets FY 2012 Actual Expe.nses 

Strategy I (NCBA"s Hof S/31/B 

CBB/BPOC FS8Cs Total CBB/BPOC FSBCs Total 

.. ~d..Y~~~S!J'..'L .. _. _$~718-U--~Jd!:.Lt _ _? __ 3_54J?3S s 240,7 3_Q_ -~~_22;?_+_s_2s1 ,3~-
' Foodservic e _L 316, GlS I S 53,392 ! S 370 007 S 270 256 S <t5,574 ~ 315,830 

.. ~!JJk'!!!.Y. ~~n_t_er •... s ... -~.1Q:SG~--s-. • J~~ ... ~~Ll.-.S .. _l.C?2~!1?JL --~ __ '!.~~ .. ~& ~.L.2!·~.~~i-s ..... -~~".1,41~ . 
New Product S 576,474 .! S 97.213 ! S 673,687 S 248.731 S 41.945 S 290.676 

. ~~t~IJ . ___ .. •. I .? . .!.~.6~~-~~? ___ 8 ___ . __ -_ 11_~-~7],._Q:l_~_J_,~_ 1,2!~~~-~-- 1·-·s-~' 17~2.!!-~-1--s . .....!~..1&~.+-S...J,_~1.Q,.789_ 
Veal S . 321,670 , S 54, 244 l S 375,914 S 146,39'9 S 24,688 l S 171.087 

AR Totals 1 s 4;101.920 1 s &91,121 r s- - -4.793:641- rs-2.544,9s&l-$429,i65 -I s 2.974,121 

Historical Summarv ot Budaets and Exoenses 

Tot•I Approv~ Budsets 

FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2009 

Strateav & Tactic S 4 643 166 

AR Totals $ 4.643.166 
~50,602 

4.550,6(12 

4 ,590,20() 

4.590.200 

Tot•I Act·ual E>1penses 

FY 2011 FY 2010 FY 2009 

s 4 ,237,449 

s 4 .237.449 

4 .• 251,484 

4.251.484 

4,069,746 

4 ,069.746 

~,~ 
~~:r. · §-~ 
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National Cattlemen's Beef Association - Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia 

National Cattlemen's Beef Association 
�rorn Wikipeclia, tbe free encyclopeclia 

National Cattlemen's Beef Association or NCBA, an advocacy group for beef 
producers in the United States, reports that it works "to increase profit 

opportunities for cattle and beef producers by enhancing the business cl imate 
and bui lding consumer demand." 

The NCBA operates the Cattle Industry Annual Convention & Trade Show and 
Cattle Industry Summer Conference. 

! contents 
• 1 Advertising campaign 

• 2 Legislation 

• 3 Financial background I 
I 

• 4 See also I 
• 5 References 

• 6 External l i nks 

I 
--- ______ __ _ _  _J 

Advertising campaign 

Page 1 of 2 

Logo of the National Cattlemen's 

Beef Association. 

The NCBA is the group responsible for the ad campaign run in the U . S. using the slogan " Beef. It's What's for 

Din ner" M usic from the ballet Rodeo by Aaron Copland is used in the radio and television commercials. On 

January 2 1 ,  2008, M atthew McConaughey became the current spokesman of the organization, having taken over 
from Sam El liott and the late J i m  Davis and Robert Mitchum. 

Legislation 
The NCBA supported the Farmers Undertake Environmental Land Stewardship Act (H.R. 3 1 1 ;  l 1 3th Congress), a 
bi l l  that would require the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) to modify the Spil l  Prevention, Control, and 

Countermeasure (SPCC) rule, which regulates oi l discharges into navigable waters and adjoining shorelines. f 1 1 The 
rule requires certain farmers to develop an oil spi l l  prevention plan that is certified by a professional engineer and 

may require them to make infrastructure changes.( ! ) According to supporters, this bi l l  would "ease the burden piaced 
on farmers and ranchers" by making it easier for smaller farms to self-certify and raising the level of storage 

capacity under which farms are exempted.[2) The NC BA's president said that they were "pleased" that the "bi l l  wi l l  

keep many of our producers from having to undertake excess costs as a result of the EPA's overregulation."C21 

The NCBA supported the Water Rights Protection Act (H.R. 3 1 89; 1 1 3th Congress), a bi l l  that would prevent 
federal agencies from req uiring certain entities to rel inquish their water rights to the United States in order to use 

publ ic lands.l3lC4l 

Financial background 

9 
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National Cattlemen's Beef Association - Wikipedia, the free encyclopedia Page 2 of 2 

The National Cattlemen's Beef Association is funded partial ly by membership dues and partially through the Beef 

Checkoff which imposes a mandatory assessment each time a head of cattle is s0Jdf5l This !:rub which was authorized 
by Congress in the Beef Promotion and Research Act of 1 985, brings in around $85 m i l l i o  a yeai;,_ of which the 

NCBA. receives roughly $55 m i l l ion. l6J The constitutional ity of the mandatory assessment was called into question 

with the hearing of the Supreme Court of the United States case Johanns v. Livestock Marketing Assn.Pl in which 

the j ustices ruled in favor of the tax in  a 6-3 decision. 

See also 
• Got Mi lk? 

• Wise Use Movement 
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Testi mony b Dwight Ke l ler  

H l238 
House Agricu ure Committee 

C h a i r m a n  J o h nson a n d  M e m bers of the House Agric u lt u re Committee, 

I a� S1h generation ra ncher.  I 'm a member of the I nd e pendent Beef Associat ion of N D  

( I-BAN D ), the N o rt h  Da kota Stockmen's  Associat ion ( N DSA), N D  Fa rmer' s  U n i o n  a n d  N D  Farm B u re a u .  

I a m  h e re to testify o n  beha lf o f  I-BAND i�o H B  1238. I -BAN D h a s  po l icy to o p pose ra is ing 

the beef checkoff. 

I was in atte nda nce at t h e  N DSA's conve ntion in 2013 when they voted to i n c rease the state beef 

c h eckoff. At that t i me, they c l a i med to h ave a pp roximately 80 % a p p rova l  fo r the checkoff, b ut it  was 

a lso s h a red that the i nfo rmation was fro m a very s m a l l  sa m p l e  of t h e i r  m e m bers.  I suggested they let a l l  

t h e  p rod ucers i n  t h e  state vote o n  t h e  p ro posed i ncrease, si nce they estimate that t hey h ave h igh 

a p p rova l of the checkoff. As the de bate went on,  t hey thought that s ince the checkoff is  refu n d a b le,  it  

would be okay to raise it without a vote.  I t  was suggested to m a ke it  an opt-i n progra m so that 

prod u cers that wa nt to cont r ibute the p roposed add itio n a l  checkoff, ca n do so, and those who d o  not 

wa nt to contr i b ute, would not have to go t h ro ugh the work associated with rece ivi ng a ref u n d .  This  idea 

was not s u p p o rted, so a re there rea l ly a p proximately 80 % of the p rod ucers that  support an i n c rease in  

t h e i r  checkoff assessment? This should be a n  i n d ustry wide decision a n d not a ny one o rganizat ion's  

decis io n .  

Most state checkoffs spend a b i g  pe rcentage o f  their  fu nds on resea rch, b u t  t h e  N D  Beef Co m m iss ion 

does not .  I nc l u ded with my testi mony is  the 2014 audit  of the N D  Beef Co m m iss ion .  The ND Beef 

Co m m i ss ion re ports that a bo ut 40 - 45% of the b udget is  used to a d m i n ister the p rogra m .  O n l y  $681 
were spent o n  resea rc h .  Last yea r  t hey sent $137,232 t o  nat ional  a n d  i nternat iona l  progra m s  that a re 

s u bj ect to h uge i m pl ementation fees a n d  there was $75, 883 of u n spent funds .  With a yea r-e n d  ba l a nce 

of $270,055 why were no rese a rch p rojects i n it iated or  funded? 

/ 



When the N D  Beef Com m issio n  sends money to the Federation of the State Beef Councils (wh ich has no 

bank accou nt), it goes d i rectly to NCBA or to the U nited States M eat Export Federation (USMEF) .  You 

s h o u l d  a lso know that NCBA spends approximately $12.5 mi l l ion  a n n ua l ly in i m p lementation costs. 

I went to Orla ndo, F lorida with another producer d uring the s u m me r  meeting a few years ago. We flew 

· out at o u r  own expense, but cou l d  not justify staying at the Gaylord Estates where the meeting was 

being he ld .  The registration fees seemed u n real, as were a l l  the costs associated with that meeting. 

We d i d  get a n  ed ucation that su m mer as to how some of our checkoff funds a re s pent. 

M ost fa rmers and ranchers wo u l d  be in favor of a goo d  beef checkoff, but we need to fix problems we 

have, at the state and national  level, before we go forward with i ncreasing the checkoff on cattle 

p roducers who d o  not s u p po rt it.  

When the national  beef checkoff p rogra m was started i n  1985, I remem ber a rguing with my Father that 

we should a l l  have to pay into the checkoff. He said i n  no u ncertai n  terms, that it should never be a 

m a ndatory, because it i nvolved too much m o ney a n d  we'd lose accountabi l ity for that money someday. 

As they say, Father knows best. 

Thank you for l istening. This is an important issue to a l l  of the beef produce rs of North Da kota . 
I would be happy to a n swer any q uestions.  

Dwight Kel ler  

M a ndan, North Da kota 
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• Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 

For the Fiscal Year Ended J u ne 3 0  

201 4  201 3  

Revenues 
Gross Assessment Revenue $ 1 ,  1 3 1 ,  1 20 $ 1 ,  1 40,774 
Less: 

Assessment revenu e  remitted to other states (24,445) (29,734) 

Assessment revenu e  remitted to Catt lemen's Beef Board (553,349} (555,887} 

Net Assessment Revenues $ 553,326 $ 555, 1 53 

I nterest I n come 789 967 

Beef Gift Certificates 1 3,537  1 6, 5 1 0  

Other Revenue 1 2,87 1 -, ' '"' "'  
f ' f  .;)L 

Total Revenues $ 580,52 3  $ 580,362 

Ex12enditures 

Program Expenditures: 

I nternational Promotion � $ 1 2,728 $ 22,750 

Promotion 34,560 33, 0 1 6  

I nd ustry I n formation 200 

Research 68 1 1 8 , 1 25 

Consumer Information 9 1 ,255 1 28 ,030 

National Program Devel opment 1 24,484 1 58 ,660 

Total Program Expend itures $ 263,708 $ 360,781 

Beef Gift Certificates 1 3,347 1 6,51 0 
Administration 227,585 222,337 

Total Expenditures $ 504,640 $ 599,628 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ 75,883 $ ( 1 9,266) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1 94, 1 72 2 1 3,438 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 270,055 $ 1 94, 1 72 

See Notes to the F inancial Statements . 

North Dakota Beef Commission � I C"r lho Vo .-:.,..� on rlorl /1 1 no iJI) ')f)-f A '=l n rl  ')()1 ? 
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NORIH DAKOiA BEEF COMMISSION 

'""'' ~ ~ "' 8UdQet Worksheet -2014-2015 
Aooroved -6-24-14 

-~ ··- .. 
"· - " - .. 

~ ... " ·-- ... _ 
~at"i!d Cash B~lance Juty,1, 2014 ·-- 288,000.00 -.... ... ·--
-~· ... - ·- ~. ...... .. _ 

-- . 
Bw daet 2013"2014 Estimated 2013-2014 Approved 20f4-2015 

INCOME 
... -

Checl<off -North Dakota 
.,_ 

$" 1,030,000.00 -$ •1, 120,000.00 -$ ·1, 100,000.00 . -
Other States 

'"' .. 
29,000.00 24;520.00 25,000.00 - Late CharEJe:i 

..• ... 
300.00 

.. 
810.00 soo;oo . . . 

Beef Gift Certl'flcates 
. "' . , 

17,000.00 13,600.00 7,500,00 
Miscellaneous 

.. 
3,500.00 12,820.00 ·- 3,500.00 

Interest 
.. , ... ···- 1,100.00 700.00 800,QQ ·- . "'-- -... ··- . " 

" .. 
$ 1,080,900.00 $ ·1,'172,350.00 I $ 1, 137,300.00 

-~. ~ ... 
··- ·~·-

,,_ ... ~,. ··- ... ·-
.. 

!:XPENSES 
,., ... ,., ... , ,._ .. ~·-

" Cattlemen's Beef Board (50%) 
~ 

Ji ~·- 5_15,000.00 .. $ 537:131.00 $ .660,000.00 ........ _ 
C6B • late charoe ·- 150.00 405.00 250.00 -· -· Other States ' " - 29,000.00 24,270.00 :.25,000.00 - ..... 
9eef Gift Certificates-SND 

.,_ ·-·· 17,000.00 13,50Mo 7,500.00 ...... 
Total $ 561,150:.QO $ 575,306.00 $ 

'"" 
582?50.00 ·- ~ ····- "'····-

,Qwieensatlon. ·- -· .. .. .... _ - ... ~ 

- -. Salaries $ 1.30,361.00 $ 
A,. 

11s.s~.oo $ 128,926.00 .. -

.Per diem - Commissioners 
.... ... ___ --- 9,500.00 10.950.0,0_ ·12,000:00 .. ,, 

"·---··'"" - . •.. 
-~ 

Health & Life Insurance 23,667.00 23,567.00 23,567.00 
Soclal Security 

. 
'10,196.00 

. 
9,061.00~·J: 9,863.00 - Worker's Como, Unernelo~rnent_, EAP 

----. ..... 
275.00 ' 130.00 

... 
275.00 

Retirement 
.. _ .. ,. 

13 448.00 
.. 

13.449.00 14,580.00 
-All deductions 

~ ,., .. 
47.486.09 " 46,207.00 - 48,285.00 .. ""···~-

-Total $ -···· '• 
187,337.00 $ 175.489.0o I $ 189,211.00 

.. ··-1----• --~ .. 
.,... .. __ 

.Oeerations - ---,___ .,_ .. ____..._ ~ 

Rent $ ·t7,557.00 $ 1·1,984.00 $ 18,408.00 ,___ - " ·---· 
.... -~dit • State ---.. ---·- __ 4,500.00 4,472.00 

·~ 
4,500.00 

_.,, Compliarce proQram 2,500.00 ,__., ... ... 2,446.00 •. .._ 2,600.00 ·-· 
_.)elephone - 1,800.00 1,500.00 1,800.00 .. ·-

Equlpmen~, Service, Progra111mlng ,_3,000.00 3,200.00 
··~· 

3,400.00 ·--
Su2plles, Postar;ie, Prlntlnq1 Misc. .. 4,000.00 -··--"- 2,008.00 . 3,000.00 

Le(:laf-Attomey General 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 
-·~- '· 

688.0.Q_l Commission Insurance 750.00 750.00 - ·~·--- -

• 
Travel - staff 7;000.00 8,375;00 8,500.00 -. >---· 

Travef ~ commissioners 20.000.00 18,330.00 20.000.00 ··---· ' ---~·-

··--... -. 
Total $ 62,107.00 $ 53.002.00 $ 63,958.00 -,-.. . ,, ___ ~ 

. . .... ___..... ·-

I 
- ;r= ---· += .. - , ____ 

.,, 

-- ·---· ···--· ·--·- ··--
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Fa0rii1°ers Union 

Chairman Johnson and members of the Committee , 

/)-10 

My name is ane Braun and I 'm here to represent the members of North Dakota Farmers 
Union .  W oppose B 1 238.  

North Dakota Farmers Union members recognize that commod ity promotion programs 
can be valuable tools for consumer education and market development. However,  we 
recommend that research and promotion programs f inanced through producer checkoffs 
be closely evaluated to assure that they stay member-control led . 

We bel ieve that that such programs should i nclude the fo l lowing criter ia:  

• Receive the approval by a majority of producers voting individually in a 

referendum by mail, with at least 30% of eligible voters participating. The 
referendum should be held prior to the imposition of the checkoff. There should be 
a reauthorization vote every five years. 

• Checkoffs should be voluntary and "opt-in. "  A procedure should be provided 
to enable producers to obtain a refund of checkoff funds without delay or h indrance 
on an annual  basis .  Refund appl ication blanks should be provided by the 
purchasers of the commodity. 

Whi le we applaud the sponsor of the bi l l  for includ ing the refund language, we bel ieve the 
referendum lang uage should be addressed . We would not be alone in this endeavor; 
states l i ke Ohio, Texas , and even our neighbors to the east, Minnesota, have conducted 
referendums. 

I can take any questions that you may have. 



�Testimony of� Jiii 
Good M o r n i ng Cha irman J o h nson a nd House Agricu ltura l  Com m ittee Me mbers .  

am�h Generation farmer/rancher in Morton County. I have been ranching a l l  my life and live on the ranch m y  

a ncestors establ ished. It has grown through four generations and I look forward t o  o n e  or more of my own children taking over in 

the future. 

le House Bill 1238 as it being decided upon by government versus the grass roots cattle producers. This proposed bill would 

create a "new" state checkoff tax on cattle. A new checkoff program should be voted on by the grass roots cattle producers paying 

i nto the program, not by a legislative decision. Every independent cattle producer should be able to weigh i n  on their checkoff pro­

gram . It is im portant that beef producers, not the government, di rect the program and m a ke decisions about any increase. The 

role of government should only provide oversight to ensure that the checkoff program com plies with the law. 

Six states have defeated an increase i n  the Beef Checkoff: Min nesota, M issouri, California, North Carolina, Wyom ing and Nebraska. 

The m ost recent was our neighbor, Min nesota, who defeated with 63% OPPOSI NG an increase i n  2014. Another Midwestern 

neigh bor, Nebraska, discussed a proposed increase but it failed to gain a ny steam to even get to a vote. 

I am a current Board mem ber of the United States Cattlemen's Association (USCA). We have been working with the Beef Checkoff 

E n h a ncement Working Group for three years and I have been in attenda nce in some of these meetings. The group includes Ameri­

can Farm Bureau Federation, American National Cattlewomen Inc., Livestock Marketing Association, Meat Im port Council of Ameri­

ca, National Cattlemen's Beef Association, National Livestock Producers Association, National Milk Producers Federation and the 

U n ited States Cattlemen's Association .  National Farmer's U n ion had been a mem ber but pulled out of the group because they 

were extremely frustrated as the m eetings weren't accom plishing anything for the fi rst two and one half years as NCBA tried to 

dominate the Working Group. This group has come to a Memorandum of U n derstanding on some a reas of the 85 Beef Act. They 

a re looking to increase the current national assessment from one dollar to two dollars which would include a refund option for the 

additional dollar. The increase would be voted on by the producer before the program is started and there would be a Referen­

um every five years there after. 

I am extremely disa ppointed in the lack of structural changes that we have not achieved yet. For exam ple, there should be a clear 

separation of the policy organization from the non-pol itical,  promotional checkoff entity. National orgainzations now domi nate 

the group that a re also contractors to the checkoff and it is my opinion that they are m aking decisions based on their fina ncial well 

being rather than on the good of the people who pay into the checkoff. The conflict of interest surrounding the relationship be­

tween the Federation of State Beef Councils and NCBA is stil l  a major concern to m a ny producers. The Checkoff is largely con­

trolled by an o rganization that has a vested interest in m aking sure the current structure never changes. That organization, of 

course, is the National Cattlemen's Beef Association ( N CBA). NCBA's motivation for obstructing each and every idea is predictable, 

considering more than 97 percent of all Beef Board contracts went to NCBA, and the organization relies on the current Checkoff 

program for a vast majority of its funding. Along with that, Processors and im porters should be excluded from positions of leader­

ship, ensuring that beef producers are always i n  cha rge and not a llow to al locate a single dime to a ny o rganization engaged i n  lob­

bying. 

According to the 2014 Beef Checkoff Audit, our current state Beef Comm ission incurs 40";6 administrative fees. We only spent 15% 

on consumer information. 2 1% of our current 50 cents that could have stayed in our state to further research or consumer infor­

m ation was actually sent out of state to the Federation of State Beef Councils. This subjected these funds to a second rou nd of 

"administrative" fees of 20-30";6. If our intent is to send it directly out of state, the "best bang for our buck" would have been to 

send it directly to the Cattlemen's Beef Board who is held at a fixed 5% administrative fee expense. 

In conclusion, I don't believe an increase in the Checkoff is warranted at this time. We need m ore reform i n  the existing program 

before we i nvest additional dollars in a system that is clearly broken.  It has been stated that if a National Checkoff were to pass, 

his State Checkoff increase would be sunset. That statement leads me to believe that there isn't any intention of a ny of this pro­

sed increase to stay i n  the state in the first place, it will end up i n  the hands of NCBA who clearly doesn't have m y  best interests 

in m ind.  For these reasons, I strongly oppose HB1238. 

Kenny Graner 



1-30-15 

HOUSE B ill 0. 1238 

Chairman Johnson:  Members of the House Ag Committee. 

My name is�n Lun]D own and operate a cow/ca lf operation in Sioux County. 

I stand before you in pposition o House B i l l  1238 which proposes to triple the State Beef Checkoff 
from fifty cents to one o ar and fifty cents for each beef animal  so ld in  North Dakota . 
I stand in opposition of this b i l l  for severa l reasons. 

I "l 
• The 2crt5>genera l  audit of the N .D. State Beef Commission shows a seventy-five thousand dol lar 

surp lus. It a lso shows expenditures of over one hundred twenty four thousand dol lars being sent 
to National Program Development which I assume wou ld be another name for the Nationa l 
Cattlemen's Beef Association. I n  l ight of th is, it just doesn't make sense to justify an increase. 

• It has not yet been explained to me how this additional checkoff dol lar is going to be spent. 

Would this additional dol lar adhere to the rules of the existing checkoff as be ing earmarked to 
be spent on research, education, and promotion of beef or would there be more flexib i l ity? If 
the latter is true wou ld some of this money be a cash cow for state and national  pol icy 
organ izations that I would rather not finance with my checkoff dol la rs. 

• North Dakota a l ready pays more than their fa ir  share of checkoff dol lars. We are one of fourteen 
brand states in the Un ited States. By being a brand state any cattle sold are required to have 
legal documentation of brand inspection. This documentation is used by the State Beef 
Commission to col lect checkoff fees. The non-brand states have no such documentation and 
therefore fa i l  to co l lect a portion of the checkoff dol lars owed. Now we want to add an 
additional  dol lar. Get rea l !  It is not up  to the North Dakota cattle producer to shoulder the 
National Beef Checkoff. 

• This is not an issue that should be decided in the North Dakota State Legislature. This is an issue 
that should be voted on by the producers that pay into the checkoff. I would wonder how many 
catt le producers actua l ly even rea l ize this b i l l  is being heard today. I 'm reasonably sure the 
number is pretty low. 

In closi ng, I would suggest two things need to happen before any increases be made to the state beef 
checkoff. 
A performance a udit needs to be conducted on the North Dakota Beef Commission .  After thirty years, 
this is long overdue. 
Producers need to be afforded the right to vote on reform, abo l ishment, or increase to the checkoff 
program.  After a l l, the producers, by a l l  rights should own this program.  

Thank you, and I urge a no vote on HB  1238. 

Allen Lund 
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Good Morning Chairman Johnson and House Agriculture Committee Members, 

My name in ike Heaton, I own and operate a cow/calf and back grounding operation in 

Burleigh County. I rise i�o hb 1 238 .  The current beef checkoff has been in 

existence for nearly three decades. In 1 985, the same year the current checkoff was 

initiated, the per capita conswnption of beef was 79.2 pounds, in 201 3  it was 56.7 

pounds. While at the same time, 1 985 per capita conswnption of total red meat, poultry, 

and fish was 1 99 pounds, and in 20 1 3  it was 204 pounds. So you see, we conswned more 

total meat in 201 3, but beef lost market share. This is a fai lure. In 20 1 4, for the first time, 

the conswnption of chicken surpassed that of beef. The beef checkoff brings in 

approximately 80 million a year to be used for research, education, and promotion. The 

chicken industry has no checkoff. Again, this is a fai lure. 

The idea behind the checkoff is to keep the cattle industry profitable or 

sustainable. B ut I have some charts that show otherwise. The first chart shows we have 

under produced our product but yet the nwnber of beef operations declined by 42 percent. 

The biggest decline was from 1 996 to 201 0. This is after the checkoff has had a decade to 

work its magic. When we are losing cattle operations at an alarming rate during years of 

under production; something isn't working. I believe it is important for you to know that 

the cattle industry is made up of basically four different segments. First, being the 

cow/calf operation where we are marketing our grass through our cattle. Second, is the 

feedlots who are marketing grain and forage through the livestock. Third, is the packing 

i ndustry that turns l ivestock into beef and is the wholesale marketer. Fourth, is the retail 

outlets that sells beef. This may seem like one big happy fami ly, however, the reality is  

we are al l  competing for the consumer dollars. I also have charts showing that the cattle 
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producers are losing their share of consumer beef dollars. As well as receiving negative 

returns on equity. All of this has led to more and more concentration and less and less 

competition in our markets. Which is indicated in the chart labeled "Today's  US Cattle 

Industry". It looks to me like I am paying the checkoff and the meatpackers and the food 

retailers are receiving the benefits. 

The state organization that is pursing the new cow tax has stated. "Our vision 

would be that the additional dollar be used for the soul purposes of beef research, 

education, and promotion efforts, just like the current dollar is, and that investment 

decisions rest solely with the grass roots producers serving on the North Dakota Beef 

Commission, who are armed with the best information to make those decisions. In some 

cases, the best bang for the buck might be an investment in in-state efforts. In other cases, 

it might be to pool those resources with others for national or international programs, 

which aim to influence consumers in more densely populated regions or high value 

markets". 

Now let's look at the North Dakota Beef Commission. We are averaging about a 

40 percent administrative cost for the money we receive. But if you figure administrative 

cost on the money that is actually used in North Dakota it is more like 59 percent. It is my 

understanding that the 28 percent on average that is used for National Program 

Development is subject to an additional 30 percent administrative costs. Hard to believe 

we are getting a lot of bang for our buck. I also want you to understand much of the 

National Program Development expense is going to the Federation of State Beef 

Councils, or Federation. The Federation by its own definition is a non-legal entity. This 

non-legal entity that we send money to every year is also known as a pay for play entity. 



But since this non-legal entity was created by the NCBA and is housed in the NCBA and 

has no checkbook, the checks from the North Dakota Beef Commission are written out to 

the NCBA. I find this interesting because the North Dakota Stockmen's Association, an 

affiliate of the NCBA, by North Dakota law can and does nominate more people to the 

Beef Commission Board than any other organization. 

A few years back the 50 cents per head that is spent by the Cattlemen's  Beef 

Board was subjected to a performance review. The review was done on one percent of the 

receipts for a two year and five month period of time. The audit revealed $216,000 in 

misappropriated funds. Now let me put this into perspective, an audit of one percent of 

receipts for two years and five months is the same as one hlnldred percent of receipts for 

9 days. 

I would reference you to the document titled "A CBB member weighs in with his 

perspective". NCBA is the major contractor of the checkoff dollar. For the 201 1 

program year NCBA was awarded ninety three percent of available funding. This 

includes approximately fifteen percent that was awarded to NCBA subcontractors. The 

same year 70.9 percent ofNCBA's entire overhead was billed to the checkoff. NCBA 

was awarded 1 1 .6 million in implementation fees, which is over and above the direct cost 

of projects. This is a huge problem when a lobby group is paying seventy percent of their 

overhead with the checkoff. 

We are being asked to fund a new checkoff that would create a million dollar 

fund. There are a lot of unanswered questions, as to what this would fund and who would 

be the recipient of these funds. Many of us here have served on a school board, township 

board, or fire board. None would be allowed to double the taxes without a comprehensive 



plan and a budget. We are all challenged to decide if more money is a need or a want. If 

any other department in this building came to you wanting a million extra dollars with no 

comprehensive plan for the money, would you grant it? 

We have here a group that represents approximately one in every four cattle 

producers in North Dakota asking that you raise the cow tax in North Dakota. This means 

that approximately three in every four cattle producers and no other organization 

representing producers is asking for this new tax. 

I have pointed out declining consumption, declining market share, poor markets, 

and misuse of monies, all on the checkoffs clock. Let me offer you a very simple 

solution to this bill. Make it opt in instead of refundable. When I say opt in I mean at the 

producer level. When I sell fifty calves I write a check to the North Dakota Beef 

Commission for fifty dollars. This would make the program nearly one hundred percent 

efficient. Any money sent in would belong to the Beef Commission and not be subject to 

refund. It would also prove to be the straw pole of all straw poles. The amount of 

participation in this would be an exact percentage of approval for the increase. In fact, 

this is so simple and efficient it would work even if it wasn't in the century code. 

Thank you 



H istoric U nder-Prod uction of 
Domestic Beef i n  Recent Yea rs 

Domestic Consumption in Excess of Domestic Production 

Source: USDA FAS, USDA ERS Year 

Conversion of imported cattle to beef accomplished by multiplying the number of imported cattle 
by each year's average slaughter carcass weight. 
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Shri n king N um ber of 
Livestock Operations 

Loss of U.S. Livestock Operations 1 980-2010 

Beef Cattle Swine Dlaiy Sheep 

1 ,272,950 667,000 335,270 120,000 

742,000 60,460 62,500 81 ,000 

72,000 12,060 16,000 5,022 

Source: USDA-NASS 
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Beef Cattle Operations Exiti ng 
Cattle I nd ustry at an Alarm i ng Rate 

Exodus of U.S. Beef Cattle Operations 

1 996·2010 
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No. 9 :  Producers Losing Their Share 
of Consumer's Beef Dol lar 

U.S. Cattle Producer's Share of Consumer's Beef DoHar 

1 980-2010 
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No. 1 5 : Long-Run Negative Return On 
Equ ity for U .S.  Catt·le Industry 

Past Six-Year Average Return on Equity 
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Today's U.S. Cattle Industry 
4 Beef Packers Slaughter 

Approx. 8 8  % of All Fed 

Cattle in the U.S.  

80,000 Farmer Feeders in 200 

(Reduced from 85,000 in 2007) 

Fed Approx. 1 0  % of 

All Fed Cattle in the U .S 

Slaughtered 34.4 Million 

Cattle in 2008,  Including 1 -2 

Million Imports 

2, 1 70 Feedlots Fed Approx. 90 % . 

of All Fed Cattle in the U.S .  in 2008 

Produced 36 Million 
Cattle (calves) in 2008 
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STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

OFFICE OF ATTORNEY GENERAL 

'Nlyne 8_...m 
ATTORNEY GENERAL 

Mr. Thomas Bemett 
Assistant Attorney General 
U.S. Department of Justice 

STAT! CAPITOL 
800 E BOl.LEVAAO AVE DEPT 12! 

8'SMAROI<. ND 68506-0040 
(701) �221 0  FAX (701) 321-�26 

April 29. 2008 

950 Pennsylvania Avenue .m, ·Room 3335 
Washington. DC 20530 

Re: JBS Swift aequlsitlon of Smithfield and National Beef 
Dear Mr. Barnett: 

I have been cont&cted by various organizations in North Dakota wtth concem1 
regarding JBS Swift's proposed aoquisiticn of Smithfield and .National Beef. In 
dlscuaalng the prop<>1ed merger, other North Dakota entities have raised sinilar 
cooceme. These e>cpressed concerns pranpt me to contad you and to urge you to 
thoroughly acruttnlze JBS Swift's appllcatlon for acquisition of Smithfield and National 
Beef and to Issue a second request 

It is a great concern that this acquisition wiU further consolidate the beef packing. 
industry and lessen competition to the detriment or many of the groups inwlved · m the 
Industry, lncludlng consumers. Removal of major competing buyers could significantly 
reduce th� competition in the buyer market for cattle. lt has been noted that the merger 
will hann the prioe, choice, Innovation, and competition in the beef industry. 

I urge you to look at JBS Swift's application with the scrutiny necessary to determine all 
the expected effects of the acquisition. I urge you to carefully evaluate both the 
expected and p9S§ible consequences the merger may have on the entire beef industry 
and, as a result, on oonsumers, including all direct and indirect impacts. I respectfully 
urge you to not only look at the direct effect to the buyers and sellers in this transaction, 
but atso the effect on the Industry aa a whole and the indirect effect the merger would 
have on consumers. • 
A major concern is the proposed merger's negative efrect on competition In the market. 
A reduction from five major buyers to three major buyers likefy wffl slgnifleantly reduce 
competition. It is a concern that the proposed acquisition will concentrate even mol'9 of 
the mari<et power in this Industry with the buyer. The effects of a reduction in 
competitive bidding and a concentration of market power In the buyer are believed to 
create a negative effect on the beef industry and drive prices up for the U.S. consumer. 
A thorough review of thia proposed merger is, therefore, critical. 

!/ 



Mr. Thomas Barnett 
April 29, 2008 
Re: JBS Swift 
Page 2 

I aak you to not allow this process to be hurried through the system without a careful 
consideration of the expected negative Impacts on competition in the industry and the · 
Impacts on all the different levels of the Industry, including the packers, feeders, 
ranchers, and consumers. 

Thank you for your attention. 
Sincerely, 

Ww; Stenehjem 
Attorney General 

/;2_ 



A CBB Member Weighs In With His 
Perspective • • • 70.9% of NCBA's Total Overhead Paid 
by Checkoff 

13Jun 

For subscribers to the blog who received email notification of the original post and went 
looking for it, we apologize. Formatting issues caused a small delay. 

We invite ALL CBB members to weigh in on this blog discussion. We'd like to hear 
your perspective, too! 

CBB . . •  

Solid as ever 

by Chuck Kiker 

Member, Cattlemen's Beef Board 

(Published in the Western Ag Reporter week of June 6, 2011 and in the latest edition of 
the US. Cattlemen 's Association newsletter . . .  both available on the internet). 

Let's get this straight . . .  the Cattlemen's Beef Board (CBB) is NOT an organization, as 
has been printed in some of the press recently. It is, instead, a board that oversees the 
national beef checkoff, and its board members are appointed by the U.S.  Secretary of 
Agriculture. 

As Board members, we have responsibilities, and we take an oath. One of our key 
responsibilities is to leave any affiliations with other organizations and our special 
interests at the door when we are representing the CBB. 

For example, U.S. Cattlemen's Association (USCA) members who have been appointed 
to CBB represent everyone, not just USCA. CBB members are responsible for 
representing ALL cattle producers for the good of the industry. 

Disclaimer • • .  

I am writing this article a s  an individual producer and a director of USCA. My opinions 
and thoughts concerning the beef checkoff and the CBB are NOT the opinions of the beef 
checkoff, the CBB, the USDA, or even USCA. They are mine! 

The checkoff • • .  

13 



The beef checkoff program is 25 years old. The issues we're experiencing with the 
checkoff today have a long history, and it takes time and experience inside the CBB to 
understand the complexity of not only the program and its processes, but also the 
problems. 

Members' role . . .  

I n  2005, at the CBB summer meeting, I began serving on the Joint Producer 
Communications Committee, made up of members of the CBB and ofNCBA's 
Federation of State Beef Councils. 

As a committee member, you basically listen to bid proposals, called Authorization 
Requests (ARs), by contractors to conduct work funded by the checkoff in accordance 
with the Beef Promotion Act & Order. The committees then make recommendations 

to the Operating Committee, and it's Operating Committee that actually  decides whether 
or not the AR should be funded from the Beef Board's budget. 

Can you imagine any other government program where a contractor for federal funds is 
permitted to vote on who receives the contract? 

Conflict of interest? 

At that 2005 meeting, potential contractors were making their pitches for their ARs, and 
the National Cattlemen's Beef Association (NCBA) had a large one for Producer 
Communications. Another organization, the National Livestock Producers Association 
(NLPA), 

submitted several ARs that competed with NCBA's AR. At the end of the presentations, 
NCBA's AR that addressed similar efforts to NLPA's proposals was for significantly 
more money than NLPA's. NCBA's AR was going to cost $2,6 1 5,000 compared to 
NLPA's AR's price of $ 1 ,756,905. 

NCBA pitched its AR at a cost of $ 1 ,900,000, but after being asked during discussion if 
its implementation was included in that price, they disclosed that it was not. It turns 
out that NCBA submits a separate AR for implementation for all of its ARs per 
budget category. NCBA's implementation for Producer Communications was $7 1 5,000, 
bringing the total cost to $2,6 1 5,000. The committee had to choose between the two 
presentations, and the tension was so thick in the room that the chairman called an 
executive session of the committee after polling the committee's preferences on whether 
to remove the non-committee members from the room. I was the only one on the 
committee that voted to award the funding to NLP A. 

My point is that NCBA's influence through membership on the Producer 

Communications committee and staffmg of it clearly and literally directed 
discussion in favor of the NCBA AR. The committee's vote could have 
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potentially wasted an extra $750,000 by awarding the funding to NCBA and not to 
NLP A if the Operating Committee acted on the recommendation. 

I learned later that potential contractors at that time had to submit AR proposals to NCBA 
- not to the CBB - even if the potential contractors was in direction competition with 
NCBA. Little did I know then, but that was just the tip of the iceberg! 

It was at that point, after listening to the debate and reasoning of the other committee 
members, that I began to understand there were some problems with the beef checkoff 
process. 

Today • • .  

Let's fast-forward to present times. For the 2011 program year, NCBA was awarded 
93% of available program funding. This included 14.2% that went to the U.S. Meat 
Export Federation (USMEF), a subcontractor under NCBA, as well as 1 % that went to 
American National Cattlewomen (ANCW) - also a subcontractor under NCBA - for its 
Beef Cook-Off program. 

The only other stand-alone contractors besides NCBA are: 

- ANCW, which received 0.37% of the funding for the Beef Ambassadors and 
spokesperson bureau ARs, 

- MICA, the Meat Importers Council of America, which received 1 . 1 7% of the funding 
for foodservice, public relations, and retail work in the Northeast Beef Promotion 
Initiative, and 

- CBB, which received 5 .27% of the funding for Producer Communications work. 

The significance of these figures comes to light when learning how NCBA is reimbursed 
for its expenses. While it's true that contractors are not permitted to profit from beef 
checkoff projects they are awarded, they are permitted to recover "implementation" costs. 
Implementation can be defined as the costs associated with a contractor's out-of-pocket 
expenses. In NCBA's case, the organization turns in one AR per budget category for each 
year for the implementation costs on all the ARs it is awarded for a total of four 
implementation ARs. 

NCBA computes the budget needed for its Implementation ARs by estimating the hours 
NCBA staff will work on programs for the checkoff, along with associated overhead 
expenses. NCBA has staff whose time is allocated I 00% to the checkoff; other staff is 
allocated partially to the checkoff; and there are a few NCBA employees that do no work 
for the checkoff at all. At the end of the year, the total number of staff hours worked at 
NCBA and the total number of hours doing checkoff work are computed into the 
percentage of hours worked for the checkoff versus the total hours worked at NCBA. 
Last year, 70.9% of total work at NCBA was designated as being for the checkoff. 

(� 



NCBA's implementation costs last year for the ARs awarded to them came in at a 
whopping $ 1 1.6 million. Remember, those implementation costs are over and above 
the direct costs of projects. This means that NCBA's entire overhead was covered at 
70.9%. 

Even more astonishing is the fact that this includes general administrative salaries. The 

CEO of NCBA is also considered the CEO of the Federation of State Beef Councils, 
so his general administrative time is paid 70.9% with beef checkoff dollars. 

NCBA has been managing the plan of work for CBB funds, the industry-wide strategic 
plan, as well as the plans of the committee meetings and the committee's  
recommendations of work programs funded by the checkoff. 

NCBA does not want to give that up because it enables NCBA to control the goals of 
the plans, and this in turn lets NCBA control how many hours its staff puts in on 
checkoff work and, hence, maintain control of the high percentage (70.9%) of 
its overhead that is reimbursed by the checkoff. This is one of the reasons why you are 
reading about the hoopla surrounding the vote to approve and implement the 
recommendations of the Roles and Responsibilities Committee. 

Beginnings . . .  

These problems began to evolve around 1 996, when the merger between the National 
Cattlemen's  Association (NCA) and the National Live Stock and Meat Board occurred, 
and they have simply never been addressed. 

Why? Because too many producers participating in the governance and oversight of 
the checkoff program were too closely tied to NCBA. The recent recommendations 
made by the Roles and Responsibilities Committee call for making changes to the 
planning and committee structures currently in place that will reduce the undue influence 
NCBA has had over the planning and goals of checkoff program work and wil l  put 
control squarely back into the hands of the CBB. NCBA will still be the main 
contractor, but will lose its influence over how many hours of program work are done in­
house at NCBA, ultimately giving NCBA less control of reimbursement for its overhead 
expenses. 

The Roles and Responsibilities Committee recommendations will also make the 
committee process more inclusive of all producers and organizations. There wil l  not 
be the perception that you are attending NCBA meetings when you want to follow your 
checkoff, and you certainly will not have to pay a registration fee or any kind of dues 
structure to NCBA to attend and participate in checkoff discussions. Producers are not 
supposed to have to pay to go to checkoff meetings now, but I know some who have been 
given a hard time or even turned away at NCBA meetings because they refused to pay a 
convention registration fee just to go to checkoff committee and CBB meetings held 
during the NCBA conventions. That's just not right; it's our checkoff, and we should 
have open access to it. 
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Other problems . . .  

There are many other problems with the checkoff that result in inefficiencies and 
misappropriated funds, but the problems are not so enormous that they cannot be 
overcome. The good news is they are finally being addressed. The CBB now has the 
highest number of unbiased producers it has had in a long, long time, if not ever. 

However, NCBA still has far too much influence over the national checkoff through its 
Federation of State Beef Councils and its members and directors. 

Let me make something real clear, though: Those folks at NCBA who are 1 00% checkoff 
staff are working in your best interest, and they are bright, intelligent individuals who 
serve the beef checkoff well. 

The majority of these people are working for you and making the most of the checkoff 
funding they are budgeted. It's the structure and the processes that need overhauling, 
not the talented individuals doing the program work. 

· 

The CBB is going to continue to work toward making the beef checkoff more inclusive 
for all checkoff-paying producers and toward shoring up the program's compliance 
with the Secretary of Agriculture's guidelines and expectations. 

By all means, if you have questions or read something that doesn't sound accurate, call 
the Cattlemen' s Beef Board office at 303-220-9890. 

Talk to Tom Ramey, CEO of the CBB, or leave your name and number and ask to have 
one of the CBB officers or staffers return your call. It's  YOUR checkoff, and you deserve 
honest, factual answers. 

There's  no better place to get them than straight from the horse's mouth. 

Note: Chuck Kiker has recently been appointed to another term on the Cattlemen's Beef 
Board. Previously, he served on the CBB two full terms (six years). He went off the 
Board for a year, was nominated again in 2010, and went back on the Board in early 
201 1 .  This year he has been selected for the third time to serve on the Operating 
Committee. He is also on the CBB Budget Committee. 
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Good m orning, Chairman Kreidt  and comm ittee members. My name is Julie 
Ellingson and I represent the North Dakota Stockrnen's Association. 

We were unable to be at your July 1 6'h meeting when Mahlum Goodhart 
presented our audit, because the meeting overlapped with our own board of 
directors meeting. I understand that there were some questions that day 
about how the estray law works and the monies are dispersed and other beef­
related topics. That's why we are here today - to hopefully answer those 
questions and any others you might have. 

As a refresher, estrays are cattle, horses or mules - branded or unbranded -
whose ownership have not been determi ned. As the administrator of the 
state's brand programs, the Stockmen's Association is tasked with m anaging 
the state's estray fund and safeguarding the monies for the rightful owners 
who satisfactorily demonstrate proof of ownership. 

I' l l  give you a few examples: 

Let's say an animal is brought to the auction market wearing a brand 
different than the registered brand of the producer presenting the animal for 
sale, and he or she does not have the necessary paperwork, such as a bill  of 
sale, market clearance or local brand inspection certificate, to prove his or her 
ownership .  Consequently, the proceeds of the sale of that animal will  be 
"held" at the m arket while the inspector works to determine if the animal 
belongs to someone else or until the person who presented the animal for sale 
can produce the proper paperwork indicating that he or she is the rightful 
owner. Our market i nspectors work to clear up those "holds," as we call 
them, directly from the m arket. There were nearly 7,700 holds cleared at the 
markets in 2013.  

1 £  the holds are not cleared within approximately 60 days, the case and the 
proceeds are turned over to our office, where the money is deposited i nto the 
special estray fund, the case is assigned an estray case number and the 
process continues. 

nother situation might be when a steer, for instance, is found in the country. 
Neighbors are contacted and no one is missing any animals with that 
descrip tion. The animal is inspected for J;>rands and / or other identifying 
marks indicating its owner, but there isn't anything to prove ownership at 
that time. The animal is then sold and the proceeds of that sale are deposi ted 
into the estray fund while the search continues for the rightful owner. 



In all situations, the estray fund is accounted for separately, segregated in its own 
special account with the monies deposited the second Tuesday of the month with the 
State Treasurer's Office. North Dakota Century Code requires us to remit the proceeds 
of the livestock sale to the rightful owner when he or she can demonstrate his or her 
ownershi p  within 72 months, or six years. 

There was a question about the amount of money in the estray fund. As indicated in the 
audit, in 2013, there was approximately $233,000 deposited in the fund, with nearly 
$165,000 expensed, which represents payouts to owners, as well as claimants who 
provide feed for animals and mileage to the local auction market. That compares to 
about $236,000 in estray income in 201 2  and $165,000 in estray expense. 

There was a question about the value of the estray fund compared to previous years. 
The amount, of course, varies from year to year, depending on the number of animals 
implicated and the value of those animals at the time of their sale. The cattle market is at 
an unprecedented high right now. Consequently, the value of the animals held as 
estrays has been higher and the value of the overall estray fund has also been higher the 
last few years for those reasons. The value of the estray fund fluctuates day to day as 
money flows in and out of it regularly as estrays are cleared and /  or added. 

What does the value of the estray fund mean for the Stockmen's Association? Nothing, 
really. The estray fund is not our fund. It is the producers' fund that we are statutorily 
tasked with safeguarding. We cannot use those dollars for organizational purposes. 
State law does allow us to u ti lize estray dollars that go unclaimed for longer than 72 
months to run the state's brand inspection program. That means that those dollars older 
than six years can be used to offset costs of inspectors and their supplies for the brand 
program, not our policy work, educational efforts, environmental services efforts, 
membership or youth programs, etc. Those departments and their funding sources are 
managed separately, with a firewall in between and a third-party audit and your 
oversight for additional checks and balance. 

In July, there was mention of the beef checkoff and a question about how it fits with the 
es tray fund. The simple answer is that it doesn't. 

What I just described relates to the state's brand inspection program, which requires, by 
state law, producers to have inspection done for ownership purposes when they cross 
state lines or move through marketing channels. The cost of inspection is $1 per head. 
The beef checkoff is also $1 per head, but that's a different dollar and where the 

imilarities end 

The checkoff is a producer-funded and directed beef marketing program. The checkoff is 
administered by a separate entity, the North Dakota Beef Commission, which is tasked 
with that job and adhering to both the state and federal laws pertaining to the checkoff. 
While the Stockmen's Association is a strong supporter of the checkoff and was 
instrumental in getting the first checkoff put into place decades ago, our organization 
neither collects nor administers it. 

The question was asked about the possibility of increasing the checkoff, and, yes, NDSA 
members do support an increase. 

.· 



The beef checkoff as we know it today went into effect in 1986 at the assessment rate of 
$1 per head, the same rate that it is today. At the same time, costs have increased and 
inflation has caused the buying power of the dollar to shrink to less than hal f of its value 
at the time of its inception. Additionally, cattle numbers across the nation are at some of 
the lowest they have been since the 1950s, and, consequently, there are fewer dollars in 
the pool. Meanwhile, attacks on beef and beef production practices are i ncreasing, 
competition is growing and the needs of our industry to educate consumers and 
promote our product continue to mount. 

To address those needs, eleven states - the most recent being Texas and Ohio - have 
increased their respective state beef checkoffs to provide additional resources to leverage 
their demand-building capabilities. At least four others are in some phase of exploring 
such a change. 

Our members passed policy a year ago to support a similar $1 beef checkoff 
enhancement and expect a proposal that you'll consider during the 201 5  session. 

Our vision would be that the additional dollar be used for the sole purposes of beef 
research, education and proµwtion efforts, just like the current dollar is, and that 
investment decisions rest solely with the grassroots producers serving on the ort 
Dakota Beef- Commission, who are armed with the best information to make those 
decisions. In some cases, the best bang fo the buck migbt be an investment in in-state 
efforts. In other cases, it might be to pool those resources with others for national or 
international programs, which aim to influence consumers in more densely populated, 
regions or high-value markets. 

Our vision is also to allow producers who do not want to contribute to additional beef 
promotion, research and educational efforts the ability to get a 100 percent refund on the 
additional checkoff, similar to the refund allowances of other state commodity 
programs, and that the additional checkoff would sunset, if you will, if a national beef 
checkoff increase would be enacted. 

The Stockmen's Association itself does not stand to benefit from a beef checkoff increase 
directly. The reason that we support an increase, however, is that our industry, our 
producers, stand to benefit by keeping their product, beef, top of mind and in a 
favorabl light with consumers around the world. [n fact, a recent srudy conducted by 
Cornel l  University indicates that for every $1 invested in the checkoff returns an $ 1 1 .20 
return on investment. And we can do better than that by bolstering our resources to a 
more adequate level. 

I hope that this is helpful information and clarifies the differences between the brand 
programs and the beef checkoff. Thank you for time on your agenda this morning. I 
would be happy to answer any questions you might have. 

Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 
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Statement of Revenues," Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30 

2014  

Revenues 

Gross Assessment Revenue $ 1 ,  1 31 ,  1 20 
Less: 

Assessment revenue remitted to other states (24,445) 

Assessment revenue remitted to Cattlemen's Beef Board (553,349} 

Net Assessment Revenues $ 553,326 

Interest Income 789 

Beef Gift Certificates 1 3,537 

Other Revenue 1 2,871 

Total Revenues $ 580,523 

Ex�enditures 

Program Expenditures: 

International Promotion $ 1 2,728 

Promotion 34,560 

Industry Information 

Research 681 

Consumer Information 

National Program Development 
..r ·+ � .Jc:l,:_;.. 104 0. J 91 ,255 

Sl.. .b:J ca c O <:\ 5 -t"T<f� i/-c:.124 484 
'.} D °'>c 11'-c/ n 1 '1/ ' 

Total Program Expenditures $ 263,708 

Beef Gift Certificates 1 3,347 
Administration J '1 '70 227 ,585 

Total Expenditures $ 504,640 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures $ 75,883 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 1 94, 1 72 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 270,055 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 

North Dakota Beef Commission 

For the Years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 

201 3  

$ 1 ,  140,774 

(29,734) 

{555,887} 

$ 555, 1 53 

967 

16,51 0 

7,732 

$ 580,362 

$ 22,750 

33,01 6 

200 

1 8, 1 25 

1 28,030 

1 58,660 

$ 360,781 

1 6,51 0  
J &7tJ222,337 

$ 599,628 

$ ( 19,266) 

21 3,438 

$ 1 94, 1 72 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Year Ended June 30 

2013 2012 

Revenu!;!s 
Gross Assessment Revenue $ 1,140,n4 $ 1, 111,322 
Less: 

Assessment revenue remitted to other states (29,734) (28,185) 

Assessment revenue remitted to Cattlemen's Beef Board {555,887) {541 ,642} 

Net Assessment Revenues $ 555,153 $ 541,495 

Interest Income 967 2,453 

Beef Gift Certificates 16,510 18,295 

Other Revenue 7,732 7,576 

Total Revenues $ 580,362 $ 569,819 

Ex12enditures 

Program Expenditures: 

International Promotion $ 22,750 $ 21,836 

Promotion 33,016 41 ,874 

Industry Information 200 10,000 

Research 18, 125 16,600 

Consumer Information Ii 128,030 95,272 

National Program Development 
St... b..J e c;,-1- j-() a../. 1-/1C)l?6-/ h 

156,004 ~ .J ,-r- /Jc;. v-<..158,660 
J {) (V iZ /'1,/ll J 

Total Program Expenditures $ 360,781 $ 341 ,586 

Beef Gift Certificates . 16,510 18,295 
Administration 3 8/o 222,337 25'772 259,277 

Total Expenditures $ 599,628 $ 619,158 

Revenues Over Expenditures $ (19,266) $ (49,339) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 213,438 262,777 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 194,172 $ 213,438 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 

Norlh Dakota Beef Commission 
For the Years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 

2011 2010 
Revenues 
Gross assessment revenues $ 1,174,015 $ 1,187,756 
Less: 

Assessment revenue remitted to other states (35,850) (32,563) 
Assessment revenue remitted to Cattlemen's Beef Board (569, 154) (577,561) 

Net assessment revenues $ 569,011 $ 577,632 

Interest income 4,280 7,301 

Beef gift certificates 18, 195 17,620 

Other revenue 7,725 4,741 

Total revenues $ 599,211 $ 607,294 

Expenditures 
Program expenditures: 

International promotion $ 26, 123 $ 17,200 

Promotion 37,603 46,753 

Research 22,203 113,103 

Consumer information , + -I () ei..d ~ ,·.;,o,,,q / 115,663 138,805 
National program development SIA. h J e ~ "-J f'1. Jn I 5'/-/ 4 -1-1 >'~ 164,799 167,447 

Total program expenditures 
3 D 0 

$ 366,391 $ 483,308 

Beef gift certificates $ 18, 195 $ 17,620 

Administration i..//lo 254,829 ¥0/(2 243,353 

Total expenditures $ 639,415 $ 744,281 

Revenues over expenditures $ (40,204) $ (136,987) 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year $ 302,982 $ 439,969 

Fund Balance, End of Year $ 262,778 $ 302,982 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

ND Beef Commission Audit Report 
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2011 and 2010 
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Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance 
For the Fiscal Years Ended June 30, 20 1 0  and 2009 

Revenues 
Gross assessment revenues 
Less: 

Assessment revenue remitted to other states 
Assessment revenue rem itted to Cattlemen's Beef Board 

Net assessment revenues 

Interest income 
Beef gift certificates 
Other revenue 

Total revenues 

Expenditures 
Program expenditures: 

International promotion 
Promotion 
Research 
Consumer information 

2010  
$ 1 , 1 87,756 

(32,563) 
(577,561) 

$ 577,632 
7,301 

1 7,620 
4,741 

$ 607,294 

$ 1 7,200 
46,753 

1 1 3, 1 03 
1 38,805 

Industry information 
_ _...J- JI, �  1 • / I "e - I ,.lo e'( ./ T /0 1/.a. 

National program development S'c..., 11:1 " L I ,_ --f u r> 1 67,447 
3 o <?o ?'\. "' ,,, 1/1 " .:> , , ,... "' -----=---

Total program expenditures $ 483,308 
Beef gift certificates 
Administration 

Total expenditures 

Revenues over expenditures 

Fund Balance, Beginning of Year 

Fund Balance, End of Year 

See Notes to the Financial Statements. 

ND Beef Commission Audit Report 
Fiscal Years ended June 30, 2010 and 2009 

$ 1 7,620 
'IQ "70243,353 
$ 744,281 
$ (1 36,987) 
$ 439,969 
$ 302,982 

2009 
$ 1 ,214,524 

(27,396) 
(593,288) 

$ 593,840 
1 0, 1 65 
23,205 
14,762 

$ 641 ,972 

$ 

$ 

21 ,91 1 
56,965 
1 ,350 

1 51 ,552 
1 0,229 

1 72,514 
414,521 

$ 23,205 
.3'7c/a238,799 
$ 676,525 
$ (34,553) 
$ 474,522 
$ 439,969 
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CBS ~evenue 
58".:-Llnrestrlcted 

SBC- Prloritlttd 
SBC·lJSMEF International 
SBC prioritized federation lniatitive 

Sale of Materiel 
Tot.al Revenue 

Expenses 
Progn1m expenses 
PrGm<•tion 
Res ea T.h 

Co11sun1er Information 
Industry Information 

Foreian Marketing 
Total rnvrrams expenses 

General and admlnittratlve expenses 

Federatton Relations 
Customer Sel'\/ice 

Governance 

Long Rcinse Plan 
Ger-emf and Administrative 

~ LIVESTOCK M 

National cattltmen's B!ef Association 
Federation Division 

FY2014 Budget 

BPOC/CBB 

$ 34,831,298 

s 
$ 
s 
$ 

s 
$ 34,831,298 

s 6,767,770 
$ 5,073,407 

$ 6,077,637 
$ 849,197 

$ 7,634,898 
$ 26,402,910 

$ 
$ 
s 
$ 
$ 1,344,170 

s 
s 
s 
s 
$ 

s 
$ 

s 
$ 

s 
$ 
s 
$ 

s 
$ 

s 
$ 
$ 

Totil general and administrative expenses $ 1,344,170 $ 

Salaries and benefits $ 7,084,219 $ 
Totnl expenses $ 34,831,298 $ 

N~t use of Reserves $ (O) $ 

PAGE 01/05 

SBC Combined 

$ 34,831,298 
6,728,702 $ 6,728,702 

129,000 $ 129,000 
1,742,100 s 1,742,100 

50,000 $ 50,000 

4501000 $ 450,000 
9,099,802 $ 43,5131,100 

1,032,230 s 7,800,000 
751,593 $ 5,825,000 

900,363 $ 6,978,000 
125,803 $ 975,000 

1,741,402 ~ 9,376,300 
4,SSl,391 s 30,954,300 

492,000 s 492,000 
400,000 s 400,000 

437,000 $ 437,000 

20,000 $ 20,000 
560,730 $ 1,904,900 

1,909,730 $ 3,253,900 

2,673,681 $ 9!757,900 
9,134£!!!2 $ 43,96&!100 

!3s,ooo) $ (3S,OOO) 
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Chairman Johnson, Vice Chairman Trottier, and members of the House Agriculture Committee, My name 
is Nancy Jo Bateman and I have had the privi lege of working for the beef producers of this state at the 
ND Beef Commission as their executive d irector since 1 984. I was h i red shortly after this body, at the 
req uest of beef producers of the state, increased the state beef checkoff from $.25 per head to $ .50 per 
head.  With in  two short years , beef producers again implemented the national beef checkoff in October 
of 1 986 at the $1 per head level we have today, a point in t ime that has been referred to on several 
occasions today. Then in May of 1 988 beef producers across the country voted , as was mandated in the 
federal law, and a 79% favorable vote determined the future of the program we have today as a $1 per 
head , non-refundable beef checkoff program. 

I g ive th is information as background because th is committee, with members past and present, has 
played a very important role in  the accountabi l ity and oversight of th is program .  Legislation passed here 
in  1 993 started the commodity group reporting session that you were involved in the first Friday of this 
session. That means that some of you have heard a Beef Commission report from me 1 1  times and you 
have received 22 years of our annual audits , not biennial ,  covering financial accountabil ity of every beef 
checkoff dol lar from every beef producer that has invested in beef promotion,  research and education 
programs. We value this process and consider it yet one more important measure of accountabi l ity and 
oversight of our programs and our funding. 

In  addit ion to many levels of oversight ,  accountabil ity and auditing at the state level ,  the Commission is 
confident in  the overs ight of the national programs that we invest dol lars in. I won't take time to go 
through it but in your  materials is a document outl in ing the breadth and depth of oversight of the beef 
checkoff from our state level a l l  the way through to USDA. And many are not aware but organizations 
that contract with the Cattlemen's Beef Board to carry out programs that Jerry Effertz d iscussed , do so 
on a cost recovery basis meaning al l  costs are covered up front by the contracting organization and only 
reimbursed later when verified to be in l ine with their contact. Processes and procedures for oversight of 
national checkoff contracting organ izations and the Cattlemen's Beef Board are robust, in place and 
working well today. 

Some today have q uestioned the way the beef producers that make up the Beef Commission have 
chosen to invest the funds they are responsible for. I wi l l  tel l  you from personal experience,  every 
program area, every budget item , and every financial decision is reviewed by the producers on the Beef 
Commission with their neighbors, friends and fami ly members in the beef business in mind .  They leave 
the organizational hat at the door that may have brought them to the Beef Commission because their job 
is much bigger than any particular group or self-interest. They represent al l  beef producers ,  regard less 
of the color of the cattle they ra ise or the d ifferent views they may have because reaching consumers 
with our beef message is the objective that un ites them. They want the greatest results from the program 
and the greatest return to the producers. 

Along this l ine, I would l ike to review a couple graphics that may help in  putting the finances of the Beef 
Commission in proper perspective. 

The bar chart you have in front of you represents the last 2 1  years of aud ited financials for the Beef 
Commission, beginn ing with the 1 993 fiscal year. There is no special reason for 2 1  years except that we 
wanted to g ive you a substantial period of time in our history. 

• The top l ine is the total revenue of the Commission includ ing al l i ncome sources- checkoff, 
interest, beef gift certificate sales and other income. 

• The second l ine below it is just the $ 1  per head checkoff revenue collected each year by the Beef 
Commission . 

( 
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• The next l ine represents the half of the checkoff dol lar sent to the Cattlemen's Beef Board by 
federal statute, along with dol lars sent to other state beef councils for out-of-state cattle sold in 
ND .  

• Moving down , the next l ine shows ND dol lars invested in additional national beef promotion, 
research and education programs. From 1 973-1 996, this went to the Beef Industry Counci l .  
Following an organizational merger of the Beef Industry Counci l  and the National Cattlemen's 
Association,  these dol lars are invested today in the Federation of State Beef Councils division of 
the National Cattlemen's Beef Association .  I would l ike to draw your attention to the drop in th is 
l ine in 200 1 because it once again involves this committee. From our beginn ing in 1 973 to 200 1 , 
state law mandated that no less than 50%, or $ .25 per head of our state checkoff dol lars should 
be used to support research and educational activities of the Beef Industry Counci l  or its 
successor organization .  This committee and the legislature, at the request of beef producers, 
removed the 50% provision in  2001 and left that decision in the hands of the beef producers on 
the Beef Commission. Since then, the Commission has invested $. 1 6  of each dol lar up until 20 1 4  
when budgeting requ i red it be reduced to $. 1 2 . The hope is that as herd bui ld ing beg ins, this 
number can be i ncreased again because these i nvestments in the Federation of State Beef 
Counci ls  are what enable ND beef producers representing the Commission to have a seat at a 
very important table. Currently, three of our ND producer d i rectors are Federation board 
members and more importantly, they are members of important committees that help to review 
and d i rect the focus of demand bui ld ing beef programs. ND Beef Commission d i rector influence 
on programs fol lows ND producer dol lar investments. These national programs a re the ones that 
reach consumers across the country that are eating beef that was ra ised here in ND.  These 
programs also are the backbone of efforts by every state beef commission to present a un ified , 
consistent message as we take the national message to our states and promote the benefits of 
beef in a healthy d iet. 

• The black l ine shows the expense for state promotion research and education programs. 
• The dotted l ine is our total admin istration and includes salaries for our two state employees, state 

reti rement and benefits plans, and commissioner per d iem . This is down from three employees 
with a reti rement in 20 1 2 . Some have said this is too h igh but I think common sense tel ls us that 
smal l  percentage increases in salaries in l ine with legislative d i rection provide for a very modest 
g radual increase. 

• The next checkered l ine is our operations budget and includes, rent, aud it, office expenses, 
equipment, board insurance, travel and other expenses. 

• And the bottom l ine is our investment in international programs of the US Meat Export Federation. 

To go a step further, the page with the pie charts represents these same program expenses but just for 
our last fiscal year. I n  an effort of total transparency, these expenses are presented in two d ifferent 
formats because we have been criticized for having high administrative expenses. The top chart shows 
total expenses for all admin and overhead expenses, along with d i rect program area costs. The second 
chart, however, more accurately reflects the true costs of our programs. Knowing that programs don't 
happen without people to do them , administrative and operations costs are applied to programs in an 
enterprise analysis effort s imi lar to what every farmer and rancher does with their operations. You wi l l  
see that there is a change in the percentages of funds used in these programs and the total 
admin istration and operations expenses that exist s imply as a cost of being a state agency are 6%.  The 
Beef Commission is very comfortable with this level and has worked hard to keep these costs as low as 
poss ible whi le sti l l  conducting effective programs in the state. 

In closing, should this committee and the legislature see fit to pass this bi l l  and increase funding for beef 
demand bui ld ing programs, the Beef Commission would stand ready to go to work. The Commission is 
ready and able to develop the types of plans and programs that would benefit the beef industry of ND. 
Our  program development process would be the same as i t  has been for years beginning in the spring 
with strategic planning to set the d i rection, followed by marketing planning that sets the program and 
budget. Once the outcome of the ND Legislature is known, the appropriate planning wi l l  go into motion.  
If that means no i ncrease, we wi l l  proceed to make the most focused plans possible to reach our target 
consumers .  And if there is a beef checkoff increase, we wil l  also proceed to make the most focused 
plans possible to reach our target consumers. 



• Levels of Oversight of the cu rrent $1 per head Beef Checkoff - January 201 5 

Prepared by the ND Beef Commission with review by the Cattlemen's Beef Board 

State leve l :  

**Every state beef council (44 as of  January 201 5) must have an annual financial audit, as 
requ i red by the Beef Promotion & Research Act of  1 985, which must be submitted to the 
Cattlemen's Beef Board (CBB) within 1 20 days of the end of the fiscal year. The ND Beef 
Commission audit is done by the State Auditor's Office on an an nual basis, as compared to a 
biennial  audit of other state commodity groups that fal l  under state law requ i rements. Every 
annual  audit is avai lable for review through the State Auditor's Office website, and the combined 
statement of revenues and expenses is a part of the ND Beef Commission annual report. 

**The Cattlemen's Beef Board audit ing staff does periodic reviews of state beef counci ls to 
ensure com pl iance with various provisions of the Act & Order and with additional operating 
procedures. 

**The ND Beef Commission is required by law to present a report to a joint hearing of the North 
Dakota House and Senate Ag Committees at the beginn ing of each leg islative session. This 
report must conta in program u pdates along with audit reports from the State Auditor's Office for 
the two previous years along with anticipated expenditures at the close of the current b iennium 
and estimates for the next bienn ium.  

• National level - Cattlemen's Beef Board : 

• 

**The CBB is u ltimately responsible for oversight of every checkoff dol lar collected in  the 
country, includ ing those from imported beef and beef products. It is also responsible for 
implementation of all pol icies and procedures from USDA, as well as internal policies developed 
as best management practices. 

**The CBB has an annual audit ,  conducted under government auditing standards, by an 
external aud iting fi rm q ual ified to conduct such an audit. This audit is submitted to USDA and is 
publ ished . 

**The CBB undergoes a management review audit every three years by USDA's Agricultural 
Marketing Service, covering procedures and processes under government oversight. 

***The CBB is also audited annual ly and every three years for their oversight and procedures 
related to state beef counci ls ,  the Federation of State Beef Councils, the US Meat Export 
Federation and the National Cattlemen's Beef Association. 

**The CBB oversees both their own investments in  programs conducted by national contractors 
as well as additional state beef council investments in national and international programs. 

**Al l state beef councils investing additional funds in  the national programs through the US Meat 
Export Federation and the Federation of State Beef Councils of the National Cattlemen's Beef 
Association review the external audits of these organizations annual ly and certify to the CBB 
that they were reviewed and found in order. 



** In terms of USDA-AMS oversight and involvement with the CBB, USDA representatives are at 
the table with the CBB at every audit committee meeting and actively engage in d iscussions and • 
oversight and approve certain  processes including contractual procedures, reporting and 
various audit provisions. USDA is also present at every Beef Promotion Operating Committee 
meeting , CBB Executive Committee meeting , CBB Board meeting and Audit Committee 
meeting .  

**National programs authorized to receive checkoff funding are a lso reviewed and audited . The 
procedure includes the Beef Promotion Operating Committee approving detai ls of al l  contracts, 
reviewing and approving specific Authorization Requests for program funding.  After Operating 
Committee and CBB approval ,  Authorization Requests, contracts with contractors, and the fu l l  
budget are then forwarded to USDA for review and final approval .  

Additional national contractor procedures: 

In addition to annual audits, legal contracts for approved Authorization Requests , and 
implementation of mandated procedures from the CBB, national contractors l ike the Federation 
of State Beef Councils of the National Cattlemen's Beef Associat ion, the US Meat Export 
Federation ,  American Farm Bureau Foundation for Agriculture, American National 
CattleWomen, Meat Import Council of America and others approved for program funding carry 
out their contracts on a cost-recovery basis. That means that al l  costs are covered u p  front by 
the contracting organization and only re imbursed where verified to be in l ine with the approved 
Authorization Request. No contractor is al lowed to make a profit when contracting for programs 
to the CBB. 

In addit ion to the financial accountabi l ity, al l  organizations contracting with the CBB m ust have • al l  materials completed throughout the contract approved by CBB and USDA before d istribution . 
If the program's "Authorization Approval Number" from USDA is missing from an invoice 
submitted to the CBB, reimbursement of the invoice is rejected . 

National Contractors d i rectly involved with the ND Beef Commission: 

The two national contractors that the ND Beef Commission has chosen to fund with an 
addit ional portion of state checkoff dollars are the US Meat Export Federation and the 
Federation of State Beef Councils of the National Cattlemen's Beef Association. In addit ion to 
fol lowing al l  requ i rements of the CBB as d iscussed above, these two organizations have robust 
internal compl iance programs designed to uphold the strict firewall protecting checkoff dol lars 
from other funding sources and insuring that checkoff dol lars are appropriately accounted for .  
Each organ ization has a d irector of compliance charged with implementing ,  maintaining and 
overseeing strict internal processes and procedures and are routinely reviewed by the CBB as 
wel l .  

• 
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• 2014 North Da kota Beef Commission Expenses as a % of Total Revenue 
Source: 2014 Audit Re port 

N orth Da kota Programs r National  Progra m 
• National  Program I nvestments: 10.75% 

Reve n u e  Over 
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1 I nternation a l  Promotion 

Ad m i n istration 

I nternat ional  Promotion:  1. 10% 

• Ad m i ni stratio n :  15. 12% 

• Operat ions:  4.53% 

• Cattlemen's Beef Board & Other States : 

49 .88% 

• Revenue Over Expenses: 6.55% 

• North Da kota Progra m s :  12 .07% 

North Dakota Beef Commission - Fu l l  Dol lar  Accountabi l ity Report 2014 
Sou rce: F i na ncial  Statement Developed for Cattlemen's Beef Board "Fu l l  Dol lar Accountabi l ity" Project for 

J u ly 1, 2013 - J u ne 30, 2014 Fisca l Year 
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Consumption of ground beef obtained from cattle that had received steroidal growth promotanta does not trigger 
early onset of estrus In prepubertal pigs. 
Maaolski JD1, Shappell NW2, vonnahme KA1, Anderson GM\ Newman DJ1, ~­

@ Author Information 

Abstract 
BACKGROUND: The earlier onset of puberty seen In young American girls has led researchers to question If a causal relation exists between dietary 
sources of estrogenic compounds and precocious puberty. 

OBJECTIVE: Using the prepubertal gilt (young female pig) as an animal model, our hypothesis Is that feeding beef obtained from cattle receiving 
growth-promoting steroidal implants postweanlng does not alter the onset of puberty or the perlpubertal body composition of gilts compared with 
contemporaries fed nonlmplanted ~naturar beef or a common meat alternative, tofu. 

METHOD: The base diet was formulated using canola meal replacing soybean meal to reduce diet estrogeniclty. Feed Intake was monitored and 
controlled to ensure slmlar intake. Gifts were assigned to treatments based on dam and initial body weight (mea.n: 24.5 ± 3.20 kg) at 61 d of age. The 
negative control base diet was supplemented with daily feedings of a cooked patty from nonlmplanted steers (natural), from steers that had been 
treated with growth promotants (100 mg trenbolone acetate and 14 mg estradiol (E2) benzoate; Implanted), or cooked tofu patty. 

RESULTS: E2 equivalents (nanogram per kilogram, as fed as analyzed by E-Screen} of the tofu (a soy-based product) supplement were -570 times 
the m1tural and -170 limes the implanted supplements. There were no observed differences across treatments In live weight gain (P = 0.90), 
longlssimus muscle area developed at the 10th and 11th rib interface (P = 0.46), and subcutaneous fat deposition (P = 0.41) at the same location over 
time or in the number of days to reach estrus (P = 0.55). 

CONCLUSIONS: Consumption of beef from growth Implanted or natural steers or tofu at levels similar to those typiully consumed by humans did not 
Impact growth or onset of estrus in these prepubertal gilts. 

Other Checkoff funded research 

2014. Effects of postmortem aging time and type of aging on palatability of low-marbled beef loins. 
Revisions Meat Science 4-8-2014 Ref No. MEATSCI-D-14-00076. 

2013. Effectiveness of oxygen barrier oven bags in low temperature cooking on reduction of warmed­
over flavor in beef roasts. Meat Sci. 96:1361-1364. 

2013. Consumer evaluation of palatability characteristics of a beef value-added cut compared to common 
retail cuts. Meat Sci 96:419-422. 

2013 . Prediction of troponin-T degradation using color image texture features in 10 d aged beef 
longissimus steaks. Meat Sci. 837-842 

2013 . Relationship between commercially available DNA analysis and phenotypic observations on meat 
quality and tenderness. Meat Sci. 95:480-485. 

2012. Evaluation of feedlot cattle working chute environment relative to temperament, tenderness, and 
postmo1tem proteolysis. Meat Sci . 95:92-97. 

2012. Predicting beef tenderness using color and multispectral image texture features. Meat Sci. 92:386-
393. 

2011 . Working chute behavior of feedlot cattle can be an indication of cattle temperament and beef 
carcass composition and quality. Meat Sci. 89:52-57. 
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.Nutrition new arena for climate change politics 
Scientists suggest environmental 
1impact of raising animals for meat 
be considered in food pyramid 

By Evan Halper 
• 1libune Washington Bureau 

WASHINGTON - The 
political clash over climate 
change has entered new ter­
ritory that does not involve 
a massive oil pipeline or a 
subsidy for renewable ener­
gy, but a quaint federal 
chart that tries to nudge 
Americans toward a 
healthy diet. 

The food pyramid, that 3· 
decade-old backbone of 
grade-school nutrition les· 
sons, has become a test case 
of how far the Obama 
administration ls willing to 
push In pursuit of its global 
warming agenda. 

The unexpected debate 
began with a suggestion by 
a prominent panel of gov-

. ..  ernment scientists: • The 
food pyramid - recently 
refashioned In the shape of 
a dinner plate - could be 
reworked to consider the 
heavy carbon Impact of 
raising animals for meat, 
they said. A growing body 
of research has found that 
meat animals, and cows, in 
particular, with their belch· 
Ing of greenhouse gases, 
trampling of the landscape 
and need for massive 
amounts of water, are a 
major factor in global 
warming. 

Cattle industry represen­
tatives quickly raised the 
alarm, summoning help 

'' 
There is an anti-meat 

agenda out there, and 

this is a way to go after 

meat. We need to just 

focus on nutrition. 

Once you bring up 

these other things, it 

undermines the 

legitimacy of the 

guidelines. 

DAREN BAKST, Heritage 
Foundation fellow 

from Republicans in. Con­
gress and their allies. 
. "There ls '1n antl-meat 

.agenda out there, and this 
Is a way to go after meat,'' 
said Daren Bak.st, a fellow 
at the Heritage Foundation, 
the conservative research 
and advocacy organization. 
"We need to just focus on 
nutrition. Once you bring 
up these other things, it 
undermines the legitimacy 
of the guidelines." 

Administration officials 
are already enmeshed in 
bitter fights with Republi­
cans over coal-fired power 
plants, methane emissions 
from oil and gas produc­
tion, and regulation of 
automobiles. Whether they 
have the stomach for 

TNS 

Research has shcrim that raising animals for meat Is a major factor in global 
warming becaus� the animals produce high greenhouse gas emissions and require 
massive amounts of water: A panel of government scientists suggested reworking the 
food pryamid to consider the environmental impact of raising animals for meat. 

adding ·a food fight to the 
list remains uncertain. But 
the possibility that climate 
change politics could affect 
nutrition guidelines serves 
as a reminder of how many 
parts of daily life the strug­
gle to limit global warming 
can reach. 

"We can't solve the cli­
mate problem with just 
what we are doing with fos· 
sll fuels and energy," said 
Doug Boucher, director of 
climate research at the 
Union of Concerned Scien· 
tists, which is lobbying for 

changing the pyramid. 
"Food ls a big part of it." 

The food pyramid is just 
the latest function of gov­
ernment where climate 
change looms large after 
years of not being a consid· 
eration. 

Legions of military offi­
cers are focused on shifting 
the nation's fighting force 
to clean energy, hoping ulti· 
mately to not only limit 
global warming but also 
save money and reduce the 
need for huge, vulnerable 
oil supply lines. The 

Department of Housing 
and Urban Development is 
pushing a green building 
portfolio. Even the Depart­
ment of Education is 
required to regularly pro­
duce a climate change 
action plan. 

But the stakes are high 
when it comes to steak. The 
dietary guidelines embod­
ied in the pyramid are the 
core of the nation's food 
policy. And although the 
nation's obesity epidemic 
raises questions about how 
much the guidelines affect 

public behavior, they do 
shape billions of dollars of 
government programs, 
including school lunches 
and food stamps. 

Environmental and ani­
mal rights groups see the 
discussion of the role food 
plays in climate change as 
an opportunity to reach a 
vast new group of Ameri­
cans. 

"People care a lot more 
about their own personal 
health than they do about 
the environment or animal 
welfare," said Michael 
Jacobson, executive direc­
tor at the Center for Science 
in the Public Interest in 
Washington. "So these 
groups are hoping to make 
progress on their Issues by 
linking them to healthier 
diets." 

· 
A revamp of the food 

pyramid to take climate 
into account would be a 
bold step. Despite a major 
push by the United Nations 
for countries to rework 
dietary policies with an eye 
on climate impact, none 
has. The Netherlands is 
expected to be the nrst 
when It releases a new 
chart illustrating food 
guidelines this year, said 
Kate Clancy, a longtime sus­
tainability advocate who 
advised the federal panel. 

"This is a way to get peo­
ple to think about how their 
food is produced," Clancy 
said. "We should not be 
making it seem like there is 
no connection between 
what you eat and Its impact 
on the planet." 
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� eel Checkoff Enha ncement Bil l  

Chairman Johnson and members of the House Ag Committee, my name is�and I am a beef 

producer from Bowman, N .D. I am here to testify in support of House Bi l l  1238. 

I have been i nvolved in  the catt le business for over 40 years. I served six years on the N .D. Beef 

Commission from 1991 to 1997. At that t ime, I represented N.D .  at the Meat Export Federation for three 

years. I a lso served eight years on the Certified Angus Beef board, the largest branded beef program in 

the world, and eight years on the American Angus Board. I am currently the president of the N .D. 

Stockmen's Association. 

This background gave me a firsthand look at the beef checkoff being used to promote beef and the 

research to develop new cuts, heat-and-serve mea ls, new packaging and recipes, cooking t ips and 

techniques, and nutrition information. Much of this research was leveraged with more dol lars from 

exporters, packers, retai l  food stores, and restaurant and foodservice to bri ng beef to the center of the 

plate for Americans and people around the world. 

One of the latest studies by Cornel l  Un iversity on the beef checkoff from 2006 to 2013 showed there is 

an  impressive return on i nvestment. Holding a l l  other demand drivers constant, the activities funded by 

the beef checkoff resulted i n  an increase in  beef demand of 2 .1  b i l l ion pounds per year. Had the beef 

check off money not i nvested in foreign market development between 2006 and 2013, foreign demand 

for U .S. beef would have been 6.4% lower. 

Our $1-per-head checkoff that was put in place in 1985 is runn ing out of steam.  Because of inflation, it is 

buying less than half of what it did in 1985. Our ranch sold fat steers for 58 cents per pound in 1985; 

today, they are bringing around $1.60 cents per pound.  If we increase the beef checkoff $1 per head 

now, it wi l l  sti l l  be a smal ler percentage of the check than it was in  1985. 

House Bi l l  1238 would give North Dakota beef producers the added resources to continue this important 

program to market our beef. For those that don't agree, HB  1238 has the bui lt-in refundable portion of 

the bi l l .  

I ask for your vote to support H B  1238 t o  invest in  the promotion, research a n d  continued beef 

education of our product. 

Thank you. I would be happy to answer any questions. 



Dear House Ag Committee Members: 
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I wish I could be at your  hearing in person but circumstances just don't a l low that today. I am, however, 

very�f H@nd would l ike to bring a few points to the table having been proud to serve 

on the very first board of the ND  Beef Commission in 1973. At that time the checkoff rate in ND  was 

$ .10 per head. 

Rick Warren (founder of Sadd leback Church, a mega-church in Orange County, Cal if.) said "When the 

speed of change a round you (or your organization, your  business, your industry) is faster than the speed 

within you (or your organization, your  business, your industry), you become irre levant." 

I n  a nutshell, that is what the ND  Beef Commission is charged with doing. Keeping beef relevant (as a 

"center of the p late prote in source") is a cha l lenge in and of itself, and doing that with a 1986 va lued 

dol lar  in today's society is a near insurmountable task. 

Beef producers have a lways been fruga l; we have had to be to stay afloat in business. The vo lunteer 

members on the ND Beef Commission have had to be even more fruga l .  Beef Commission members l ike 

me at the beginning a l l  the way through to my son, Jeff, who today is a member of the Commission, 

have worked hard to right a sinking ship of fa l l ing beef demand in the late 80's and 90's and put the beef 

industry on the course of increasing demand that we see today. They a l l  need to be congratulated for 

their efforts in that a rena, especia l ly when they a re doing so today with 42 cents per head, which is 

what the $1.00 1986 check-off amount is worth today. 

Future commission members wi l l  be tasked with not only keeping beef demand up with "Mi l lennia ls" 

but a lso with the" Generation Z'ers" (the next generation of consumers) .  Generation Z is growing up 

with l ittle or no connection to agriculture or understanding of where their food comes from. They don't 

know who the people a re that a re proud to be producing it. They a lso a re concerned about being 

healthy and think the on ly way to do that is by eating "organic" foods, buying local, buying fresh and 

becoming a vegeta rian .  

These additiona l  checkoff funds need to be ava i lable to do the research, education and promotion 

required to he lp keep beef relevant, and keep the beef industry a susta inable industry. For my family 

and our state's future, we need to keep beef as the "center of the plate" protein source with facts (not 

emotion) to te l l  the amazing story of how we take sunl ight, water, earth a nd seeds to grow grass and 

turn that inedible product into a del icious, nutritiona lly dense, easily absorbed food source. If we don't, 

there may soon come a day when the beef industry is irrelevant. 

And final ly, I would ask this q uestion. Are those who are opposed to increasing the funding to a beef 

industry self-help program, wi l l ing to take the responsibil ity for fa l l ing demand a nd helping to make the 

beef industry i rre levant for their chi ldren and future generations of beef producers? 

Sincerely, 

J ack Dahl,  Dahl  Land & Cattle 
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I served o n  t h e  State Beef Co m m iss ion fro m 1 997-2003 - 6 
yea rs .  Th e n ,  I w a s  a p po i nted to serve on t h e  Catt l e m e n ' s Beef 
Boa rd fro m 2006-20 1 1  - 6 yea rs .  The e nti re ti m e  I w a s  work i n g  

on these boa rd s ,  I h o ped t h a t  t h e  c h eckoff wou l d  be i n crea sed ,  
beca use I s a w  - a n d conti n u e  to see - t h e  va l u e  i t  b ri n g s  to 
ra n c h  fa m i l ie s  l i ke m i n e .  

M ost o f  m y  t i m e  w a s  spent  o n  t h e  n atio n a l  reta i l  co m m i ttee .  We 

worked on some excel l e nt p rog ra m s  to g et m o re beef t h ro u g h  
the g rocery sto res .  W e  were try i n g  to g et that j o b  d o n e  i n  2 0 1 0 ,  
but with a 1 986 b u d g et .  W e  a re work i n g  with that  sa m e  b u d g et 
tod a y .  Cuts w e re m a d e  a n d  l ots of good p rojects w e re 
e l i m i n ated . T h e  Beef Boa rd m e m bers too k  thei r j o b s  se ri o u s l y ,  
a n d eve ryo n e  ca refu l l y  watched how th ose d o l l a rs were s p e nt .  

W e  h a d  t o  a n swer t o  t h e  p rod u ce rs a n d n e i g h b o rs b a c k  h o m e .  
W e  were tra i n ed o n  w h i c h  a reas that c h eckoff d o l l a rs co u l d  b e  
spe nt, a n d we a l so k n e w  w h at a reas checkoff fu n d s  co u l d  not b e  

u sed fo r .  

The c h e c koff i s  a g reat p ro g ra m .  I d o n 't know why a ny p rod ucer 
wou l d  not w a n t  to co ntri bute to the p ro m oti o n  of h is  o r  h e r  
prod u ct w h e n  t h e  res u lts have b e e n  s o  outsta n d i n g . Sti l l ,  t h i s  b i l l  
wou l d  offer a refu n d  o f  that state d o l l a r  i f  i t  w a s  req u ested , so 
t h i s  b i l l  is a n o - b ra i n e r .  Cattl e p rices a re at a n  a l l -ti m e  h ig h .  
W h at cou l d  b e  a b etter  ti me to i n c rease a n  i nvest m e nt i n  o u r  
b u si n ess? 

Th a n k  you fo r yo u r  co n si d e rati o n  of t h i s  b i l l .  

M a rg i e  H a n d e, p ro d u ce r  
A m i d o n ,  N D  
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Testimony i n  support �<{; and Jody H�Mandan, N D  . 

We farmed and ran ched for 35 years i n  the Carson area . Our two sons have taken over B lue 
H i l l  Ranch and are not only making their l iv ing with cattle and crops but are ra ising the potential 
fifth generation of farmers and ranchers on that ranch .  

I n  addition to Jody and me making our l iv ing off of  l ivestock on Blue H i l l  Ranch,  we have been 
involved in  self-help check off programs. Jody served on the National Pork Producers Counci l  
(NPPC) Board of D i rectors as wel l  as national vice president of NPPC's Pork Counc i l  Women 
before it merged into N PPC. I served as the Chai rman of the National Live Stock and Meat 
Board from 1 994-96. 

€ su;port �B 123"§) for severa l reasons. 

The first is  that it is  a self-help program, producers help ing them-selves . If we don't help 
ourselves, who is going to help us? We need to be writ ing our own agenda rather than have 
others write it for us .  We need accurate science to be able to defend against an imal  rights 
g roups and other g roups that would l ike to put us out of business. We need to be on the cutt ing 
edge of research to help us  remain competitive in  a very competitive world .  We need to help 
promote new produ cts and a convenience that today's modern consumer demands.  We need to 
cont inue to advertise showing the publ ic the healthfu l  advantages of lean beef, a long with the 
taste that we all enjoy. 

Our second point is the beef check off has not keep up with i nflat ion. The national  beef $ 1 .00 
check off that was passed in  the mid 1 980's has seen its va lue eroded by inflation .  Back then a 
rancher could buy a n ice pickup for about $ 1 0 ,000, whi le today a pickup wi l l  cost u pwards of 
$40 ,000. Advert is ing and other costs have gone up i n  s im i lar proport ions. The passage of an 
addit ional $ 1 .00 check off is probably not adequate but is certain ly a good first step.  When the 
national beef check off was passed , pork producers also passed a s imi lar national check off but 
it was based on a percentage of value. If  the beef check off was based on percentage of value, 
with today's prices the check off would probably be in  that $4-5.00 range. 

The th ird reason for supporti ng a stronger check off is to help provide a future for the fifth 
generation at B lue  H i l l  Ranch.  We continue to see g roups that want to take away our i nd iv idual  
freedoms. We need to back our augments with sound science to help protect those freedoms 
and to have successful promotion programs so there is  a future in  beef product ion in North 
Dakota . 

We thank for the opportun ity to present this test imony i n  support of HB 1 238 and respectfu l ly 
ask for your favorable cons ideration towards it .  

Thank you . 

J im and Jody Hauge 



Letter to House Ag Committee 

Dear Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee, 

My name is �andan, North Dakota. I am here asking for yo suppo n 
House Bill 1 23 8. As a farmer and rancher our operation has been paying the one o lar a 
head checkoff since its inception in 1 985. I believe the benefits the cattle industry has 
realized are a result of the producers backed and funded beef checkoff. I also feel the 
need for the increase is justified due to the fact the buying power of a dollar is a fraction 
of what it was in 1 985. Beef producers are proud of their product and in support of the 
beef checkoff. For those not in favor of the one dollar increase, the extra dollar can be 
refunded. 

Over the last 28 years, I don't think anyone can honestly argue the National Beef 
Checkoff has not been positive for the beef industry, not only in North Dakota but 
nationwide as well. 

Thank you for your time, 

Fred Helbling 
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Koester Red Angus 

701-475-2736 
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I am truly excited about the opportunity to share my�sm toward boos� 
our Beef Checkoff program. As a seedstock operation i n  south central North Dakota, 
the magnitude of this potentia l  i ncrease in funding is paramount to the success of 
my customers.  

The benefits that our i ndustry has seen from the existing Checkoff have been great, 
but as you know our dollar does not have the buying power it has i n  years past The 
beef i n d ustry n eeds to be front and center in the protein market and our Checkoff 
dollars help tremendously in this department that is essential  for the success of ou r 
cow-calf operations i n  North Dakota. 

This proposal uses dollars from within our own industry put back into our own 
industry, which past h istory dictates the h uge success story it has been. These 
dol la rs a re used for research, educati on, promotion, market development and 
countless other great endeavor . 

The North Dakota and U .S. beef i ndustries are the envy of the world for being the 
highest quality, safest, most nutritious and most wholesome protein source 
ava i lable and we need to conti nue this legacy . 

Thank you ve ry much for your consideration. Steve 



(-/t3 /;<_ 3'6  f/3c/;s 
Good morn i ng ladies a nd gentlemen, � 

• My name i�nd my fa m i ly and I a re 5th a nd 6th generation beef producers. 

We a re passionate a bout our i ndustry and the beef check off. As a fa m i ly we have been 

b lessed to be successfu l much l i ke the check off with an approva l rating well over 70% i n  

add it ion to return i ng $11 .20 back to the prod ucers who invested their  dol lar  i n  the 

cu rrent check off! 

SV-ff o-r--t-
---- We Qeed th is  addit ional  d�hat our very own state beef commission has control of 

• 

to keep beef front and center of a l l  consumers, or the com peti ng proteins wi l l  beat us to 

our consumer. 

The fee hasn't increased s i nce 1985 . Instead of having a fu l l  dol lar  of spending power it's 

closer to .42 ! That is q u ite a diffe rence. To put th is  in  pe rspective a movie t icket 

averaged $3 .71 versus $8.08 and a ga l lon of gas was $ .89 versus an average price of 

$3 .31  as of October of 2014. 

The other i m portant component of this b i l l  is the fact it i s  refu ndable for anyone who 

doesn't want to pa rtic i pate or doesn't see the true va l ue of a successfu l check off. 

Twelve states have moved forward with an i ncrease on thei r own . We are not trying to 

do someth ing that hasn't been done a l ready. There truly is a need . 

Tha n ks for you r  attention to th is  im porta nt matter for the futu re of my fa m i ly and 

yours. The check off has worked wel l  in  the past and wi l l  conti nue to serve its  pu rpose 

with more revenue to compete in a h ighly competitive ma rketplace with ever r is i ng 

costs a n d  esca lating chal lenges i n  a l l  sectors it touches. 

Jeff Schafer 

New Rockford, N D  



G ood morn i ng Represe ntat ive Johnson and Ag Com mittee, 

a nd a n u rse.  It  is i n  these ro les that I ut i l ize c heckoff information,  d ata a n d  

sc ient ific resea rch.  I a m  c u rrently o n  the N D  Beef Com m ission Boa rd b u t  today my comme nts 

a re based on my ro les as a beef p rod ucer, Mom, CW a nd n u rse. 

As a Mom, when my c h i l d re n  needed a topic fo r a speech, whethe r it was 4-H, F FA or 

c lassroom, the i r  q uestion usua l ly was, Mom, what is the name of that we bsite to find my beef 

i nfo rmation from? They knew beef.erg would  lead them to topic ideas and the scie nt ific 

i nfo rmation a nd data they k new was needed fo r the ir  beef topic .  My c h i ld ren benefitted from 

the checkoff fu nd ed i nfo rmation ea rly i n  their  academic yea rs and my you ngest who is st i l l  i n  

col lege cont i n ues t o  write speeches a nd pa pe rs on 'beef topics'. 

As a CattleWoman, I volunteer n u m e ro us hours do ing c lassroom p rese ntations, beef 

p romot ions, beef ed ucation prese ntatio ns, beef runs, etc. Th is information ( i n my ha nds) that 

the c heckoff has provided,  a l lows myself a nd a l l  Cattle Wo men to have the cu rrent, sc ient ific 

a nd fact u a l  beef information so we ca n appropriately a nd accurately work with c h i ld ren a n d  

teachers .  There is a lso i nfo rmation we use t o  com m u n icate t o  consumers, whether i t  i s  the 

scie nce of the 'BO LD' resea rch, the 'Beefs Big 10" to what cut of beef to use and how to 

p repare it . The re a re a lso n umero u s  tra i n i ng sessions, we b inars, confe rence ca l ls  ava i la ble to 

p rovide me with the a p propriate sk i l l  sets to accurately present the Beef i nformation and 

message.  Al l  because of the Beef Checkoff, myself and Cattlewomen a c ross the state are not 

o n ly a b le to share their  passion fo r the beef ind ustry but do it wi l l  scie ntific facts, information 

a nd mate ria ls .  

As a n u rse, I have spent yea rs work ing with the patients that needed n utritio na l  g u ida nce a nd 

i nformatio n .  I had spent m a ny of yea rs frustrated l iste n ing to d ietic ia ns tel l  fresh 'o pen hea rt' 
that they need to ta ke 'red meat' o ut of their  d iet. You ca n imagine the n u mber of u n ha p py 

' beef eate rs' after that p iece of info rmation.  With the Checkoff resea rch, the BOLD study was 

comp lete d .  Th is resea rc h  showed t hat eating lean beef ca n h e l p  lowe r choleste ro l  levels when 

pa rt of a hea rt-healthy d iet a nd l ifestyle .  

( Extra i nfo (This study was published in the American Journal of Clinical Nutrition, where 

researchers from Penn State University found that people who participated in the Beef in an 

Optimal Lean Diet {BOLD) study, consuming lean beef daily as part of a heart-healthy diet, 

experienced a 1 0  percent decline in LDL "bad" cholesterol.) 

Along with the BOLD study, America n Hea rt Association's has give n the ir  sta m p  of a pprova l  o n  

6 extra lea n beef cuts. ( These cuts with the Heart-Check mark include the following USDA Select 

grade cuts: Sirloin Tip Steak, Bottom round steak, top sirloin stir-fry, boneless top sirloin petite 

roast, top sirloin ft/et and top sirloin kabob. )  

S o  now, we that have t h e  rese a rch,  we need t o  aggressively get that info rmation out to the 
M e d ica l Com m u nity. Among m a ny of my col leagues , I was known as the 'Beef Lady1 or I would 

I 



hea r the comment, 'here comes the beef as I was wa lk ing down the h a l l  a nd m a ny pee rs wou l d  

b e  s u re t o  let me know what c ut of beef they e njoyed over t h e  wee kend o r  for s u p pe r. I 

pro u d ly shared as much of the checkoff i nfo rmation that I could,  I gave them we bsites to refe r 

to a nd wo uld br ing p rinted information that they asked for. 

Now, as a n u rse, I a m  persona l ly wa it i ng fo r resea rch to be sta rted a nd comp leted on 'Beef's 

role in d iets with the e pidemics we a re having with Dia betes and O besity. 

As you ca n see, I uti l ize the checkoff fu nded resea rch a n d  i nformation in  my m a ny roles. But I 
a lso know t hat with fewer cow n u m be rs there a re fewer beef c heckoff dol la rs a nd much more 

resea rch a nd ed ucat iona l tra i n ing needed, fo cont inue to get the Beef message to today's 

consumers .  And o nce the resea rch is comp leted, we need to get it to the consumers .  These a re 

a few of the reason�the Beef Checkoff. 

Tha n k-you for a l lowing me my share comme nts today. 

Respectful ly, 

Kathy Takach 

kattokach@gmai l .com 

5520 County Road 81 
St. Anthony, ND 58566 
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Good morn ing Chairman Johnson a nd members of the House Ag Committee.  

My name is Gabe Thompson Jr. a nd I am speaking to you today as the 3rd generation producer of a now 
4th generation cow calf operation a long the Canadian border near Antler. Today, my comments as a 
producer are focused on the va lue the Beef Check Off has returned to my fami ly's cow calf operat ion.  I 
have a lso been given the opportun ity to serve on the ND Beef Commission as a d i rector, and the past 4 
yea rs i n  that posit ion has given me a more thorough and d i rect i nsight into how this va lue is 
accompl ished than I had prior to my involvement with the Check Off. However, I want to make it very 
c lear today that I am appearing here on my own as a beef producer and am not in any way speaking on 
behalf of the Beef Commission .  

A re l iable measurement of responsible management i n  a fi nancia l endeavor is the Return on 
I nvestment. This past year, a study examin ing this ROI measurement was commissioned by the 
Cattlemen's Beef Board and performed by an  independent research institution of Cornel l  Un iversity. Dr .  
Harry Ka iser at Cornel l  Un iversity has performed more than 100 return-on-investment studies, many of 
them on commodity research and promotion programs such as the beef checkoff. 

A summary of this latest comprehensive study is shared i n  the handouts accompanying my testimony 
a long with a l ink to the entire study that conta ins additional l i nks to various break downs to review for 
factua l  reference . 

I n  a previous 2009 study of the Check Off va lue, it was determined that there was a $5.55 ROI .  Whi le 
this is a good mark i n  itse lf, this study only examined domestic reta i l  data based on household 
measu ring demand as wel l  as other reta i l  sales data a lone. 
In seek ing to provide the CBB a much more complete ana lysis of the National Check Off i nvestment 
impact and va lue, Dr.  Kaiser examined 9 areas i n  the 2014 study inc lud ing:  

1 .  Advertis ing 
2 .  Channe l  marketi ng (which inc ludes reta i l  and food service) 
3 .  I ndustry information 
4.  New product development 
5. Consumer publ ic  re lations 
6 .  Nutrit ion research 
7 .  Product enhancement research 
8 .  Beef safety research a nd 
9. Foreign marketing 

It a lso i ncl uded a more accurate, broader base of ALL beef marketi ng disappearance inc lud ing Reta i l  plus 
Food Service and International Marketing. 

And in as comprehensive and complete a study as our industry has seen of the va lue returned from the 
i nvestment of the Beef Check Off, a ROI of $11 .20 for each dol lar i nvested in nationa l  programs was 
rea l ized . 
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Another independent company, Cattle Fax, provides additional data that I think adds even more backing 
for how the beef Check Off adds significant value to producers and that's regarding the value foreign 
markets and global trade has given our industry. 

I n  the latest report from Cattle fax, in August of this year the export va lue of fed slaughter returned 
$326.94 per head to producer's pockets. 

This significant value, which increased 29% over the p revious year, and is up from $217.73 i n  2012, can 
be reasonably assumed to be, in  part, a d irect resu lt of the investment of Check Off dol lars in global beef 
marketing and promotion by the US Meat Export Federation. 

Variety meats and by products alone which hold a minimal va lue domestical ly have returned over $80 
per head of additional revenues thru foreign markets with stomachs sel l ing for $6 per lb to Asian 
markets, the same price as a sirloin steak sel ls for domestical ly, and tongues sel l ing for an  
additional $12/lb  over domestic markets. 

There is a real and measurable value to the producers that pay the Check Off that I and others believe is 
accurately measured in this ROI study. 

Whi le opponents of this bi l l  have gone to the extent of bringing an out of state member of the 
Cattlemen's Beef Board, David Wright, in  to your interim committee to question the use and value of 
the Check Off dol lar and the information presented i n  support of this bi l l  such as this study, I think it is 
important to remember  that in 2014, the 103 members of the Cattlemen's Beef Board were ultimately 
responsible for having this independent research study conducted and stood behind the results when 
these facts were publ ished for beef producers l ike myself that are responsible for these 
accomplishments thru our investment in  the Check Off. 

In  closing, as a North Dakota producer I have seen a d irect value in the return on my investment i n  our 
industry thru the Check Off which value I hope to continue to grow as my family is involved in  our 
operation. 

I thank you for the opportunity to speak here today, and wi l l  do my best to answer any q uestion that 
might be offered . 



l 
EVERY DOLLAR INVESTED* RETURNS $1 1 .20? 

Beef Safety Research 
Identifies potential risks to beef safety 

and develops solutions to maintain a 
safe beef supply for consumers 

Public Relations a 
Proactively share

_
s positive beef __ 

messages with consumers, 
health professionals and other 

food influencers 

Product Enhancement 
Research 

Discovers new ways to improve beef 
quality, consistency and value, including 

research focused on new cuts, taste, 
tenderness and carcass value 

New Product Development 
Works with industry leaders to 

develop new beef products, plus 
shares beef recipes and cooking tips 

•From the CatUemen's Beef Board budget 

[;) - - / 

Advertising 
Creates all domestic 
consumer advertising 
-radio, print, outdoor 
and digital - to reinforce 
how beef is part of their 
everyday life 

Foreign Marketing 

Provides beef mar1<et development, 
promotion, research, consumer and 
industry information in more than 
1 00 countries worldwide 

Channel Marketing 
- Develops all promotions, training and 

other programs to help promote beef 
• • in restaurants and grocery stores 

_ Focuses on beef's role in human 

f (j 1 Nutrition Research 

• nutrition as it relates to overall 
health and well-being 

Industry Information 
Safeguards the image of the beef 
industry by responding to, and 
correcting, misinformation about beef 
and sharing the beef production story 



ROI Study Shows $ 1 1 .20 Return on Beef Checkoff Dollar 
by Randa l l  - Ju ly 31st, 2014 

11 DENVER Colo., July 3 1 ,  20 1 4 - In the most comprehensive study ever 
rendered about the Return on Investment (ROI) of beef checkoff assessment , Dr. Harry Kaiser 
of Corne l l  University concludes that each dol lar i nvested in the Beef Checkoff Program between 
2006 and 20 1 3  returned about $ 1 1 .20 to the beef industry. 

"The news for beef checkoff investors couldn 't  be better," said Kaiser, the Gellert Fam i ly 
profe or of appl ied economics and management at Cornel l  and director of the Cornel l  
Commodity Promotion Research Program, who i s  sharing study results this week at the 20 1 4  
Cattle I ndustry Summer Conference. 

"It is clear to me that acti vities funded through the Beef Board budget have a substantial impact 
on beef demand in the U . S .  and in foreign markets. The return on producers' and importers 
investments into this program is vastly greater than the cost of the program." 

Commissioned through the checkoff' s Joint Evaluation Committee, this new ROI study could be 
a usefuJ tool for producers who make decisions about how to invest checkoff dol l ars. 

"Thi real ly  tel l s  us that we' re on the right track with how we plan our checkoff programs," said 
cattleman Ted Greidanus of California, who chairs the checkoff's Evaluation Committee. "We 
are accountable to beef producers and importers who fund the work we do with checkoff dol lars, 
so we wanted to know how much difference we were real ly  making in the marketplace, good or 
bad - and I must say that I am quite pleased at how good the news really is ." 

Some additional key fi ndings in Kaiser' s benefits-cost analysis include 

• Had there not been any C BB-funded marketing between 2006 and 20 1 3, total domestic beef 
demand would have totaled 1 5 . 7  b i l l ion pounds - or 1 1 .3 percent less than it was with the 
checkoff programs in place. Holding the effects of al l  other demand drivers constant, the 
activities funded by the CBB resulted in an i ncrease in beef demand of 2 . 1 bil l ion pounds per 
year. 

• Had the national Beef Checkoff Progran1 not invested in forei gn-market development between 
2006 and 20 1 3, foreign demand for U .S.  beef would have been 6.4 percent lower. 

• The statistical results i ndicate that al l eight C B B  demand-enhancing activities - generic beef 
advertising; channels  marketing; i ndustry information; new-product development; public 



• relations; nutrition research; beef-safety re earch and product-enhancement research - have a 
positive and stati tical ly  signi ficant impact on i ncreasing per capita beef demand. 

• At the bottom l i ne, the i ncrease in beef demand due to C BB-funded marketing efforts re ulted 
in higher prices for beef producers and importers, which means higher net revenue than they 
would have experienced without those checkoff programs. 

Given the tremendous budget cha l lenges of the checkoff in  recent years, the Cattlemen' s  Beef 
Board commissioned the al l -encompassing study to provide a more thorough evaluation possible 
of checkoff activities than it traditionally has. As a result, this new study presents a more 
complete and accurate picture of checkoff returns and provides a new benchmark. 

"Let me caution against trying to compare the results of this study with the 2009 study, which 
reported a return of $5.55 on each checkoff dol lar," Dr. Kaiser said. "This time around, the Beef 
Board asked for a more comprehensive study than ever before, so I evaluated all commercial 
beef disappearance, including retai l ,  foodservice, and international data over eight years, whereas 
the 2009 study looked solely at domestic retai l data for a five-year period. 

"Furthermore," Dr. Kaiser continued, "my study analyzed inclividual categories of nine 
marketi ng categories separately, and then brought the categories together to identify an overal l 
beef checkoff return on i nvestment. I n  2009, the Beef Board commissioned a study analyzing 
only the checkoff as a whole." 

• Greidanus said he is quite confident in the study results. 

• 

' As chairman of the Evaluation Committee, I know that Dr. Kaiser's research methods are wel l ­
respected, so we are very con fident about the analysis and very pleased with the results," 
Greidanus said .  "And this te l ls  us that the benefits of all CBB programs are 1 1 .2 times more 
val uable than their costs . . .  As a cattleman who pays i nto the program, it's i nvigorating to know 
that my investment is mak i ng a difference." 

Kaiser, who has performed simi lar analyses for other checkoff programs, said the results should 
b encouraging to the country ' s  beef producers and importers. 

" If l was investing my hard-earned dol lars into the checkoff, as beef producers and importers are, 
I would be proud to do so, based on the fi ndings of this study," Kaiser said.  "Most of us probably 
wish we could get that kind of return on al l  of our expenditures!" 

Link to complete study: http://www.beefboard .org/eval uation/140731ROILandingPage.asp 
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Thank you committee members for a l lowing me the opportun ity to ta lk to you today a bout something I am very 

passionate about . . . . . . . .  an ima l  agricu lture .  My name i01Yn W� My husband Chris and I a long with our 2 

young daughters run a cow calf and seedstock operation near Ha l l iday. We are sti l l  in the bu i ld ing phase of our 

operation. As we try a nd bui ld our herd as wel l  as acqu ire more land, my husband works fu l l  t ime off the ranch, 

and I part time. The reason I am te l l ing you th is, is for you to understand that we rea l ly know the va lue of the 

dol lar, cattle prices and land prices are h igh, so saving a dol lar every chance we get is important. Saying this one 

m ight assume that we would be agai nst ra is ing the checkoff because it  would be an  extra dol lar out of my 

pocket on sa le day, but it  is quite the opposite. I am passionate a bout ra is ing cattle, as wel l  as giving my 

daughters the opportun ity to do the same when they grow up.  I know how va l uable that dol lar is when it  comes 

to getting out and tel l i ng the beef story. As a producer my husband would never have the time or money to go 

out and educate people about what we do on the ranch, and how important beef is, but we know having people 

that can go out and do that is extremely important for our industry. 

As the current Vice President of the North  Dakota Cattlewomen, I can te l l  you our organ ization does j ust that. 

We a re a boots on the ground group of women vo luntar i ly go ing i nto the schools, setti ng up informational 

booths at fa i rs, serving hamburgers at different events, speaking out tel l i ng our beef story, educating and 

promoting beef. Each day it seems as if there are negative news re leases regardi ng the l ivestock industry. The 

latest bei ng people th inki ng they a re getting antibiotic resistance from eat ing beef. I know if our industry 

doesn't have the funding to get out there a nd educate and promote our product backed by sound research, we 

may not have a future in an ima l  agriculture. My daughters may not get that opportun ity to run the ranch . 

One m ight th ink that this isn't a problem in ND  being it is an  agricultura l  state. But, I am here to te l l  you fi rst 

hand that it is .  I have ta lked with people across the state about beef a nd they have so much to learn. Many 

chi ldren have not been to a ranch, and don't know where hamburger comes from; they a re one, two and 

sometime three generations removed from the ranch. Many adu lts don't know the importance of beef i n  their 

d iets, there are 29 leans cuts of beef giving you 10 essentia l  nutrients in  a 3oz serving. So what does this have to 

do with i ncreasing the checkoff? The North Dakota Cattlewomen apply for part ia l  reimbursement through the 

beef commission for our educational  and promotional events. In the 2013-14 fiscal year we reached over 

72,000 consumers tel l i ng them our beef story, and giving them a positive beef image, this was a l l  done with 

vol unteer hours. This would not be possible without the checkoff dol lar. There are severa l organ izations out 

there, as wel l  as ours that cou ld  do even more with an addit ional dol lar, a nd as a producer I wou ld be happy to 

pay it .  

As a l ivestock producer I ask for youreJcr HB 1238. 

On behalf of the North Dakota Catt lewomen I ask for your support for HB 1238. 

Thank  you for your t ime. 

Sincerely, 

Jo lyn Wasem, l ivestock producer, Ha l l iday ND 

North Dakota Cattlwomen, Vice President 



Good M o r n i ng Cha i r m a n  Joh nson & House Ag Com mittee M e m bers :  

My na me is@ffy Dock§h a beef p roducer from Sherid a n  Cou nty. I a m  a 

m e m ber  of the I nd e pe ndent Beef Association of Nort h  Da kota a n d  I a m  strongly �o a ny increase i n  the beef check off at th is  t ime.  

It  has been recogn ized by U S DA at the natio n a l  level as a fa i led system a nd I a lso 

fee l  at the state leve l .  At th is  t ime I wou l d  l i ke to cha l lenge o u r  State Beef Cou n c i l  

t o  stop a n d  develop a m o d e l  that works t o  p rove t o  t h e  i ndust ry a nd o u r  own 

produce rs where our check off d o l l a rs ca n be more efficiently spent.  As a n  

exa m ple; bei ng a past school boa rd m e m be r  it has been a n  o ngoi ng concern for 

yea rs as to the a m o u nt a nd q u a l ity of beef being used i n  o u r  school h ot l u nch 

p rogra ms.  I recently visited with o u r  School Su peri ntendent and was i nformed 

that they do get h a m b u rger which is fa i r  q u a l ity but that is the on ly  form of beef 

that they get . If they wa nt to serve a ny other cuts of beef they have to p u rchase 

it themse lves. H owever, they ca n get a l l  the chicken they wa nt. This  is a 

com modity that does not pay i nto a check off. 

I bel ieve th is  is a p lace o u r  beef check off has fa i l ed us.  The gu ide l i nes for the hot 

l u nch p rogra ms a re a lways being revised a nd for m a ny students it may be the 

o n ly n utrit ious mea l  they get for the day. H ow a re they to grow up a pp reciati ng 

good beef if they don't have the opportun ity to eat it when they a re you ng? With 

a l l  of the beef bei ng ra ised in our state, it shou ld  be the fi rst choice of protei n  i n  

o u r  hot l u nch p rogra ms.  

For these reasons a n d  more I strongly u rge a N O  vote on H B1238. Tha n k  you .  
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J a n u a ry 29,  20 1 5  

W ritten testi m o n y  i n €s i t ion to H B l� i s  provided by�e r  & B� BH uff, N D  bgra n e r@ce a s . coop 

C h a i rm a n  J o h n so n  a n d  H o u se Ag ricu ltu re Com m ittee M e m b e rs ,  

We h a v e  b e e n  i n vo l ved i n  t h e  l i vestock i n d u stry fo r over 3 5  yea rs .  We a re 

fru strated that  a b i l l  h a s  been fi led that a s ks you ,  a s  l e g i s lator  to dec ide 

whether o r  n ot w e  as  t he pa yers of th is  extra $ 1  w a n t  to co n tri b u te more 

m o n ey to t he Beef Checkoff p ro g ra m .  Prod ucers sho u ld be  dec id i n g  t h i s  

i ss u e .  A n d  a n y a d d it ion a l  m o n i es m u st be  vo l u n ta ri l y  co ntr i b uted,  N OT 

refu n ded . I n  rea l ity t he a bi l i ty to contri b ute m o re tha n $ 1/ h e a d  to the Beef 

Checkoff is a l re a d y  a n  opti on . H owever, l itt le  effort h a s  b e e n  m a d e  to ta p 

i nto t h i s  o pt io n .  If w e  fe lt  t he  p rog ra m was worthy of a d o n at io n ,  we wou l d  

h a ve a l re a d y  m a d e  o u t  o u r  check.  W e  a re o pposed t o  a ny i ncrease i n  the 

state Beef Checkoff. 

Recent ly  we a sked for a co py of the p l a n  the N D  Beef Com m iss ion w i l l  use if  

the a d d i ti o n a l  m o n ey becomes a va i l a b l e .  We a ss u m ed that  s i n ce the 

a d d i tion a l  $ 1/head wou ld  poten ti a l l y  add over $ 1 m i l l i o n  d o l l a rs to the 

co m m iss ion 's b u d g et, t h e re m u st be a p ro posa l and p l a n  reg a rd i n g  it's' u s e .  

H e re i s  the  res p o n s e  we received . 

Dea r Roge r  & Becky : 

1 

You a re correct t h a t  t he p a ss i n g  of th is  specifi c b i l l  wo u l d  i n crease the fu n d s  
a v a i l a b l e  fo r d e m a n d  b u i l d i n g  p ro g ra ms t h a t  the N D  Beef Com m iss ion i s  
res p o n s i b l e  fo r i n  o u r  state . H owever, a t  t h i s  p o i n t  i n  t i m e ,  the  e n d  res u lt o f  
the  leg i s l at ive p rocess i s  u n k nown . T h e  a ssess m e n t  rate p e r  h e a d ,  deta i l s  
s u rro u n d i n g  refu n d s ,  a n d  pote n t i a l  a m e n d m e nts a ffect i n g  t h e  fi n a l  o u tco m e  
a re y e t  t o  be  k n ow n .  

W h i le these q u esti o n s  a l l  re m a i n  to b e  d eterm i n e d ,  w h a t  t h e  N D  Beef 
Co m m iss ion  d o e s  k n ow is t h i s .  Shou ld  th is b i l l  pass, the Beef Commission 
wou ld  welcome the add itiona l  fund ing  for beef demand bu i l d i ng programs 
that state and federa l  laws a l low it to be i nvested i n .  These programs 
include beef promotion, research, education, consumer information, industry 
information, producer communications, international promotion, and 
collection and compliance. 



As I hope you rea l ized from my presentation at the Interim Ag Committee 
m eeting  i n  l ate 2 0 14 a n d  from you r  own person a l  experience, the do l lar  we 
col lect today has far less buying power than it d id i n  1986.  Whi le  the 
progra ms funded today on  beha lf of beef producers a re very strateg ic, 
targeted, a n d  successfu l ,  many other g reat programs have had  to be 
d ropped over time .  

2 

The N D  Beef Commission is  ready and  a ble  to develop the types of p lans a nd 
progra ms add itiona l  fund ing  wou l d  make possib le .  Th is process beg ins each 
spring with a strategic p lann ing  session that sets the d i rection,  fol lowed by 
market ing p la n n i n g  that sets the progra m a nd budget.  Once the outcome 
of the ND Leg islature is known, the a ppropriate p la n n ing  wi l l  go i nto 
m otion . If that means no i ncrease, we w i l l  proceed to m a ke the m ost 
focused p lans  possib le to reach our  target consumers .  And if there is a beef 
checkoff i ncrease, we w i l l  a lso proceed to make the most focused p lans 
possib le to reach our  target consumers .  [added BOLD a n d  emphasis ours] . 

Best Reg a rds, 

Nancy Jo  Bateman 
Executive Di rector 
N D  Beef Commission 
4023 State Street 
Bismarck, N D  5 8 503 
70 1 -3 28-5 1 2 0  or  1 -877-3 2 1 - B E E F  

Our overa l l  conclus ion is  th is : there is  no p lan that wi l l  be shared, if there is  
a p lan  at  a l l .  

Let us  provide further i nsight on  severa l points : 

Should th is b i l l  pass, the Beef Com m ission would welco m e  the additional  
funding for beef demand bui ld ing programs that state a n d  federa l  l aws a l low 
it to be i nvested i n .  These programs include beef promotion, research, 
education, consumer information, industry information, producer 
communications, international promotion, and collection and compliance. 

It a ppears, the money wi l l  be re- invested i n  some m a nner, but how that 

wi l l  be h a n d l ed was not shared . At the October Inter im Ag Com mittee 

m eeting ,  a g ra ph ic was shared that showed beef consumption was h igh  
from Texas stra i g ht up  through  North Da kota . We a re cur ious with such a 

satu rated market i n  North Dakota, why would we n eed even more money 



thrown at this progra m .  In  the m a rketi ng world there is such a th ing as  

the  law of d i m in ish ing  returns .  Th is essenti a l ly means,  m o re money does 

not equate i n  a b igger m arket share .  In fact it may wel l  be a waste of 

m oney.  A Goog le  search of the words  " beef recipes" q u ickly fou nd over 60 

MILLION h its for recipes on h ow to prepare beef. We d o n 't th i n k  we need 

m a ny more recipes. 

In  the a re n a  of resea rch we looked at what has been l a be led research . 

3 

M ost "resea rch" con ducted fa l l s  under the category of "opin ion  survey". 

Conclus ions a re often made a bout success based on pub l i c  op in ion or worse 

counting  of pa rticipants attend ing  free p rogra ms as a n  i n d icator of success . 

These conclus ions a re erroneous in  that you can n ot general ize these types 
of fin d i ngs  to other  g ro u ps .  You can O N LY report on what  you fi nd  with i n  

the surveyed g ro u p .  There a re cla ims  that this resea rch i nforms hea lth 

care providers, n utrition ists, a n d  pol icy m a kers .  Anyone with a ny 

education i n  a ppra is ing  resea rch wou l d  d iscount  m uch of the work d one as  

flawed in  m ethod, flawed i n  conclusions, a n d  mostly skewed as the fund ing  

comes from an  org a n ization that has a huge stake i n  fi nd ing  a positive 

outcome for beef. Sort of l i ke a d rug compa ny "research ing"  their n ew 

p h a rmaceutica l .  One  shou ld  be suspicious .  And yet, we conti nue  to pay for 
research that is m ostly d ismissed .  

You have n o  doubt been p l ied with the study that shows for every do l l a r  

i nvested we get $ 1 1 . 20 back. When  we fi rst saw th is we thought, good 
m aybe n ow, they w i l l  stop begg i ng for more money . . .  that is a remarkab le  

return on  i nvestment !  But, n o  the concl us ion is heh ,  throw a n other do l lar  
a n d  we ca n doub le  our  return . Such flawed th i n king  is  a l m ost fun ny, if it 
were not so sad . An interest ing fi n d i n g  a bout the a uthor of this study, 
H a rry Ka iser is that : 

H arry M .  Ka iser, a professor of agricultura l  economics, jo ined Corne l l ' s  

faculty i n  1985.  H is two main  a reas of  research are com modity promotion 

economics and a g ricu ltura l  pol icy ana lysis. Since 1 994, professor Kaiser has 

been the director of the Cornel l  Com mod ity Promotion Research Progra m .  

http://com modity. dyson . corne l l .ed u/staff/ha rry/harry. htm 

You as legis lators wel l know h ig her education p ushes professors to find  an  

a rea of  research to fi l l  the coffers of  the U n iversity. Kaiser is  certa i n ly no  

foo l .  He writes : 

"For many agricultura l  com modities, government price intervention has led 

to excess production  relative to commercia l  market n eeds with the result 
being costly a cq uisitions by the federa l  government. M uch of my research 
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has focused on  the market i m pacts of demand and  supp ly m a nagement 

a lternatives a i m ed a t  reduci n g  excess production . On the demand side, I 
h ave exam ined the economic impacts of producer-financed promotion 

programs on ra is ing sa les and  prices a n d  reducing government purchases of 

com mod ities . On the supp ly side, I have looked at the welfa re effects on 
producers, processors, consumers, a n d  tax payers of a variety of supply 
management pol icies i nc lud ing complete a nd partia l  deregulation, mandatory 

a n d  vol u ntary supply control, target price-deficiency payments, a n d  price 

supports. Wh i le  most of my research has  been app l ied to the d a i ry i ndustry, 

I have examined m a ny other commod ities as wel l ,  incl ud i n g  eggs, corn, 

soybeans, wheat, sorg h u m ,  and  red meat. As d i rector of CCPRP, my goal is 

to conduct high quality research that has practical importance for both policy 

makers and commodity promotion organizations. " 

It is  troub l ing  that a researcher makes h is l iv ing o n  maki n g  sure com modity 

promotion progra ms take care of us pesky "costly acq u isitions" a n d  our  

"welfa re effects". And i t  doesn't take a gen ius  to see how the da i ry i nd ustry 

is doi n g .  

By the way Corne l l ,  the h o m e  o f  Dr. Ka iser i s  a lso the h o m e  o f  th is progra m : 

"The Center, i n  partnersh ip  with Cornel l U n ivers ity, offers a h i g h ly 

successfu l o n l i n e  certificate progra m  i n  Pla nt-Based N utrition . Based on  

the work of T. Co l i n  Cam pbel l "  (co-author of  the Ch ina  Stud y  wh ich 
a dvocates for a meatless d iet) . You see this "certifi cate in p lant  based 

n utrition" credenti a l  with m a ny a nti-ag and  especi a l ly a nt i- meat fo l ks .  So, 
Corne l l  p lays both s ides, a n d  we a re foo l ish enough to fun d  Ka iser's 
stud ies . 

Today's Ag Education  a n d  i n  turn the p rograms produced by the Beef 

Com mission fo l low the style set forth i n  a 1988 study.  

In  1 988 The Nationa l  Resea rch Counci l  pub l ished "Understa nd i n g  

Agricu lture- N ew D irections for Education" a nd h a s  rema ined t h e  fou ndation 
u pon which m ost Ag Education has been created s ince that t ime.  

http://www. nap. edu/cata log/766/understand ing-agricu lture-new-d irections­
for-ed ucation 

"The committee envisions that an agriculturally literate person 's 
understanding of the food and fiber system includes its history and current 

economic, social, and en vironmental significance to all Americans. This 
definition encompasses some knowledge of food and fiber production, 

processing, and domestic and internat;'onal marketing. As a complement to 
instruction in other academic subjects, it also includes enough knowledge of 
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nutrition to make informed personal choices about diet and health. Achieving 
the goal of agricultural literacy will produce informed citizens able to 
participate in establishing the policies that will support a competitive 

agricultural industry in this country and abroad. N (p. 1 -2). 

A whole i n d ustry has grown from this 1988 report. And accord ing  to Kovar & 
Ba l l  (20 1 3 )  who con d ucted a synthesis of the l iterature on  the topic of Ag 
Literacy, l ittle  to no  research has been conducted that specifica l ly a nswers 

whether or  not the education  efforts have been successfu l .  For the most 
part what has been stud ied are elementary teachers and students and  the 

immediate resu lts the partic ipa nts demonstrate through  tests that measure 

memorization ski l l s .  Whether or not we have grown agricu ltura l  l iterate 

adu lts from those ch i ldren over the span of years s ince 1 988 has not been 

a nswered . And yet we continue  to put m i l l ions of do l lars toward these 

p rograms that assume they are i nfl uencing adu l ts i n  the d irection that 
supports the Ag industry .  Nowhere is  there a study that measures if we 

have ach ieved the goa l  that "agricu ltura l  l iteracy w i l l  produce informed 

citizens ab le  to participate i n  estab l ish ing the pol icies that w i l l  support a 

competitive agricu ltura l  i ndustry i n  th is cou ntry a nd abroad . "  

If noth ing e lse t ime has h i nted we may have fa i led m iserab ly g iven the 

p reponderance of a nti-ag and  a nti-beef/meat agents that loud ly fig ht against 

us .  Educating  the agricu ltura l ly i l l iterate may not be the so l ution it was 
hyped to be.  

And lastly, we l ooked at p roducer i nformation . Fu l l  color  advertisements in 

cattlemen's news journa ls .  You tube " i nfo-mercia ls".  Al l try ing to convince 

the producers of what a g reat job the Beef Commission has done.  Where is 
the i nformation in the form of meeting  m i nutes, spreadsheets, criteria  

/matrix for decision  mak ing,  and  or  outcome eva l u ation that doesn't g loss 

over fa i l u res? We don't need nor want to be advertised to ; we need data 

that has not been massaged into noth i n g  more than clever advertisi ng . 

http://www. beefboa rd . org/producer/ checproducercomm u n ications .asp 

We fee l  the state beef check off has long ago lost effectiveness, so at the 
end of the day, after you have been ta l ked to death on  this topic, 

remember:  When you r  horse is dead, you d ismou nt. You certa in ly  don't buy 

it a new sadd le .  

S incerely;  

Roger & Becky G raner 



Chairman Johnson and House Ag Committee Members; 

S ince the beginning of the Beef Checkoff established with the 1985 Farm Bil l ,  we 
have seen continuous decline in beef consumption by the American p ublic  and 
continued decl ine o f  the market s hare of the top 3 protein food sources. Not one 
s ingle year has there been an increase nor has there even been a level ing off of the 
beef consumption and market share! And the N D  Beef Commission and the 
National Beef Checkoff think they're doing a good j ob?????? REALLY??? 

The Beef Checkoff is costing us money, not making us money, and we'd be better off 
without i t. Let me explain;  The Beef it's what's for D inner ad campaign is old and 
needs revamped. Fact is, i t's about 20 years behind. Pork has changed their ad 
campaign, and their consumption remains the same year after year, fact is, it's went 
up this  past year. 
Quite a few years ago, the US Dept of Agriculture came out with a new food pyramid 
and told the American public to reduce the portion size of red meat. And the Beef 
Checkoff embraced that idea and put it  in al l  their ads and l iterature. REALLY??? 
So we have an ad campa ign that might be recognizable, but really doesn't prove that 
it's working, and we have our checkoff dollars tel l ing people to eat smaller portions. 
Do you see what's wrong? With that being said, do you think it's working? I don't. 
I 'm sick of 'What's for D i n ner' I don't even eat dinner, I eat SUPPER. 
What would be wrong with Sam El l iot putting a 20 oz steak on his  plate, tel l ing the 
advertising viewers 'Beef, i t's what for SUPPER' and then taking a to-go box and 
tel l ing the viewers, ' it's what's for breakfast, too' ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !  
That's how ya i ncrease consumption and that's how ya sell  your product. 

And I 'm forced to contribute to an organization that I don't l ike. Money that I think could 
be better spent someplace else or with another organization.  Let me put i t  to you in 
terms you outside of agriculture can understand; There's one dominant Church in the 
US, and that dominant Church goes to Congress and lobbies to have all Churches 
contribute $1 per member to the dominant Church, because they're the largest and 
represent the most people. Then they run low on money, and go to Congress to ask for 
another $1  per person. Would you be in favor of the first dollar? I f  so, would you be i n  
favor of t h e  2nct dollar, regardless of which Church you belong to? I ' m  not. People belong 
to different Churches, because we all  have different views. Cattlemen and women belong 
to different cattle organizations, because we have different views. We all  have the same 

goal i n  mi nd, but we all have different ways of getting there. Let us spend the money 
how we best see fit and reach that end goal the way we see fit. 

So ya see Members, we have a problem. And this problem needs to be fixed. You 
don't keep throwing money at a problem. Ya fix the problem first, and then . . . . . . . .  
then maybe you can throw more money at it. I would encourage you t�n 
H B  1238. 
Frank Tomac 
9999 57th Ave SW 
Watauga, SD 57660 
(701)522-3430 
fktomac@sdplains.com 
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Mr. Chairman and members of the committee: 
.1 • : 

, 1 l111 frt�:;,nk you for allowing me to speak today on behalf of our family and 

especially my father,�y Er�ho, do to a severe shoulder injury 

and subsequent surgery was unable to be here today. Dad's an owner of 

Napoleon Livestock along with his partners George, Jim, and Paul Bitz. 

He is also my partner in a diversified grain, cow-calf, and feedlot 
<f • ' \'.?� c;_,..1-l,.:.-.. I ,, •' � ,/  o ""\ , __ .., �";-'< 5¥· · '-',... 

operation. Dad served on the ND beef commission form 2006 to 2 0 1 2  

and served a s  its chair fo r  the latter 2 of those years- something that I 

might add, he is very proud of. Proud because of the tireless, and 

significant promotion that organization accomplishes for the beef 

industry that he is so passionate about. You have been given many facts 

and figures, today, of what these check-off dollars have done and 

continue to do in terms of research, development,01aintenanc� 

reinstating�nd expansion)f foreign markets and education of our 

consumers as well as future consumers with the implementation of the 

living Ag classroom. Please allow me to share just a few noteworthy 

comparisons: 

f� I 



1986 lJ�,-.f\. �e 
Ll'-<-c.J:::,.-�e--s,�<� 

Gallon Gas $.89 

Pound ground beef $1.29 

M ovie ticket $3.70 

Average rent $385.00 

Half ton pickup $ 10,667.00 

Average house $89,43 0 

5 0 0  pound steer $64.00/cwt 

Purchase power of $1.00 

dollar 

What it takes to equal $1 .00 

a dollar 

Beef Checkoff $1.00/head 

2 0 14 

$3.3 0-$2.00 

$5 .15  

. $8.00 

$1,1 50.00 

$34,795.00 

$313,2 00.00 

$270.00/cwt 

$0.42 

$2 .37 

$ 1.00/head 



Many of you in this room own and operate your own farm or ranch and 

know that your operating expenditures have increased exponentially as 

well. One other set of numbers that I feel is noteworthy: 

1986 2 0 14 
10/.5 i r 

Cow numbers � 44 million u 40 million 

Commercial Beef 23 billion pounds \ 2 6  billion pounds '\, �/ ..._ 

production 

Our check-off is $ 1.00/head with no correlation to pounds of beef so we 

have been promoting more pounds of beef with less dollars. One could 

argue that it is because of increased population that we have been able 

to consume those pounds of product, but would that not also quantify 

the fact that we need more dollars to reach more consumers and at least 

maintain, if not increase, market share of our product? I think we would 

all agree that the end product we are trying to promote and sell is BEEF! 

BEEF is what we all ultimately produce that affords us the opportunity 

to make a living on these family farms and ranches in this great nation, 

and in this great state of North Dakota. No matter which segment of this 

industry we are in, be it cow-calf, commercial feedlot, seed-stock, 



veterinary medicine, order buying, custom hay grinding, or livestock 

marketing . . . BEEF is and should be the main focus of all our cumulative 

efforts. These check-off dollars not only have reach into our urban 

grocery stores and homes, but have an extension back home to our 
. .\.:tit+h�f.t (t\ (IJ \{) 

family farms and ranche/ The sustainability of this industry is directly 

tied to the investment we are willing to put back into it. No other $ 1 .00 

investment on my ranch returns me over $ 1 1.00.  The way this bill is 

written allows for a 1 0 0% refun�1f you feel you are �ot getting a good 

ROI� k_t me make the comparison of the purchase of a new round baler 

that now costs $50,000.00 to illustrate this point. My dealer will allow 

me to use that baler all season to roll up the 5,000 bales that I need to 

maintain my cow herd and sustain my feedlot for the winter. At the end 

of the season I can go to that dealer and tell him that this piece of 

machinery really did not do what I wanted it to and get every penny of 

my $ 5 0,000.00 investment back. The optional or "opt-out" provision of 

this bill would in essence allow me to do the same thing next year. 

Raising the beef check-off to $2.00 /head is the fiscally responsible thing 

to do for this industry that we all share a passion fo:ti·�nd our family 

respectfully urges a PASS vote on this bill. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 



Barley -

4.1-02-16. Refu nd of assessment. 

1 .  To receive a refund of a ny assessment paid in  accordance with this chapter, a 
producer sha l l  submit to the counci l  a written request for a refund appl ication with in 
sixty days after the date of the assessment or fi na l  settlement. 

2 .  The producer sha l l  complete the refund appl ication and retu rn the appl ication to the 
counci l ,  together with a record of the assessment col lected, with in n inety days after the 
date of the assessment or  fina l  sett lement.  The counci l  sha l l  then refund the net 
amount of the assessment that had been col lected. 

3 .  If a req uest for a refund is not subm itted to the counci l  with in the prescri bed time 
period, the producer is presumed to have agreed to the assessment. 

4.  A producer is not entitled to a refund under this section un less the refundable amount 
meets or exceeds five dol lars .  

Corn -

4.1-04-13. Refu nd of assessment - Form. 

1. To receive a refund of a ny assessment paid in  accordance with this chapter, a 
producer sha l l  submit to the counci l  a written request for a refund appl ication with in 
sixty days after the date of the assessment or fina l  settlement. 

2 .  The producer sha l l  complete the refund appl ication and return the appl ication to the 
cou nci l ,  together with a record of the assessment col lected, with in n inety days after the 
date of the assessment or fi na l  settlement. The counci l  shal l then refund to the 
producer the net amount of the assessment that had been co l lected from the producer. 

3 .  If a request for a refund is not submitted to the counci l  with in the prescribed time 
period, the producer is presumed to have agreed to the assessment. 

4 .  A prod ucer is not entitled to a refund under this section un less the refundable amount 
meets or exceeds five dol lars .  

D ry Bea n -

4.1-06-15.  Refu nd of assessment. 

1. To receive a refund of a ny assessment paid in accordance with this cha pter, a 
prod ucer sha l l  submit to the counci l  a written request for a refund appl ication within 
sixty days after the date of the assessment or fi na l  settlement. 

2 .  The producer sha l l  complete the refund appl ication and return the appl ication to the 
cou nci l ,  together with a record of the assessment co l lected, within n i nety days after the 
date of the assessment or fi na l  settlement. The counci l sha l l  then refund to the 
producer the net amount of the assessment that had been co l lected. 

3. If a request for a refund is not subm itted to the counci l  with in the prescribed time 
period, the producer is presumed to have agreed to the assessment. 

4 .  A prod ucer is not entitled to a refund under this section un less the refundable amount 
meets or  exceeds five dol lars .  

D ry P e a  and Lenti ls-

4.1-07-15. Refu nd of assessment. 

1 .  To receive a refund of a ny assessment paid in  accordance with this chapter, a 
producer sha l l  submit to the counci l  a written request for a refund appl ication within 
sixty days after the date of the assessment or fina l  settlement. 

2 .  The producer sha l l  complete the refund appl ication and return the appl ication to the 

I 



cou nci l ,  together with a record of the assess ment co l lected, within ninety days after the 

date of the assessment or fi na l  settlement. The counci l  then shal l  refu nd to the 

p rod u ce r  the net a m o u nt of the assessment that had been co l lected fro m the p rod ucer. 

3. If  a req uest fo r refu nd is not subm itted to the counci l  within the p rescribed time period, 

the producer is p resumed to have agreed to the assessment. 

4. A p rod u cer is not entitled to a refund u nder this section u n less the refu ndable a mo u nt 

meets or exceeds five d o l la rs .  

Oilseeds -

4.1-09-19. Refund of assessment. 

1. To receive a refu nd of a ny assessm ent paid in  accordance with this cha pter, a 

producer s h a l l  s u b m it to the counci l  a writte n req uest fo r a refu nd a p p l ication with i n  

sixty days after t h e  date o f  t h e  assessment or fi nal  settlement. 

2. The p rod ucer sha l l  co m plete the refu nd a p p l ication a nd retu rn the a p p l ication to the 

counci l ,  together with a record of the assessment col lected, within n inety days after the 

date of the a ssessment o r  fina l  settlement. The co u nci l  sha l l  then refu nd the net 

a m o u nt of the assessment that had been col lected.  

3 .  If a req uest fo r a refu nd is not submitted to the co unci l  with in  the p rescribed time 

period, the p rod u cer is p resumed to have agreed to the assessment. 

4. A p rod u cer is not entitled to a refu nd u nder this  section u n less the refu ndable a mo u nt 

m eets o r  exceeds five do l lars .  

Potatoes -

4.1-10-13. Refu nd of assess me nt - Letters of requ est. 

1. To receive a refu nd of a ny assessments paid in acco rda nce with this  cha pter, a 

p ro d u ce r  sha l l :  

a .  Between J�nuary first a nd J u ly fifteenth, submit a lette r t o  the counci l  ind icating 

that the p ro d ucer intends to req uest a refu nd of assessments paid o n  potatoes 

grown d u ring that calendar yea r; a nd 

b. Between J u ne first and June fifteenth of the calendar yea r fo l lowing the date of 

the letter req u i red by subdivision a, submit a letter to the council req u est ing the 

refu nd of assessments paid by the p rod ucer o n  potatoes grown d u ring the 

p revious calendar yea r. 

2. U po n  verification that the req u i reme nts of this section have been met, the counci l  sha l l  

p rovide the req uested refu nd to the prod ucer. 

3. N otwithsta nding s u bsections 1 and 2, a prod ucer is not entitled to a refu nd u nder this  

section u n l ess the refu ndable a m o u nt meets o r  exceeds five do l lars .  

Wheat -

4.1-13-18 . Refu nd of assessment - Form - Exception.  

1.  a .  To receive a refu nd of any assessment paid in accordance with this cha pter, a 

p rod u ce r  s h a l l  submit to the comm ission a written req uest for a refu nd a p p l ication 

within sixty days after the date of the assessment o r  fi nal  settlement. 

b .  The p rod ucer sha l l  complete the refu nd app l ication and return the a pp l ication to 

the commission, together with a record of the assessment col lected within n inety 

days after the date of the assessment or fina l  settlement. The comm ission then 

shal l  refu nd the net amou nt of the assessment that had been col lected .  

c .  I f  a req uest for a refu nd i s  n o t  submitted t o  t h e  co m m ission within t h e  p rescribed 



time period, the producer is presumed to have agreed to the assessment. 
2. A producer is not entitled to a refund under this section un less the refundable amount 

meets or  exceeds five dol lars. 
3.  Notwithstanding subsection 1, a member of the wheat commission is not el igible to 

receive a refund under this section. 

3 



15.9551.01000 Prepared for Representative D. Johnson 

NORTH DAKOTA COMMODITY ASSESSMENTS 

Commodltv Group 
North Dakota Barley Council 

North Dakota Beef Commission 

North Dakota Corn Utilization Council 

Dairy Promotion Commission 

North Dakota Dry Bean Council 

North Dakota Dry Pea and Lentil Council 

Honey Assessments 

North Dakota Oilseed Council 

North Dakota Potato Council 

North Dakota Soybean Council 

North Dakota Turkey Promotion 

North Dakota Wheat Commission 

North Dakota Legislative Council 

Assessment 
20 mills per bushel on all barley grown in this state, delivered to this state, or sold to a 
first purchaser in this state. 

50 cents for each animal sold or the amount set in federal law. 

Y.c of 1 percent of the value of a bushel. 

1 0  cents per cwt on all milk sold by the producer and on any milk used by the producer to 
manufacture other products. 

1 0  cents per cwt on all dry beans grown in this state, delivered into this state, or sold to a 
designated handler. 

1 percent of the net value on all dry peas and lentils grown in the state or sold to a first 
purchaser. 

1 0  cents on each colony of honeybees. 

4 cents per cwt on all sunflowers and canola g rown in this state or sold to a first 
purchaser. 

3 cents per cwt on all potatoes grown in this state or sold to a designated handler. 

Yz of 1 percent of the value of the soybeans sold to a designated handler. 

1 cent per turkey if average live weight is less than 1 8  lbs. 
1 Yz cents per turkey if average live weight is 1 8-28 lbs. 
1 % cents per turkey if average live weight is 28+ lbs. 

15 mills per bushel on all wheat grown in this state, delivered into this state, or sold 
throuah commercial channels to a first purchaser in this state. 

� 
r February 2015 
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The North Dakota Beef Com mission sha l l, �l?fttg officia l notice t h rough 

p u bl ic  press and state wide n ewspapers, offer a vote for qua l ified checkoff p a rticipants 

eighteen years of age or over. Passage wou l d  requ ire a simp le majority. 

After two weeks n otice of e lection, participants shal l  h ave no less than ten 

business d ays to p rove particip ation i n  the check off with in  a year prior to the d ate of 

the election .  Once qua l ification is established voters may obta i n  a bal lot from pol l ing 

locations d eemed m ost convenient by the com mission with in  the county of their 

residence. 

A vote of p a rt icipating prod ucers shal l  be he ld  every 5th year thereafter to 

continue o r  reject a d d ition a l  dol la rs to the state beef checkoff. 

1 



• Dear Senate Ag Com m ittee Mem bers: 

I am contacti ng you rega rd ing HB 1238 and my support for the b i l l .  I am out 

of town th is week a nd cou ld n't attend you r  M a rch 6, 2015, hea ring, so I 

decided to s h a re my thoughts with you in  written form.  

My father, Ray E rbele, recently had shoulder su rgery a n d  was u nab le  to 

attend the hear ing too. Dad is a n  owner of Na poleon Livestock, a long with 

h is pa rtners, George, J i m  and Pa u l  B itz. He is a lso my partner in a d iversified 

gra i n, cow-ca lf a nd feedlot operation .  Dad served on the N D  Beef 

Com m ission from 2006 to 2012 a nd was its cha i r  for the latter two of those 

yea rs - something that he is very proud of - p roud because of the t ire less 

a nd sign ifica nt promotion that the checkoff acco m pl ishes for the ind ustry 

that he is passionate a bout. 

You have bee n given m a ny facts a bout what these checkoff do l lars have 

done a nd contin u e  to do in terms of resea rch, deve lopment, mai ntenance, 

re instat ing a n d  expa nd i ng foreign ma rkets and educating our  consumers, as 

• wel l  as futu re consumers, with the Livi ng Ag Classroom.  

Al low me to s h a re just a few noteworthy com pa risons :  

1986 2014 

G a l lo n  of gas $0.89 $3.30-$2 .00 

Pound of ground beef $ 1 .29 $5 . 15 

M ovie ticket $3 .70 $8.00 

Average rent $385 .00 $1, 150.00 

H a lf-ton picku p $10,667.00 $34,795.00 

Average house $89,430 $313,200.00 

500-po u n d  steer $64.00/cwt $270.00/cwt 

• 
I 



M a ny of you may own a n d  operate you r  own fa rm or  ra nch or  know 

someone who does a nd know that the operating expen d itu res have 

i n c reased exponentia l ly as wel l .  

One oth e r  set of n u m bers that I fee l  i s  noteworthy: 

1986 2014 

Cow n u m be rs 44 m i l l ion 40 m i l l ion  

Com me rcia l  beef 23  b i l l io n  pounds 26 b i l l io n  pounds 

prod uct ion 

Pu rchase power of $ 1 .00 $0.42 

d o l l a r  

What it ta kes t o  eq u a l  a $ 1 .00 $2.37 

d o l l a r  

Beef checkoff $ 1 . 00/head $ 1 .00/head 

Our checkoff is $ 1 .00/head with no correlat ion to pou nds of beef, so we 

have been pro moting more pou nds of beef with less d o l l a rs. One cou ld 

a rgue that it is  beca us.e of i ncreased popu lation that we have bee n  a b le to 

con s u m e  those pounds of prod uct, but wou ld that not a lso qua ntify the 

fact that we need more do l lars to reach more consumers a nd at least 

m a i nta i n, if not increase, ma rket sha re of o u r  prod uct? 

I t h i n k  we would a l l  agree that the end product we a re trying to promote 

a n d  se l l  is B E E F !  B E E F  is what we a l l  u lt imately produce a n d  that affords us  

the opport u n ity to  m a ke a l iv ing on these fa m i ly fa rms a n d  ra nches i n  th is  



great nation, a nd i n  th is great state of North Dakota . N o  matte r  wh ich 

seg m e nt of th is i n d u stry we a re i n, B E E F  is a nd should be the m a i n  focus of 

a l l  o u r  cu m u lative efforts .  These checkoff do l lars not o n ly have reach into 

o u r  u rba n g rocery stores a nd homes, but have an extension back home to 

o u r  fa m i ly fa rms a nd ra nches. 

The susta i na b i l ity of th is industry is d i rect ly tied to the investment we a re 

w i l l i ng to put back i nto it. N o  other $1 .00 investment on  my ra nch retu rns 

me over $ 1 1 .00. The way this bi l l  is written a l lows for a 100% refu n d .  If you 

fee l  you a re not getting a good ROI,  let me m a ke the com pa rison of the 

p u rchase of a new rou nd ba ler that now costs $50,000.00 to i l l u strate th is 

point.  My dea ler w i l l  a l low me to use that ba ler  a l l  season to ro l l  u p  the 

5,000 bales that I need to susta i n  my herd .  At the end of the season, I can 

go to that dea ler  a nd te l l  him that this p iece of machinery rea l ly d id  not do 

what I wa nted it to a nd get every pen ny of my $50,000.00 i nvestment back.  

The refu n d  provision of th is bi l l  wou ld  in  essence a l low me to do the same 

th ing next yea r. 

Rais ing the beef checkoff to $2.00/head is the fisca l ly responsible th ing to 

do for th is ind ustry that we a l l  share a passion for and o u r  fa m i ly 

respectfu l ly u rges a DO-PASS vote on th is b i l l .  

Tha n k  you for you r  consideration .  

Ti m Erbele 

5892 H wy. 30 

Streeter, N D  58483-9547 

(701) 424-3435 

3 
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f . I  STOCKMEN'S ASSOCIATION EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE 

HB 1 238 

407 S. 2ND STREET, BISMARCK, ND 58504 
(701) 223-2522 

ndsa@ndstockmen.org • www.ndstockmen.org 

PRESIDENT 
STEVE BROOKS 

Bowman 

VICE PRESIDENT 
WARREN ZENKER 

Gackle 

IMMEDIATE PAST PRESIDENT 
JASON ZAHN 

Towner 

Good morning, Chairman Miller and members of the Senate Agriculture Committee. For the 

record, my name is Julie Ellingson. I am a fourth-generation beef producer and I represent the 
North Dakota Stockmen's Association, an 85-year-old, 3,000-plus-member cattle producers' 
trade organization. 

We are here in support of HB 1 238 .  In fact, our members initiated this legislation through 
policy passed at our convention a couple of years ago, and that has been in discussion for 

nearly a decade. The Stockmen's Association has always been a strong supporter of the beef 
checkoff and was instrumental in helping get the first checkoff put into place decades ago. 

The assessment today is $ 1  per head, the same as it was when the checkoff first came to be 
in 1 985 - back when leg warmers and parachute pants were in style. But our dollar doesn't 
stretch as far as it did back then. Inflation, of course, has diminished its buying power to only 
about 40 percent of what it was at the time of its inception. Plus, lower overall cattle numbers 
have shrunk the pool of resources our industry has for beef promotion, research and educa­

tion efforts. As an example, the Beef Commission was only able to allocate $68 1 to research 
last year and has $0 in the research budget for this year. We have some of the premier meat 
scientists in the world right here in our state, as just one example, and the opportunities are 
abound. In fact, I believe you will be hearing from one of those scientists later this morning. 

At the same time, we have just as many pounds of product to move and our industry has 

growing needs, whether they are responding to attacks on beef and beef production practices 
from activist organizations, the research efforts I already mentioned or simply communicat­
ing with consumers, who, on average, are three or four generations removed from the farm or 
ranch . That's the genesis for HB 1 238.  

Here's how it  would work: producers would pay an additional dollar, which would be used for 
the sole purposes of beef research, education and promotion, just like the current dollar. The 
investment decisions would rest with the grassroots producers serving on the North Dakota 
Beef Commission, who are armed with the best information to make those decisions and who 
are charged with giving us the best bang for our buck. In some cases, that might be invest­
ment in in-state efforts. In other cases, it might be to pool those resources with partners for 
national and international programs to influence consumers in more densely populated or 
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higher value markets. A study released by Cornell University last summer indicated that the 
$ 1  investment returns $ 1 1 .20 to the industry, and we're excited about building on that success 
by bolstering our resources to a more adequate level. 

This isn't a new idea. In fact, a dozen other states - most recently Texas and Kentucky - have 

adopted an additional beef checkoff beyond the national assessment. Illinois and Florida are 
also pursuing a checkoff increase now too. 

In the formation of this legislation, industry leaders were cognizant of the fact that some, for 
whatever reason, m ight not want to contribute to the fund to promote their industry. That's 
why this legislation was crafted to allow for a 1 00 percent refund on the additional checkoff, 
similar to the refund allowances of other state commodity programs. You and your predeces­
sors worked hard through the ag rewrite process in the 2008 interim to provide as much con­
sistency and uniformity amongst the checkoff programs as possible, and this bill maintains 
their hard work. 

It is also important for you to know that there has been ongoing discussions about increasing 

the existing beef checkoff on the national level, which literally takes an act of Congress. In­
dustry organizations have been working together for several years to find a way to move that 
forward. I'm pleased to report that there is progress being made, yet still much work ahead. 
Consequently, you will notice that Section 3 of this bill provides a deactivation clause, if you 

will, allowing this additional assessment to sunset if the national checkoff is increased. This 

is another positive feature, assuring that there would not be a piling-on effect if the national 
checkoff goes up. 

This session, you and House counterparts have had important conversations about opportuni­
ties to grow animal agriculture and further develop the livestock industry. I ,  like many others 
sat in this very room yesterday, in a nearly eight-hour hearing discussing that very topic. HB 
1 23 8  provides the beef industry a perfect opportunity to grow our industry. Your favorable 

consideration of this bill provides progressive, forward-thinking producers the chance to in­
vest their own dollars to support their own industry, and gives an out to those who don't want 
to be part of it. In a session when state resources are in question, it also is a way for cattlemen 
and women to leverage the state dollars you've committed to agricultural research and educa­
tion efforts and make them stretch a little farther. 

It's important for you to know that the Stockmen's Association itself does not stand to ben­
efit from the increase directly. We do not receive the funds or administer the programs. We 
support this increase because North Dakota beef producers stand to benefit by keeping our 
product top of mind and in a favorable light with consumers around the world. 

Thank you for this opportunity to comment and for your favorable consideration of HB 1 238 .  
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EVERY DOLLAR INVESTED* RETURNS $1 1 .20? 

Beef Safety Research 
Identifies potential risks to beef safety 

and develops solutions to maintain a 
safe beef supply for consumers ···� 

Public Relations • 
Proactively shares positive beef --

messages with consumers, 
health professionals and other 

food influencers 

Product Enhancement 
Research 

Discovers new ways to improve beef 
quality, consistency and value, including 

research focused on new cuts, taste, 
tenderness and carcass value 

New Product Development 
Works with industry leaders to 

develop new beef products, plus 
shares beef recipes and cooking tips 

•From the Gattlemen's Beef Board budget 

·-

Advertising 
Creates all domestic 
consumer advertising 
-radio, print, outdoor 
and digital - to reinforce 
how beef is part of their 
everyday life 

Foreign Marketing 
Provides beef market development, 
promotion, research, consumer and 
industry information in more than 
1 00 countries worldwide 

Channel Marketing 
- Develops all promotions, training and 

other programs to help promote beef 
• • in restaurants and grocery stores 

_ Focuses on beefs role in human 

f <i) 1 Nutrition Research II nutrition as it relates to overall 
health and well-being 

Industry Information 
Safeguards the image of the beef 
industry by responding to, and 
correcting, misinfomiation about beef 
and sharing the beef production story 
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Januarv 2015 
Baal Producer Attitude Sunev 

Aspen Media & Market Research was 
commissioned to conduct a study of beef 
producers nationwide in order to determine their 
attitudes toward the Beef Checkoff program. The 
following are the topline findings from this study. 
They are based upon 1,209 interviews of a random 
representative sample of beef (1 , 045) and dairy 
( 1 64) producers nationwide. To participate, 
respondents had to indicate they managed an 
operation that included cattle. The interviewing was 
conducted between December 28, 20 1 4  and 
January 1 0, 20 15. For a sample of 1 ,200 the 
maximum statistical margin of error is ± 2. 8 
percentage points around any one reported 
percentage. For those aware of the checkoff, the 
maximum margin of error is ± 2. 9 percentage 
points. 

H ig h l ig hts : 
• 8 out of 1 0  believe the checkoff has 
contri buted to the positive trend in consu mer 
demand for beef. 

• 72% t h i n k  the program has contrib uted to their 
profitabi l ity. 

• 73% feel the program is head ing in the right 
di rection. 

• 67% trust the program is being managed wel l .  

• 76% say t h e  program does a good job 
representi ng their interests. 
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Levels of Oversight of the current $1 per head Beef C heckoff - January 201 5 

Prepared by the N D  Beef Commission with review by the Cattlemen's Beef Board 

State leve l :  

**Every state beef counci l  (44 as of  January 201 5) must have an annual financial audit, as 
required by the Beef Promotion & Research Act of  1 985, which must be submitted to the 
Cattlemen's Beef Board (CBB) with in 1 20 days of the end of the fiscal year. The ND Beef 
Commission audit is done  by the State Auditor's Office on an an nual basis, as compared to a 
biennial  audit of other state commodity groups that fal l  under state law requirements. Every 
annual audit is avai lable for review through the State Aud itor's Office website, and the combined 
statement of revenues and expenses is a part of the ND Beef Commission annual report. 

**The Cattlemen's Beef Board audit ing staff does periodic reviews of state beef councils to 
ensure compliance with various provisions of the Act & Order and with additional operating 
procedures. 

National level - Catt lemen's Beef Board :  

**The C B B  is ult imately responsible for oversight of every checkoff dol lar collected in  the 
country ,  including those from imported beef and beef products. It is  also responsible for 
implementation of a l l  pol icies and procedures from USDA, as well as internal pol icies developed 
as best management practices . 

**The CBB has an annual  audit, conducted under government auditing standards,  by an 
external auditing fi rm q ualified to conduct such an audit. This audit is  submitted to USDA and is 
publ ished . 

**The CBB undergoes a management review audit every three years by USDA's Agricultural 
Marketing Service, covering procedures and processes under government oversight. 

***The CBB is also audited annual ly and every three years for their oversight and procedures 
related to state beef counci ls, the Federation of State Beef Counci ls,  the US Meat Export 
Federation and the National Catt lemen's Beef Association. 

**The CBB oversees both their own investments in programs conducted by national contractors 
as wel l  as additional state beef council i nvestments in national and i nternational programs. 

**All state beef counci ls investing additional funds in the national programs through the US Meat 
Export Federation and the Federation of State Beef Counci ls of the National Cattlemen's Beef 
Association review the external audits of these organizations annual ly and certify to the CBB 
that they were reviewed and found in  order. 

** I n  terms of USDA-AMS oversight and involvement with the CBB,  USDA representatives are at 
the table with the CBB at every audit committee meeting and actively engage in d iscussions and 
overs ight and approve certain  processes including contractual procedures, reporting and 
various audit provis ions. USDA is also present at every Beef Promotion Operating Committee 
meeting ,  CBB Executive Committee meeting,  CBB Board meeting and Audit Committee 
meeting .  



**National programs authorized to receive checkoff funding are also reviewed and audited . The 
procedure includes the Beef Promotion Operating Committee approving deta i ls of all contracts, 
reviewing and approving specific Authorization Requests for program funding.  After Operating 
Committee and CBB approva l ,  Authorization Requests, contracts with contractors, and the fu l l  
budget are then forwarded to  USDA for review and  final approval .  

Additional national contractor procedures: 

In addition to annual audits, legal contracts for approved Authorization Requests, and 
implementation of mandated procedures from the CBB, national contractors l i ke the Federation 
of State Beef Councils of the National Cattlemen's Beef Association ,  the US Meat Export 
Federation, American Farm Bureau Foundation for Agriculture, American National 
CattleWomen, Meat I mport Counci l  of America and others approved for program funding carry 
out their contracts on a cost-recovery basis. That means that al l  costs are covered up front by 
the contracting organization and only reimbursed where verified to be in l ine with the approved 
Authorization Request. No contractor is al lowed to make a profit when contracting for programs 
to the CBB. 

I n  addition to the financial accountabi l ity , a l l  organizations contracting with the CBB must have 
a l l  materials completed throughout the contract approved by CBB and USDA before d istribution .  
I f  the program's "Authorization Approval Number" from USDA is  m issing from an invoice 
submitted to the CBB, reimbursement of the invoice is rejected. 

National Contractors d i rectly involved with the N D  Beef Commission :  

The two national contractors that the N D  Beef Commission has chosen to fund with a n  
additional portion o f  state checkoff dol lars are the U S  Meat Export Federation and the 
Federation of State Beef Counci ls of the National Cattlemen's Beef Association. In  addition to 
fol lowing all requirements of the CBB as d iscussed above, these two organizations have robust 
internal  compl iance programs designed to uphold the strict firewal l  protecting checkoff dol lars 
from other funding sources and insuring that checkoff dol lars are appropriately accounted for. 
Each organization has a d i rector of compl iance charged with implementing, maintain ing and 
overseeing strict internal processes and procedures and are routinely reviewed by the CBB as 
well. 

t· l 
• 
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1 5 . 0559 .0 1 004 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legis lative Counci l  staff for 
Senator Schaible 

March 5, 201 5 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO.  1 238 

Page 1 ,  l ine 2, after the semicolon insert "to provide a contingent effective date;" 

Page 2, after l ine 22, i nsert: 

"SECTION 3. CONTINGENT EFFECTIVE DATE. This Act becomes effective on 
the date that the agricu lture commissioner certifies to the secretary of state that :  

1 .  The North Dakota beef commission, at the commission's expense, 
conducted a referendum by mai l ,  of a l l  producers from this state who had 
submitted an assessment duri ng the period beginn ing Ju ly 1 ,  2014 ,  and 
ending June 30, 201 5, i n  accordance with chapter 4. 1 -03; 

2.  The referendum was for the purpose of determin ing whether the producers 
favored an additional assessment equal to one dol lar for each animal  sold, 
as described in  section 1 of this Act; 

3. The bal lots were opened and the votes were tabu lated in the presence of 
the agriculture commissioner or the commissioner's designee ;  and 

4.  A majority of those voting favored the addit ional assessment . "  

Page 2 ,  l ine 23,  replace "Subdivision" with " I f  subdivis ion" 

• Page 2, l ine 23, replace "is" with "becomes" 

• 

Page 2, l ine 24, after "effective" insert ", it m ust remain effective" 

Renumber accord ingly 

Page No. 1 1 5 . 0559.0 1 004 
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BEEF PROMOTION 
INSURANCE 
YARDAGE 
COMMISS ION 

. .  - . � . . :...:.. ? 5 . 0 0 
l 0 . 0 0 
l 0 . 0 0 
2 3 . 2 7 

7 . 5 0 
2 94 . 3 5 

= = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = = =  

Tot a l  Fee s 
Tot a l  Ne t Check 

/tJ �  
I 

3 5 0 . l 2 
$ l 7 , 5 4 5 . 3 5 



1985 

1987 

2014 

Commission 

$8. 15/head 

$12 .02/head 

$29 .44/head 

Historical Compari 

Insurance 

$0.24/head 

$0.30/head 

$2.33/head 

he Beef Checkoff 

Beef Checkoff 

$0.50/head 

$1.00/head 

$1.00/head 

Animal Value 

$372 .53/head 

$564. 79/head 

$1754.54/head 



A Good Morn ing Cha i rm a n  M i l ler  a nd mem bers of the Agricu ltu re Com m ittee . For the record my 

Wn a me is  Ba rt Schott. I a m  a 4th generation fa rmer from Ku l m, North Da kota a nd former 

Pres ident of the Nationa l Corn G rowers Association .  I cu rrently serve on the P u b l ic Pol icy 

Com m ittee of the N o rth Da kota Corn G rowers Association .  

The N o rth Da kota Corn G rowers Association sta nds i n  su pport of H B1238.  Si nce o u r  i ncept ion 

by legis lative act ion i n  1991,  the N o rth  Da kota Corn Uti l ization Counc i l  (Corn Cou n c i l )  has 

contr ibuted resea rch fu n d i ng towa rds a n i m a l  agricu lture .  I am i nclu d i ng in th is testi mony the 

resea rch expend itu re h istory of the Corn Cou nc i l  over the past 5 yea rs .  You ca n see that 

between 26% to 41% of our a n n u a l  budget's have gone to research p rojects in  the yea rs 2010 

to 2014 with  2015 estimates i nc luded.  Whi le obviously a s ignifica nt a m o u nt of our resea rch 

budget d oes go to agronomic  a nd va lue added p rojects, the l ivestock com mittee on the boa rd 

does recogn ize the i m porta nce of a n i m a l  agricu ltu re to o u r  state a nd has been su p portive of 

p rojects that eva l uate a n i m a l  performa nce fed D ry Disti l lers h igh prote i n  G ra ins ( D OGS),  a by 

p roduct of the eth a n o l  p rod uct ion p rocess. More recently, the Corn Counc i l  has contri buted to 

a col la borative study between N DSU a n i m a l  science resea rchers a n d  the u n iversity of 

Leth b ridge, Alberta t h rough the US G ra i n s  Cou nc i l  to eva l uate a n i m a l  ga i n  a nd ca rcass q u a l ity 9with d iffere nt o i l  content leve ls of DOGS. 

The Corn Cou nc i l  is a l so very e nth used a bout the recent a n nou n cement of the N at iona l  

Agricu ltu ra l  Genotyp ing Center ( N AGC) be ing  located near the N DSU ca mpus .  The 

ra m ifications of th is new center to the a n i m a l  sciences and to food safety a re p rofo u n d .  I have 

read i nto the fact that the $ 1 .00-per-head beef checkoff rate has not cha nged s ince 1986 a n d  

that t h e  buying power of that $ 1 .00 i s  less t h a n  ha lf of its va lue si nce 1986. 

M e m bers of the com m ittee, In 2011-13 the N o rth  Da kota Legislatu re invested in regiona l soi l  

hea lth specia l ists to a d d ress the increasing problems of soi l  sa l i n ity that our p roducers a re 

fac ing .  The Corn Cou nc i l  has strategica l ly fu nded p rojects put forth by these speci a l ists to 

a d d ress these p rob lems.  I n  2009-1 1  the Legislatu re a lso invested $ 2 . 6  m i l l ion  d o l l a rs i n  the 

Beef Resea rch Center at N DS U .  This faci l ity has he l ped attract q ua l ity resea rch person n e l .  O u r  

view is  t h a t  t o  better ut i l ize t h i s  i nvestment a nd t h e  p romise o f  n e w  tech nology that t h e  

Nation a l  A g  Genotyp i ng Center holds that p rod ucers b e  a l lowed t o  vol u nta ri ly contri bute a n  

a d d it io n a l  $ 1 .00 per head t o  the beef check off. 

9rha n k  you for you r  t ime a nd I wou ld be h a p py to a nswer a ny q u estions.  



45.00% 

40.00% 

35.00% 

30.00% 

25.00% 

20.00% 

15.00% 

10.00% 

5.00% 

0.00% 
2010 • 

2,000,000 

1,800,000 

1,600,000 

1,400,000 

1,200,000 

1,000,000 

800,000 

600,000 

400,000 

200,000 

0 
• Projection 2010 

Research Expense by % of Revenue 

33.81% 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015* 

Research Expense 

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015"' 

• 2010 

• 2011 

• 2012 

2013 

• 2014 

• 2015* 

" Livestock" 
• "Value Added" 
• "Agronomy" 



201 5/201 6 Approved Research Funding 
Research Proiect - Agronomy Contracted Funds 

Carena - Breeding The Next Generation of Short Season Corn Products $ 1 85,8 1 3  

Cooper - CCSP Corn Plots $84,878 

Franzen - Potassium Reca l ibration for Corn $ 1 03,994 

Fra nzen - N2 Reca l ibration $ 1 9,950 

Friskop - Developing a Corn Plant Pathology Program at N DSU $60,000 

Ra hman - Gas Ana lyzer $ 25,000 

Ra nsom - Technica l Suport for a Revised Corn Hybrid Testing Program $ 1 25,345 

Wick - Developing Treatments of Interest to Producers at the SHARE Farm $ 62,707 

Wick - Research & Extension Efforts at the SHARE Fa rm $66,258 

Wick - I nfluence of Soi l  Sal in ity Gradients on Corn Production of Anthropod Pest $ 72,540 
Infestations 

Research Proiect - Value Added 
Bajawa, D. - Corn DOGS - A Novel Functional  Material for Wood Composites $ 1 7,5 1 5  

Bajawa, S. - Biocomposite DDG $2 1 ,670 

Hahn - Gl uten Free Product Research Using ND Corn & Corn Co- Products $35,000 

Ha l l  - Multifunctional  Natura l  Food Additive From Corn & Dried Disti l ler Grains $28,680 

Jiang - Corn Residual  Derived Carbon Na nosheets for High Volume Battery $29,596 

Knodel - Evo lution of BT Resistant I nsects $ 76,  l 56 

Rippl inger - Add ing Value to Northern Corn $39,802 

Research Proiect - Livestock 
Anderson - Beef Production I nternsh ip:  I nvesting in Future Corn Consumers $ 1 0,448 

Anderson - Effects of Fat Level in Disti l lers Grain Fed with Corn or Barley on $75, 8 1 1 
Steer Performance 

3 
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EFFERrz 8IACK BUTTE ACRES 
J.S: (Jerry) & Norma Effertz r-�v/1:6 
1illil48th St. N 

. 

"9 No� Dakota 58790-9107 

PhonelFwc (701) 624-5136 
e-mail: ebba@nda�1;1et 

TESTIMONY - 2015 HOUSE BILL 1238 
Jerry S. Effertz 

CHAIRMAN MILLER, MErvtBERS OF THE SENATE AG COMMITTEE. MY NAME IS 
. --

JERRY EFFERTZ. I HAVE SPENT MOST OF MY ADULT LIFE RAISING BEEF CATTLE 
AND MY WIFE AND I CONTINUE TO OPERATE EFFERTZ BLACK BUTTE ACRES 

PRODUCTING BEEF CATTLE IN NORTH CENTERAL NORTH DAKOTA NEAR VELVA 

WE HAVE ENTHUSIASTICALLY SUPPORTED THE BEEF CHECKOFF SINCE ITS 

I NCEPTION AND ENCOURAGE YOUR-SUPPORT OF HOUSE Bill 1238. IT WILL 
CONTINUE TO SUPPORT THE EFFORTS OF BEEF PRODUCERS IN EXPANDING: 

CONSUMER DEMAND FOR BEEF AND IMPROVING PRODUCER PROFITABILITY. 

I HAVE HAD THE PRIVILEGE OF WORKING WITH THE NORTH DAKOTA BEEF 

,. 

• COMMISSiON SIN.CE 2005 INCLUDING SERVING AS CHAIRMAN FOR TWO YEARS. 

• 

I N  ADDITION I AM IN MY FQURTH TERM AS ONE OF 20 MEMBERS ACROSS THE 

UNITED STATES ON THE NATtONAL BEEF PROMOflON OPERATING:OOMMITTEE �· .. _ -
WHICH DETERMIN ES THE BUDGET FOR ALL OF THE FEDERAL BEEF CHECKOFF 
DOLLARS. 

THE BEEF CHECKOFF IS ONE .. OF'T_HE MOST SUPPORTED PRODUCER PROGRAMS 

WITH i:HREE OUT OF FOUR PRODUCERS SUPPORTING THE B�F CHECKOFF, 
WHILE THE NUMBER WHO DISAPPR()VE OF THE PROGRAM AT JUST 11 
PERCENT. THIS IS THE LOWEST IN THE PROGRAM .HIStdRY. I HAVE INCLUDED ' .  . 
WITH MY COMMENTS COPY OF THE ·RELEASE OF AND THE RANDOM s' UllvEY . � . .. . . 
RESULTS CONDUCTED BY THE INDEPENDENT FIRM �ASPEN MEDIA AND 

"'"'' 
MARKET RESEARCH IN DECEMBER OF 2014 AND JANUARY OF 2015. 

I STRONL Y ENCURAGE THE COMMITTEE TO SUPPORT THE OVERWELMI NG 
MAJORITY OF BEEF PRODUCERS WHO WISH TO SUPPORT OUR IND�STRY BY 
VOTING IN FAVOR OF HOUSE Bli..L 1238.1 - ...... 
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Prod ucer S u p po rt of 
Beef C h ec koff Re m a i n s 
H ig h  

Contact: Melissa Sandfort (mailto:msandfort@beefboard.org), 308-697-3486; 
msandfort@beefboard.org (mailto:msandfort@beefboard.org) 

Date: Tuesday, February 03, 2015 
As the number who 'disapprove' drops to lowest level in program 
history 

BEEF 

® 

Three out of four producers support the beef chec;!<off, while the number who disapprove of the 

program, at just 11 percent, is the lowest in program history, according to a recent survey of 1,209 
beef and dairy producers nationwide. 

The random survey conducted by the indep�ndent ·firm Aspen Media & Market Research in late 

December 2014 and early January 2015 found an overwhelming majority of beef and dairy 

producers continue to say their beef checkoff has value for them in many ways: 

• 81 percent of producers say the beef checkoff has helped to contribute to a positive 
trend in beef demand. 

• 72 percent of producers say the beef checkoff contributes to the profitability of their 
operations. 

• 76 percent say the checkoff is there for them in a crisis. 
• 76 percent say the checkoff represents their interests. 
• 66 percent of producers believe the checkoff is well managed . 

https://www.beefboard.org/news/1 50203PAS201 5Release.asp 3/1/20 1 5  
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Producer Support of Beef Checkoff Remains High Page2of2 

"Despite a great deal of discussion about the future of the checkoff, along with being challenged 

by critics of the checkoff and groups who would like to see us go out of business," says Producer 
Communications Working Group (PCWG) Chair Jeanne Harland, "beef and dairy producers 

continue to value their checkoff for building demand, contributing to their profitability and for 

representing their interests. And, with all that has gone on in the past six months, I believe it's 
significant that the fewest number of producers in the history of the program say they 

'disapprove.' 

"The beef checkoff has, for nearly 29 years, served the beef industry with programs producers 

want, and that is why we see the checkoff 'as representing our interests' according to the 

survey," says Harland. 

One of the key priorities of the working group which Harland chairs is to 'increase the 

understanding of how the checkoff works ... how ~t] benefits them and their role as stakeholders,' 

she notes. 

A summary of the research findings is available online (/news/files/FY2015/2015PASTopline.pdf). 

For more information about your beef checkoff investment, go to MyBeefCheckoff.com 

(http://www.mybeefcheckoff.com!). 

### 

The Beef Checkoff Program was established as part of the 1985 Farm Bill. The checkoff 
assesses $1 per head on the sale of live domestic and imported cattle, in addition to a 
comparable assessment on imported beef and· beef products. States retain up to 50 cents 
on the dollar and forward the other 50 cents per head to the Cattlemen's Beef Promotion 
and Research Board, which administers the national checkoff program, subject to USDA 
approval. 

### 

Phone: (303)220-9890 Fax: (303)220-9280 

• beefboard@beefboard.org Cf contact.asp) 
" FAQs C/about/faq.asp) 
• Privacy/Terms (/about/privacy.asp) · 

® Copyright 2014 Cattlemen·s Beef Board. _. Funded by the Beef Checkoff. 

Internal links within this website are funded and maintained by the Beef Checkoff Program. Outgoing 
links may be to websites maintained by third parties not funded by the checkoff. 

https://www.beefboard.org/news/150203PAS2015Release.asp 3/1/2015 



Testimony on HB 1238 

Travis Maddock 
2005 9th St. N.  
Fargo, ND 58102 

Mr. Chairman and Honorable Members of  the Senate Agriculture Committee, 

I support HB 1238 which would implement a $1/head state beef check-off assessment, and I 
want to encourage you to support it as well. 

I am a small business owner from Fargo who primarily works with food and beef processors 
working in food safety and quality. I am also a fourth generation beef producer as a partner 
in my family operation located in Benson County where we raise and feed beef calves and 
cattle and two of my brothers and my parents make their entire living from beef cattle. 

The success of the federal beef check-off program is unquestionable. Briefly, the dollars are 
spent on research, education, and promotion. Highlights include: 
• Dramatic improvements in the reduction and elimination of food borne pathogenic 

microorganisms, such as E. coli 0157:H7 (which has been reduced in the US beef 
supply by nearly 75% since the year 2000) from our beef supply, making US beef 
the safest in the world; 

• Research on taste and palatability of steaks and roasts has added over $70 in value to 
each head of cattle harvested, almost $2 billion per year in the US; 

• The promotion of US beef in the global marketplace which has lead to new markets in 
previously untapped regions of the world, including South-East Asia and the Middle 
East, that now prefer and ask for American beef and beef exports from this country 
are at unprecedented levels rising above $6 billion in 2013 when beef exports were 
less than $1 billion just 10 year ago; and 

• US beef producers that are more knowledgeable and now have more tools available to 
them to face challenges and prepare for the future than at any other time in our 
industries history. 

Beef demand and prices are at an all time high, due in large part to programs funded by the 
federal beef check-off. 

But why should North Dakota have it's own check-off? Well, I believe that North Dakota's 
Beef Industry is ready to evolve. Traditionally North Dakota has sent its calves and 
feedstuffs to other states to be fed and slaughtered. A state check-off program could provide 
funding to support the research and knowledge programs needed for North Dakota 
producers to continually improve creating value and creating jobs. 

Additionally, it has been historically difficult to attract federal check-off dollars to North 
Dakota to be used by NDSU and the USDA labs here. Not impossible, but difficult. By 
implementing a state beef check-off program, we can generate dollars for in-state 
programming to conduct research that will make a difference to North Dakota producers, 
make sure our North Dakota ranchers are educated to the highest possible level, train North 
Dakota processors on how to maximize safety and value in beef, and promote North Dakota 
beef cattle, fed North Dakota grains and co-products by North Dakotans. And the best thing 
is it won't cost the state government one cent. It is completely funded by the industry. 

I 
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Of course, you are going to hear a lot of naysayers that will tell you that the check-off is a 
tax, or only benefits packers, that the funds aren't spent in the right way, or is just a money 
grab by the National Cattlemen's Beef Association (or in this case, the ND Beef Commission), 
but these folks either have an agenda or simply don't care to find the facts. The facts are that 
check-off dollars, universally, are an excellent investment no matter which commodity they 
represent. A recent study indicates that for every federal beef check-off dollar spent, $11  
dollars were returned to the industry. $11  ! ! ! That i s  an  amazing return on  investment! I f  the 
state check-off returns half that, it would be a great program and well worth the cost. 

An additional point to be made is that the folks that oppose this program are going to try 
and sway you by pointing out that a large percentage of funds are used for administration. 
Well they are right! But keep in mind when they make that point, that the check-off 
assessment has not been raised since its inception over 20 years ago. Yet we all know that 
expenses are not what they were 20  years ago. The ND Beef Commission is being asked to 
pay 2015  expenses with a 1990 income, and truthfully, if you look at any of the audits that 
have been conducted of both the federal and state programs, you will find they are utilizing 
every dollar as prudently and responsibly as possible. 

One last point, as to allocation of the dollars, it would be up to the ND Beef Commission as to 
how the dollars are used and the commission is comprised completely of the same beef 
cattle producers contributing to the check-off. I am certain that the producers of North 
Dakota will see that the dollars are allocated wisely. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. I hope that you will support H B  1238. I f  
you have any questions, I would entertain them at this time. 
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North Dakota Senate Agriculture Committee 

H B  1238 

Jolyn Wasem 

Chairma n  M il ler, members of the Senate Agriculture Committee, my name is Jolyn Wasem. My husban d  

a n d  I a long with o u r  two young daughters run a cow/calf and seed stock operation near Hal l iday. My 

husband works ful l-time off the ranch, and I part-time. Being in the bui lding stages of our operation, we 

rea l ly know the va lue of the dol lar, especial ly with land and cattle prices being as h igh as they are. I n  

saying this you may  think I would oppose HB1238, but I strongly support it. The opponents may say that 

it is a lready voluntary and we could pay the additional dollar on our own. This is true. However it 

doesn't work. When I was younger, I was told if I put $25 dol lars into a retirement account each month I 

could have a m il l ion dol lars by the time I retired. Who doesn't want a mi l l ion dol lars? Each month I had 

the opportunity to vol untarily do this. I stood to gain a substantial windfa l l  if  I d id .  But by human nature 

I did nothing. Now many years later, I have money automatica l ly debited from my account and I don't 

miss it. But I do look back and think about how much of a better financia l situation I could have been in, 

had I j ust had it a utomatical ly withheld in  the first place. I believe the increase in the checkoff, works 

the same way, automatically done. But if you don't want to support it you can request the additiona l 

dol lar  back. 

I a m  a lso the vice president of the North Dakota CattleWomen, an  organization that util izes the checkoff 

program .  Does this mean I stand to benefit from the increase? No. Does this mean that my 

organization wi l l  benefit? Only if we do more education and promotion wil l  we be able to apply for 

additiona l  money, in the form of a reimbursement. Here's how our organization works: many women 

across the state vol unteer their time to go into schools, set up  booths and talk with people about beef. 

We apply for partia l reimbursement through the North Dakota Beef Commission for educational and 

promotional events. In our organization, we hold the event with expenses come out of our own 

pockets, we then fi l l  out an  expense report, attach receipts and write a summary of the event. This goes 

to our executive board. Here the reports are closely examined and not a l l  events qual ify as education or 

promotion, thus being denied reimbursement from checkoff do l lar  funds. I f  our executive board 

a pproves an event, it then goes to the Beef Commission for final approva l .  So you see, there are checks 

and balances. 

The other day I was told by someone who opposes this bill that handing out a brochure to a kid does 

nothing and it isn't money well spent. I disagree. In the 2013-14 fiscal year the North Dakota 

CattleWomen reached over 72,000 consumers tel l ing them our beef story and giving them a positive 

beef image. This was a l l  done with volunteer hours. This would not be possible without the checkoff 

dol lar. I have personal ly gone into the schools and read stories about raising beef, bringing with me 

tools of the trade: ca lf bottles, feed sam ples, mi lk  replacer, ear taggers, bolus guns among many other 

things. The kids are able to touch, feel, and see how these things work, to ask questions a nd yes, take 

home information. These kids are excited ! This may be the only time that some of these kids - even in 

North Dakota - meet a rancher, learn first-hand about a ranch and understand how important beef is in 

their d iets. I do believe we make an  impact. I talk  to many kids who have never been to a ranch and 

I 
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have no idea where food comes from. We have so much educating to do. I was told by a teacher at our  

Nationa l  CattleWomen's Convention that in one of  her  classroom lessons they learned that cattle eat a l l  

the grass, produce methane gas and are bad for the envi ronment. That is where the lesson ended. 

Nothing good was said. This is eerily echoed in the 2015 Proposed Dietary Guidelines. We have a lot of 

educating to do. For a minute, I want you to think about being healthy, eating hea lthy, the very epitom e  

of hea lth. If you were going t o  eat the healthiest lunch you could eat today, what would  b e  on your 

p late? How many of you had a sirloin steak on your plate? One 3-ounce serving of this lean beef has 

less than 4.5 grams of saturated fat, only 150 calories, and is packed with ten essential vitamins and 

minerals. The zinc wi l l  give your brain power, the iron oxygenates your blood and protein in beef will fi l l  

you  u p  and keep you ful ler longer than the  p late of  lettuce or chicken breast some of  you might have 

pictured. Once again we have a lot of educating to do. There are severa l organizations out there, as 

wel l  as ours that could  do even more with an additional dol lar, and as a beef producer I would be happy 

to pay it. 

In closing I ask you to please support H B  1238. 

Sincere ly, 

Jo lyn Wasem, livestock producer, Hal l iday, ND  

Vice President, North Dakota CattleWomen 
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Good m o rn i n g ,  M r . C h a i rm a n a n d  com m ittee m e m b e rs .  M y  n a m e  
i s  M a rg i e  H a n d e .  I a m  a n  A m i d o n ,  N . D . ,  catt l e  p rod u ce r  a n d  a 
p a st c h eckoff l e a d e r .  I a m  h e re i n  s u p p o rt of H B  1 2 38 . 

I served o n  t h e  State Beef Com m iss ion fro m 1 99 7 - 2 0 0 3  - 6 
yea rs .  Th e n ,  I w a s  a p po i nted to serve o n  t h e  Catt l e m e n ' s  Beef 

Boa rd fro m 2 0 0 6 - 2 0 1 1  - 6 yea rs .  The e n t i re t i m e  I w a s  work i n g  
o n  these b o a rd s ,  I h o ped t h a t  t h e  ch eckoff wou l d  b e  i ncrea sed , 
beca u se I s a w  - a n d conti n u e  to see - t h e  va l u e  it  b ri n g s  to 

ra n c h  fa m i l i e s  l i ke m i n e .  

M ost of m y  ti m e  w a s  s p e nt o n  t h e  n a ti o n a l  reta i l  co m m ittee . W e  

wo rked o n  so m e  exce l l ent  p rog ra m s  to g et m o re beef t h ro u g h  
t h e  g rocery sto res .  W e  we re try i n g  to g et t h a t  j o b  d o n e  i n  20 1 0 ,  
b u t  with a 1 986 b u d g et .  W e  a re worki n g  with  t h at sa m e  b u d g et 

tod a y .  Cuts w e re m a d e  a n d  l ots of g ood p roje cts w e re 
e l i m i n a ted . T h e  B e ef Boa rd m e m bers too k  th e i r  j o bs s e ri o u s l y ,  
a n d  everyo n e  ca refu l ly watc h e d  h o w  those d o l l a rs w e re s p e n t .  

We h a d  t o  a n swe r t o  t h e  p rod u cers a n d  n e i g h b o rs b a c k  h o m e .  

We were tra i n e d  o n  w h i c h  a reas that c h eckoff d o l l a rs co u l d  b e  
s pe nt, a n d  we a l so k n e w  w h at a reas c h eckoff fu n d s  cou l d  n o t  b e  
u sed fo r .  

The c h eckoff i s  a g reat p ro g ra m .  I d o n 't k n o w  why a ny p rod ucer  
wou l d  n ot wa n t  to contri b ute to t h e  p ro m ot i o n  of h i s or  h e r  
p rod u ct w h e n  t h e  resu l ts h a v e  been s o  o utsta n d i n g . Sti l l ,  t h i s  b i l l  
wou l d  offer a refu n d  o f  that state d o l l a r  if  it  w a s  req u e sted , so 
th i s  b i l l  i s  a n o - b ra i n e r. Catt l e  p ri ces a re at  a n  a l l -t i m e  h i g h .  
W h at cou l d  b e  a b ette r ti m e  to i n c rease a n  i nvest m e nt i n  o u r  
b u s i n ess? 

Th a n k  you fo r yo u r  co n s i d e rat ion of t h i s  b i l l .  

M a rg i e  H a n d e ,  p ro d u ce r  
A m i d o n ,  N D  
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HB l:J.39 
March 6, 2015 

The privi lege that I have being here today started long before my beginning as  a sixth 

generation cattle producer. Ranchers from the beginning knew how important it was to 

invest in qual ity feedstuffs, genetics, marketing relationships, infrastructure, and 

friendships with cattle buyers which have a l l  played a major role in  propel l i ng the beef 

industry forward.  These investments have been proven valuable i n  lean times where 

producers found creative ways to stay afloat, as wel l  as better ti mes that see other 

chal lenges; such as a changing consumer mi ndset. 

Now, the beef i ndustry cannot take credit for the idea of investing in the future. While 

i n  grade school we lea rn a bout i nvesting ourselves into making good grades so we can 

do wel l  in high school .  Once we are in high school we learn about investing our time 

and energy i nto scholarships, essays, and extracurricular activities so that we ca n be 

accepted into a good college and therefore invest i n  our future. After bei ng h ired by our 

fi rst real job we are i nformed hard work will result in the opportun ity to climb the 

corporate ladder. Whi le not leaving out one of the largest investments of a l ifeti me, we 

are working on raising a fami ly, paying off a house, as wel l  as saving for reti rement. 

Over the course of a l ifetime, we conti nual ly invest in our future. 

We i nvest in many different endeavors throughout our l ifetime and I bel ieve the beef 

industry is worth i nvesting another dol lar toward our sustainabi l ity. As we a l l  know, 

agriculture is an i ndustry that wi l l  be around for a while; as long as there are people on 

this earth they wi l l  need to eat. 

Personal ly, I love to eat and one of my favorite restaurant meals is a qual ity flat-iron 

steak. For those of you that are not fami l iar this relatively new cut derives from the 

front shoulder of the a nimal which was mainly processed i nto ground beef. A restaurant 

menu now features the flat i ron steak next to other high qual ity cuts that are found in  

the loin of the animal,  i ncreasing the overal l  value of the animal . Investments such as 

these benefit the enti re beef i ndustry, as wel l  as consumers, and I hope to see more 

investments of this ki nd in the future. The additional dol lar going toward check off 

would be investing in our future as beef producers and consumers, which I fu l ly 

support . 

Chelsey Schafer 
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March 6, 20 15  

We take pride in  our efforts, whether i t  i s  our family o r  our work; a s  the fifth generation to 

own and operate our farm and ranch I am proud to be able to pass our operation onto the 

sixth generation, which includes my daughter Chelsey. This next generation of beef 

producers wi l l  conti nue to produce a qual ity product that has a di rect influence in feeding the 

world .  We need the Beef Check Off to continue, in order to keep beef prominent in the minds 

of consumers, especial ly considering the competition from other protein  sources. 

Research and promotion of our product would be funded with this extra dol lar. The origina l  

dol lar that was col lected for the Beef Check Off now has only 40% of its original spending 

power. As Chelsey mentioned, new cuts on the menu, at reasonable prices, are avai lable 

thanks to the research funded by the Beef Check Off dollar. 

In addition, promotion and education are vital roles the Beef Check off plays in  the industry 

to defend the qual ity of our product. As an example, the latest government report states less 

red meat is better for your health; when in fact, there are numerous studies to show the 

nutrient rich benefits of beef. As beef producers, we are constantly battl i ng misi nformation . 

This is an  area where Beef Check Off dol lars have been successful in  the past and wi l l  

conti nue, i f  we fund it! 

Those individuals that do not feel the need to invest this additional dollar to the Beef Check 

Off can choose to have their contribution refunded. This refund process wi l l  be as simple as 

sending in a rebate for a cel lphone, which many of us have done. In the future, every time a 

producer sel ls cattle they can elect to invest an extra dol lar toward the Beef Check Off or opt 

for a refund; therefore, in essence, their voice wi l l  be heard .  

I feel comfortable knowing that our very own North Dakota Beef Commission wil l  have 

control over this additional dol lar. Thei r past efforts and accompl ishments speak for 

themselves in the sense of doing more with less. Imagine what they could do with more 

spending power. 

With this in  mind, I am in  strong support of HB 1238. Let's invest in  our future and give the 

next generation an opportunity to produce beef in North Dakota . 



• Testimony in  support of HB 1 238 by J im and Jody Hauge, Mandan, N D. 
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We farmed and ranched for 35 years in  the Carson area. Our two sons have taken over Blue 
H i l l  Ranch and are not only making their l iving with cattle and crops but are rais ing the potential 
fifth generation of farmers and ranchers on that ranch. 

I n  addition to Jody and me making our l iving off of l ivestock on Blue Hi l l  Ranch, we have been 
involved in self-help check off programs. Jody served on the National Pork Producers Council 
(NPPC) Board of Directors as well as national vice president of NPPC's Pork Council Women 
before it merged into NPPC. I served as the Chairman of the National Live Stock and Meat 
Board from 1 994-96. 

We support HB 1 238 for several reasons. 

The first is that it is a self-help program ,  producers helping them-selves. If we don't help 
o urselves, who is going to help us? We need to be writing our own agenda rather than have 
others write it for us. We need accurate science to be able to defend against an imal  rights 
g roups and other g roups that would l i ke to put us out of business. We need to be on the cutting 
edge of research to help us remain competitive in a very competitive world .  We need to help 
promote new products and a convenience that today's modern consumer demands. We need to 
continue to advertise showing the publ ic the healthful advantages of lean beef, along with the 
taste that we all enjoy. 

Our  second point is the beef check off has not keep up with inflation . The national beef $ 1 .00 
check off that was passed in the mid 1 980's has seen its val ue eroded by inflation .  Back then a 
rancher could buy a n ice pickup for about $ 1 0,000, while today a pickup wi l l  cost upwards of 
$40 ,000. Advertising and other costs have gone up in simi lar proportions. The passage of an 
add it ional $ 1 .00 check off is  probably not adequate but is certai nly a good first step. When the 
national beef check off was passed , pork producers also passed a s imi lar  national check off but 
it was based on a percentage of value. If the beef check off was based on percentage of value, 
w ith today's prices the check off would  probably be in that $4-5. 00 range. 

The th ird reason for support ing a stronger check off is to help provide a futu re for the fifth 
generation at Blue H i l l  Ranch. We continue to see groups that want to take away our individual 
freedoms. We need to back our  augments with sound science to help protect those freedoms 
and to have successfu l promotion programs so there is a future in  beef production in  North 
Dakota. 

We thank for the opportun ity to present this testimony in  support of H B  1 238 and respectfu l ly 
ask for your favorable consideration towards it. 

Thank you . 

J i m  and J ody Hauge 
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North ll8C.4t '6rowers Association 
North Dakota Soybean Growers Association 

1 555 43rd Street South, Suite 1 03, Fargo, ND 581 03 
(70 1 )  640-5215  I www.ndsoygrowers.com 

H B 1 238 March 5, 20 1 5  

The Soybean Growers Association has a h istory of strong support for Agricu ltura l 
Research through funding from individual commodity check-off programs and publ ic 
sources. Research is the cornerstone of our food safety programs and the economic 
wel l  being for North Dakota's farmers and ranchers ,  as wel l  as our entire state. 

Research success occurs at the intersection of error and success.  It requ i res people, 
i ngenu ity , col laboration ,  patience, reflection ,  and a dogged determination to pursue 
e lusive objectives that create tomorrows. I t 's producing the feedstock hybrid for ten 
years from now. It 's producing additional marketable meat from the same, or  less, 
an imals .  It 's creating new and improved ! 

Agricultural Research Funding Tree 

I 



Today, this bi l l 's sponsors bring a request to you to help this industry fund producer 
chosen activities, particularly research. North Dakota's Research tree has a decaying 
area that needs a nutrient infusion in  the form of funding . No single part or any 
combination of multiple parts in the Agriculture Community can be, or stay, competitive 
without funded research . 

Please g ive HB1 238 a green l ight, enabling the add itional dol lar so the l ivestock 
industry can sustain today . . .  and rekindle hope of inventing their and our future . 

Thank You , 
Scott Rising 
N DSGA Leg islative Director 

• 
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H B  1238 

Good morning Chairman M il ler, Vice Chairman Luick and members of the Senate 

Agricu lture Com m ittee. For the record, my name is Sheyna Strommen.  My h usband and I 

ranch near Fort R ice i n  Southern Morton Cou nty a long with our three young chi ldren. I 'm 

here today in  support of H ouse B i l l  1238. 

As a beef p roducer, I a m  p roud to pay the Beef Checkoff, because as a mother I 

benefit from the n utrition-based information researched a n d  shared through the Beef 

Checkoff. For example, the Checkoff-fu nded BOLD stu dy - beef in an o ptimal  lean diet -

hel ps moms l i ke m e  u nderstand the value of beef in a h ea lthy l ifestyle and h ow it 

I M PROVES cholesterol levels. Beef is an excellent source of protein .  Did you know that for 

abo ut 150 calories, a 3 o unce serving of beef gives you h a lf of the reco m mended d a i ly value 

of p rotein ?  Tha n ks to the Beef Checkoff, I know this information a n d  I can share it  with you ! 

Checkoff research into new cuts of beef helps moms l i ke m e  stretch our food dol lar  

by finding less expensive cuts that are just as  n utritious, flavorful and tender as  our 

tra d itional favorites. The Beef Checkoff h elps grocery shoppers and meal-ma kers l ike m e  

u n derstand safe cooking techniq ues, and which cut o f  beef is most appropri ate for that 

tech niq ue.  The "Beef So S imple" e-mai l  service sends me sizzl ing recipes and great tips 

twice a month - h elping me find flavorfu l, q u ick and easy meal  solutions for my fa mily. 

I'm a beef p roduce r  who is interesting in sharing a positive message with consumers. 

The Beef Checkoff has developed an on l ine spokesperson tra in ing program, cal led the 

M a sters of Beef Advocacy - or "M BA" for short. The program has helped me shape the 

m essage I have been sharing with my non-ranching friends and fam i ly. 

We need more p rograms l i ke these - programs that he lp young fami l ies u nderstand 

the va lue of b eef in  their diets a n d  help us  - as beef producers - answer their q uestions 

a bout how beef is raised and how cattle improve the environment. 

The beef com m u n ity faces cha l lenges from outside infl u encers who a re contin ua l ly 

spreading misinformation about our l ivelihood and about beefs role in a healthy lifestyle or 

, 
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Ninety-eight dollars buys 1/3Qth of a page ad in the 

Bismarck Tribune. (1/6Qth of a page in the Bismarck Tribune sells 

for $56.82) 

The point is, going it alone, our $98 won't get us very far, 

but by partnering through the Beef Checkoff, we can do bigger, 

more impactful marketing on a state, national and international 

level. 

As written, HB1238 is a win-win bil l . It gives those beef producers, l ike me, who want 

to grow and bui ld and promote our industry a clear pathway to work together to 

accomplish those goals and, through the refund provision, it gives those beef producers 

who don't want to engage in promotion, education and research a clear pathway out each 

and every time they sell cattle. You're in or you're out. I'm in. I hope you are, too. 
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Hel lo to a l l .  U nfortunately, I am u nable to speak i n  front of you today, but it's crucia l  my 

voice is sti l l  heard ! As a begi n n ing beef producer, I am greatly i n  favor of House B i l l  1238, a n d  

with my you ng age I bri ng a bout a u n ique perspective. 

My n a m e  is J usti n  Bartholomay a n d  I grew up on a ranch located just north of Sheldon, 

N D, i n  Ransom Cou nty, where we raise S immental catt le .  From a young age of he lp ing dad and 

papa feed cows a n d  check for newborn calves, I knew the agriculture i n d ustry had a fut u re for 

me.  This  May I wi l l  be grad uating from North Da kota State U n iversity with my Bachelor's Degree 

in An imal  Science a n d  I ' l l  be the fi rst of my fa m i ly to receive such a d i p loma.  Going back home to 

acq u i re the fa m i ly fa rm has a lways been in my future p lan,  a n d  q u ite fra n kly, I want that idea to 

become a rea l ity a n d  not s imply a d ream.  

You see, I 've h a d  the fortunate opport u n ity to travel many places a n d  see m a ny th i ngs 

t h roughout my col l ege career, which has led me to vis it ing with m u lt ip le  stud ents of varied 

i nterests and backgro u nds.  Th rough these conversations, I 've seen fi rsthand the i m porta nce to 

p romote the beef cattle industry, to i n s u re that it stays strong for not on ly r ight now, but for 

m a ny years down the roa d .  

Consu mers a ren't who they used t o  b e .  N ow days, they constantly th rive for more 

i n fo rmation tel l i n g  them a bout the safety of thei r food. I nformation that wou l d n't be feasib le to 

give without the fu n d i ng of Beef Checkoff dol lars .  Today's consumers, especia l ly  my u pcom ing 

m i l le n n i a l  generat ion,  a re very dependent on technology, and look to soc ia l  media platforms to 

fi n d  a lot of the i nformation a bout the food they eat. These forms of soc ia l  media a re a lso where 

a lot of a n i m a l  activists l ist fa lse i nformation a bout the way beef cattle a re prod uced, processed, 

a n d  placed on m i l l ions of p lates across the n at ion .  

The d i sconnect between consum ers a n d  the food they eat is  greater now than ever 

before, t h u s  m a ki n g  it  even more important to ma rket our prod uct the best we ca n .  Somet h i ng 

we s im ply can't do, without more fisca l leverage. If we don't increase o u r  efforts i n  p romoting 

our i n d ustry, I ,  person a l ly, worry about what my fut u re may incur as a progressive and u pcom i ng 

beef producer.  

I 
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And honestly, I 'm trying my best to self-promote the l ife I want to l ive, beca use I care so 

much a bout it.  

A cou ple yea rs back I was l ucky enough to be the North Da kota Beef Ambassador, a n d  

w i t h  t h at role I w a s  ab le  t o  i nform consumers o f  a l l  ages about beef catt le i n  North Da kota.  This 

progra m has  more or  less, been the "ah-hah" moment of my l ife, because it was when I rea l ized 

what I wanted to do for the rest of my l ife. Raise cattle and promote my l ivel i hood to others.  Th is  

p rogra m hel ped shape my d rive a n d  passion, a n d  wou l d n't have been possi b le without its' 

fu n d i n g  from the Beef Checkoff. 

After that journey, I chose to further my advocating knowledge by completing a progra m 

cal led the Masters of Beef Advocacy. Through th is  progra m I learned better how to com m u n icate 

effectively with consumers and talk about the hot-b utton issues that arise wit h i n  the beef catt le 

i n d u stry. This progra m too would not be possi ble without fu n d i ng from Beef Checkoff dol lars .  

A l l  in a l l ,  by i ncreasing the Beef Checkoff do l lar, I wil l  be able to breath a l itt le easier, 

s leep a l ittle h eavier, ra ise cattle a l ittle calm er, but most importa nt ly, I ' l l  h ave the resou rces to 

advocate a l ittle better. 

Tha n k  you for you r  time. Please feel free to contact me with any questions you may h ave. 

Best, 

� �� 
701. 367.0612 

J usti n . D. Ba rtholomay@ ndsu.edu 
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G ood Morning, Chairman M i l l er a n d  Senate Ag Com m ittee Mem bers, 

I am Kathy Takach, an i n d ependent Beef Produ cer a n d  a Registered N u rse with 30 years of experience at 

a healthcare faci l ity h ere in Bismarck. Over the yea rs I have worked in various area of the hospita l from 

Telem etry, Ad min istration and Education.  I can tell you from first-hand experien ce that the knowl edge 

in the healthca re com m u n ity of n utrit ion and the rol e  of beef i n  a healthy d iet is whol ly  l acki ng. We 

know th at Tel e m etry patients u s u a l l y  have issues w ith chol estero l .  The m yths of 'removing beef' from 

their  d iet needs to be dispel led . Cu rrent Checkoff Research has demonstrated and shown the be nefits of 

beef in lowering chol esterol l evels. There is a need for addit ional  Checkoff do l l ars to d i ssemi nate th is 

research to the medical com m u n ity throughout the hospita l s  a n d  c l inics a cross N orth Dakota. 

W h i l e  w orki ng w ithi n  Ad m i n istration, there is the need to develop scientific pati ent educational 

d i scha rge pla n s. With help from a d d itiona l  Checkoff dol l a rs, we cou l d  develop specific d ietetic guidel i nes 

w h ich wou l d  benefit the i ndividual patients and be a g reat benefit to the citizens of ND i n  u nderstanding 

the basics of a n utritious d i et w h ich 'Beef' plays a n  important rol e .  I n  the l arge schem e of thi ngs, t h i s  can 

l ower healthca re costs. A hea lthy ND popu l ation wi l l  have lower health care cost a n d  we al l  k now our 

hea lthcare costs have soared.  

W ith a d d itiona l  Checkoff mon ies, we cou l d  provid e  continu ing education and resou rces to Hea lthcare 

D ietici a n s  which we a re si mply unab le  to do today because of a lack of f u nd i ng. As a RN, I rea l ize that 

patient a n d  fa m i l y  discharge education a bout a healthy d iet, which incl udes beef is i mportant in order to 

prevent f u rther m ed ical com pl ications and read m issions to the hospita l .  

As a ru l e, healthca re professiona ls  provide the best possible care for their  patients, however w e  have a 

cont i n u i n g  need to promote the n utrit ional val u e  of beef i n  a healthy d iet to m any of my med ical 

col le agues. We n eed to be more aggressive on a m u ch l a rger scale and that can only be accom pl ished 

w ith the investment of a n  additiona l  $1 per head Checkoff as outl ined in HB 1238. 

I 



Today, I presented to you as a part of a m u ltigenerational beef cattle operation and Registered N u rse. • 
I 'm a l so completing my 2nd 3-year term as a m e m ber of the N D  Beef Com m i ss ion. 

Tha n k-you for you r  t ime 

My Contact i nformation 

Kathy Takach 

5520 Cou nty Road 81 

St. Anth ony, N D  58566 

kattokach@gm a i l . co m  

701 .445. 7390 
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Eati ng Lean Beef Dai ly Can Help Lower C holesterol 
As Part of a Heart-Healthy Diet and Lifestyle 

The latest research on heart health and lean beef 

presents a new way of thin king: lean beef can be part 

of a solution to one of America's greatest health 

chal lenges - eating for a healthy heart. A study published 

in the American journal of Clinical Nutrition found that 

participants in the BOLD (Beef in an Optimal Lean Diet) 

study experienced a I 0% decrease in LDL cholesterol from 

baseline when they ate lean beef daily as part of a heart­

healthy d iet and lifestyle containing less than 7% of calories 

from saturated fat. 1 *  

The BOLD clinical study substituted lean beef for white 

meat as part of an overall  heart-hea lthy diet and fou nd 

the improvements in LDL cholesterol seen on the beef­

containing d iets were just as effective as the gold standard 

heart-healthy d iet (DASH, Dietary Approaches to Stop 

Hypertension). 1  The BOLD diet contained 4.0 oz. of lean 

beef and the BOLD-PLUS diet contained 5.4 oz. (weights 

before cooking) of lean beef 

daily with both d iets providing 

less than 7% of calories from 

saturated fat. After five weeks, 

there were significant reductions 

in total and LDL cholesterol. 1  

Many of the BOLD and 

BOLD-PLUS diet menu plan s 

incorporated recipes from The 

Healthy Beef Cookbook. 

The study used rigorously designed research-a 

Randomized Controlled Clinical Intervention Trial-to 

investigate the effects of cholesterol-lowering d iets with 

varying amounts of lean beef. In this study, 36 participants 

(adults ages 30-65 with moderately elevated cholesterol) 

were randomly assigned to a treatment order and in a 

cross-over design, consumed a total of four d iets (BOLD, 

BOLD-PLUS, DASH and Healthy American Diet (HAD) as 

control) for five weeks each. 

The BOLD study is  the latest addition to a body of evidence 

that sup ports including lean beef in a heart-healthy d iet.To 

learn more about this study, please visit BeefNutrition.org. 

Nutritional Breakdown of Study Diets 

HAD DASH BOLD BOLD-

PLU S 

Calories 2,097 2, 1 06 2, 1 00 2, 1 04 
kcal kcal kcal kcal 

Protein 1 7% 1 8% 1 9% 27% (% of total caories) 

Carbohydrate 50% 55% 54% 45% 
('lo of total caories) 

Fat 33% 27% 28% 28% 
('lo of total caoriei) 

Saturated Fat 1 2% 6% 6% 6% 
('lo of total calories) 

M ono unsaturated 1 1 % 9% 1 1 % 1 2% 
Fat ('lo of total calories) 

Polyunsaturated 7% 8% 7% 7% 
Fat ('lo of total calories) 

Lean Beef 0.7 1 .0 4.0 5.4 
(ozlday**) 

** Weight before cooking 

• Healthy American D iet (HAD): 

Control diet, included more refined grains, full-fat dairy 

products, oil and butter to reflect current American 

dietary habits. 

• Dietary Approaches to Stop Hypertension 

(DAS H): 

Considered the "gold standard" heart-healthy diet, this eating 

plan featured vegetables, fruits and low-fat dairy and limited 

red meat and sweets. 

• Beef in an Optimal Lean Diet ( BO LD ): 

Similar to the DASH diet (rich in vegetables, fruits, whole 

grains, nuts and beans) and protein amount, but used 

lean beef (4 oz.lday) as the primary protein source, whereas 

the DASH diet used primarily white meat and plant 

protein sources. 

• Beef in an Optimal Lean Diet Plus (BOLD-PLUS): 

Similar to the BOLD diet, but with higher protein and lean 

beef intake (5.4 oz.lday) . 

Subjects that consumed the BOLD diet. experienced o I 0.1 % decrease in LDL cholesterol compared to baseline. In comparison to the Healdiy American Diet, subjectt experienced a 4. 7°-' decrease in LDL cholesterol on the BOLD diet 

I 



Eating Lean Beef Daily Can Help Lower Cholesterol 
As Part of a Heart-Healthy Diet and Lifestyle 

Lean beef is a perfect fit in  a low saturated fat d iet. By Lean beef is the perfect pairing-easi ly served with 

choosing lean beef, you can meet the 20 I 0 Dietary vegetables, grains and dairy-and improves taste and 

Guidelines for Americans recommendations.2 When included satisfaction and maximizes nutrients to keep your body 

as part of a healthy d iet, lean choices-such as Top Sirloin, healthy. Here is a one-day sample menu from the BOLD d iet. 

Tenderloin,T-Bone steak and 93% lean or leaner Ground 

Beef-can reduce risk of heart d isease. In fact, 1 8  of the top 

25 most popular fresh meat cuts sold at retai l  are lean.3 

A 3 oz. serving of lean beef contributes less than I 0 percent 

of ca lories to a 2,000-calorie d iet and it supplies more than 

I 0 percent of the Daily Value (DV) for I 0 essential nutrients. 

On average, a 3 oz. serving of lean beef (about the s ize 

of a deck of cards) contains about 1 50 ca lories and is an 

excellent source of six nutrients (protein, zinc, vitam in B 1 2, 

vitamin B6, niacin and selenium) and a good source of four 

nutrients (phosphorous, choline, iron and riboflavin). 

A Taste of BOLD 
You can fol low the same heart-healthy d iet as the 

participants of the BOLD study by using the recipes from 

The Healthy Beef Cookbook, a collection of delicious, nutrient­

rich recipes featuring America's favorite protein-beef.4 

Sirl oin with Sugar Snap Pea & 
Pasta Salad with Gremolata Dressing 

.,.btal Rec >e 'ime 60 m•n 

Makes 4 servings 

boneless beef Top Sirloin, cut :Y. inch thick (about I lb) 
2 cups fresh sugar snap peas 
2 cups cooked gemelli or corkscrew pasta 
I cup grape or teardrop tomatoes, cut in halves 
3 cloves garlic, minced 

teaspoon black pepper 
Chopped fresh parsley (optional) 

Gremolata Dressing: 
'!. cup fresh lemon j uice 
2 tablespoons olive oil 
2 tablespoons chopped fresh parsley 
2 cloves garlic, minced 
2 teaspoons freshly grated lemon peel 
'I· teaspoon salt 
'I• teaspoon black pepper 

BOLD: 4.0 oz. lean beef per day 

For o BOLD-l'LUS merH4 mc-e lean beef to S.4 or. per day 

Breakfast • Egg ( I )  with red pepper and onion ( I  Tbsp. each) 

• Low-fat cheddar ('/, cup) 

•Whole wheat bagel (I small) 

• Margarine (2 tsp.) 

lunch • Sirloin with Sugar Snap Pea & Pasta Salad with 

Gremolata Dressing (see recipe below) 
• Apple ( I  medium) 

Dinner • Beef, Mango and Barley Salad (I '/, cup salad with 3 oz. 

cooked beef) 

• Dinner roll ( I  small) 

• Margarine (2 tsp.) 

Snacks • Nonfat yogurt ( 6 oz.) 

• Low-fat granola ('/. cup) 

• Almonds ( I  '12 Tbsp.) 

Nutrition lnfonnation: 1 8-02 dories; 89 g protein; 248 g «lrl>ohydrate; SS g fat ( 14 g saturated); 

326 mg cholesterol; 1677 mg sodium; 3 1  g zinc 

I .  Bring water to boil in  large 
saucepan. Add peas; cook 
2 to 3 minutes until crisp­
tender. Drain; rinse under 
cold water. Combine peas, 
pasta and tomatoes in large 
bowl .  Set aside. 

2. Whisk dressing ingredients in 
small bowl until well blended. 
Toss 2 tablespoons dressing 
with pasta mixture. Set aside. 

3. Combine 3 cloves minced 
garlic and I teaspoon pepper; press evenly onto beef steak. 
Place steak on rack in broiler pan so surface of beef is 2 to 
3 inches from heat. Broil 9 to 1 2  m inutes for medium rare 
( 1 45°F) to medium ( I  60°F) doneness, turning once. 

4. Carve steak into thin slices; season with salt, as desired. 
Add steak slices and remaining dressing to pasta mixture; 
toss to coat evenly. Garnish with lemon peel and parsley, 
if desired. 

Nutrition information per serving: 369 calorie� 1 2g fat (3g saturated fat: 7g mono<.nSaturated fat� 
Smg cllolesterol; 2 1 6mg sodium; 3 l g  cari>ohydratc; 4.2g fiber; 32g protein; lmg riacin; 0.7mg ,,;tamin B; 
I .4mcg ,,;umin 61� Hmg iron; 46.Smcg sdenium; S.3mg zinc. 

Recipe and photo os seen in The Heahhy Bee( Cookbook. pubished by John Wiley & Sons. 

Rousse# NA, HU/AM GauglerT�West SG, Vandon Hewe/}P,Alaupovic P, Gimes PJ, Kr�.Ethertrm PM. B .. (in an Optimal lean D"1:swdy effects on lipids, lipoproteins, and apoNpoproteins. Am J Qin Mnr 2011; 95(1). l""'met [http:// 
www.ajcn.orglco""'ntleorlyf201 1112113/ajcn. 1 1 1.016261] (a<cessed 14 December 201 1). 

2 United States Dept of Heath and Human Services. Unitod Stares Dept o(Agriwiu,.. Oit!tDry Guidelines (orAmericons, 20/0jorNJory 31. 201 1 .  

3 Freshlook Marlo!ting Graup, the leoding US. soun:• a{ grocery sconner data for meat and produce pun:hosini 52 weeks ending 07121112 

4 IPSOS Public Affairs. I O.SU� °"'rage, 2009-20 I 0. 

2012, CATILEMEN'S BEEF BOARD AND NATDNALCATILEMEN'S BEEFASSCXIATDN 
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@ IRON 
helps your body 
use oxygen. 

All lean beef 

cuts have less 

than 1 O grams of 

@ CHOLINE �� supports nervous 
system development. 

total fat, 4.5 grams 

or less of saturated fat 
PROTEIN 
helps preserve and 
build muscle. and less than 95 mil l igrams of 

cholesterol per 3 %-oz. cooked 

serving. Surprise! Some cuts 
of beef are as lean as a 
3-oz. skinless chicken 
thigh.  

@• SELENIUM 
llll' helps protect cells 

from damage. 

8% DV 

Selenium 
Zinc 
Niacin 

Phosphorus 
Choline 

26% DV 22% DV 
1 9% DV 

1 6% Al* � 12% DV 
l;h@ilfil 10% DV 

48% DV 
44% DV 

40% DV 
36% DV 

The "daily value" percentage (aka DV) helps you determine how much of a 

pa.ar nutrient a food contributes to average daily needs. Each nutrient is based 

on Yo of the daily requirements for that nutrient (for a 2,000 calorie diet). 

{Al stands for Adequate Intake. lhe highest Al for Choline is 550mg.) 

VITAMINS 
Bs and 812 
help maintain brain 
function. 

ZINC 

8-vitamins 

in beef help give you 

the energy to tackle 

busy days. 

helps maintain  a healthy 
immune system .  

PHOSPHORUS 
helps bui ld bones 
and teeth . 

NIACIN ta\ supports energy '91 production and 
metabol ism . 

RIBOFLAVIN 
helps convert food 
into fue l .  

• Don't be  left unsatisfied. A 3-oz serving of 
lean beef provides 25 g (about haln of the 
Daily Value for protein, which is one of the 
most satisfying nutrients. 

• Get your workout in! Exercise is more 
effective when paired with a higher­
protein diet. 

• Interested in heart health? Research 
shows that including lean beef, even daily 
as part of a heart-healthy diet and l ifestyle, 

improved cholesterol levels. 

BE" 

Funded by the Beef Checkoff. 

For recipes and more visit 
BeefltsWhatsForDinner.com 



H B  1238 Beef Check off Enhancement Bi l l  

Chairman M i l ler and members of the Senate Ag Committee. M y  name i s  Steve Brooks a n d  I a m  a 

beef catt le producer from Bowman N D. 

I a m  here to testify i n  support of H ouse B i l l  1238. I have been i nvolved i n  the cattle busi ness for 

over 40 years. I served six years on the ND Beef Commission from 1991 to 1997, at t hat t ime I 

represented N D  at the Meat Export Federation for three years. I a l so served eight years o n  the Certified 

Angus Beef board, which is the l a rgest branded beef program in the world .  I a l so served eight years o n  

t h e  America n  Angus Board . I a m  cu rrently serving as President o f  the N D  Stockmen's Assn. 

This background gave me a fi rsthand look at the beef check off being used to promote beef and 

the research to develop new cuts, heat and serve mea ls, new packagi ng and recipes, cooki ng t ips a nd 

techniques, a n d  n utrition i nformation.  Much of this research was leveraged with m ore d o l l a rs from 

exporters, packers, reta i l  food stores, and restaurant a nd food service, to br ing beef to the center of the 

plate for Americans and people around the world .  

One of the l atest studies by Cornel l  U niversity o n  the beef check off from 2006 to 2013 showed 

there is an i m pressive return on i nvestment. H o l d i ng all other demand d rivers consta nt, then, the 

activities funded by the beef check off resulted in a n  i n crease in beef demand of 2.1 bi l l i o n  pounds per 

year. H a d  the beef check off m oney not i nvested in foreign market development between 2006 and 

2013, foreign demand for  U . S. beef wou l d  have been 6.4% l ower. 

Our  $1 d o l l a r  per head check off that was put in place in 1985 is running out of steam. Because 

of i nflatio n  i t  is  buyi ng l ess than 50% of the val u e  that it  did i n  1985.0ur ranch sold fat steers for 58 

cents per pound i n  1985, today they are bringing a round 1.60 cents per pound. If we i ncrease the beef 

check off one dol lar  per head now it wi l l  sti l l  be a smal ler percentage of the check than it was in 1985. 

House B i l l  1238 woul d  give North Da kota beef produce rs the added resources to conti nue this 

i m portant program to market our beef. For those that d on't agree, HB 1238 has the bui lt  in refundable 

portion of the b i l l .  

I a s k  for your vote t o  support H B  1238 to i nvest i n  the prom otion, research, and continued beef 

ed ucati o n  of o u r  product. 

Tha n k  you, a n d  I woul d  be happy to a n swer any questions.  
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Steve Koester 
Koester Red Angus 

701 -475-2736 
I am truly excited about t h e  opportunity t o  share m y  enthusiasm toward boosting 
our Beef Checkoff program. As a seedstock operation in south central N orth Dakota, 
the magnitude of this  potential increase in funding is paramount to the success of 
my customers. 

The benefi ts that our industry has seen from the existing Checkoff have been great, 
but as you know our dollar does not have the buying power it has i n  years past. The 
beef i ndustry needs to be front and center in the protein market and our Checkoff 
dollars help tremendously in this department that is essential for the success of our 
cow-calf  operations in N orth Dakota. 

This proposal uses dol lars from within our own ind ustry put back i nto our own 
ind ustry, which p ast h istory d ictates the huge success story it  has been. These 
dollars are used for research, education, promotion, market development and 
cou ntless other great endeavors. 

The North Dakota and U.S. beef industries are the envy of the world for being the 
h ighest quality, safest, most nutritious and most wholesome protei n  source 
available and we need to continue this legacy. 

Thank you very much for your consideration. 

Steve Koester 
Steele, N D  

#-/&' 
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Legislative Agriculture Committee Members: 

I am offering this written testimony to accompany my verbal testimony. I am a 
fourth generation rancher that operates a cow/calf and feedlot operation and previously 
owned Maverick Meat Co. a USDA federally inspected processing faci lity in Stutsman 
County. I am here today to testify in favor of increasing the state beef check-off by 
$ 1 .00/head. 

What does the Beef Check-off mean to me and how does it affect by family's 
ranching business? Through my professional lifetime the Beef Check-off has affected me 
in many ways. The Beef Check-off is about research, education and promotion of beef 
and I've witnessed this firsthand in many ways. 

1 .  During my first two years of col lege I attended Iowa State University 
and had the privilege of working in the beef research meat lab. While 
working in the meat lab I participated in helping professors and graduate 
students conduct research that was funded by Beef Check-off dollars. 
This research focused on beef product development and consumer 
education. This enabled me to see how Beef-Checkoff dol lars were used 
to develop value-added beef cuts and further educate processors, retai lers, 
and consumers. 

2. After graduating from NDSU with a degree in Animal and Range 
Science I furthered my education at the University of Nebraska in feedlot 
management. While at Nebraska a portion of the curriculum was focused 
on the proper management to add value to the beef carcass. Much of the 
materials that we studied was research conducted by universities that 
focused on increasing value of the beef carcass. This research and 
educational materials were partially funded by Beef Check-off dol lars. 

3 .  In my current cow/calf and feedlot operation many of the resources I 
utilize to improve my management practices and business decisions are 
based on research and educational information that is funded and provided 
with Beef Check-off funds. 

4. I also owned and operated Maverick Meat Co. located in Jamestown, 
ND. I extensively uti lized Beef Check-off funded educational materials to 
train and further educate my meat cutters in advanced ways to further 
process traditional beef cuts into higher valued cuts that met changing 
consumer preferences. On our retail counter the ND Beef Commission 
provided me with an array of new recipes and educational pan1phlets that 
focused on outreach directly to the consumer. These promotional items 

I 
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aided in improving my beef sales. In fact many times customers would 
just stop by the store to see if we would have new recipes and ideas for 
them to util ize beef in there meals. 

I can wholeheartly say Beef Check-off funded research, educational and 
promotional materials have al lowed my fourth generation ranching operation to be more 
successful and sustainable for future generations. 

The agriculture and beef industry has vastly changed since the inception of the 
Beef Check-off in 1 986. We are now experiencing a diversified global market place. In 
many places throughout the global geographies household incomes are rising and looking 
for beef to become a major contributor to their diet. The enhanced development of 
exports and promotional and educational information international ly is paramount for the 
North Dakota and US beef industries. 

Why the need for a $ 1 .00/head increase in Beef Check-off funds? As originally 
stated the current $ 1 .00/head Beef Check-off was conceived in 1 986, since then the beef 
industry has seen decreased numbers and reduced buying power of the original 
$ 1 .00/head. Due to the increased export demands and further need of research, product 
development, education and promotional outreach; the additional $ 1 .00/head would 
significantly advance the North Dakota and United States beef industries footprint both 
domestically and international ly. 

I respectfully submit this testimony for your consideration, 

t;�l/0 
Brian V.  Amundson 
Bar V Ranch 
brian.amundson@barvranch.net 
70 1 -269-0532 



#:J.O 
HB !;)Jg 

January 26, 2015 

House and Senate Agricu lture Comm ittee Members :  

I a m  offering this written testimony because I a m  unab le  to be present at the 

hear ing of th is  b i l l .  I a m  a th i rd generation reti red beef producer from Stutsman 

County, North Da kota and am very much i n  support of a d d i ng an additiona l $1 .00 
to our  exist ing state beef check-off. The fourth generation of my fa m i ly is  

currently conti n u i ng the ranch i ng and agricultura l  operat ion.  This add it iona l  

$1 .00 wi l l  a l low for the cont inued a dva ncement in  resea rch a n d  promotion a l  

activities that wi l l  mainta in  a nd increase t h e  demand for beef. 

3/'/'s 

I have been very invo lved with the beef check-off both on the state level a nd 

the nation a l  leve l .  I h ave supported the state beef check-off a n d  have worked to 

pass the current $1.00 nationa l  check-off voted i n  by producers.  I served on the 

North Da kota Beef Com mission for six yea rs; two yea rs as its cha irma n .  I a lso 

served on the commission for fifteen yea rs as a n  ex-officio member when I was 

representing North Dakota a nd a l l  of the U n ited States beef producers on the 

n ationa l  level .  I represented North Da kota on the N at iona l  Livestock and Meat 

Board a nd on the merged successor organ ization; the N ationa l  Catt leman Beef 

Association(NCBA)-Check-off Division . I was a member a n d  cha irman of the Beef 

Safety Joint Committee of NCBA and the Cattleman's Beef Board, Vice Cha i rm a n  

a n d  Cha irman of t h e  Check-off Division of N CBA, Budget Committee Chairman 
and the Treasurer of NCBA for fou r  yea rs. 

I h ave deta i led my i nvolvement in the beef check-off beca use over th is tenu re I 

have seen what the beef check-off has accompl ished.  Th is inc ludes i ncreas ing the 

demand for beef through resea rch, promotion, a dvertisi ng and consumer 

education.  This  was a l l  funded and d i rected by producers l i ke myself from a l l  over 

the U n ited States. 

We need at this  t ime to a ugment these oeef check-off fu nds and joi n other 

major beef producing states who have a l ready passed add itiona l  state check-offs 

to enha nce the producer d i rected beef check-off progra ms. The existing $1 .00 
buys l ess than 50% of what it cou ld buy when the nation a l  check-off was passed. 

The beef industry has experienced reduced catt le n u m bers resu lt ing in less check-

I 



off dol lars col lected . The reduced buying power of the orig ina l  $1 .00 and the 

decl ine  in  cattle n u m bers have greatly reduced the ab i l ity of the check-off to 

effective ly fu nd research, education and promotion.  

When th is  legislation is  passed this additional check-off i ncome wi l l  be used by 

the North Dakota Beef Commission to fu rther enha nce research, education a nd 

promotion to increase demand for a l l  North Da kota beef producers. 

I respectfu l ly submit this testimony for your consideration .  

S incere ly, 

Van E. Amundson 

Ba rV Ranch 

Ja mestown, N orth Da kota 
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Good morning Chairman Miller, and membe s of the Se ate Agricu lt ure 

Committee. For the record my name is Larry ine . I am e Board C airman of t he 

Independent Beef Association of orth Da ota; IB D. 

I stand t pposed to House Bill 1238 as it is • ri e . 0 r c e a check off 

system has become a network of buerocracies each taking from 25 o 5 · o e dollars 

they receive t o fuel t hemselves for administ ration. The one exception · he a io al 

network is the Cat t lemens Beef Board (CBB) whose administ ration fees a e cap e a 

5%. They have opererated on that amount since they started and this year he ha e 

budgeted 4% for cost of operation. They are producers working for producers. 

HB 1238 is a state check off which will be run by the North Dakota Beef 

Commission. The commission is run by a group of GRASS ROOTS producers. People who 

will get t he job done. Producers working for producers. On that note I ask for adoption 

of t he following amendment added to subsection 1 as line C. Administration of t he 

assessment provided for in subsection 1 shall not exceed 5% of the gross revenue. 

When the increase was discussed at the 2013 Stockmans convention it was 

stated t hat the increase would be used for research & promotion of North Dakota beef. 

The current national check off can only promote beef generically non specific to nation 

and certainly not specific as to state of origin. For that reason I ask for adoption of the 

following amendment added to subsection 1 as line D. all net revenues provided for in 

subsection 1 shall be invested in programs within the state of North Dakota. 

This bill provides for a refund. The refund provision as it is written is 

cumbersome and antiquated. To streamline the refund provision I ask for adoption of 

the following amendment. Section 2 a. To receive a permitted refund of any 

assessment paid in accordance with this chapter, a producer shall submit to t he 

commission a written request for a refund. Refund applications shall be made available 

by the commission at all collection points and agents throughout the state and with 

t hose interstate collection agents with which the commision has collection agreements. 

The refund provision is not a producer vote. The most dissappointing aspect of 

HB 1238 is the exclusion of producer participation through the vot ing process. For that 

reason I ask for adoption of the voting amendment that I have provided.These 

ammendments will add integrity and accountability to HB 1238 and hopefully 
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contribute to producer confidence. With out the amendments I urge a do not pass on 

H B  1238 . 

2 
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Amendment to HB-1238 
$ t.UJ.sse:. T/P# I 

/J �/) .J. IA//.:f � hA/LJ () • 

C. Ad m i n istration of the assessment p rovided for i n  su bsection 1 sha l l  n ot 

exceed 5% of gross revenue.  

D ?  Al l  n et reven ues p rovided for i n  su bsection 1 shal l  be invested i n  p rograms 

wit h i n  the state of North D akota . 

1 
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Amend ment to H B-1238 
6 ,:; C- /) "Al � 

J. I A/6 �/1 

2A. Refu n d  App l ications sha l l  be made ava i lab le  by the com m issio n  at a l l  

col lection poi nts, a n d  agents t h roughout t h e  state a n d  with those i nterstate col lection 

poi nts with which  the comm issio n  has col lection agreements . 

1 

#J./c 
3/C/15 



• 

• 

Amendment to H B- 1238 

Through the p roper state age n cy the North Dakota Beef Commission, shal l  after 

givin g  official  n otice through p u bl ic  press a n d  statewide n ewspa pers, offer a vote of 

q u al ified checkoff participants eighteen years of age or older. Passage wou ld requ i re a 

sim ple m ajority. 

After two weeks n otice of election, partici p a nts sha l l  have no l ess than ten 

b usi n ess days to prove p a rticip ation in  the check off with in  a year p rior to the d ate of 

the e lection .  Once q ua l ificatio n  is established, voters may obtain a bal lot from pol l i ng 

locations d eemed m ost convenient by the com mission in the countiy of their residence. 

A vote of p a rticipating producers sha l l  be h el d  every fifth year thereafter to 

conti n u e  o r  reject a dd it ional  dol lars to the state beef checkoff . 

1 
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My name is Frank Tomac, cattle rancher in Sioux County. 

I don't know how anyone can support this tax without a clear agenda of how the money 
will be spent. This is a tax, not an assessment. I don't have a problem paying taxes, but 
if those taxes have no benefits, rewards or returns, then it' s  taxation without 
representation. 

Since the start of the beef checkoff in the mid 80' s, beef has lost market share and lost 
consumption by Americans. In the mid 80's, Americans consumed almost 80 lbs of beef 
per year. In 20 1 4, Americans consumed just over 50 lbs of beef per year. A loss of 
almost 30 lbs in 30 years. With the current trend of beef consumption, Americans will 
not consume any beef in less than one generation. 

Recently the USDA came out with their dietary guidelines. And they again are 
suggesting reducing the consumption of beef in our diet. Our checkoff dol lars in the past 
have supposedly done research on the benefits of beef. Is this research falling on deaf 
ears or is our checkoff team not getting the word to the right people? The checkoff has 
had almost 30 years of money to research, educate and promote our product, and I don't  
see any progress or benefits of what those checkoff dol lars have done. 

We're losing market share, consumption and portion sizes. 
It 's time we quit sending our money to the National Cattleman's  Beef Assoc (NCBA) and 
start promoting North Dakota Cattle and Beef! 

The last fiscal audit states the ND Beef Commission ' invested' just over $ 1 24 K in the 
Federation of State Beef Council .  The Federation of State Beef Councils was a merger in 
1 996 between the National Cattleman's  Assoc and the Beef lndustry Council .  That 
merger was done by the board members of each organization. Why are we sending my 
money to this national organization, that in my opinion has done nothing but created 
committees and asked for more money? When' s the last time you seen a beef ad on TV? 
I have a friend in Baltimore, that has never seen a beef ad and he's  been there over 20 
years. 

Actual ly I have seen a beef ad recently. In a farm magazine, 2 beef checkoff ads in the 
same magazine. And guess what the editorial was about? Yep, about how well the 
checkoff is doing and why would anyone not support it. That editor knows who's  paying 
for that magazine. 

I am not in favor of HB 1 238 .  I 'm not happy about the direction our industry is going 
and I ' m  not happy about the so called leadership we have with the NCBA. 

I ' ll leave you with this, the statement of belief from the NCBA: "one vision - one plan ­
one voice" Really? That's pretty arrogant since this state only has 3% of it' s  cattle 
producers as NCBA members. 
Thank you 



This letter concerns House bill 1238 - the b eef check-off increase bill. 

Increases in the check-off should be supported by producers, not forced upon them 
administratively by the state government I-BAND (Independent Beef Association of 
North Dakota) has made it very clear that N orth Dakota ranchers do not support 
this bill. 

This bill was introduced by the ND Stockmen's Association; however, the check-off 
money that is received (approximately one million dollars per year) is divided by 
law. Half goes to the Cattlemen's Beef Board and the National Cattlemen's Beef 
Association (NCBA) . 

The NCBA has joined with Canada and Mexico in an attempt to 'gut' Country of 
Origen Labeling (COOL). Undoubtedly they need more money; or, the alternate 
action would be to clean up their act. 

The only purpose of this bill is to raise revenue so the ND Stockmen's Association, 
the Beef Board, and the NCBA can keep spending. 

The other side, which should be considered, are the ND cattlemen. They live in ND, 
they buy their groceries and things they need to operate their ranches in ND. They 
support the communities where they live, they support the school system where 
they live, they pay taxes in N D  and they work hard to provide beef that helps to 
support America. 

You have a choice. Do you want to reward an organization that refuses to clean up 
their act; or, do you want to help the ranchers who continue to help make North 
Dakota a great state. 

One other matter: I was told that the bill provides a refund provision. This suggest 
that the states' interest is not compelling or substantial and that North Dakota 
ranchers should not be compelled to ask the Stockman's Association to refund their 
money. 

If you do pass this bill, have a provision that lets the rancher decide - at the time of 
the sale- if he/she wants to pay this increased check-off fee. A simple form would 
take care of the matter; and. thus eliminate unnecessary b ook work for the ND 
Stockmen's Association. 
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H B  1238 

Chairman Mi l ler. Members of the Senate Ag Committee. 

My name is Al len Lund. I am a cattle producer from Selfridge. I stand opposed to HB 1238. As a state 
cattle producer, I 'm proud to be part of an  industry that takes a back seat to no one when it comes to 
ra ising the best and health iest cattle in the world. We as producers accompl ished this on our own and 
we can a lso manage our own state beef checkoff. 

A l ittle over a yea r ago, it was brought to my attention that the North Dakota Stockmen's Association 
was going to propose a beef checkoff increase to the upcoming State Legislature. At the time it didn't 
concern me very much. I felt this was a decision that should be decided on by the producers who pay 

into it and that it probably wouldn't even make it to the State Legislature .  I was wrong and now I'm mad 
as heck. 

HB 1238 sai led through the House and passed by a strong majority. Now it is in  your hands and I 
strongly urge that this committee give it a strong DO NOT PASS. 

I have severa l reasons for opposing this bi ll' .  
The question sti l l  remains unanswered a s  to how and where this additional money wi l l  be spent. I f  this 
bi l l  is passed and a year from now producers are against how the money is being spent, what kind of a 
recourse wi l l  they have? 

A performance aud it should be conducted on the State Beef Commission before any additional money is 
pumped in. This aud it would more than l ikely give producers more trust and confidence in  how the 
commission is spending their checkoff dol lars. 

Fina l ly; what concerns me the most is the lack of regard given to the states cattle producers in  denying 
them the right to vote on this issue. Especia l ly since we wi l l  be the ones writing the checks to fund it. 

I would ask this committee to bear in  mind.  Even if this bil l is kil led in  the State Senate doesn't mean it is 
nu l l  and void. If the increase is brought to a vote, the producers just m ight support an increase. 

Again I would ask for a do not pass vote. 

Al len Lund 
Selfridge, ND 58568 phone 701-471-3747 
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Fa0riil0ers Union 

March 6, 201 5 
HB 1 238 
Senate Agricu lture Committee 

Chairman Mi l ler and members of the Committee, 

My n ame is Dane Braun and I 'm here to represent the members of North Dakota Farmers 
Union .  We oppose HB 1 238.  

North Dakota Farmers Union members recognize that commodity promotion programs can 
be valuable tools for consumer education and market development. However,  we 
recommend that research and promotion programs f inanced through producer checkoffs 
be closely evaluated to assure that they stay member-control led.  

We bel ieve that such programs should include the fol lowing criter ia :  

• Receive the approval by a majority of producers voting ind ividual ly in  a referendum 
by mai l ,  with at least 30% el ig ible voters participating . The referendum should be 
held prior to the imposition of the checkoff. There should be a reauthorization vote 
every five years. 

• A procedure should be provided to enable producers to obtain a refund of checkoff 
funds without delay or h indrance on an annual basis. Refund appl ication b lanks 
should be provided by the purchasers of the commodity. An electronic process to 
request refunds would be preferred . 

Whi le we applaud the sponsor of the bi l l  for including the refund l anguage, we bel ieve the 
referendum l anguage should be addressed . We would not be alone in  this endeavor ;  
states l i ke Ohio,  Texas, and even our neighbors to the east, Minnesota, have conducted 
referendums. 

I can take any q uestions that you may have. 
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Written testimony supporting the Beef Checkoff from 
Eric P. Berg, Professor, Meat-Animal Sciences 

N ORTH DAKOTA STATE UNIVERSITY 

H ultz Hall Room 1 OOe 

Dept 763 0, PO Box 6050 

Fargo, N D  5 8 1 08-6050 

phone : 70 1 .23 1 .627 1 

eric. p.berg@ndsu.edu 

My testimony is presented as a scientist who has gratefully received research support from Beef Checkoff 

funds. My most current research evaluates the inclusion of beef in a complete, low glycemic diet. In other 

words, I am doing research on how red meat can halt (not cause) obesity related metabolic disorders such as 

Type I I  diabetes. 

This type of research could not be more critical. The Scientific Report of the 20 1 5  Dietary Guidelines Advisory 

Committee was released on Thursday February 1 9, 20 1 5 . The report is 572 pages long; however, in the 

summary it is recommended that Americans limit their intake of red meat. It reads: 

"A healthy dietary pattern is higher in vegetables, fruits, whole gra ins, low- o r  non-fat dairy, 

seafood, legumes, and nuts; mode rate in a lcohol (among adu lts); lower in red and processed 

m eat;1 and low in suga r sweetened foods a n d  drinks a nd refi ned gra ins . "  

The footnote reads: The underline is my emphasis 
"1As lean meats were not consistently defined or hand led simi larly between studies, they were 

n ot identified as a common cha racteristic across the reviews. H owever, as demonstrated in the 

food pattern modeling of the Healthy U.S.-style and Healthy Mediterra n ean-style patterns, lean 

m eats can be a pa rt of a hea lthy d ietary pattern."  

Head to head comparisons of dietary strategies (cohort studies) very seldom include diets with moderate to high 

amounts of red meat. When these diets are included in the research, they outperform the plant-based diets. The 

reason that large federal funding agencies wi ll not fund studies where the subjects consume large amounts of 

red meat is because recommendations such as those presented by the most recent Dietary Guidelines. The only 

consistent source of funding for researchers like me is from Checkoff funds. 

Here is  an example. As a meat scientist I am frequently asked "Are the hormones given to feedlot cattle 

causing girls to reach puberty sooner?" I have completed research on that very question using young female 

pigs as a surrogate for human girls. According to the National Institute of Health and the Food and Agricultre 

Organization (of the United Nations) pigs are best non-human model for studying the effect of food on 

physiology. All  the pigs in the study were born on the same day, had the same sire, and were raised from 

weaning to reaching puberty in the same place. This is impossible to accomplish with humans. If you are 

interested you can read more on the reverse of this paper, but the bottom line is  that there was no difference in 

body composition or the number of days that it took to reach puberty between female pigs that ate a quarter­

pound hamburger patty every day from "growth promoting implanted" beef, "natural" beef, or tofu. In fact, the 

estrogenic content of the tofu burger was nearly 500 times greater than the beef patties. This study was recently 

published in the prestigious Journal of Nutrition. I applied for funding from several funding agencies. All 

were denied. This p roject was fu nded by the ND Beef Com mission and has received much attention. 

, 
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J Nutr. 2014 Nov;144(11):1718-24. doi: 1 0.3945/jn.1 14.198127. Epub 2014 Sep 24. 

Consumption of ground beef obtained from cattle that had received steroidal growth promotants does not trigge. 
early onset of estrus in prepubertal pigs. 

Magotski JD1, Shapooll Nl/l/2, Vonnahme KA', Anderson GM', Newman DJ', Berg EP3. 
EB Author information 
Abstract 
BACKGROUND: The earlier onset of puberty seen in young American girls has led researchers to question if a causal relation exists between dietary 
sources of estrogenic compounds and precocious puberty. 

OBJECTIVE: Using the prepubertaf gilt (young female pig) as an animal model, our hypothesis is that feeding beef obtained from cattle receiving 
growth-promoting steroidal Implants pos�.veaning does not alter the onset of puberty or the peripubertaf body composition of gilts compared with 

contemporaries fed nonimpfan!ed "natural" beef or a common meat alternative, tofu. 

METHOD: The base diet was fonnulated using canola meal replacing soybean meal to reduce diet estrogenicity. Feed intake was monitored and 
controlled to ensure similar intake. Gilts were assigned to treatments based on dam and initial body weight {mean: 24.5 ± 3.20 kg) at 61 d of age. The 

negative control base diet was supplemented v;ith daily feedings of a cooked patty from nonimplanted steers (natural), from steers that had been 
treated with growth promotants [100 mg trenbolone acetate and 14 mg estradiol (E2} benzoate; implanted], or cooked tofu patty. 

RESULTS: E2 equivalents (nanogram per kilogram. as fed as analyzed by E-Screen) of the tofu (a soy-based product) supplement were -570 times 
the natural and -170 times the implanted supplements. There were no observed differences across treatments in live weight gain (P = 0.90). 
longissimus muscle area developed at the 1 0th and 1 1 th  rib interface (P = 0.46), and subcutaneous fat deposition (P = 0.41) at the same location over 
lime or in the number of days to reach estrus (P = 0.55). 

CONCLUSIONS: Consumption of beef from growth implanted or natural steers or tofu at levels similar to those typicaHy consumed by humans did not 
impact growth or onset of estrus in these prepubertal gilts. 

• 
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North Dakota Beef Commission 
4023 STATE STREET · BISMARCK, N D  58503 · PHONE 701 -328-51 20 · TOLL FREE 1 -877-32 1 -BEEF 

Senate Agriculture Committee Heari ng 
March 6, 201 5 

H B  1 238 
Presented by Nancy Jo Bateman, Executive Director 

N orth Dakota Beef Commission 

Chairman Mi l ler, Vice Chairman Lu ick, and members of the Senate Agriculture Committee, my 
name is Nancy Jo Bateman and I have the privi lege of working for the beef producers of this 
state at the N D  Beef Commission as the ir  executive d i rector. I was h i red many years ago, 
shortly after this body, at the request of beef producers of the state, increased the state beef 
checkoff from $.25 per head to $ .50 per head.  With in two short years , beef producers again 
implemented the national beef checkoff in October of 1 986 at the $1 per head level we have 
today, a point in time that has been referred to on several occasions today. 

I g ive this information as background because this committee, with members past and present, 
has played a very important role in the accountabil ity and oversight of the beef checkoff. 
Legislation passed here in 1 993 started the commod ity g roup reporting session that you were 
involved in the first Friday of this session.  That means that some of you have heard many Beef 
Commission reports from me. There have been 1 1  biennial reports includ ing 22 years of our 
annual aud its, not biennia l ,  covering financial accountabil ity of every beef checkoff dol lar from 
every beef producer that has invested in beef promotion, research and education programs . 
We value this process and consider it yet one more important measure of accountabi l ity and 
oversight of our programs and our funding . 

I n  add ition to your  oversight ,  I would l ike to draw you r  attention to the "Levels of Oversight" 
document in your  materials .  This documents the many levels of oversight, accountabil ity and 
auditing that are in  place from the Beef Commission board through to annual  audits conducted 
by the state Aud itor's Office, and then audit reviews by the Legislative Audit & Fiscal  Review 
Committee. The oversight continues on to the Cattlemen's Beef Board that does state beef 
commission reviews. Beyond the state leve l ,  there is tremendous oversight, aud it ing, and 
accountabi l ity bui l t  into the beef checkoff program through the Cattlemen's Beef Board ,  national 
contractors and al l the way up to USDA. And many are not aware but organizations that 
contract with the Cattlemen's Beef Board to carry out programs that Jerry Effertz d iscussed , do 
so on a cost recovery basis meaning a l l  costs are covered up front by the contracting 
organization and only reimbursed later when verified to be in l ine with their contact. Processes 
and procedures for oversight of national checkoff contracting organizations and the Cattlemen's 
Beef Board are robust, in place and working wel l  today. 

Some today have questioned the way the beef producers that make up the Beef Commission 
have chosen to invest the funds they are responsible for. I wi l l  tel l  you from personal 
experience ,  every program area, every budget item, and every financial decision is reviewed by 
the producers on the Beef Commission with their neighbors, friends and fam i ly members in the 
beef business in mind.  They leave the organizational hat at the door that may have brought 
them to the Beef Commission because their job is much bigger than any particular g roup or self­
interest. Whi le they ind ividual ly a re involved in well over 30 agricultura l  related organizations, 
they come to the table representing a l l  beef producers , regardless of the color of the cattle they 
raise or the d ifferent views they may have because reaching consumers with our beef message 
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i s  the objective that unites them . They want the greatest results from the program and the 
greatest return to the producers .  

Along this l i ne ,  I would l ike to review a couple graphics that may he lp  in  putting the facts about 
the fi nances of the Beef Commission in  proper perspective . 

The bar chart you have in front of you represents the last 21 years of aud ited financials for the 
Beef Commission, beg inning with the 1 993 fiscal year. There is no special reason for 21 years 
except that we wanted to g ive you a substantial period of time in our h istory. 

• The top l ine is the total revenue of the Commission including a l l  income sources­
checkoff, interest, beef gift certificate sales and other income. 

• The second l ine below it is the $1 per head checkoff revenue col lected each year by the 
Beef Commission. 

• The next l ine represents the half of the checkoff dol lar sent to the Cattlemen's Beef 
Board by federal statute, along with dollars sent to other state beef councils for out-of­
state cattle sold in ND.  

• Moving down, the next l ine shows ND dol lars invested in additional national beef 
promotion, research and education programs. From 1 973-1 996, this went to the Beef 
I ndustry Counci l .  Fol lowing an organizational merger of the Beef Industry Council and 
the National Cattlemen's Association, these dol lars are invested today in the Federation 
of State Beef Counci ls, and yes, it's the checkoff arm of the National Cattlemen's Beef 
Association and we make no apologies for that because the only reason they exist is 
because state beef councils l ike ours choose to pool dol lars together to reach 
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consumers across the country and get the greatest bang for our buck. I would l ike to • draw your  attention to the drop in this l ine in 2001 because it once again involves this 
committee. From our beginning in 1 973 to 2001 , state law mandated that no less than 
50%, or $.25 per head of our state checkoff dol lars should be used to support research 
and educational activities of the Beef Industry Council or its successor organization . 
This committee and the legislature, at the request of beef producers, removed the 50% 
provision in 2001 and left that decision in the hands of the beef producers on the Beef 
Commission. Since then, the Commission has invested $. 1 6  of each dol lar up unti l 201 4  
when budgeting required it be reduced to $. 1 2 . The hope is that as herd bui ld ing begins,  
th is number can be increased again because these investments in the Federation of 
State Beef Councils are what enable ND beef producers representing the Commission to 
have a seat at a very important table. Currently, three of our ND producer d i rectors are 
Federation board members and more importantly, they are members of important 
committees that help to review and direct the focus of demand bui ld ing beef programs 
across the country. ND Beef Commission director influence on programs fol lows ND 
producer dol lar investments. These national programs are the ones that reach 
consumers across the country that are eating beef that was raised here in ND. These 
programs also are the backbone of efforts by every state beef commission to present a 
un ified, consistent message as we take the national message to our states and promote 
the benefits of beef in a healthy d iet. 

• The black l ine shows the expense for state promotion , research and education 
programs. 

• The dotted l ine is our tota l administration and includes salaries for our two state 
employees, state reti rement and benefits plans, and commissioner per d iem . This is 
down from three employees with a retirement in 201 2 and a position that is sti l l  open. • Some have said this is too high but I think common sense tel ls us that smal l  percentage 
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increases in salaries in l ine with your leg islative d i rection provide for a very modest 
gradual increase over time .  

• The next checkered l ine is our operations budget and includes, rent, audit, office 
expenses, equipment, board insurance, travel and other expenses. 

• And the bottom l ine is our investment in international programs of the US Meat Export 
Federation. 

To go a step further in  d iscussing expenses, administration and operations specifical ly, the page 
with the pie charts represents these same program expenses for our last fiscal year. In  an effort 
of total transparency, these expenses are presented in two d ifferent formats because we have 
been criticized for having high administrative expenses, which my board takes great exception 
to. First of a l l ,  the Beef Commission absorbs the tota l costs of collecting and administering the 
fu l l  dol lar, even though federal law mandates that half of it be sent to the Cattlemen's Beef 
Board .  Therefore, any and al l  ca lcu lations need to be based on total revenue. The top chart 
shows total expenses for al l  admin and overhead expenses, along with direct program area 
costs as a percent of total revenue. In this situation, the administration costs represent 1 5% of 
revenue. The second chart, however, more accurately reflects the true costs of our programs. 
This information is taken from an annual "Ful l  Dollar Accountabi l ity" report developed every year  
for the Cattlemen's Beef Board . Knowing that programs don't happen without people to do 
them,  administrative and operations costs are appl ied to programs in an enterprise analysis 
effort simi lar to what every farmer and rancher does with their operations. You will see that 
there is a change in the percentages of funds used in these programs and the total 
administration and operations expenses combined that exist simply as a cost of being a state 
agency are reduced to 6%. The funds reflected in North Dakota programs also increases 
substantia l ly in this example from 1 2  % up to 24%. I have also provided an additional sheet that 
g ives you the last n ine years of administrative costs broken out based on this Ful l  Dollar 
Accountabil ity report. If you look at that sheet, even if you were to only use the state's half of 
the dol lar it would only reach 1 2% at the highest leve l .  The Beef Commission is comfortable 
with this level and has worked hard to keep these costs as low as possible while sti l l  conducting 
effective programs in the state. 

In closing, I would be remiss if I fa i led to share some of the facts about our state and national 
programs with you .  

*While we have not been able to afford a national television o r  radio advertising program for 
many years, the first fu l l  year of the checkoff's new dig ita l advertising campaign created 733 
mi l l ion ad impressions, more than 3.6 mi l l ion page views on our signature 
beefitswhatsfordinner.com web site, and more than 5 mi l l ion views of the checkoff's new easy 
cooking videos. That is success and we helped to make it happen! 

*Beef exports hit an al l-time high at $7. 1 3  bi l l ion in value for 201 4  with a record export va lue of 
$300.36 per head. That is success and we helped to make it happen ! 

*On a daily basis, checkoff dollars are at work through the industry information program helping 
to respond to misinformation and provide information about beef issues, ranging from antibiotics 
to hormones to environmental impacts of raising beef and the sustainabi l ity of the beef 
business. That is success and we helped to make it happen! 

*To date, over 84,000 4th g rade students across North Dakota have visited a Living Ag 
Classroom event where they learned about beef in their d iets and the important work that 
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ranchers do to produce food and take care of the land and l ivestock. That is success and we 
helped to make it happen ! 

*Great beef research conducted by Dr. Eric Berg at NDSU and funded in part by the ND Beef 
Commission was publ ished in the highly recognized Journal of Nutrition. That is success and 
we helped to make it happen. 

Should this committee and the legislature see fit to pass this bi l l  and increase funding for beef 
demand bui ld ing programs, the Beef Commission stands ready to go to work. The Commission 
is ready and able to develop the types of plans and programs that wi l l  continue to benefit the 
beef industry of ND.  Our program development process would be the same as it has been for 
years beginn ing in the spring with strateg ic planning to set the direction ,  fol lowed by marketing 
planning that sets the program and budget. Once the outcome of the ND Legislature is known , 
the appropriate planning wi l l  go into motion. If that means no increase, we wi l l  proceed to make 
the most focused plans possible to reach our target consumers. And if there is a beef checkoff 
increase, we wi l l  a lso proceed to make the most focused plans possible to reach our  target 
consumers .  

• 
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Levels of Oversight of the current $1 per head Beef Checkoff - 201 5  

Prepared by the N D  Beef Commission with review by the Cattlemen's Beef Board 

Board level :  

**Priorities are set, a marketing plan is  developed and the budget is developed by Beef 
Commission committees and then approved by the fu l l  board annual ly. Monthly financial 
statements are reviewed and approved at each board meeting . When the annual  audit report is 
completed, the audit committee meets with the auditor in  charge of the audit and reviews al l 
detai ls .  It is then presented to the fu l l  board for review and action. 

State level :  

**Every state beef counci l  ( 44 as of January 201 5) must have an annual financial aud it, as 
required by the Beef Promotion & Research Act of 1 985, which must be submitted to the 
Cattlemen's Beef Board (CBB) within 1 20 days of the end of the fiscal year. The ND Beef 
Commission audit is done by the State Auditor's Office on an annual basis, as compared to a 
biennial audit of other state commodity groups that fa l l  under state law requirements. The audit 
is also reviewed by the Legis lative Audit and Fiscal Review Committee every year. The annual  
audit i s  avai lable for review through the State Aud itor's Office website, and the combined 
statement of revenues and expenses is a part of the ND Beef Commission annual  report. 

**The Cattlemen's Beef Board auditing staff does periodic reviews of state beef counci ls to 
ensure compl iance with various provisions of the Act & Order and with additional operating 
procedures. 

**The N D  Beef Commission is requ ired by law to present a report to a joint hearing of the North 
Dakota House and Senate Ag Committees at the beginn ing of each legislative session. This 
report must conta in  program updates along with audit reports from the State Auditor's Office for 
the two previous years along with anticipated expend itures at the close of the current b iennium 
and estimates for the next biennium.  

National level - Cattlemen's Beef Board: 

**The CBB is  ult imately responsible for oversight of every checkoff dol lar col lected in  the 
country, including those from imported beef and beef products. It is also responsible for 
implementation of all pol icies and procedures from USDA, as wel l  as internal pol icies developed 
as best management practices. 

**The CBB has an annual  audit, conducted under government auditing standards,  by an 
external auditing firm qual ified to conduct such an audit. This audit is submitted to USDA and is  
publ ished. 

**The CBB undergoes a management review audit every three years by USDA's Agricu ltural 
Marketing Service, covering procedures and processes under government oversight. 

***The CBB is  a lso audited annual ly and every three years for their oversight and procedures 
related to state beef counci ls, the Federation of State Beef Counci ls ,  the US Meat Export 
Federation a nd the National Cattlemen's Beef Association .  



**The CBB oversees both their own investments in  programs conducted by national contractors 
as well as additional state beef counci l  investments in national and international programs. 

**All state beef counci ls investing additional funds in  the national programs through the US Meat 
Export Federation and the Federation of State Beef Counci ls of the National Cattlemen's Beef 
Association review the external audits of these organizations annual ly and certify to the CBB 
that they were reviewed and found in  order. 

** In terms of USDA-AMS oversight and involvement with the CBB, USDA representatives are at 
the table with the CBB at every audit committee meeting and actively engage in d iscussions and 
oversight and approve certain  processes includ ing contractual procedures, reporting and 
various audit provisions. USDA is also present at every Beef Promotion Operating Committee 
meeting,  CBB Executive Committee meeting, CBB Board meeting and Audit Committee 
meeting . 

**National programs authorized to receive checkoff funding are a lso reviewed and audited . The 
procedure includes the Beef Promotion Operating Committee approving detai ls of all contracts, 
reviewing and approving specific Authorization Requests for program funding. After Operating 
Committee and CBB approval ,  Authorization Requests, contracts with contractors, and the fu l l  
budget are then forwarded to USDA for review and final approval .  

Additional national contractor procedu res: 

In addition to annual audits,  legal contracts for approved Authorization Requests, and 
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implementation of mandated procedures from the CBB, national contractors l ike the Federation • of State Beef Councils of the National Cattlemen's Beef Association ,  the US Meat Export 
Federation ,  American Farm Bureau Foundation for Agriculture ,  American National 
CattleWomen,  Meat Import Council of America and others approved for program funding carry 
out the ir  contracts on a cost-recovery basis. That means that a l l  costs are covered up front by 
the contracting organization and only reimbursed where verified to be in l ine with the approved 
Authorization Request. No contractor is al lowed to make a profit when contracting for programs 
to the CBB. 

I n  addition to the financial accountabi l ity, a l l  organizations contracting with the CBB must have 
all materials completed throughout the contract approved by CBB and USDA before distribution .  
If the program's "Authorization Approval Number" from USDA is missing from an invoice 
submitted to the CBB, reimbursement of the invoice is rejected. 

National Contractors directly involved with the N D  Beef Commission: 

The two national contractors that the ND Beef Commission has chosen to fund with an 
additional portion of state checkoff dol lars are the US Meat Export Federation and the 
Federation of State Beef Councils of the National Cattlemen's Beef Association .  In addition to 
fol lowing al l  requ i rements of the CBB as discussed above, these two organizations have robust 
internal compliance programs designed to uphold the strict fi rewal l  protecting checkoff dol lars 
from other funding sources and insuring that checkoff dol lars are appropriately accounted for. 
Each organization has a d i rector of compl iance charged with implementing ,  maintain ing and 
overseeing strict internal processes and procedures and are routinely reviewed by the CBB as 
wel l .  • 
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N orth Da kota Beef Com m ission Historica l Tren d s, Revenue vs Expenses, 1993-2014 
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2014 North Dakota Beef Commission Expenses as a % of Total Revenue 
Source: 2014 Audit Report 
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J u ly 1, 2013 - J u ne 30, 2014 Fiscal Year 

N orth Da kota P rograms 
r National  Progra m 

/ I nvestment 

Revenue 

Over _ 

Expenses 

I 1 I nternational Promotion 

_......-
Ad m i n istration & 

Operations 
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• National  Program I nvestment:  1 2 . 26% 

I nternationa l  Promotion:  1 . 28% 

• Ad m i n i stration & Operations :  6.04% 

• Cattlemen's Beef Boa rd & Other States : 

49.88% 

• Revenue Over Expenses: 6 .55% 

• N orth Da kota P rogra ms:  23.99% 



•• 

Fiscal Year 

2014 

2013 

2012 

2011 

2010 

2009 

2008 

2007 

2006 

ND Beef Commission Administration and Financial Analysis 
for Senate Ag Committee Hearing - 2015 

Based on Annual Full Dollar Accountability Report 
prepared for the Cattlemen's Beef Board 

Admin based on Total Income Admin based on State portion only 

6% 12% 

4.79% 9.6% 

5.1% 10.3% 

4.96% 10% 

4.75% 9.5% 

4.39% 8.6% 

4% 7.9% 

4.2% 8.3% 

4.5% 8.9% 
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Dear Fellow Beef Producers and Importers, 

As we reflect on 20 1 4, I am pleased to say that there is no shortage of achievements to report from our national 
Beef Checkoff Program. Given the ongoing budget challenges we have experienced, I am proud of what we 
accomplished with our Beef Checkoff Program in fiscal 20 1 4, and I think our entire industry should be excited 
about those successes! 

As always, we had more than our share of challenges - drought, misinformation about our industry and product, 
and our acutely tight supply situation. But what will become clear to you as you read this annual report is that 
we have made progress in our efforts to improve the beef industry's position in the marketplace in recent years by 
improving consumers' understanding of our industry and strengthening their preference for our product. 

As you peruse the pages of this report, you will get a feel for the outcomes of the programs we fund with our 
beef checkoff investments and, maybe more important, the results of those investments - l ike the 733 million 
consumer impressions in the first year of the checkoffs digital advertising campaign; the more than 3.6 million 
page views on the checkoffs flagship Bee( It's What's for Dinner website; and the more than 5 million views of 
the checkoffs "no-recipe recipe" videos. 

Speaking of results, don't forget the findings of the Return on Investment study that Dr. Harry Kaiser of Cornell 
University presented to the beef industry last summer. His was the most comprehensive study ever conducted on 
the end value of our dollar-per-head beef checkoff investments, and it demonstrated to us that every dollar we 
invest in checkoff promotion, research and information programs returns about $ 1 1 .20 in value to us and our 
industry. Now that's what I call results! 

As I complete my service on the Beef Board, I do so with tremendous pride in my investment 
in the program and sincere gratitude for the efforts of the beef producers and importers 

who volunteer so much time and effort to play a role in making a difference in the 
future of the beef industry. I encourage you to remain engaged with your industry and 
your checkoff. After all, when it comes to the health and future of our industry and 
agricultural heritage, the ball is definitely in our court! 

Warm regards, 

Kim Brackett Buhl, Idaho 
2014 Cattlemen's Beef Board Chairman 



20 1 4  Beef Board Members 
Beef Board members are nominated by fellow producers in their respective states or regions. The U .S. Secretary of 
Agriculture appoints producers to the Board from these nominations, and the U.S.  Department of Agriculture oversees the 
Board . Each Board member serves a three-year term and may serve a second consecutive term if reappointed. Beef Board 
members serve without compensation. In 201 4, Beef Board members represented 1 0  different sectors of the beef industry, 
with the largest being cow-calf. There are no packer seats on the Beef Board. 
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Brad Etheridge 
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Overview for Checkoff Investors 
When we prepare an annual report for Beef Checkoff Program investors, we focus on compiling 
the information that you told us was of most interest to you. And while you want to know just 
what is being done with your money, we hear you saying that it is maybe even more important 
that we demonstrate the results of your investments. 

Thanks to an important econometric study completed in 2014, we can start off by saying that 
your beef-checkoff investments are taking less out of your pocket than they are putting back 
in it. In fact, that comprehensive Return on Investment study by Dr. Harry Kaiser, a professor of 
applied economics at Cornell University, demonstrates that every dollar you invested in CBB­
funded programs budgeted between 2006 and 2013 returned about $11.20. 

There is little argument that 2014 was a stellar year for the beef industry, with record high prices 
for cattle and beef. In fiscal 2014, consumer per-capita expenditures for beef were 14.1 percent 
ahead of 2013, and retail beef demand grew nearly 5.9 percent the final quarter of FY2014. That 
kind of consumer approval is the key to beef-demand growth, and achieving growth in beef 
demand despite the tight markets in 2014 is something that every producer and importer should 
take pride in celebrating. 

Building consumer trust and demand for beef doesn't just happen. It takes a coordinated effort 
that begins with defining the target markets, then determining what makes them tick and what 
they want from your end products - and then figuring out how to provide that to consumers. As 

Chris Hutton 
Chicago, IL 

Peter Maloney 
Fairfield, CT 

you will see on the following pages, that's exactly what your 
checkoff program does. 

Of course, there is no way to give you a rundown on 
every single program implemented on your behalf 

during the year in this report. But we are highlighting 
here some results from each CBB budget category 
- promotion, research, consumer information, 
foreign marketing, industry information and 
producer communications. And you can always find 
more information and results at 
www.MyBeefCheckoff.com. 

Terry Meikle John O'Carroll 
Washington, DC Southlake, TX 

Fred Sorbello 
Mullica Hi ll, NJ 

Don Gurtner 
Fremont 

Dean Black 
Somers 

Cindy Greiman 
Garner 

• 

• 

Kent Pruismann 
Rock Valley 



EVERY DOLLAR INVESTED RETIJRNS $1 1 .20 

Beef Safety Research 
Identifies potential risks to beef safety 

and develops solutions to maintain a 
safe beef supply for consumers 

Public Relations • 
Proactively share

_
s positive beef --

messages with consumers, 
health professionals and other 

food influencers 

Product Enhancement 
Research 

Discovers new ways to improve beef 
quality, consistency and value, including 

research focused on new cuts, taste, 
tenderness and carcass value 

New Product Development 
Works with industry leaders to 

develop new beef products, plus 
shares beef recipes and cooking tips 

� - -

/ 

/ 

Advertising 
Creates all domestic 
consumer advertising 
-radio, print, outdoor 
and digital - to reinforce 
how beef is part of their 
everyday life 

Foreign Marketing 
__ Provides beef market development, 

promotion, research, consumer and 
industry information in more than 
1 00 countries worldwide 

Channel Marketing 
· Develops all promotions, training and 

other programs to help promote beef 
• • in restaurants and grocery stores 

. Focuses on beef's role in human 

,(i)1 N utrition Research • nutrition as it relates to overall 
health and well-being 

Industry Information 
Safeguards the image of the beef 
industry by responding to, and 
correcting, misinformation about beef 
and sharing the beef production story 

In a comprehensive economic study about the return on investments of checkoff programs funded by the Cattlemen's Beef Board, 
Dr. Harry Kaiser of Cornell University concluded that the return on investments is vastly greater than the cost of the program. 

6.4 
PERCENT LOWER 

The reduction in foreign demand for 
U.S. beef between 2006 and 201 3, if 

ot for the checkoff 

Brian Sampson Danny Herrmann 
Nevada Dodge City 

1 1 .3 
PERCENT LESS 

The reduction in domestic beef 
sales between 2006 and 201 3, 
if not for checkoff programs 

1 5.7 
BILLION POUNDS MORE 
The amount of additional beef sold 
domestically between 2006 and 
201 3 because of checkoff programs 

Brittany Howell Stacy Mcclintock 
La Crosse Soldier 

Larry Oltjen 
Robinson 

Perry Owens 
Minneapolis 

Beth Patterson 
Yates Center 

BOTTOM LINE 
Your investment in the checkoff 
results in higher prices, which means 
higher net revenue for your operation 

Julianna Jepson Daniel Smith 
Franklin Stamping Grouoo 
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In 2014, checkoff-funded programs funded through 
the "Promotion" budget category focused on providing 

consumers with the information they wanted about beef, when 
they wanted it and how they wanted it delivered. 

Engaging Social Media 
In a social media landscape where consumers have to navigate 
competing "noise" every day, the checkoff reached consumers 
with beef information like never before. Our efforts led to 
more than 1 mill ion engagements - likes, shares, views and 
retweets - on the "Beef. It's What's For Dinner" Facebook and 
Twitter pages. The paid advertising promoting those posts 
separately engaged more than 450,000 individual Facebook 
users with checkoff content and recipes and drove more than 
14,000 additional interactions on Twitter. These efforts help 
keep beef top-of-mind and provide daily inspiration for consumers 
to purchase, prepare and enjoy beef more. 

Sizzling Digital Advertising Campaign 
The checkoff's new digital advertising campaign wrapped up its first full year, and 
the results were beyond expectations: 

• Educated millions of consumers - especially the key target market of 
millennials (born between 1980 and 2000) - about beef taste, nutrition and 
ease-of-use 

• 733 million ad impressions 
• More than 3.6 million page views on BeefltsWhatsForDinner.com 
• More than 5 million views of the checkoff's new 

"No-Recipe Recipe" videos 

Promoting Veal 
The checkoff's 2014 launch of the new easy-to-navigate, recipe-focused 
and mobile-responsive Veal Made Easy.com provides an integrated 
veal-promotion hub. On-pack labels, traditional and digital advertising 
campaigns and social-media properties drove consumers to the website 
for veal recipes and other information. In a separate promotion, the checkoff 
worked with the Connecticut-based restaurant chain Rizzuto's to launch the 
new VLT (Veal-Lettuce-Tomato) sandwich. Veal marketing efforts with beef 
retailers boosted veal sales at more than 1,700 participating stores during 
two themed promotions in January (Eat Better Eat Veal) and September 
(Columbus Day). The two promotions garnered more than 9 million digital 
and television impressions. 

ienevieve Lyons 
Church Point 

Andy Salinas 
Marion 

Larry Echols 
Gap Mills, WV 

Steve Matthees Ted Reichmann Mike McCormick Brenda Black Kevin Frankenbach Howard Hardecko 
Goodhue Villard Union Church Deepwater Hannibal Springfield 



• As the foundation of virtually all checkoff programs, research provides the information needed 
to identify key audiences and their likes and dislikes, along with science aimed at improving and 
developing end beef products to meet consumers' ever-changing needs. 

Market Research 
The checkoff conducted a millennial listening panel in fiscal 2014 to better 
understand their relationship with beef - in the store or restaurant, when 
d iscussing nutrition with their friends or looking for information online. Results were 
coordinated with managers of checkoff programs including promotion, consumer 
information, culinary innovations, and issues and reputation management. The 
panel was so successful that 2015 market-research goals include a second panel 
to help increase knowledge of this target audience. The checkoff also completed 
its 11th annual Foodservice Volumetric Study, which surveyed 960 key foodservice 
executives and chefs about beef trends and cut sales to help develop programs to 
drive restaurant sales of beef. 

New Product Development 
There's a new bacon in town, and it's called Schmacon. After working 
with the checkoff's Beef Innovations Group to prepare the beef product 
for commercialization, Schmaltz Deli Co. introduced Schmacon at the 
National Restaurant Association convention in May. Schmacon is lower in 
fat, calories and sodium than traditional pork bacon and has its own unique 
taste and crispness. This product is not only positioned for breakfast but 

• also as an ingredient. 

Human Nutrition Research 
The checkoff hosted more than 80 top-tier protein researchers for the internationally 
recognized Protein Summit 2.0 in Washington D.C., with additional support from 
industry partners. The summit's goal was to explore evidence related to protein's 
impact on health in key areas such as weight loss, metabolic function and aging, 
and solutions for translating science into protein recommendations for consumers 
trying to achieve better health. 

Salmonella Research 
Checkoff-funded Salmonella research in fiscal 2014 included: 

• Post-harvest research to determine the burden and distribution of Salmonella in lymph nodes of 
cattle and spur development of practical interventions to improve beef safety 

• Pre-harvest research aimed to reduce the potential for Salmonella to transfer through slaughter. 
• Presentations at research meetings, beef safety conferences and industry gatherings that 

allowed participants to interact directly with the principal investigators and their colleagues 
about beef safety challenges and possible solutions. 

Project summaries, research briefs and other resources are avai lable at Beef Research. 

Leon Kreisler 
Salem 

Leo McDonnell 
Columbus 

Linda Nielsen 
Nashua 

Lyle Peterson 
Custer 

Al Davis 
Hyannis 

Judy Reece 
Valentine 

Joan Ruskamp 
Dodge 

Doug Temme 
Wayne 

Sherry Vinton 
Whitman 
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Checkoff-funded programs funded through the 
"Consumer Information" budget category focused on 

creating outlets to answer consumers' questions about 
beef by sharing information about beef nutrition, research and 
convenience, and providing them with tools to prepare beef 
successfully at home. 

Living Well: Experiencing The Beef Lifecycle 

Prominent dietitians, fitness professionals and food bloggers 
participated in a checkoff-funded "Live Well " event in 2014 
to get an up-close-and-personal look at how beef is raised. 
The experience encouraged a deeper understanding of the 
beef lifecycle and continuous improvement in beef nutrition, 
sustainability, quality and value. Participant-survey results 
registered a 45 percent increase in the number reporting that 
they are more likely to recommend and serve beef over other 
proteins. Blog posts recapping the event were included on 
ThenHeatherSaid.com, AmeesSavoryDish.com, ChefDruck.com 
and a FOX Chicago wellness segment. 

Strengthening Relationships at Retail, Foodservice 
Based on a strategic target assessment, the checkoff identifed 
retail and restaurant operators with the greatest potential to 
increase beef sales, and is developing deeper relationships by 
providing unique opportunities for education and immersion to a 
number of operators. In 2014, that included participation by 
75 center-of-plate special ists and senior leaders from Performance 
Foodservice - a distributor that provides beef to more than 
160,000 independent and national foodservice outlets - in 
creative cul inary ideation and education aimed at selling more beef 
to their customers nationwide. 

Exploring Digital Consumer Education 
The checkoff partnered with lbotta, a leading consumer 
application, to encourage beef sales at Wal-Mart and Target stores 
nationwide in 2014. The lbotta app encouraged consumers to 
learn beef-freezing and nutrition facts and watch checkoff videos 
for the "Easy Lean Beef Burger" and "DIY Tacos" to earn a rebate 
on purchases of fresh top sirloin or ground beef. The partnership 
offers a direct path for consumers looking for information and 
provides valuable analytics about consumer shopping and 
spending behaviors to guide future program activity. 

David Wright 
Neligh 

Wesley Grau 
Grady 

Tamara Ogilvie Patty Bikowsky 
Silver City Madison 

E.B. Harris 
Warrenton 

Patrick Becker 
Selfridge 

., 
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Jane Clifford Pete Guglielminc 
Starksboro, VT Kettle Falls, WA 



• 

• 

Keeping Beef Top of Mind in the Northeast 
Targeting the heavy concentration of U.S. consumers in the Northeast, the 
checkoff invested in a "Northeast Beef Promotion Initiative" to increase 
communication with consumers and influencers. In FY14, this included 
hosting three farm tours - at Hedge Apple Farms and Gibbet Hill Cattle 
Company - for key retail, foodservice and nutrition influencers to bring 
participants face-to-face with producers. The checkoff also highlighted the 
importance of high-quality protein, like that found in lean beef, in diets of 
athletes by sharing beef's nutrition messages with runners and onlookers 
at the 118th Boston Marathon and the 39th Marine Corps Marathon, with a 
combined audience of more than 200,000 consumers. 

Reaching Moms, Millennials and More 
The checkoff's "Moms, Millennials and More" program hosted 
10 creative social-media events in FY14, providing an easily accessible 
platform for moms and millennials to engage with grassroots beef producers. 
Participants asked questions about how beef is produced and shared their 
enjoyment of beef through pictures and recipes via Twitter, lnstagram and 
Pinterest. These activities registered more than 80 million social-media 
impressions, and an impressive 84 percent of participants surveyed after a 
Twitter Party said the experience improved their opinions about beef . 
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Educating Millennials about Ground Beef 
Given that market research finds older millennial parents 
purchasing ground beef more often than whole muscle 
cuts, the checkoff created a new Ground Beef section on 
BeefltsWhatsForDinner.com to highlight the versatility and 
convenience of ground beef. The section features everything 
from quick-and-easy recipes to step-by-step instructions for 
thawing ground beef in less than five minutes, including a 
series of demonstration videos. 
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Mindful that 95 percent of the global population lives outside of the U.S., the checkoff 
promotes U.S. beef in more than 80 countries worldwide. Results in 201 4  were impressive, with 

U.S. beef exports during the first 1 0  months of the year valued at $5.87 bil l ion - 1 5  percent ahead 
of the record pace in 201 3 - and volume up 3 percent to more than 220 mi l l ion pounds. 

Developing Marketi ng Channels i n  Taiwan 

To build on demand growth for U.S. beef in Taiwan, the checkoff helped 
further develop channels for marketing high-quality chil led beef and 
introduced competitively priced alternative cuts to a wider range of 
Taiwanese buyers. Efforts the checkoff helped fund included seminars 
for Taiwan's foodservice operators, retailers and importers about the 
quality and value of the petite tender and clod heart and demonstrating 
how these cuts can add quality and variety to menus at an economical 
price. A two-day seminar in August drew nearly 1 00 food industry 
professionals and included a segment with Dr. Wu Yun-Chu of Tung Hai 
University, who addressed many common misperceptions about the 
safety of U.S. beef. 

The results? Through the first 1 0  months of the year, the value of U.S. beef exports to Taiwan was 
1 6  percent ahead of 201 3, at $242.6 mi l l ion, while volume was up 7 percent for the 1 0-month period, 
reaching 63.2 mil l ion pounds. With a strong finish, export value wi l l  easily exceed the 201 3 calendar 
year record of $254.4 mil l ion. 

• Rebui ldi ng Confidence in  South Korea 

Capitalizing on the growing "steak culture" phenomenon in Korea, 
the checkoff helped fund an American Steak Week campaign 
involving South Korean restaurants special izing in U.S. steak 
dishes. The event was heavi ly promoted through Facebook and 
was further showcased by 1 6  influential food bloggers. American 
Steak Week also was the focus of an advertorial in the Chosun 

/Ibo newspaper, which has more than 2.2 mil lion readers, while 
the high-end l ifestyle magazine Luxury ran a six-page advertorial 
featuring the participating restaurants. Many of these restaurants 
kept the featured cuts on their regular menus after the promotion 
ended. The checkoff also helped introduce dry-aged, USDA Prime 
beef in Korea, which quickly gained traction in high-end restaurants 
and at retail . And a series of popular "social dining" events in Seoul 
helped grow demand for U.S. beef among a younger demographic. 

The results? Through the first 1 0  months of the year, the value of U .S. beef exports to South Korea 
was 41 percent ahead of 201 3, at nearly 675 mil l ion pounds (well  ahead of the ful l-year 201 3 value of 
$609 mi l l ion), and volume was up 1 2  percent, reaching about 21 2 mi l l ion pounds. 
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• Capitalizing on Foodservice in  Hong Kong 

• 

U.S. beef continues to achieve great success in Hong Kong's foodservice sector 
in outlets ranging from high-end steakhouses to fast-casual restaurants. The 
beef checkoff provides marketing support for hot-pot promotions in  Hong Kong, 
especially during the high-demand winter season, and leading chains, such as 
Fairwood, Maxim's and Cafe De Coral, are using U.S. short plate in their hot-pot 
dishes, del ivering exceptional value for a cut that commands very l ittle attention 
in our domestic market. With beef prices in the region reaching all-time highs, 
the checkoff also has actively supported educational workshops and seminars to 
fami l iarize chefs and buyers with alternative beef cuts, including the brisket, top 
sirloin butt, clod heart and steamship round. In June, U.S. beef was granted ful l  
access to Hong Kong, creating opportunities for certain products not allowed in  the 
market since 2003 - including ground beef, processed meats and bone-in cuts 
from cattle more than 30 months of age. 

The results? Through the first 1 0  months of the year, the value of exports to Hong Kong, at $898 mi l l ion, 
were up 43 percent year-over-year and had, in fact, already broken the ful l-year value record set in  201 3.  With 
a strong finish in 201 4, exports to Hong Kong were set to break the $1 bil l ion mark for the first time. U.S. beef 
export volume to Hong Kong was up 23 percent through October, reaching nearly 272 mil lion pounds. 

Wi nni ng over Mexico's Next Generation of Chefs 

To build demand in Mexico, the Beef Checkoff Program supports efforts to introduce U .S. beef to the 
next generation of chefs and foodservice industry professionals through events l ike seminars and cooking 
competitions at 1 4  of the Universidad de Valle de Mexico's (UVM) 40 campuses in 201 4. With more than 
6,000 students enrolled in its gastronomy program, UVM is an extremely important training ground for 
professionals who go on to build careers in Mexico's hotel, restaurant and institutional (HRI) sector. Through 
the seminars, about 600 students received in-depth information on the positive attributes of U.S. beef and 
gained valuable preparation and menu planning experience. In the cooking competition, the team from 
UVM 's Guadalajara South campus took top honors with a menu comprising a U.S. beef ribeye with fruit and 
tequila sauce. The competition provided a great venue for connecting with young culinary professionals early 
in their careers, allowing them to see the qual ity, flexibility and 
affordability that U.S. beef contributes to thei r restaurant menus. 

The results? Through the fi rst 1 0  months of the year, the value 
of exports to Mexico, at $962.6 mi l l ion, represented a 31 percent 
increase over the same period in 201 3, while volume was up 
1 7  percent to 442.6 mi l l ion pounds. That made Mexico the No. 
2 export market for U.S. beef in 201 4, behind Japan, which 
imported 456 mi l l ion pounds of U.S. beef valued at $1 .3 bil l ion 
during the 1 0-month period. 
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In 2014, checkoff-funded programs in the "Industry Information" budget category focused on • 
developing information, marketing strategies, tools for increasing industry efficiency and activities 

that enhance the image of the cattle industry. 

Protecting Consumer Confidence in Beef 
On a daily basis in FY14, the checkoff responded to misinformation and requests for information about 
beef issues, ranging from antibiotics to hormones to environmental impacts of raising beef. In July, 
for example, the Proceedings of the National Academy of Sciences released a report claiming that 
greenhouse gas emissions from beef are five times greater than any other animal protein, and the lead 
author encouraged people to eat less beef. Dr. Kim Stackhouse, the checkoff's director of sustainability 
research, helped review the study and develop a checkoff media statement in response, noting, in part: 
"This study represents a gross oversimplification of the complex systems that make up the beef value 
chain." The statement was picked up and syndicated by the Associated Press and resulted in more than 
40 news articles nationwide- including some major urban broadcast outlets. 

In addition to being able to provide quick direct responses, the checkoff builds consumer confidence 
by increasing transparency through FactsAboutBeef.com, with strong website copy, fact sheets, 
infographics, videos and third-party expert biogs to help debunk beef myths of every ilk. The website, 
which also features farmers and ranchers proactively sharing information about how they raise beef, 
enjoyed a 300-percent increase in traffic in 2014, while the associated @BeefFacts social-media property 
recorded a 200-percent increase. 

300.t. 
PERCENt11 
INCREASE 

in traffic in 2014 

• 
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• Bridging the Gap on Antibiotics 

Nearly 200 key beef-industry stakeholders - representing academia, 
government researchers, and the scientif ic community of animal agriculture, 
human medicine and the environment - attended the third-annual national 
antibiotics symposium. Funded in part by the checkoff, "Bridging the Gap 
Between Animal Health and Human Health" provided a forum for dialogue 

cof\dg\ng the GCJ 
Between Animal Health 'l:J 

and Human Health 

based on the science surrounding antibiotic use and resistance and included development 
of solutions and educational materials for beef producers. A comprehensive white paper 
summarizing the symposium was downloaded more than 27,000 times last year! 

Supporting Veal Transparency, Quality 
In 2014, the checkoff's veal issues-management program was 
responsible for monitoring and analyzing more than 190,000 
traditional media sources and more than 300 mill ion user­
generated social-media sources for veal news coverage. This 
intelligence helped identify potential issues that could undermine 
consumer confidence and trust in veal practices and products, 
which were addressed with support from the checkoff's 
www.vealfarm.com. Also, a committee of veterinarians and veal 
industry experts updated the checkoff's Veal Quality Assurance 
program to provide standards and resources for veal farmers to 
meet their ethical obligation to the animals' health and well -being. 

• Connecting Consumers with Farmers and Ranchers 
The checkoff's Masters of Beef Advocacy (MBA) program has 
graduated more than 5,500 beef advocates in 48 states. In 2014, 

Janna Stubbs 
Alpine 

one graduate welcomed 13 influential health professionals and 
bloggers to his feedyard for a personal experience about how beef is 
raised, which participants said positively changed their perceptions 
about animal welfare, environmental stewardship and use of growth 
hormones. Another MBA graduate participated in a panel discussion 
at The New York Times' "Food For Tomorrow" conference, amidst 
critics of conventional agriculture including author Michael Pollan and 
columnist Mark Bittman and drew huge applause with her plea to 
include farmers and ranchers in food discussions. 
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Checkoff programs funded through the "producer communications" budget category 
focus on communicating to beef producers and importers who invest in the checkoff 

program the results of their investments. This includes a national advertising campaign and 
paid media efforts, as well as direct communications with checkoff leadership, state beef 
councils, livestock markets and other industry partners. 

Making Checkoff Info Easier to Find 
A new MyBeefCheckoff .com provides an easy to navigate selection of checkoff 
resources and program results. The new site also has a new "Meeting Center" 
that provides checkoff meeting and committee materials and information all in one 
place. The website remake modernizes and simplifies organization of materials and 
makes everything accessible. In addition, it is "responsive," which means it views 
the same on all electronic devices, from computer to tablet to smartphone. 

----
Breaking Through with Checkoff Messages 

The FY 2014 "Did You Know?" producer-communications ad 
campaign proved very effective in ag publications. For example, an 
ad featuring CBB Chairman Kim Brackett in BEEF magazine was No. 
1 in the entire edition measured for "read half or more" and No. 2 for 
"remember seeing." Subsequent additions to the campaign continued 
to perform well and included print, online and video testimonials 
from cow-calf producers Troy and Stacy Hadrick, stocker and feedlot 
operator Roger Clift and cow-calf producer Dawn Caldwell, as well as 
a new "Did You Know?" video commercial. 

Getting Social With Investors 

A growing number of checkoff investors are engaging in important 
checkoff conversations on the My Beef Checkoff Facebook page and 
through the My Beef Checkoff Twitter handle. The two platforms have 
a combined following of more than 14,000 individuals and tremendous 
engagement, with a combined monthly reach of about 80,000 people. 

Extending ROI Messages 
To share the positive messages of the checkoff's Return on Investment 
study in 2014, the checkoff developed a comprehensive landing page, 
"Measuring Value of Checkoff Programs," populated with dozens of print, 
trade show, and social-media materials that show the results from every 
angle. The producer-communications team also customized ROI materials, 
by request, for more than a dozen state beef councils. In August alone, 
the campaign led to 486 media reports, 639 tweets, 186 Facebook posts, 
484,000 TV viewers, 732,552 ad impressions, and 8,700 website visits that 
garnered 27 ,000 page views. 

---
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Cattlemen 's Beef Promotion and Research Board 
Financial Statements as of September 30, 20 1 4  and 20 1 3  

Together with Independent Auditors' Report Thereon 

Board of Directors 
Cattlemen's Beef Promotion and Raearch Board 
Centennial, C.Olorado 
Report on the Financial Statements 

Independent Auditors' Report 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Cattlemen's Beef Promotion and Research Board (the Board), which comprise the 
statements of assets, liabilities and ner assets - modified cash basis as of September 30, 20 1 4  and 20 1 3, and the related statements of revenues, 
expenses, and changes in unrestricted net � - modified cash basis for the years then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for rhe preparation and fair presentation of rhese financial statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of 
accounting described in Note 2; this includes determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the preparation of the 
financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant 
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing 
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in GovemmentAuditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance abour whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about rhe amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures 
selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to 
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fu.ir presentation of the 
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, bur not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of • accow1Cing policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respecrs, the assets, liabilities, and net assets - modified cash 
basis of the Board as of September 30, 20 1 4  and 20 1 3, and its revenues, expenses, and changes in unrestricted net assets - modified cash basis for the 
years then ended, in accordance with the basis of accounting as described in Note 2. 
Basis of Accounting 
We draw atrention to Note 2 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified 
cash basis of accounting, which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our 
opinion is not modified with respect to that maner. 

Report on Supplementary Information 
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial srarements taken as a whole. The accompanying supplementary 
statements of assessment revenues by stare - modified cash basis is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is nor a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates direccly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the financial statements or ro the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fu.irly stated in all material respects in relation 
to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing S"""'4rJs 
In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also � our rcpon dated Novcmbcr 20, 2014, on our cor:Wdcrarion of the Board's inccmal 
control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compUance with certain provisions oflaws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is ro describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the result of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compUance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Board's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 



Other Matters 
In connection with our audits, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Boacd f.Uled to comply with the provisions of the Beef 
Promotion and Research Aa of 1985 (the Aa) and the Beef Promotion and Research Order (the Order) related to the use of funds collected by 
the Boacd insofar as they relate to accounting matters. Further, in connection with our audits, except as described in the accompanying report wued in 
accordance with Government Auditing Standards, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Board was not in compliance with the A 
terms of Section 1260. l 49(f) of the Order, or with the terms of the Agricultural Marketing Service (AMS) Investment Policy, which describe the ~ 
of instruments in which the Board may invest, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. However, our audits were not directed primarily towards 
obtaining knowledge of such noncompliance. Accordingly, had we performed additional procedures, other matters may have come to our attention 
regarding the Board's noncompliance with the above referenced Aa, Order, and AMS Investment Policy, insofar as they relate to accounting matters. 

The report is intended solely for the information and use of the members of the Board and its management, the Audit Committee, and the United 
States Department of Agriculmre and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specific parties. 

CliftonLarsenAllen LLP 
Greenwood Village, Colorado 
November 20, 2014 

Statements of Assets, Liabilities and Net Assets 
(Modified Cash Basis, Note 2) 

September 30, 2014 and 2013 

Assets 2014 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Nore 3) $ 12,129,299 
Shore-Term Investments (Nore 3) 10,452,000 
earcal Assets, nee of accumulated depreciation 
o $69,40land $59,698, respectively 10,531 

Other 30 
Total Assets $ 22,591,860 

Liabilities and Net Assets 
Due co Scace Beef Councils and Ocher $ 2,405 
Nee Assets - Unrestricted (Note 5): 

Designated for future expenses 14,149,528 
Designated - Board reserve 4,350,000 
Undesignaced 4,082.22Z 

22,282.422 

Total Liabilities and Net Assets $ 22,591,860 

Statements of Revenues, Expenses and 
Changes in Unrestricted Net Assets 

(Modified Cash Basis, Note 2) 
For The Years Ended September 30, 2014 and 2013 

Revenues 
Assessments (Note 1) 
Interest 
Other 

Total revenues 
Expenses 
Program Expenses -

Promotion 
Research 
Consumer Information 
Industry Information 
Foreign Marketing 
Producer Communications 
Program Evaluation 
Program Development 

Total program expenses 
Supporting Services -

USDA Oversight 
Administration (Note 4) 

Total expenses 
Change in net assets 

Beginning wuatricted net assets 

Ending unrestricted net assets 

$ 

$ 

2014 
40,361,145 

61,901 
Z8,ZZI 

40.501,817 

9,438,367 
7,927,598 
8,366,182 
1,817,768 
7,355,729 
1,478,324 

175,274 
238,243 

36,798,185 

289,631 
1,602,020 

38,6%,866 
1,804,951 

20,784,504 
22,589,455 

$ 

~ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

~ 
The accompanying notes to financifll statements are an integrfll part of these stf/ternents. 

2013 
13,795,268 
6,969,002 

20,234 

20,784,504 

13,490,594 
4,350,000 
2,243.210 

20,Z84,204 

20,784,504 

2013 
39.596,999 

66,485 
48,621 

39.712.175 

15,528,767 
6,036,100 
3,390,267 
3,492,377 
6,036,724 
1,529,824 

179,590 
IZ2.088 

36,372,737 

279,075 
1,236,822 

~8.188,641 
1,523,534 

12,260,970 
20.784.504 

• 
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Notes to Financial Statements 
(Modified Cash Basis) 

September 30, 201 4  and 201 3 

( 1 )  ORGANIZATION AND OPERATIONS 
The Beef Promotion and Research Act of 1 985 (the Act), 
approved on December 23, 1 985, by the United States 
Congress, established a coordinated program of promotion 
and research designed to strengthen the beef industry's 
position in the marketplace, as well as to maintain and expand 
domestic and foreign markets and uses for beef and beef 
products. As provided in the Act, the Secretary of the United 
States Department of Agriculture (the Secretary) issued the 
Beef Promotion and Research Order (the Order), effective 
July 1 8, 1 986, which provides the terms and conditions for 
the Act's administration. The Cattlemen's Beef Promotion 
and Research Board (the Board), which was created and 
approved by the Secretary to administer the Act, consists of 
1 03 members who are representatives of the cattle industry in 
the United States, including importers. Board members are 
appointed by the Secretary. 

The program is financed by a $ 1  per head assessment on 
domestic sales of cattle and on imponed cattle, beef, and beef 
products. The Board, as part of its responsibilities under the Act 
and Order, may certify no more than one Qualified State Beef 
Council (Council) in each state and authorize that Council to 
collect such assessments. The assessments are remirted to the 
Councils or the Board. The Board receives one-half of assessmem 
monies from states with Councils and the Councils retain the 
remainder. The Board receives all assessment revenues from 
states without Councils and from imponed cattle, beef, and beef 
products. 

Pursuant to the Act, the Board's expenses for administration 
are limited to 5% or less of projected revenues. All remaining 
revenues are expended on programs related to promotion, 
research, and information for the beef industry. The Board 
contracts with established national cattle- or beef-industry­
governed nonprofit organizations for the implementation and 
conduct of these programs. Under the terms of these contracts, 
the entities, which receive Board contracts, are subject to annual 
audits and reviews. 

During fiscal years 20 1 4  and 20 13,  the Board reimbursed the 
following industry organizations for program expenses incurred 
on approved projects: 

Name of Contractor 
Meat Importers Council of America (MICA) 

National American Meat Association (NAMA) 

National Clttlemen's 

Beef Association (NCBA) 

National Livestock Producers Auoclation 

(NLPA) 

American National CattleWomen (ANCWJ 

-•MF• 
$326,416 $470,453 

$616,795 $123,959 

$33,530,014 $33,661 ,423 

$30,000 $25,000 

$402,419 $203,400 

The program expenses incurred by NCBA during fiscal years 
20 14 and 2013 included reimbursements for costs incurred 
under subcontracts with the American National Cattle Women 
of$ 1 98,8 1 l and $296,444, and the U.S. Meat Expon 
Federation of$7,355,729 and $6,036,723, respectively. 

(2) SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
Basis of Accounting 
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared 
on the modified cash basis of accounting. Under this method, 
cenain revenues are recognii.ed when received rather than when 
earned and cenain expenses are recognized when paid rather 
than when incurred. At September 30, 20 14 and 2013, there 
were assessment receivables of approximately $6,900,000 and 
$6,700,000, interest receivables of approximately $ 1 2,000 
and $ 10,000, accured compensated absences of approximately 
$46,000 and $4,000 and accounts payable of approximately 
$7,000,000 and $6,700,000, respectively, which are nor reflected 
in the accompanying financial statements. Accounts payable 
relate to appropriated expenditures and are included in the 
net assets designated for future expenses in the accompanying 
statements of assets, liabilities and net assets {Note 5). 

As discussed in Note l, the Board receives one-half of the 
assessment monies collected by the Councils and the remainder 
is retained by the Councils. The accompanying financial 
statements include only the Board's share of assessment monies 
and do not include amounts related to either revenues or 
expenses of the individual Councils. 

Cash, Cash Equivalents and Short-Term Investments 
For purposes of classifying investments, the Board considers 
all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three 
months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents and 
short-term investments are recorded at cost. 

Depreciation 
Capital assets, which include equipment and leasehold 
improvements, are recorded at cost. Depreciation is computed 
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of 
three to ten years. 

Use of Estimates 
The preparation of financial statements require management 
to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported 
amounts and disclosures, primarily those estimates included in 
the Basis of Accounting disclosure above. Accordingly, actual 
results could differ from rhose estimates. 

(3) CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND SHORT-TERM 
INVESTMENTS 
The Secretary has provided that excess cash may be invested, 
on a short-term basis, in certificates of deposit insured by the 
Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or obligations of the 
United States, U.S. Government agencies, or U.S. Government­
sponsored corporations. Cash, cash equivalents and short-term 
investments at September 30, 2014 and 2013, by investment 

type, are as follows: 

20 1 4  Beef Board Annual Re ort ·, � 



Sep1ember 30, 2014: 

CISh 
Short-Term 

Total Total Fair 
and Cash 

Investments Clrrylng Yalue 
Equivalents Yllue 

Demand Deposit 
$5,586,537 s - $5,586,537 $5,586,537 Account 

Monly Ml!bl  
1,528,058 9,526,058 9,528,058 Accaunls 

Certificates of 
10,452,000 10,452,000 10,441 ,n1 

Deposit 

Less -
Outstlndng l2.m296l (2JB3.2!!6l {2.9!13.2961 
aiecks 
Totals for 2014 ll�.l�.!!.11!1 IJQ.�.!!!!!l m.�1.2l!!! m.�Zl.� 

September 30, 2013: 

Clsh 
Short-Term 

Total Total Fair 
and Cash 

mestments Clrrylng vatue 
Equivalents Value 

Demand Deposit 
$4,366,288 s - $4,366,288 $4,366,288 Account 

Manly Market 
9,988,m 9,988,2n ll,988,2n Accouds 

Certificates of 
6,969,002 6,969,002 6,963,363 Deposit 

Less -
Outstanding � � � 
aiecks 
Totals for 2013 IJ�,7�.� � IZ!!,Z�.�Z2 �.Z:!Jl,63l 

In accordance with the Board's policy, the demand deposit 
accounts, the money market accounts and the certificates 
of deposit are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance 
Corporation and/or fully collateralized by U.S. Government 
securities held at the Federal Reserve Bank in the Board's name. 

(4) ADMIN ISTRATION EXPENSE 
The Act limits expenses for the administration of the program 
to 5% or less of projected revenues. Projected revenues were 
$39,000,000 for 2014 and $39,400,000 for 2013. Accordingly, 
the administrative expenses incurred by the Board were limited 
to $ 1 ,950,000 in 2014 and $ 1 ,970,000 in 2013. Administrative 
expenses incurred by the Board on the accrual basis (versus 
modified cash basis amounts reflected in the accompanying 
statements of revenues, expenses and changes in unrestricted 
net assets) were approximately $ 1 ,640,000 (4.2% of projected 
revenues) in 20 1 4  and $ 1 ,547,000 (3.9% of projected revenues) 
in 2013. Expressed as a percentage of actual revenues, the Board's 
administrative expenses were 4.0% in 201 4  and 3.9% in 2013. 

The Board has enrered into an Administrative Services 
Agreement with NCBA whereby NCBA agreed to provide 
certain administrative services to the Board in return for 
reimbursement of all direct and indirect costs related to the 
provided services. During 2014 and 20 13, respectively, the 
Board paid NCBA approximately $32,000 and $3 1 ,000 related 
to this agreement. 

The Board leases office facilities and equipment from ourside 
third-parties under operating leases. Payments required under 
the leases were approximately $93,000 during 2014 and 
$92,000 during 20 1 3. Future annual payments related to the 
leases are approximately $95,000 in 201 5, $96,000 in 2016, 
$93,000 in 2017, $%,000 in 20 18, $98,000 in 20 1 9  and 
$50,000 thereafter. 

(5)  UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS 
Unrestricted net assets represent amounts currently available 
for the use in the Board's operation in accordance with the Act 
and those resources invested in fixed assets. Designated net asset 
balances represent tentative plans of the Board for future use of 
financial resources, as follows: 

Designated for Future Expenses 
This balance relates to unexpended program appropriations. 

Designated - Board Reserve 
On October 6, 2010, the Board has approved the establishment 
of a reserve in the amount of $4,350,000 to be used, as the 
Board may deem necessary, with the approval of the Secretary. 

Undesignated 
As of September 30, 2014 and 20 13, $4,089,927 and 
$2,943,91 0, respectively, of the net assets had not been 
designated by the Board and is available for budgeting to the 
various program areas. Of these amounts, $ 10,53 1 and $20,234 
represent net assets invested in fixed assets as of September 30, 
20 14 and 2013, respectively. 

(6) I NCOME TAX STATUS 
The Board has received a ruling from the Internal Revenue 
Service stating chat it is classified as a tax-exempt entity chat 
engages in activities under the aegis of the United States 
Department of Agriculture. 

(7) PENSION PLAN 
The Board provides a defined contribution plan for all of its 
employees under which annual contributions are provided based 
on a percentage of each employee's salary. Contributions required 
and funded by the Board were approximately $ 1 12,000 and 
$ 1 1 1 ,000 in 20 14 and 2013, respectively. 

(8) SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
Management evaluated subsequent events through November 
20, 20 1 4, the date the audited financial statements were available 
to be issued. Events or transactions occurring after September 
30, 20 14, but prior to November 20, 20 14, that provided 
additional evidence about conditions that existed at September 
30, 20 1 4 have been recognized in the financial statements for 
the year ended September 30, 20 14. Events or transactions 
that provided evidence about conditions that did not exist at 
September 30, 20 1 4, but arose before the financial statements 
were available to be issued, have not been recognized in the 
financial statements for the year ended September 30, 20 1 4. 

In October 2014, the Board and the Secretary approved 
$2,977 ,573 of the September 30, 20 14 net asset balance as 
designated for expenditures in 20 1 5. 

• 

• 

• 



Supplementary Statements of Assessment Revenues by State 
For the Years Ended September 30, 20 1 4  and 20 1 3  

• ASSESSMENT REVENUES (Modified cash Basis) 20 14 201 3  
Qualified State Beef Councils: 

Alabama $ 354,614 $ 316,598 
Arizona 294,992 305,386 
Arkansas 342,265 370,698 
Califurnia 1 ,926,754 1 ,726,088 
Colorado 1 ,430,812 1 .599.473 
Delaware 4,875 4,034 
Florida 338,537 305,000 
Georgia 288,5 5 1  272.625 
Hawaii 19,024 16,275 
Idaho 908,609 844,378 
Illinois 3 1 2,636 308, 1 53 
Indiana 209,380 2 17,829 
Iowa 1 ,692,485 1 ,695.796 
Kansas 3,548,1 1 0  3.606,275 
Kentucky 689,233 673,928 
Louisiana 193,029 176.001 

Maine 1 2,920 13,055 
Maryland 44.o?O 44,355 
Michigan 275,867 267,562 
Minnesota 708,458 675,612 
Mississippi 300, 1 82 323,536 
Missouri 1 ,217,31 8  1 ,243,01 1  
Montana 872,287 916,372 
Nebraska 3,531 .453 3,706,1 53 
Nevada 1 4 1 , 128 1 36,409 

• New Jersey 4,490 5,684 

New Mexico 509,780 622,31 9  
New York 307,326 308,478 
North Carolina 1 84,530 1 56,390 
North Dakota 540, 103 555,924 
Ohio 294,817 307,404 
Oklahoma 1 ,691,797 1 ,61 8,547 
Oregon 48 1 ,458 434,332 
Pennsylvania 399,742 395.997 
South Carolina 84,8% 72,927 
South Dakota 1 ,432,656 1,588,571 
Tennessee 447,88 1 403,701 
Texas 5,1 3 1 ,633 4,992,868 
Utah 343,092 3 1 6,490 
Vermont 49,552 49,948 
Virginia 390,374 347,860 
Washington 554,890 548,954 
West Virginia 91 ,333 85,0 1 1  
W1SCOnsin 720,397 720,502 
Wyoming 422.262 202,428 

Total Qualified State Beef Councils ��.774.30S ��.801,96Z 
States Without Qualified State Beef Councils: 

Alaska 1 00 260 
Connecticut 1 3,398 13,304 
Massachusetts 1 7,287 1 8,903 
New Hampshire 1 1 ,372 1 2,430 
Rhode Island 1,222 Z24 

Total States Without Qualified State Beef Councils ·�.4� 4S,6Sl 
• Importers 6,543,384 5 749 38 1 

Total Assessment Revenues $ 40,3 6 1 ,  1 45 $ 3 9,596,999 

See the accompanying independmt auditors' report. 
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Funded by 
the Beef Checkoff . 



We are fourth generation farmers and ranchers south of Leith, ND and are strong advocates of 
self-help commodity check off programs. We offer our support for HB 1 238 for the following 
reasons: 

1 .  Check off programs, are self-help programs. 
• If we don't stick up for ourselves, who will stick up for us? 
• If we don't speak for ourselves, who is going to represent us? 
• Are we going to let someone else set the agenda for our future in agriculture? 

2. The last beef check off program was set in the mid 1 980's with no inflation factor. 
• We all know how the dollar's purchasing power has been eroded. 
• This is just a small step in playing catch up to 30 years ago. 

3. The check off has done a lot of good, some examples are: 
• Education 

o It has been a vehicle to get accurate information to the public on the 
healthful aspects of lean beef. 

• Research 
o It has been a vehicle to give seed money to leverage check off dollars to 

give accurate research and to help dispel many public misconceptions. 
o It has g iven health care professionals accurate information about the 

healthy aspects of lean beef. 
o It has dispel led statements from adversary groups with accurate science. 

• Advocacy 
o An example of this from a recent issue of "Feedstuffs", where dietary 

guidelines were being set to exclude lean meats-this was reversed. The 
latest gu idelines have included lean meats and eggs, in moderation, in a 
healthy diet without an adverse effect on cholesterol. 

4. It is a voluntary program. 
• Unl ike the mandatory national program, there is a provision to receive a refund if 

you disagree the way the monies are being handled or don't want to support the 
programs. 

• There has been some talk of a referendum every five years-this would be l ike 
fighting Measure 5 every five years. The effort to educate the public about the 
positive aspects of the check off, takes away efforts to protect and enhance our 
industry and our future. 

5.  Gives the possibil ity for future generations. 
• We are not doing this necessarily for ourselves but hopeful ly to allow the 

opportunity for a fifth generation at Blue Hill Ranch. 

Blue H il l  Ranch 

Jamie Hauge 
6230 861h St SW 
Carson , ND 58529 
701 -522-9632 
701 -226-471 4  

Clair Hauge 
8585 62nd Ave SW 
Carson, ND 58529 
701 -522-3360 
701 -226-8036 
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Detailed Schedule of Expenditures 

201 4  201 3  

Admin istration 
Compensation :  

Salaries $ 1 1 8 , 1 7 1 $ 1 1 5 ,957 

Benefits 46, 1 88 42,695 

Per Diem - Commissioners 1 0, 800 8,850 

Operations:  

Rent 1 1 ,984 1 1 ,984 

Equipment/Supplies/Postage 5 ,5 1 5 7 ,8 1 3  

Audit 4,472 4,363 

Telephone 1 ,574 1 ,649 

Compl iance Program 2,471 1 ,380 

I nsurance 638 699 

Travel - Staff 7 ,028 6 ,584 

Travel - Commissioners 1 8 ,744 20,363 

Total Administration $ 227 ,585 $ 222,337 

Program Expenditures 

I nternational  Promotion $ 1 2,728 $ 22,750 

Promotion :  
Advert is ing 32,655 31 ,873 
Retai l  and Food Service 1 ,905 1 ,  1 43 

Research 681 1 8 , 1 25 
Industry I nformation 200 
Consumer I nformation: 

Health 5, 1 52 5 ,678 
Education 21 ,298 22,8 14  
Publ ic Relations and  Media 43,807 55,8 1 6  
Cattlewomen 1 7 ,209 26,541  
Producer I nformation _ _  ,_:- .3; 789 1 7, 1 8 1 

National Program Development 1 24,48 1 58 ,660 
Total Program Expenditures $ 263,708 $ 360,781  

North Dakota Beef Commission 13 
For the Years ended June 30, 2014  and 2013 
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15.0559.01005 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Miller 

March 11, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1238 

Page 2, line 15, overstrike "submit to the commission a written request for a refund" 

Page 2, overstrike line 16 

Page 2, line 17, overstrike "b. The producer must complete the" and insert immediately 
thereafter "complete a" 

Page 2, line 21, overstrike "c.11 and insert immediately thereafter "b." 

Page 2, after line 22, insert: 

"c. The commission shall provide refund applications to a producer upon 
a request made orally or in writing and shall provide printable refund 
applications on the commission's website." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0559.01005 

#/ 
3/!:J./1r-
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.-L"'\ Minnesota Department � of Agriculture 
625 Robert St. N., St. Paul, MN 551 55-2538 
www.mda.state.mn.us 

Agricultural Marketing and Development, Ph: 651 -201 -601 3  

Application for Check-off Refund 

3//J./1{ 

Please check only ONE: D Corn D Dry Edible Beans D Area II Potato D Turkey D Sunflower D Other 

INSTRUCTIONS 
• Form must be filled in completely. Failure to do so will result in delay or denial. 
• Proof of check-off must accompany refund application showing First Purchaser, Date of Deduction, and Amount of Deduction. Failure to do so will result 

in delay or denial. 
• Application must be postmarked within 60 days following the Date of Deduction payment of the check-off fee. Failure to do so will result in denial. 
• Law requires all parties having a financial interest in the commodity sold be listed as payees on the refund check. 
• Applications for refund will not be accepted more than 12 times per year. Return your completed application PLUS ONE COPY OF IT to: 

Minnesota Department of Agriculture, Promotion Councils, 625 Robert Street North, St. Paul, MN, 551 55-2538, and keep a copy for your records. 

We are collecting the following information in order to process and approve your request for a commodity check-off refund. You are not legally required to give us 

this information but we may be unable to process your claim without it. No one will have access to your social security number or financial information except those 

permitted access by law, by your written consent, by a court order or by those department employees whose job duties require access. 

Name of Producer (Must match name on receipt) 
Name/s of others having a financial interest in commodity sold 

Social Security Number or Federal Tax ID Number 

Address 

City 

County 

Complete name and location of First Purchaser 
(Enclose a separate sheet and a copy of it if this space is insufficient) ·-·�- ���;-·-.. 1· �ivery

-
Locati� ;���;- ·-- Check-off 

Date 

TOTAL 

Check-off Amount of 
Amount Request 

$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ $ 
$ 0.00 I $ o.oo 

I hereby certify, under the penalties provided by law for false statement, that this request is true and correct, and that no other request for refund is being filed 

with respect to the commodity sold. 

PRODUCER S SIGNATURE DATE (REQUIRED) 
FOR DEPARTMENTAL USE ONLY 

PAYMENT DATE MDA SIGNATURE 
REQUESTED $ POSTMARKED 
PAYMENT REASON FOR DENIAL 
APPROVED $ DATE 
PAYMENT DISAPPROVED $ 

SEND ORIGI NAL COM PLETED APPLICATION PLUS ONE COPY TO MDA. KEEP A COPY FOR YOUR RECORDS. 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, this information is available in alternative forms of communication upon request by calling 651/201 -6000. 

TIY users can call the Minnesota Relay Service at 71 1 or 1 -800-627-3529. The MDA is an equal opportunity employer and provider. 

AG-03057 WEB 
6/1 3/14 



15.0559.01007 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 
Senator Miller 

March 12, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1238 

Page 2, line 15, overstrike "submit to the commission a written" 

Page 2, line 15, overstrike "for" 

Page 2, line 16, after "application" insert "from the commission" 

Page 2, line 16, after the period insert "The request may be made orally, in writing, or in 
electronic form." 

Page 2, line 19, after the period insert "The application may be returned to the commission in 
person. by mail. or in electronic form." 

Page 2, after line 22, insert: 

"d. A producer is not entitled to a refund under this section unless the 
refundable amount equals or exceeds five dollars." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0559.01007 
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Sixty-fourth 
Legislative Assembly 

1 3. Any person willfully providing false or misleading information to the commission under fl B /;). 3 8 
2 this section is guilty of a class B misdemeanor. 

3 SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 4.1-03-17 of the North Dakota Century Code is 

4 amended and reenacted as follows: 

5 4.1-03-17. RefuAdPermitted refunds of assessment - RequiredRefunds requiring 

6 certification by attorney general. 

7 1. g_,_ When the attorney general certifies to the commission that refunds of 

8 assessments paid in accordance with this chapterunder subdivision a of 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

subsection 1 of section 4.1-03-11 are no longer precluded by federal law, the 

commission may provide refunds to producers refunds of assessments paid 

under subdivision a of subsection 1 of section 4.1-03-11. 

Q,. Refunds of assessments paid under subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 

4.1-03-11 are available, subject to the requirements of this section. 

14 2. a. To receive a permitted refund of any assessment paid in accordance with this 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

chapter, a producer shall submit to the commission a written request fer.a refund 

application from the commission within sixty days after the date of the sale. The 

request may be made orally, in writing, or in electronic form. 

b. The producer must complete the refund application and return the application to 

the commission, together with a record of the assessment paid, within ninety 

days after the date of the sale. The application may be returned to the 

commission in person, by mail, or in electronic form . The commission shall then 

refund the net amount of the assessment that had been collected. 

c. If a request for a refund is not submitted to the commission within the prescribed 

time period, the producer is presumed to have agreed to the assessment. 

d. A producer is not entitled to a refund under this section unless the refundable 

26 amount equals or exceeds five dollars. 

27 SECTION 3. EXPIRATION DATE. Subdivision b of subsection 1 of section 4.1-03-11 is 

28 effective until the attorney general certifies to the commission that the amount of the 

29 assessment due in accordance with federal law, as set forth in subdivision a of subsection 1 of 

30 section 4.1-03-11 , has increased beyond the amount in effect on July 31 , 2015, and is thereafter 

31 ineffective. 

Page No. 2 15.0559.01007 
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15.0559.01008 
Title. 

Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for 3 ft3 fts-
Senator Klein '/' '/ '· 

March 12, 2015 

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO HOUSE BILL NO. 1238 

Page 2, line 15, overstrike "submit to the commission a written" 

Page 2, line 15, overstrike "for" 

Page 2, line 16, after "application" insert "from the commission" 

Page 2, line 16, after the period insert "The request may be made orally, in writing. or in 
electronic form." 

Page 2, line 19, after the period insert "The application may be returned to the commission in 
person, by mail. or in electronic form." 

Renumber accordingly 

Page No. 1 15.0559.01008 


